
 

MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 15, 2017 
6:00 PM – Board Room 
 
 

** TABLE OF CONTENTS ** 
 

  
1 LISD BIENNIAL ELECTION OF SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS – 

CANDIDATE REVIEW 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  



MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT      
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
517-263-0741 
SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 15, 2017 
6:00 PM – Board Room 
 
 

** AGENDA ** 
 

1) LISD BIENNIAL ELECTION OF SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS – CANDIDATE    

REVIEW 

 



MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 15, 2017 
6:05 PM – Board Room 
 

** TABLE OF CONTENTS ** 
 

  
1 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
2 MINUTES FROM THE APRIL 17, 2017 MEETING 

 
3 MONTHLY BILLS 

 
4 SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

 
5 HIGH SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT 

 
6 MIDDLE SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT 

 
     7 

 
ELEMENTARY PRINCIPAL’S REPORT 

 
     8  CAFETERIA MANAGER’S REORT 

 
9       LENAWEE’S CHILD REPORT 

 
10       LISD BIENNIAL ELECTION RESOLUTION 

 
11       DISTRICT HANDBOOKS 

 
13       2017-2018 LISD BUDGET RESOLUTION – SUPPORT OR 

DISAPPROVAL 
 

 continued next page 
  



  
14       NEOLA BYLAWS AND POLICIES – FIRST READING 

 
2221 MANDATORY COURSES PROGRAM 
2461 RECORDING OF DISTRICT 

MEETINGS INVOLVING STUDENTS 
AND/OR PARENTS 

PROGRAM 

2623 STUDENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM 
3120.04 EMPLOYMENT OF SUBSTITUTES PROFESSIONAL 

STAFF 
3121 CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD 

CHECK 
PROFESSIONAL 
STAFF 

4121  CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD 
CHECK 

SUPPORT STAFF 

5330.02 OPIOiD ANTAGONISTS STUDENTS 
5517.01 BULLYING AND OTHER 

AGGRESSIVE BEHAVIOR TOWARD 
STUDENTS 

STUDENTS 

5610 EMERGENCY REMOVAL, 
SUSPENSION, AND EXPULSION OF 
NONDISABLED STUDENTS 

STUDENTS 

5610.01 EXPULSIONS/SUSPENSION – 
REQUIRED BY STATUTE 

STUDENTS 

7540.02 WEB CONTENT, SERVICES AND 
APPS 

PROPERTY 

8330 STUDENT RECORDS OPERATIONS 
8400 SCHOOL SAFETY INFORMATION OPERATIONS 
8500 FOOD SERVICES OPERATIONS 
8510 WELLNESS OPERATIONS 
   

 

15       SCHOOL HEALTH CARE PROVIDER JOB POSTING 
 

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT      
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
517-263-0741 
REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 15, 2017 
6:05 PM – Board Room 
 
 

** AGENDA ** 
 

1) CONSENT AGENDA 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

B. ACCEPTANCE OF REPORTS 

C. APPROVAL OF BILLS/REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES 

2) LISD BIENNIAL ELECTION RESOLUTION 

3) DISTRICT-SPONSORED TRIPS 

4) DISTRICT HANDBOOKS 

5) 2017-2018 LISD BUDGET RESOLUTION 

6) NEOLA BYLAWS & POLICIES, FIRST READING 

(2221, 2461, 2623, 3120.04, 3121, 4121, 5330.02, 5517.01, 5610, 5610.01, 

7540.02, 8330, 8400, 8500, 8510) 

7) TRI COUNTY CONFERENCE BYLAWS  

8) SCHOOL HEALTH CARE PROVIDER JOB POSTING 

9) REQUEST TO MOVE JUNE MEETING DATE 



Madison School District  
Board of Education  
Regular Meeting – Board Room  
April 17, 2017 – 6:00 p.m.  
   
 
Members Present:  Julie Ramos, Ruben Villegas, Natasha Manchester, Mark Swinehart, 
Eric McDonald, Tina Claiborne 
  
Members Absent: Dana Pink 
  
Other Guests:  Ryan Rowe, Kristin Thomas, Brad Anschuetz, Abby Miller, Nate Pechaitis, 
Ramie Overbey, Jill Hogle, Deb Allen. 
 
Superintendent Ryan Rowe communicated to the board that, after 15 years of service to 
the Madison School District, Nurse Ellen Young will be retiring effective July 31, 2017.  
 
Mr. Rowe also reminded the board of the LISD Budget Review meeting on Thursday, 
April 20 at 6:00 pm. Julie Ramos, Mark Swinehart, Natasha Manchester, and Ruben 
Villegas have all RSVP’d and will be accompanying him to this event. Additionally, the 
LISD sent out an invite to all Superintendents and Board Members for the LCASB 
Legislative Breakfast scheduled for Monday, May 8 from 7:30-9:00 am at Morenci High 
School. Julie Ramos and Eric McDonald have RSVP’d to attend with Mr. Rowe. 
 
District Handbook mark-ups are scheduled to be sent to legal for review. Board members 
were reminded to submit any mark-ups or additional comments to Mr. Rowe as soon as 
possible. 
 
2017-18 School Aid Budget Summaries were provided to the board members for their 
review. Included was an informative chart created by the Michigan Association of School 
Administrators that compares the Proposed Budget Allowances of the Governor, House, 
and Senate. 
 
Finally, Mr. Rowe discussed a bill of $9,370 that was received recently as a result of tax 
abatements provided to local businesses.  
 
A motion was made by Tina Claiborne, and supported by Eric McDonald, that the minutes 
of the March 20, 2017 regular meeting be approved, and the list of monthly statements 
totaling $95,994.46 for the General Fund be approved for payment. 
  
Ayes 6       Nays 0         Motion Carried  
 
A motion was made by Mark Swinehart, and supported by Natasha Manchester that the 
Board provide preliminary approval for potential overnight trips for spring athletic teams 
that advance to regional or state competitions. 
 
Ayes 6       Nays 0         Motion Carried  
 
A motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:37 p.m. was made by Eric McDonald, and supported 
by Tina Claiborne. 
  
Ayes 6         Nays 0         Motion Carried  
  

  
Respectfully submitted,  

  
  
          ________________________________________  
         Secretary, Board of Education  



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      REVSTA31
TIME: 08:54:17                                      DETAIL REVENUE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                               PERIOD                     YEAR TO DATE
                                                              BUDGET        RECEIPTS     RECEIVABLES      REVENUE            BALANCE

11-0111-000-0000-00000-0001 0111 CURR TAX ADRIAN CIT      726,764.00             .00             .00      774,303.12      -47,539.12
11-0111-000-0000-00000-0001 0112 CURR TAX MADISON TW    1,133,626.00      -11,155.13             .00    1,160,381.77      -26,755.77
11-0111-000-0000-00000-0001 0113 CURR TAX PALMYRA TW       58,424.00             .00             .00       62,983.75       -4,559.75
11-0111-000-0000-00000-0001 0114 CURR TAX ADRIAN TWP       21,234.00             .00             .00       20,289.00          945.00
11-0111-000-0000-00000-0001 0116 CURR TAX OTHER TAXE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
         TOTAL DEPARTMENT - CURRENT TAX REVENUE         1,940,048.00      -11,155.13             .00    2,017,957.64      -77,909.64

11-0119-000-0000-00000-0002 0119 INT ON DELINQUENT T       16,000.00        8,718.76             .00       16,164.81         -164.81
11-0131-000-0000-00000-0002 0131 TUITION PARENT PAY        12,380.00             .00             .00        2,069.25       10,310.75
11-0151-000-0000-00000-0002 0151 INTEREST ON INVESTM        8,000.00             .00             .00       14,243.33       -6,243.33
11-0171-000-0000-00000-0002 0171 ADMISSIONS ADMISSIO      105,000.00             .00             .00             .00      105,000.00
11-0173-000-0000-00000-0002 0173 EXTRA TRIP SURCHARG             .00             .00             .00          301.07         -301.07
11-0181-000-0000-00000-0002 0181 LATCH KEY PARENT PA       43,400.00             .00             .00       39,483.25        3,916.75
11-0191-000-0000-00000-0002 0191 RENTAL SCHOOL RENTA        9,400.00             .00             .00        9,700.00         -300.00
11-0199-000-0000-00000-0002 0195 MISC MISC CAFE            24,000.00             .00             .00             .00       24,000.00
11-0199-000-0000-00000-0002 0199 MISC MISC                 29,885.00             .00             .00       14,914.75       14,970.25
         TOTAL DEPARTMENT - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE           248,065.00        8,718.76             .00       96,876.46      151,188.54

11-0311-000-0000-00000-0003 0010 STATE AID MEMBERSHI   10,056,067.00             .00             .00    5,614,405.92    4,441,661.08
11-0311-000-0000-00000-0003 0207 STATE AID MEMBERSHI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0311-000-0000-00000-0003 0208 STATE AID MEMBERSHI    1,099,393.00             .00             .00      572,402.48      526,990.52
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0020 AR SEC 31A AT-RISK       562,839.00             .00             .00      329,533.94      233,305.06
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0100 AR SEC 31A STATE AI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0110 AR SEC 31A LUNCH                .00             .00             .00       15,529.12      -15,529.12
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0120 AR SEC 31A SPEC ED       420,859.00             .00             .00      216,093.36      204,765.64
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0208 AR SEC 31A UAAL                 .00             .00             .00       64,592.52      -64,592.52
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0210 AR SEC 31A TECHNOLO       12,000.00             .00             .00             .00       12,000.00
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0211 AR SEC 31A UNREST A             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0313 AR SEC 31A STATE AI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0359 AR SEC 31A COMPUTER             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0312-000-0000-00000-0003 0367 AR SEC 31A EARLY LI       22,275.00             .00             .00       11,878.81       10,396.19
11-0317-000-0000-00000-0003 0210 REST ANOTHER SCHOOL             .00             .00             .00        3,631.86       -3,631.86
         TOTAL DEPARTMENT - STATE REVENUE CATEGORICA   12,173,433.00             .00             .00    6,828,068.01    5,345,364.99

11-0412-000-0000-00000-0004 0240 STAB ARRA EDU JOBS              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0414-000-0000-00000-0004 0140 SPS REV TITLE I          256,461.00             .00             .00             .00      256,461.00
11-0414-000-0000-00000-0004 0141 SPS REV TITLE I CAR       35,954.00             .00             .00             .00       35,954.00
11-0414-000-0000-00000-0004 0150 SPS REV TITLE VA IN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0414-000-0000-00000-0004 0210 SPS REV TECHNOLOGY              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0414-000-0000-00000-0004 0490 SPS REV TITLE II D              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0414-000-0000-00000-0004 0764 SPS REV II TEACHER        44,141.00             .00             .00             .00       44,141.00
11-0414-000-0000-00000-0004 0768 SPS REV RURAL             29,609.00             .00             .00             .00       29,609.00
11-0417-000-0000-00000-0004 0060 RESTR REV DRUG FREE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0417-000-0000-00000-0004 0160 RESTR REV TRANSITIO             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0417-000-0000-00000-0004 0199 RESTR REV MISC                  .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0417-000-0000-00000-0004 0211 RESTR REV UNREST AN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0417-000-0000-00000-0004 0220 RESTR REV PARENT ED             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0417-000-0000-00000-0004 0416 RESTR REV MEDICAID         2,500.00             .00             .00        2,672.18         -172.18
11-0419-000-0000-00000-0004 0419 MISC - FED SPEC ED              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      REVSTA31
TIME: 08:54:17                                      DETAIL REVENUE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                               PERIOD                     YEAR TO DATE
                                                              BUDGET        RECEIPTS     RECEIVABLES      REVENUE            BALANCE

         TOTAL DEPARTMENT - FEDERAL REVENUE               368,665.00             .00             .00        2,672.18      365,992.82

11-0511-000-0000-00000-0005 0511 SPEC ED TUITION           39,185.00             .00             .00             .00       39,185.00
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0122 LISD SPEC ED LISD S      705,571.00             .00             .00      620,333.94       85,237.06
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0196 LISD SPEC ED INNOVA       23,000.00             .00             .00       11,500.00       11,500.00
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0197 LISD SPEC ED PLTW         84,453.00             .00             .00             .00       84,453.00
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0198 LISD SPEC ED CAREER        8,000.00             .00             .00             .00        8,000.00
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0199 LISD SPEC ED MISC         47,979.00             .00             .00       25,251.63       22,727.37
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0220 LISD SPEC ED PARENT        9,655.00             .00             .00        5,219.95        4,435.05
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0303 LISD SPEC ED CAREER             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0340 LISD SPEC ED MICHIG      230,362.00             .00             .00       12,809.85      217,552.15
11-0519-000-0000-00000-0005 0416 LISD SPEC ED MEDICA             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0541-000-0000-00000-0005 0541 INSURANCE DIVIDENDS       13,956.00             .00             .00             .00       13,956.00
11-0552-000-0000-00000-0005 0552 ADJ TO PRIOR YRS AC             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-0593-000-0000-00000-0005 0593 SALE SCHOOL PROPERT          200.00             .00             .00             .00          200.00
11-0625-000-0000-00000-0005 0625 FUND MOD CAFE FUND              .00             .00             .00        4,052.94       -4,052.94
         TOTAL DEPARTMENT - INCOMING TRANSFERS          1,162,361.00             .00             .00      679,168.31      483,192.69

         TOTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND                     15,892,572.00       -2,436.37             .00    9,624,742.60    6,267,829.40

TOTAL REPORT                                           15,892,572.00       -2,436.37             .00    9,624,742.60    6,267,829.40



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-2134-000-0000-00000-0000 2130 CAFETERIA EMPLOYEE              .00           44.86             .00          224.30         -224.30
11-2134-000-0000-00000-0000 2820 CAFETERIA EMPLOYEE              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-2134-000-0000-00000-0000 2830 CAFETERIA EMPLOYER              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - INTERFUND                               .00           44.86             .00          224.30         -224.30

11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 1226 EL.PRE SUPERVISION         8,779.00          650.26             .00        7,152.86        1,626.14
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 1240 EL.PRE SALARY TEACH      109,580.00        9,566.92             .00       81,318.82       28,261.18
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 1630 EL.PRE SALARY AIDE        46,730.00        5,439.19             .00       38,168.09        8,561.91
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 1639 EL.PRE TRANS AIDE               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 1870 EL.PRE SALARY-SUBST             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 2130 EL.PRE EMPLOYEE INS       28,104.00             .00             .00       22,035.06        6,068.94
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 2820 EL.PRE EMPLOYEE RET       61,246.00        3,654.73             .00       29,746.57       31,499.43
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 2821 EL.PRE RETIREMT STU       21,934.75             .00             .00       11,963.22        9,971.53
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 2830 EL.PRE EMPLOYER SOC       13,690.00        1,159.35             .00        9,237.55        4,452.45
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 2840 EL.PRE WORKMANS COM          100.00             .00             .00           77.00           23.00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 2920 EL.PRE CASH IN LIEU          921.00           45.50             .00          500.50          420.50
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 2990 EL.PRE SICK DAY REI          863.00             .00             .00             .00          863.00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 3110 EL.PRE PURCHASED SE          300.00             .00             .00             .00          300.00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 3210 EL.PRE MILEAGE REIM             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 3220 EL.PRE WKSHOPS/CONF          250.00           15.00             .00          459.00         -209.00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 4120 EL.PRE REPAIRS/MAIN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 5110 EL.PRE TEACHING SUP        2,000.00             .00             .00          735.42        1,264.58
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 5140 EL.PRE TRANSPORTATI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 5990 EL.PRE MISC. SUPPLI          300.00             .00             .00             .00          300.00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 6410 EL.PRE NEW EQUIP/FU          700.00             .00             .00        7,392.00       -6,692.00
11-1118-000-0340-02315-0010 7410 EL.PRE DUES/CHAUFFE          400.00             .00             .00           66.00          334.00
11-1213-000-0340-02315-0010 3130 EL.NURSE NURSING                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1216-000-0340-02315-0010 1440 EL.SOCWRK SALARY PS        3,396.00          261.26             .00        2,220.73        1,175.27
11-1216-000-0340-02315-0010 2820 EL.SOCWRK EMPLOYEE              .00           65.16             .00          556.05         -556.05
11-1216-000-0340-02315-0010 2830 EL.SOCWRK EMPLOYER              .00           21.40             .00          176.72         -176.72
11-1216-000-0340-02315-0010 2920 EL.SOCWRK CASH IN L             .00           23.62             .00          200.78         -200.78
11-1271-000-0340-02315-0010 1610 EL.TRANS SALARY VEH        7,739.00             .00             .00             .00        7,739.00
11-1271-000-0340-02315-0010 2820 EL.TRANS EMPLOYEE R             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1271-000-0340-02315-0010 2830 EL.TRANS EMPLOYER S             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - PRE-SCHOOL INSTRUCTION           307,032.75       20,902.39             .00      212,006.37       95,026.38

11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 1240 EL.REG SALARY TEACH    2,540,820.00      196,756.09             .00    1,664,664.77      876,155.23
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 1242 EL.REG ISSI                     .00             .00             .00          155.26         -155.26
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 1870 EL.REG SALARY-SUBST        1,944.00             .00             .00        1,081.94          862.06
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2130 EL.REG EMPLOYEE INS      524,162.00             .00             .00      294,645.09      229,516.91
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2210 EL.REG EARLY RETIRE       15,000.00             .00             .00       15,000.00             .00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2820 EL.REG EMPLOYEE RET      947,527.00       49,366.05             .00      419,429.69      528,097.31
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2821 EL.REG RETIREMT STU      304,462.70             .00             .00      166,053.94      138,408.76
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2830 EL.REG EMPLOYER SOC      201,094.00       14,915.98             .00      125,953.52       75,140.48



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2840 EL.REG WORKMANS COM        4,700.00             .00             .00        1,902.00        2,798.00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2850 EL.REG UNEMPLOYMENT        1,543.00             .00             .00          198.22        1,344.78
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2920 EL.REG CASH IN LIEU       79,846.00        7,681.28             .00       65,344.25       14,501.75
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 2990 EL.REG SICK DAY REI        6,075.00             .00             .00             .00        6,075.00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 3110 EL.REG PURCHASED SE       31,363.00             .00             .00       26,508.43        4,854.57
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 3112 EL.REG PURCH NWEA          8,627.00             .00             .00        8,902.80         -275.80
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 3130 EL.REG NURSING                  .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 3220 EL.REG WKSHOPS/CONF          300.00             .00             .00           36.00          264.00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 3450 EL.REG SOFTWARE           10,000.00             .00          463.30       10,255.42         -718.72
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 4120 EL.REG REPAIRS/MAIN          500.00             .00             .00             .00          500.00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 4190 EL.REG TECH REPAIRS          100.00          788.02             .00        4,831.56       -4,731.56
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 4220 EL.REG CONTRACT SER        6,900.00          650.39             .00        7,635.66         -735.66
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 5110 EL.REG TEACHING SUP       39,400.00             .00          314.40       37,448.41        1,637.19
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 5119 EL.REG MIBLSI                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 5123 EL.REG ISSI                     .00             .00             .00          555.34         -555.34
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 5210 EL.REG TEXTBOOKS          34,000.00        1,028.35             .00       33,546.35          453.65
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 5990 EL.REG MISC. SUPPLI        2,600.00             .00             .00        2,659.70          -59.70
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 5997 EL.REG TECH SUPPLIE          500.00           97.99          175.94        1,126.96         -802.90
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 6410 EL.REG NEW EQUIP/FU       24,750.00             .00             .00        5,121.80       19,628.20
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 6427 EL.REG TECH EQUIPME        9,500.00        1,621.63             .00       52,815.44      -43,315.44
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 7410 EL.REG DUES/CHAUFFE          650.00             .00             .00          750.00         -100.00
11-1111-000-0000-02315-0011 8220 EL.REG PAYMT TO ANO        6,300.00        1,611.26             .00        5,283.85        1,016.15
11-1213-000-0000-02315-0011 3130 EL.REG.NURSE NURSIN       35,131.00        2,555.19             .00       23,105.54       12,025.46
11-1259-000-0000-02315-0011 3990 EL.BUS STUDENT INS         6,895.00             .00             .00        6,607.50          287.50
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - ELEMENTARY INSTRUCTION         4,844,689.70      277,072.23          953.64    2,981,619.44    1,862,116.62

11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 1240 HS.REG SALARY TEACH    1,344,508.00      110,998.86             .00      929,277.60      415,230.40
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 1242 HS.REG ISSI                1,576.00             .00             .00          776.30          799.70
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 1243 HS.REG PLTW                     .00             .00             .00          300.00         -300.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 1870 HS.REG SALARY-SUBST          150.00           35.00             .00          905.00         -755.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2130 HS.REG EMPLOYEE INS      325,882.00          440.46             .00      223,243.84      102,638.16
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2210 HS.REG EARLY RETIRE       15,000.00             .00             .00       15,000.00             .00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2820 HS.REG EMPLOYEE RET      509,543.00       27,962.49             .00      234,008.94      275,534.06
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2821 HS.REG RETIREMT STU      175,268.08             .00             .00       95,591.22       79,676.86
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2830 HS.REG EMPLOYER SOC      103,699.00        8,171.53             .00       68,781.54       34,917.46
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2840 HS.REG WORKMANS COM        2,742.00             .00             .00        1,296.00        1,446.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2850 HS.REG UNEMPLOYMENT        1,543.00             .00             .00           14.55        1,528.45
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2920 HS.REG CASH IN LIEU             .00        1,294.56             .00       11,230.56      -11,230.56
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 2990 HS.REG SICK DAY REI        7,463.00             .00             .00             .00        7,463.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3110 HS.REG PURCHASED SE       18,000.00             .00             .00        7,491.61       10,508.39
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3112 HS.REG PURCH NWEA          3,300.00             .00             .00        3,813.85         -513.85
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3130 HS.REG NURSING             6,910.00             .00             .00             .00        6,910.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3220 HS.REG WKSHOPS/CONF          100.00           15.00             .00        1,560.45       -1,460.45
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3450 HS.REG SOFTWARE            7,500.00             .00          293.80       14,329.04       -7,122.84
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3710 HS.REG CAP                      .00             .00             .00             .00             .00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3711 HS.REG TUITION COLL       44,758.00             .00             .00       57,986.72      -13,228.72
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 3990 HS.REG STUDENT INSU        3,448.00             .00             .00             .00        3,448.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 4120 HS.REG REPAIRS/MAIN          400.00             .00             .00             .00          400.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 4190 HS.REG TECH REPAIRS          500.00          113.36         -113.36        2,982.30       -2,368.94
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 4220 HS.REG CONTRACT SER        5,000.00          375.20             .00        4,639.31          360.69
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5110 HS.REG TEACHING SUP       15,000.00          803.06          493.48       14,634.75         -128.23
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5121 HS.REG PLTW               10,000.00             .00          450.89        6,891.70        2,657.41
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5122 HS.REG CAREER PREP         6,001.00       -4,746.00             .00        2,746.86        3,254.14
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5123 HS.REG ISSI               23,000.00             .00             .00          555.33       22,444.67
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5130 HS.REG GRADUATION E        1,600.00          475.22          -71.11        2,451.64         -780.53
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5210 HS.REG TEXTBOOKS           5,000.00             .00             .00       11,877.05       -6,877.05
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5211 HS.REG 20/20 VIRTUA        8,250.00             .00             .00             .00        8,250.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5990 HS.REG MISC. SUPPLI        7,300.00          252.44             .00        4,145.34        3,154.66
11-1113-000-0696-02316-0012 5990 HS.REG.DRUG MISC. S          400.00             .00             .00             .00          400.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 5997 HS.REG TECH SUPPLIE          300.00             .00           97.99          634.44         -432.43
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 6410 HS.REG NEW EQUIP/FU       25,350.00             .00             .00       11,998.08       13,351.92
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 6427 HS.REG TECH EQUIPME        5,000.00          912.59          375.00       18,021.41      -13,396.41
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 6450 HS.REG MUSIC INST N        2,000.00           85.00             .00        2,977.71         -977.71
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 7410 HS.REG DUES/CHAUFFE        1,000.00             .00             .00        2,156.09       -1,156.09
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 8210 HS.REG PREP ACADEMY       19,575.00        4,746.00             .00        4,746.00       14,829.00
11-1113-000-0000-02316-0012 8220 HS.REG PAYMT TO ANO        6,300.00        1,611.27             .00        5,283.89        1,016.11
11-1213-000-0000-02316-0012 3130 HS.NURSE NURSING                .00          425.86             .00        4,024.09       -4,024.09
11-1259-000-0000-02316-0012 3990 HS.BUS STUDENT INS              .00             .00             .00        3,303.75       -3,303.75
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - H.S. BASIC INSTRUCT            2,713,366.08      153,971.90        1,526.69    1,769,676.96      942,162.43

11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 1240 MS.REG SALARY TEACH      993,405.00       80,389.91             .00      683,537.10      309,867.90
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 1242 MS.REG ISSI                1,870.00             .00             .00          155.26        1,714.74
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 1243 MS.REG PLTW                3,000.00             .00             .00        2,087.20          912.80
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 1870 MS.REG SALARY-SUBST          400.00           30.00             .00          180.30          219.70
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2130 MS.REG EMPLOYEE INS      203,928.00          308.32             .00      145,350.30       58,577.70
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2820 MS.REG EMPLOYEE RET      372,003.00       20,206.34             .00      173,073.64      198,929.36
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2821 MS.REG RETIREMT STU      124,891.63             .00             .00       68,115.90       56,775.73
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2830 MS.REG EMPLOYER SOC       79,022.00        6,125.28             .00       51,539.24       27,482.76
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2840 MS.REG WORKMANS COM        1,950.00             .00             .00          931.00        1,019.00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2850 MS.REG UNEMPLOYMENT             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2920 MS.REG CASH IN LIEU       33,635.00        3,272.86             .00       27,535.93        6,099.07
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 2990 MS.REG SICK DAY REI        3,660.00             .00             .00             .00        3,660.00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 3110 MS.REG PURCHASED SE       11,400.00             .00             .00        7,585.92        3,814.08
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 3112 MS.REG PURCH NWEA          5,500.00             .00             .00        5,538.35          -38.35
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 3130 MS.REG NURSING             6,891.00             .00             .00             .00        6,891.00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 3220 MS.REG WKSHOPS/CONF           25.00           15.00             .00           96.00          -71.00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 3228 MS.REG PLTW TRAVEL              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 3450 MS.REG SOFTWARE            8,500.00             .00          350.30        7,150.10          999.60
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 3990 MS.REG STUDENT INSU        3,448.00             .00             .00             .00        3,448.00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 4120 MS.REG REPAIRS/MAIN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 4190 MS.REG TECH REPAIRS           50.00          162.11          -56.68        1,980.08       -1,873.40
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 4220 MS.REG CONTRACT SER        5,410.00          310.72             .00        3,986.18        1,423.82
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5110 MS.REG TEACHING SUP       13,000.00             .00          232.50       11,207.93        1,559.57
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5119 MS.REG MIBLSI                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5121 MS.REG PLTW                     .00             .00             .00        9,510.50       -9,510.50
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5122 MS.REG CAREER PREP         1,200.00             .00             .00             .00        1,200.00
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5123 MS.REG ISSI                     .00             .00             .00          555.33         -555.33
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5210 MS.REG TEXTBOOKS          12,500.00             .00           12.50        1,887.25       10,600.25
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5990 MS.REG MISC. SUPPLI        3,250.00          252.44             .00        1,502.44        1,747.56
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 5997 MS.REG TECH SUPPLIE          200.00           97.99           77.95          680.75         -558.70
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 6410 MS.REG NEW EQUIP/FU       22,600.00             .00             .00        6,413.48       16,186.52
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 6427 MS.REG TECH EQUIPME        5,500.00           94.23          375.00       15,232.42      -10,107.42
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 6450 MS.REG MUSIC INST N        2,050.00          150.00             .00        1,295.54          754.46
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 7410 MS.REG DUES/CHAUFFE          800.00             .00             .00        1,200.11         -400.11
11-1112-000-0000-07262-0013 8220 MS.REG PAYMT TO ANO        6,300.00        1,611.26             .00        5,283.86        1,016.14
11-1213-000-0000-07262-0013 3130 MS.NURSE NURSING                .00          425.87             .00        4,024.10       -4,024.10
11-1259-000-0000-07262-0013 3990 MS. BUS STUDENT INS             .00             .00             .00        3,303.75       -3,303.75
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - M.S. BASIC INSTRUCT            1,926,388.63      113,452.33          991.57    1,240,939.96      684,457.10

11-1113-000-0375-02316-0015 1240 HS.REG.DRIVER SALAR        6,656.00             .00             .00        2,831.43        3,824.57
11-1113-000-0375-02316-0015 2820 HS.REG.DRIVER EMPLO        2,499.00             .00             .00          726.01        1,772.99
11-1113-000-0375-02316-0015 2821 HS.REG.DRIVER RETIR          629.71             .00             .00          343.44          286.27
11-1113-000-0375-02316-0015 2830 HS.REG.DRIVER EMPLO          509.00             .00             .00          209.46          299.54
11-1113-000-0375-02316-0015 4120 HS.REG.DRIVER REPAI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1113-000-0375-02316-0015 5110 HS.REG.DRIVER TEACH          200.00             .00             .00             .00          200.00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - DRIVERS EDUCATION                 10,493.71             .00             .00        4,110.34        6,383.37

11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 1240 EL.SPEC.RES SALARY       694,850.00       53,444.08             .00      454,094.83      240,755.17
11-1122-194-0202-02316-0016 1240 HS.SPEC.RES SALARY              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-07262-0016 1240 MS.SPEC.RES SALARY              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-193-0202-02315-0016 1632 EL.SPEC.AI AIDE-AI        53,542.00        8,590.50             .00       64,423.13      -10,881.13
11-1122-110-0202-02315-0016 1634 EL.SPEC.EMI AIDE-MC       21,920.00        1,521.50             .00       14,881.46        7,038.54
11-1122-110-0202-02316-0016 1636 HS.SPEC.EMI AIDE -        39,063.00        1,706.10             .00       15,985.40       23,077.60
11-1122-196-0202-02316-0016 1638 HS.SPEC.LRE LRE AID       64,537.00        8,805.42             .00       77,568.59      -13,031.59
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 1870 EL.SPEC.RES SALARY-          205.00             .00             .00           70.00          135.00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2130 EL.SPEC.RES EMPLOYE      198,252.00        4,833.64             .00      112,664.93       85,587.07
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2210 EL.SPEC.RES EARLY R             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-193-0202-02315-0016 2820 EL.SPEC.AI EMPLOYEE             .00        2,241.65             .00       16,841.50      -16,841.50
11-1122-110-0202-02315-0016 2820 EL.SPEC.EMI EMPLOYE             .00          382.11             .00        3,763.32       -3,763.32
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2820 EL.SPEC.RES EMPLOYE      320,470.00       13,328.94             .00      113,714.19      206,755.81
11-1122-110-0202-02316-0016 2820 HS.SPEC.EMI EMPLOYE             .00          425.50             .00        4,001.02       -4,001.02
11-1122-196-0202-02316-0016 2820 HS.SPEC.LRE EMPLOYE             .00        2,104.24             .00       16,266.68      -16,266.68
11-1122-194-0202-02316-0016 2820 HS.SPEC.RES EMPLOYE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-07262-0016 2820 MS.SPEC.RES EMPLOYE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2821 EL.SPEC.RES RETIREM      107,154.92             .00             .00       58,442.28       48,712.64
11-1122-193-0202-02315-0016 2830 EL.SPEC.AI EMPLOYER             .00          657.12             .00        4,928.28       -4,928.28
11-1122-110-0202-02315-0016 2830 EL.SPEC.EMI EMPLOYE             .00          116.37             .00        1,138.42       -1,138.42
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2830 EL.SPEC.RES EMPLOYE       66,810.00        3,880.22             .00       32,535.73       34,274.27
11-1122-110-0202-02316-0016 2830 HS.SPEC.EMI EMPLOYE             .00          130.50             .00        1,222.85       -1,222.85
11-1122-196-0202-02316-0016 2830 HS.SPEC.LRE EMPLOYE             .00          673.63             .00        5,930.60       -5,930.60
11-1122-194-0202-02316-0016 2830 HS.SPEC.RES EMPLOYE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-07262-0016 2830 MS.SPEC.RES EMPLOYE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2840 EL.SPEC.RES WORKMAN        1,198.00             .00             .00          641.00          557.00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2920 EL.SPEC.RES CASH IN             .00          472.48             .00        4,016.08       -4,016.08
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 2990 EL.SPEC.RES SICK DA          825.00             .00             .00             .00          825.00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 3110 EL.SPEC.RES PURCHAS        5,300.00             .00             .00        2,475.81        2,824.19
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 3113 EL.SPEC.RES HAVILAN       78,480.00             .00             .00       17,632.00       60,848.00
11-1122-194-0202-02316-0016 3221 HS.SPEC.RES TRAVEL              .00             .00             .00           50.00          -50.00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 3222 EL.SPEC.RES TRAVEL              .00             .00             .00          100.00         -100.00
11-1122-110-0202-02315-0016 3224 EL.SPEC.EMI TRAVEL              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-110-0202-02316-0016 3226 HS.SPEC.EMI TRAVEL              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 4220 EL.SPEC.RES CONTRAC          375.00           23.40             .00          327.95           47.05
11-1122-170-0202-07262-0016 5110 HS.SPEC.VI TEACHING             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-02316-0016 5111 HS.SPEC.RES SUPPLIE          650.00             .00             .00          608.37           41.63
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 5112 EL.SPEC.RES SUPPLIE        1,350.00             .00             .00          441.66          908.34
11-1122-110-0202-02315-0016 5114 EL.SPEC.EMI SUPPLIE        1,100.00             .00             .00          488.04          611.96
11-1122-110-0202-02316-0016 5116 HS.SPEC.EMI SUPPLIE          800.00             .00             .00             .00          800.00
11-1122-194-0202-02316-0016 5991 HS.SPEC.RES MISC HS           25.00             .00             .00             .00           25.00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 5992 EL.SPEC.RES MISC EL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-110-0202-02315-0016 5994 EL.SPEC.EMI MISC MC             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-110-0202-02316-0016 5996 HS.SPEC.EMI MISC SE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-02316-0016 6421 HS.SPEC.RES FURN/EQ             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-194-0202-02315-0016 6422 EL.SPEC.RES FURN/EQ           25.00             .00             .00             .00           25.00
11-1122-110-0202-02315-0016 6424 EL.SPEC.EMI FURN/EQ             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1122-110-0202-02316-0016 6426 HS.SPEC.EMI FURN/EQ          100.00             .00             .00             .00          100.00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - SPECIAL EDUCATION              1,657,031.92      103,337.40             .00    1,025,254.12      631,777.80

11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 1240 EL.COMP.TTL 1 SALAR             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0601-02316-0017 1240 HS.COMP.TTL 1 SALAR        3,374.00        3,374.00             .00        3,374.00             .00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 1241 EL.COMP.TTL 1 SALAR             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 1250 EL.COMP.TTL 1 INSTR       57,258.00             .00             .00        2,120.68       55,137.32
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 1630 EL.COMP.TTL 1 SALAR       52,658.00        6,191.72             .00       47,924.79        4,733.21
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 1637 EL.COMP.TTL 1 AIDE        42,445.00        3,324.84             .00       31,026.67       11,418.33
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 2130 EL.COMP.TTL 1 EMPLO        2,744.00          493.01             .00        1,545.24        1,198.76
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 2820 EL.COMP.TTL 1 EMPLO       71,654.00        2,294.94             .00       20,832.54       50,821.46
11-1125-000-0601-02316-0017 2820 HS.COMP.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00          842.00             .00          842.00         -842.00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 2821 EL.COMP.TTL 1 RETIR       23,613.96             .00             .00       12,879.06       10,734.90
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 2830 EL.COMP.TTL 1 EMPLO       15,185.00          683.37             .00        6,171.30        9,013.70
11-1125-000-0601-02316-0017 2830 HS.COMP.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00          258.00             .00          258.00         -258.00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 2840 EL.COMP.TTL 1 WORKM             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 2920 EL.COMP.TTL 1 CASH         7,962.00             .00             .00          181.99        7,780.01
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 2990 EL.COMP.TTL 1 SICK           900.00             .00             .00             .00          900.00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 3220 EL.COMP.TTL 1 WKSHO             .00          249.00             .00          249.00         -249.00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 4220 EL.COMP.TTL 1 CONTR             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 5110 EL.COMP.TTL 1 TEACH        1,000.00             .00             .00             .00        1,000.00
11-1125-000-0601-02316-0017 5110 HS.COMP.TTL 1 TEACH          382.00           30.00             .00           66.00          316.00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 6410 EL.COMP.TTL 1 NEW E             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0601-02315-0017 8220 EL.COMP.TTL 1 PAYMT             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1212-000-0601-02315-0017 1220 EL.COUN.TTL 1 SALAR       23,775.00        1,828.82             .00       15,544.91        8,230.09
11-1212-000-0601-02315-0017 2130 EL.COUN.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1212-000-0601-02315-0017 2820 EL.COUN.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00          456.10             .00        3,892.19       -3,892.19
11-1212-000-0601-02315-0017 2830 EL.COUN.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00          149.72             .00        1,236.69       -1,236.69
11-1212-000-0601-02315-0017 2920 EL.COUN.TTL 1 CASH              .00          165.38             .00        1,405.71       -1,405.71
11-1213-000-0601-02315-0017 3130 EL.NURSE.TTL 1 NURS             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1221-000-0601-02315-0017 1250 EL.INST.TTL 1 INSTR             .00        4,241.36             .00       44,534.28      -44,534.28
11-1221-000-0601-02315-0017 2130 EL.INST.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1221-000-0601-02315-0017 2820 EL.INST.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00        1,057.80             .00       11,213.76      -11,213.76
11-1221-000-0601-02315-0017 2830 EL.INST.TTL 1 EMPLO             .00          352.32             .00        3,699.36       -3,699.36
11-1221-000-0601-02315-0017 2920 EL.INST.TTL 1 CASH              .00          363.98             .00        3,821.79       -3,821.79
11-1226-000-0601-02315-0017 1160 EL.DIR.TTL 1 SALARY       13,168.00          975.40             .00       10,751.90        2,416.10
11-1226-000-0601-02315-0017 2130 EL.DIR.TTL 1 EMPLOY             .00             .00             .00          171.43         -171.43
11-1226-000-0601-02315-0017 2820 EL.DIR.TTL 1 EMPLOY             .00          243.26             .00        2,710.36       -2,710.36
11-1226-000-0601-02315-0017 2830 EL.DIR.TTL 1 EMPLOY             .00           79.50             .00          876.75         -876.75
11-1226-000-0601-02315-0017 2920 EL.DIR.TTL 1 CASH I             .00           68.24             .00          750.64         -750.64
11-1231-000-0601-02315-0017 3180 EL.BOE.TTL 1 AUDIT           900.00             .00             .00             .00          900.00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - TITLE I                          317,018.96       27,722.76             .00      228,081.04       88,937.92

11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1220 EL.COMP.AR SALARY C       16,982.00        1,306.32             .00       11,103.74        5,878.26
11-1125-000-0306-07262-0018 1220 MS.COMP.AR SALARY C       64,905.00        5,015.22             .00       42,629.36       22,275.64
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1240 EL.COMP.AR SALARY T             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02316-0018 1240 HS.COMP.AR SALARY T             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-07262-0018 1240 MS.COMP.AR SALARY T       36,346.00        2,782.70             .00       23,652.93       12,693.07
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1250 EL.COMP.AR INSTR SP       14,315.00        1,060.34             .00       11,663.74        2,651.26
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1290 EL.COMP.AR OTHER PR       51,899.00        3,844.40             .00       42,468.40        9,430.60
11-1125-000-0306-02316-0018 1290 HS.COMP.AR OTHER PR       52,179.00        3,791.02             .00       41,701.22       10,477.78
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1630 EL.COMP.AR SALARY A       87,345.00        6,897.44             .00       60,915.50       26,429.50
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1631 EL.COMP.AR TUTOR           6,357.00          854.15             .00        4,935.13        1,421.87
11-1125-000-0306-02316-0018 1631 HS.COMP.AR TUTOR           2,819.00       -2,788.72             .00        2,382.65          436.35
11-1125-000-0306-07262-0018 1631 MS.COMP.AR TUTOR           8,845.00          972.72             .00        6,953.31        1,891.69
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1633 EL.COMP.AR EARLY LI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1637 EL.COMP.AR AIDE - S             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-07262-0018 1637 MS.COMP.AR AIDE - S       20,941.00        1,937.93             .00        9,980.63       10,960.37
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 1870 EL.COMP.AR SALARY-S             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 2130 EL.COMP.AR EMPLOYEE       30,024.00        1,559.60             .00       17,203.93       12,820.07



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 2820 EL.COMP.AR EMPLOYEE      133,944.00        3,501.08             .00       33,102.95      100,841.05
11-1125-000-0306-02316-0018 2820 HS.COMP.AR EMPLOYEE             .00          248.55             .00       11,101.35      -11,101.35
11-1125-000-0306-07262-0018 2820 MS.COMP.AR EMPLOYEE             .00        2,558.36             .00       20,026.01      -20,026.01
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 2821 EL.COMP.AR RETIREMT       45,443.76             .00             .00       24,785.04       20,658.72
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 2830 EL.COMP.AR EMPLOYER       28,767.00        1,077.61             .00       10,111.86       18,655.14
11-1125-000-0306-02316-0018 2830 HS.COMP.AR EMPLOYER             .00          108.62             .00        3,727.45       -3,727.45
11-1125-000-0306-07262-0018 2830 MS.COMP.AR EMPLOYER             .00          810.65             .00        6,288.90       -6,288.90
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 2840 EL.COMP.AR WORKMANS          350.00             .00             .00          350.00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 2920 EL.COMP.AR CASH IN         8,906.00          209.12             .00        2,005.02        6,900.98
11-1125-000-0306-02316-0018 2920 HS.COMP.AR CASH IN              .00          454.98             .00        5,004.78       -5,004.78
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 2990 EL.COMP.AR SICK DAY             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 3220 EL.COMP.AR WKSHOPS/          240.00             .00             .00             .00          240.00
11-1125-000-0306-07262-0018 3220 MS.COMP.AR WKSHOPS/             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 3227 EL.COMP.AR TRAVE &              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 5110 EL.COMP.AR TEACHING             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 5117 EL.COMP.AR TEACHING             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 5118 EL.COMP.AR STUDENT              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 5990 EL.COMP.AR MISC. SU             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 6410 EL.COMP.AR NEW EQUI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0306-02315-0018 6417 EL.COMP.AR EQUIP/FU             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1213-000-0306-02315-0018 3130 EL.NURSE.AR NURSING             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - AT RISK                          610,607.76       36,202.09             .00      392,093.90      218,513.86

11-1221-000-0764-02315-0019 1240 EL.TITLE II A SALAR             .00             .00             .00       10,468.26      -10,468.26
11-1221-000-0764-02316-0019 1240 HS.TITLE II A SALAR             .00             .00             .00        5,323.77       -5,323.77
11-1221-000-0764-07262-0019 1240 MS.TITLE II A SALAR             .00             .00             .00        1,597.34       -1,597.34
11-1221-000-0764-02315-0019 2820 EL.TITLE II A EMPLO        1,957.00             .00             .00        2,698.01         -741.01
11-1221-000-0764-02316-0019 2820 HS.TITLE II A EMPLO             .00             .00             .00        1,378.86       -1,378.86
11-1221-000-0764-07262-0019 2820 MS.TITLE II A EMPLO             .00             .00             .00          417.73         -417.73
11-1221-000-0764-02315-0019 2830 EL.TITLE II A EMPLO             .00             .00             .00          768.94         -768.94
11-1221-000-0764-02316-0019 2830 HS.TITLE II A EMPLO             .00             .00             .00          384.11         -384.11
11-1221-000-0764-07262-0019 2830 MS.TITLE II A EMPLO             .00             .00             .00          116.95         -116.95
11-1221-000-0764-02315-0019 3120 EL.TITLE II A EMPLO       44,141.00             .00             .00       20,632.60       23,508.40
11-1221-000-0764-02316-0019 3120 HS.TITLE II A EMPLO             .00             .00             .00        2,315.50       -2,315.50
11-1221-000-0764-07262-0019 3120 MS.TITLE II A EMPLO             .00             .00             .00        1,588.46       -1,588.46
11-1221-000-0764-02315-0019 5110 EL.TITLE II A TEACH             .00             .00             .00          294.19         -294.19
11-1221-000-0764-02316-0019 5990 HS.TITLE II A MISC.             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1221-000-0764-02315-0019 6410 EL.TITLE II A NEW E             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1221-000-0764-02315-0019 7410 EL.TITLE II A DUES/             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - TITLE II TEACHER TRAININ          46,098.00             .00             .00       47,984.72       -1,886.72

11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 1240 EL.COMP.SS SALARY T        1,845.00             .00             .00        2,040.56         -195.56
11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 1630 EL.COMP.SS SALARY A             .00             .00             .00          795.96         -795.96
11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 2130 EL.COMP.SS EMPLOYEE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 2820 EL.COMP.SS EMPLOYEE          733.00             .00             .00          734.22           -1.22
11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 2830 EL.COMP.SS EMPLOYER          214.00             .00             .00          203.93           10.07
11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 2840 EL.COMP.SS WORKMANS             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 3220 EL.COMP.SS WKSHOPS/             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 5110 EL.COMP.SS TEACHING             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0341-02315-0020 6410 EL.COMP.SS NEW EQUI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1226-000-0341-02315-0020 1160 EL.DIR.SS SALARY SC             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1226-000-0341-02315-0020 2820 EL.DIR.SS EMPLOYEE              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1226-000-0341-02315-0020 2830 EL.DIR.SS EMPLOYER              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1261-000-0341-02315-0020 5790 EL.OPER.SS TRANSPOR          400.00             .00             .00             .00          400.00
11-1271-000-0341-02315-0020 1610 EL.TRANS.SS SALARY         1,000.00             .00             .00        1,250.19         -250.19
11-1271-000-0341-02315-0020 2820 EL.TRANS.SS EMPLOYE             .00             .00             .00          322.30         -322.30
11-1271-000-0341-02315-0020 2830 EL.TRANS.SS EMPLOYE             .00             .00             .00           95.65          -95.65
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - SUMMER SCHOOL                      4,192.00             .00             .00        5,442.81       -1,250.81

11-1125-000-0307-02315-0021 1630 EL.COMP.BILING SALA        4,205.00           60.50             .00          367.47        3,837.53
11-1125-000-0307-02316-0021 1630 HS.COMP.BILING SALA             .00          763.18             .00        2,799.06       -2,799.06
11-1125-000-0307-07262-0021 1630 MS.COMP.BILING SALA             .00          774.31             .00        3,112.79       -3,112.79
11-1125-000-0307-02315-0021 2130 EL.COMP.BILING EMPL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0307-02315-0021 2820 EL.COMP.BILING EMPL        1,150.00           16.17             .00           98.18        1,051.82
11-1125-000-0307-02316-0021 2820 HS.COMP.BILING EMPL             .00          198.12             .00          726.63         -726.63
11-1125-000-0307-07262-0021 2820 MS.COMP.BILING EMPL             .00          201.01             .00          808.07         -808.07
11-1125-000-0307-02315-0021 2830 EL.COMP.BILING EMPL          322.00            4.64             .00           28.13          293.87
11-1125-000-0307-02316-0021 2830 HS.COMP.BILING EMPL             .00           58.39             .00          214.14         -214.14
11-1125-000-0307-07262-0021 2830 MS.COMP.BILING EMPL             .00           59.22             .00          238.12         -238.12
11-1125-000-0307-02315-0021 3220 EL.COMP.BILING WKSH             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1125-000-0307-02315-0021 5110 EL.COMP.BILING TEAC             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - BILINGUAL                          5,677.00        2,135.54             .00        8,392.59       -2,715.59

11-1125-000-0768-02315-0022 1290 EL.TITLE.VI OTHER P       21,625.00        1,601.84             .00       17,695.24        3,929.76
11-1125-000-0768-02315-0022 2130 EL.TITLE.VI EMPLOYE        3,911.00          572.48             .00        3,550.84          360.16
11-1125-000-0768-02315-0022 2820 EL.TITLE.VI EMPLOYE        9,782.00          399.50             .00        4,460.95        5,321.05
11-1125-000-0768-02315-0022 2821 EL.TITLE.VI RETIREM        2,413.87             .00             .00        1,316.52        1,097.35
11-1125-000-0768-02315-0022 2830 EL.TITLE.VI EMPLOYE        1,654.00          122.54             .00        1,353.68          300.32
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - TITLE VI RURAL                    39,385.87        2,696.36             .00       28,377.23       11,008.64

11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 1220 EL.COUN SALARY COUN       23,775.00        1,828.84             .00       15,545.16        8,229.84
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 1220 HS.COUN SALARY COUN       67,898.00        5,029.48             .00       53,994.34       13,903.66
11-1212-000-0000-07262-0025 1220 MS.COUN SALARY COUN        7,212.00          557.24             .00        6,066.49        1,145.51
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 1620 HS.COUN SALARY-SECR       36,713.00        2,887.58             .00       24,909.99       11,803.01
11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 2130 EL.COUN EMPLOYEE IN          715.00             .00             .00        1,200.91         -485.91
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 2130 HS.COUN EMPLOYEE IN        8,262.00        1,260.63             .00        6,828.82        1,433.18
11-1212-000-0000-07262-0025 2130 MS.COUN EMPLOYEE IN          686.00             .00             .00             .00          686.00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 2820 EL.COUN EMPLOYEE RE        6,129.00          456.12             .00        3,892.39        2,236.61
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 2820 HS.COUN EMPLOYEE RE       45,251.00        1,813.20             .00       18,371.91       26,879.09
11-1212-000-0000-07262-0025 2820 MS.COUN EMPLOYEE RE        1,851.00          138.98             .00        1,528.86          322.14
11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 2821 EL.COUN RETIREMT ST       21,095.14             .00             .00       11,505.30        9,589.84
11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 2830 EL.COUN EMPLOYER SO        2,148.00          149.72             .00        1,236.63          911.37
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 2830 HS.COUN EMPLOYER SO        8,942.00          628.98             .00        6,330.10        2,611.90
11-1212-000-0000-07262-0025 2830 MS.COUN EMPLOYER SO          549.00           41.94             .00          457.20           91.80
11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 2920 EL.COUN CASH IN LIE        2,150.00          165.36             .00        1,405.57          744.43
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 2920 HS.COUN CASH IN LIE        6,142.00          454.98             .00        5,004.78        1,137.22
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 2990 HS.COUN SICK DAY RE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 3220 EL.COUN WKSHOPS/CON             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 3220 HS.COUN WKSHOPS/CON          130.00             .00             .00          405.20         -275.20
11-1212-000-0000-02315-0025 5120 EL.COUN TESTING SUP          900.00             .00             .00          960.00          -60.00
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 5120 HS.COUN TESTING SUP        1,790.00             .00             .00        1,652.00          138.00
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 5910 HS.COUN OFFICE SUPP          650.00          200.20             .00        2,934.36       -2,284.36
11-1212-000-0000-02316-0025 6410 HS.COUN NEW EQUIP/F             .00             .00             .00          225.00         -225.00
11-1219-000-0000-02315-0025 1660 EL.NOON SAL SUPVR-I       32,459.00        4,332.59             .00       49,512.10      -17,053.10
11-1219-000-0000-02316-0025 1660 HS.NOON SAL SUPVR-I        4,640.00          779.00             .00        7,885.00       -3,245.00
11-1219-000-0000-02315-0025 2820 EL.NOON EMPLOYEE RE        8,730.00        1,098.80             .00       12,680.96       -3,950.96
11-1219-000-0000-02316-0025 2820 HS.NOON EMPLOYEE RE        1,192.00          196.77             .00        1,979.27         -787.27
11-1219-000-0000-02315-0025 2830 EL.NOON EMPLOYER SO        2,483.00          331.49             .00        3,787.63       -1,304.63
11-1219-000-0000-02316-0025 2830 HS.NOON EMPLOYER SO          355.00           55.10             .00          565.23         -210.23
11-1221-000-0000-02315-0025 5110 EL.INSER TEACHING S             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1221-000-0000-02316-0025 5110 HS.INSER TEACHING S             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - SUPPORT SERVICES PUPIL           292,847.14       22,407.00             .00      240,865.20       51,981.94

11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 1230 HS.LIB SALARY LIBRA             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 1630 EL.LIB SALARY AIDE        28,522.00        2,427.51             .00       20,470.52        8,051.48
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 1630 HS.LIB SALARY AIDE        12,902.00        1,555.56             .00       17,499.75       -4,597.75
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 2130 EL.LIB EMPLOYEE INS             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 2130 HS.LIB EMPLOYEE INS             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 2210 HS.LIB EARLY RETIRE             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 2820 EL.LIB EMPLOYEE RET        7,685.00          634.75             .00        5,431.07        2,253.93
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 2820 HS.LIB EMPLOYEE RET        9,903.00          420.86             .00        4,722.22        5,180.78
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 2821 HS.LIB RETIREMT STU        4,722.79             .00             .00        2,575.80        2,146.99
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 2830 EL.LIB EMPLOYER SOC        2,182.00          185.71             .00        1,566.01          615.99
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 2830 HS.LIB EMPLOYER SOC          987.00          145.12             .00        1,613.01         -626.01
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 2920 HS.LIB CASH IN LIEU             .00          341.24             .00        3,583.02       -3,583.02
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 3220 EL.LIB WKSHOPS/CONF             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 3220 HS.LIB WKSHOPS/CONF             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 4120 EL.LIB REPAIRS/MAIN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 4120 HS.LIB REPAIRS/MAIN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 5310 EL.LIB LIBRARY BOOK          530.00             .00             .00          559.80          -29.80
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 5310 HS.LIB LIBRARY BOOK        1,400.00             .00             .00          -31.16        1,431.16
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 5990 EL.LIB MISC. SUPPLI          650.00             .00           64.86          207.05          378.09



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 5990 HS.LIB MISC. SUPPLI        1,200.00             .00           64.85             .00        1,135.15
11-1222-000-0000-02315-0026 6410 EL.LIB NEW EQUIP/FU        1,730.00             .00             .00             .00        1,730.00
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 6410 HS.LIB NEW EQUIP/FU          350.00             .00             .00             .00          350.00
11-1222-000-0000-02316-0026 8220 HS.LIB PAYMT TO ANO             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - LIBRARY                           72,763.79        5,710.75          129.71       58,197.09       14,436.99

11-1293-000-0000-02316-0027 1560 ATHLETIC COACH SALA      116,981.00        9,977.60             .00       86,102.88       30,878.12
11-1293-000-0000-02316-0027 2820 ATHLETIC EMPLOYEE R       42,113.00        2,497.10             .00       21,663.84       20,449.16
11-1293-000-0000-02316-0027 2821 ATHLETIC RETIREMT S       14,483.23             .00             .00        7,899.17        6,584.06
11-1293-000-0000-02316-0027 2830 ATHLETIC EMPLOYER S        8,949.00          732.73             .00        6,262.33        2,686.67
11-1293-000-0000-02316-0027 3110 ATHLETIC PURCHASED       118,559.00             .00             .00       65,572.44       52,986.56
11-1293-000-0000-02316-0027 5990 ATHLETIC MISC. SUPP       82,000.00             .00             .00             .00       82,000.00
11-1293-000-0000-02316-0027 6410 ATHLETIC NEW EQUIP/        3,400.00             .00             .00             .00        3,400.00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - ATHLETIC                         386,485.23       13,207.43             .00      187,500.66      198,984.57

11-1231-000-0000-00000-0028 3180 BUSINESS OFFICE AUD        7,400.00             .00             .00        7,400.00             .00
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 1110 SUPER SALARY SUPERI       90,681.00        8,137.88             .00       89,285.91        1,395.09
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 1390 SUPER SALARY-ADMIN.       40,369.00        2,990.30             .00       32,893.30        7,475.70
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 1490 SUPER STAKEHOLDER               .00          518.52             .00        5,833.35       -5,833.35
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 1620 SUPER SALARY-SECR         34,988.00        5,331.26             .00       38,693.61       -3,705.61
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 2130 SUPER EMPLOYEE INSU       71,729.00        9,952.39             .00       80,310.61       -8,581.61
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 2820 SUPER EMPLOYEE RETI      136,179.00        4,115.98             .00       40,665.37       95,513.63
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 2821 SUPER RETIREMT STUD       45,338.81             .00             .00       24,727.80       20,611.01
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 2830 SUPER EMPLOYER SOCI       29,227.00        1,353.24             .00       12,156.06       17,070.94
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 2920 SUPER CASH IN LIEU        12,284.00          951.94             .00        6,256.71        6,027.29
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 2990 SUPER SICK DAY REIM        1,613.00             .00             .00             .00        1,613.00
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 3170 SUPER LEGAL SERVICE        5,900.00          955.50             .00        6,051.25         -151.25
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 3190 SUPER UNEMPLOYMENT         2,880.00          240.00             .00        2,351.00          529.00
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 3191 SUPER BOARD EXPENSE        2,900.00             .00             .00        2,900.00             .00
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 3220 SUPER WKSHOPS/CONF         6,000.00          250.00             .00        3,394.56        2,605.44
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 3450 SUPER SOFTWARE             3,100.00          177.68           22.60        1,960.99        1,116.41
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 4190 SUPER TECH REPAIRS           200.00             .00             .00            3.02          196.98
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 4220 SUPER CONTRACT SERV        3,270.00            3.60             .00        2,147.55        1,122.45
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 4910 SUPER SALARY ELECTI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 5910 SUPER OFFICE SUPPLI        2,250.00          101.74             .00        2,401.38         -151.38
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 5990 SUPER MISC. SUPPLIE        4,800.00          340.00             .00        2,271.85        2,528.15
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 5997 SUPER TECH SUPPLIES             .00             .00             .00           24.95          -24.95
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 6410 SUPER NEW EQUIP/FUR        1,800.00             .00             .00          205.98        1,594.02
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 6427 SUPER TECH EQUIPMEN          106.00            6.09             .00        7,293.60       -7,187.60
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 7410 SUPER DUES/CHAUFFEU        9,590.00             .00             .00       10,385.10         -795.10
11-1232-000-0000-00000-0028 8220 SUPER PAYMT TO ANOT        3,960.00             .00             .00        2,553.50        1,406.50
11-1252-000-0000-00000-0028 1310 ACCT SALARY-ACCOUNT      137,199.00       10,583.30             .00      116,416.30       20,782.70
11-1252-000-0000-00000-0028 2820 ACCT EMPLOYEE RETIR             .00        2,584.06             .00       28,729.23      -28,729.23
11-1252-000-0000-00000-0028 2830 ACCT EMPLOYER SOCIA             .00          804.94             .00        8,819.83       -8,819.83



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1252-000-0000-00000-0028 2920 ACCT CASH IN LIEU O             .00          136.50             .00        4,686.36       -4,686.36
11-1257-000-0000-00000-0028 3610 PRINT PRINTING/BIND        3,500.00          395.00             .00        3,710.48         -210.48
11-1259-000-0000-00000-0028 7210 BUSINESS INTEREST S             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1259-000-0000-00000-0028 7410 BUSINESS DUES/CHAUF             .00             .00             .00        2,466.75       -2,466.75
11-1259-000-0000-00000-0028 7610 BUSINESS TAXES ABAT      100,000.00             .00             .00       66,774.28       33,225.72
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 1590 TECH SALARY OTHER T       64,923.00        4,500.00             .00       52,523.76       12,399.24
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 2820 TECH EMPLOYEE RETIR             .00        1,114.16             .00       12,666.44      -12,666.44
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 2830 TECH EMPLOYER SOCIA             .00          325.87             .00        3,875.02       -3,875.02
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 2990 TECH SICK DAY REIMB             .00             .00             .00           37.50          -37.50
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 3450 TECH SOFTWARE              1,020.00             .00             .00        1,345.00         -325.00
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 4190 TECH TECH REPAIRS            210.00             .00             .00        2,495.17       -2,285.17
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 5997 TECH TECH SUPPLIES           375.00             .00             .00          613.21         -238.21
11-1289-000-0000-00000-0028 6427 TECH TECH EQUIPMENT        3,800.00             .00          112.00        1,710.71        1,977.29
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - GENERAL ADMIN/BUSINESS           827,591.81       55,869.95          134.60      689,037.49      138,419.72

11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 1150 EL.PRIN SALARY SCH.      173,622.00       12,859.28             .00      157,182.75       16,439.25
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 1150 HS.PRIN SALARY SCH.      169,384.00       12,524.74             .00      138,372.14       31,011.86
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 1150 MS.PRIN SALARY SCH.      168,073.00       12,450.90             .00      137,559.90       30,513.10
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 1620 EL.PRIN SALARY-SECR       55,900.00        3,886.90             .00       38,182.44       17,717.56
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 1620 HS.PRIN SALARY-SECR       41,362.00        3,172.36             .00       27,088.85       14,273.15
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 1620 MS.PRIN SALARY-SECR       32,587.00        2,284.04             .00       19,873.24       12,713.76
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2130 EL.PRIN EMPLOYEE IN       37,908.00        4,636.03             .00       35,826.57        2,081.43
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2130 HS.PRIN EMPLOYEE IN       16,513.00        3,069.16             .00       14,456.60        2,056.40
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2130 MS.PRIN EMPLOYEE IN       39,602.00        5,241.05             .00       29,870.65        9,731.35
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2210 EL.PRIN EARLY RETIR             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2210 HS.PRIN EARLY RETIR             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2820 EL.PRIN EMPLOYEE RE       86,220.00        4,366.08             .00       45,725.51       40,494.49
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2820 HS.PRIN EMPLOYEE RE       78,278.00        3,914.84             .00       41,634.90       36,643.10
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2820 MS.PRIN EMPLOYEE RE       73,265.00        3,674.90             .00       39,622.06       33,642.94
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2821 EL.PRIN RETIREMT ST       29,386.27             .00             .00       16,027.26       13,359.01
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2821 HS.PRIN RETIREMT ST       25,922.88             .00             .00       14,138.34       11,784.54
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2821 MS.PRIN RETIREMT ST       24,453.57             .00             .00       13,336.98       11,116.59
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2830 EL.PRIN EMPLOYER SO       19,033.00        1,344.36             .00       15,184.99        3,848.01
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2830 HS.PRIN EMPLOYER SO       17,170.00        1,207.40             .00       12,703.48        4,466.52
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2830 MS.PRIN EMPLOYER SO       15,760.00        1,130.33             .00       12,077.18        3,682.82
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2840 EL.PRIN WORKMANS CO          354.00             .00             .00          208.00          146.00
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2840 HS.PRIN WORKMANS CO          354.00             .00             .00          208.00          146.00
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2840 MS.PRIN WORKMANS CO             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2850 EL.PRIN UNEMPLOYMEN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2850 MS.PRIN UNEMPLOYMEN             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2920 EL.PRIN CASH IN LIE       10,749.00          813.72             .00        7,769.72        2,979.28
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2920 HS.PRIN CASH IN LIE       12,284.00          927.46             .00        9,020.86        3,263.14
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2920 MS.PRIN CASH IN LIE        6,142.00          472.48             .00        4,016.08        2,125.92
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 2990 EL.PRIN SICK DAY RE        8,550.00             .00             .00             .00        8,550.00
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 2990 HS.PRIN SICK DAY RE        1,500.00             .00             .00             .00        1,500.00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 2990 MS.PRIN SICK DAY RE        2,588.00             .00             .00             .00        2,588.00
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 3220 EL.PRIN WKSHOPS/CON             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 3220 HS.PRIN WKSHOPS/CON          653.00          169.00             .00          427.00          226.00
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 3220 MS.PRIN WKSHOPS/CON             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 4120 EL.PRIN REPAIRS/MAI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 4120 HS.PRIN REPAIRS/MAI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 4120 MS.PRIN REPAIRS/MAI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 5910 EL.PRIN OFFICE SUPP        3,100.00             .00             .00        1,660.12        1,439.88
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 5910 HS.PRIN OFFICE SUPP        2,100.00          212.31             .00          976.69        1,123.31
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 5910 MS.PRIN OFFICE SUPP        2,100.00             .00             .00        1,273.94          826.06
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 5990 EL.PRIN MISC. SUPPL          400.00          264.00          439.23        3,594.98       -3,634.21
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 5990 HS.PRIN MISC. SUPPL          175.00          363.84             .00        1,095.76         -920.76
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 5990 MS.PRIN MISC. SUPPL          150.00          245.00             .00          821.47         -671.47
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 6410 EL.PRIN NEW EQUIP/F             .00             .00             .00          290.91         -290.91
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 6410 HS.PRIN NEW EQUIP/F             .00             .00             .00          103.98         -103.98
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 6410 MS.PRIN NEW EQUIP/F          450.00             .00             .00          212.87          237.13
11-1241-000-0000-02315-0029 7410 EL.PRIN DUES/CHAUFF             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1241-000-0000-02316-0029 7410 HS.PRIN DUES/CHAUFF          700.00             .00             .00             .00          700.00
11-1241-000-0000-07262-0029 7410 MS.PRIN DUES/CHAUFF             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - SCHOOL ADMIN - PRINCIPAL       1,156,788.72       79,230.18          439.23      840,544.22      315,805.27

11-1351-000-0822-02315-0030 1630 EL.LATCH SALARY AID       24,303.00        2,556.56             .00       22,358.37        1,944.63
11-1351-000-0822-02315-0030 2820 EL.LATCH EMPLOYEE R        9,385.00          679.66             .00        5,715.73        3,669.27
11-1351-000-0822-02315-0030 2821 EL.LATCH RETIREMT S        3,148.53             .00             .00        1,717.20        1,431.33
11-1351-000-0822-02315-0030 2830 EL.LATCH EMPLOYER S        1,859.00          195.59             .00        1,710.46          148.54
11-1351-000-0822-02315-0030 5110 EL.LATCH TEACHING S          550.00           17.11             .00          187.85          362.15
11-1391-000-0822-02315-0030 1160 EL.PARED SALARY SCH       29,612.00        2,539.20             .00       23,744.72        5,867.28
11-1391-000-0822-02315-0030 2820 EL.PARED EMPLOYEE R       10,702.00          633.28             .00        5,972.03        4,729.97
11-1391-000-0822-02315-0030 2821 EL.PARED RETIREMT S        3,673.28             .00             .00        2,003.40        1,669.88
11-1391-000-0822-02315-0030 2830 EL.PARED EMPLOYER S        2,189.00          194.26             .00        1,814.39          374.61
11-1391-000-0822-02315-0030 3220 EL.PARED WKSHOPS/CO             .00             .00             .00           67.05          -67.05
11-1391-000-0822-02315-0030 5110 EL.PARED TEACHING S          400.00             .00             .00             .00          400.00
11-1391-000-0822-02315-0030 6410 EL.PARED NEW EQUIP/             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - COMMUNITY SERVICES                85,821.81        6,815.66             .00       65,291.20       20,530.61

11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 1170 OPER SALARY SUPVR-I       33,125.00        2,453.70             .00       26,990.70        6,134.30
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 1550 OPER SALARY - MAINT       70,992.00        6,131.20             .00       66,333.68        4,658.32
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 1640 OPER SALARY CUSTODI      244,030.00       18,361.56             .00      189,704.77       54,325.23
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 1960 OPER OVERTIME OPERA        5,200.00          440.11             .00        8,870.64       -3,670.64
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2130 OPER EMPLOYEE INSUR       99,269.00       12,582.94             .00       70,993.69       28,275.31
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2820 OPER EMPLOYEE RETIR      131,498.00        6,856.50             .00       73,626.71       57,871.29
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2821 OPER RETIREMT STUDE       43,554.64             .00             .00       23,754.71       19,799.93
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2830 OPER EMPLOYER SOCIA       27,507.00        2,019.59             .00       21,792.82        5,714.18
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2840 OPER WORKMANS COMPE       10,209.00             .00             .00        7,980.00        2,229.00



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2850 OPER UNEMPLOYMENT C             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2920 OPER CASH IN LIEU O        3,071.00          227.50             .00        2,502.50          568.50
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 2990 OPER SICK DAY REIMB        3,150.00             .00             .00             .00        3,150.00
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 3220 OPER WKSHOPS/CONF I             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 3410 OPER TELEPHONE             6,600.00             .00             .00        5,721.43          878.57
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 3830 OPER WATER AND SEWA       10,630.00          954.84             .00        8,854.04        1,775.96
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 3840 OPER WASTE AND TRAS        4,951.00        1,062.50             .00        8,441.36       -3,490.36
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 3910 OPER INSURANCE LIAB       57,003.00             .00             .00       56,228.00          775.00
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 3911 OPER BOILER INSURAN        4,084.00             .00             .00        4,162.00          -78.00
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 4110 OPER FURN EQPT REPA       25,535.00             .00             .00       18,570.08        6,964.92
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 4120 OPER REPAIRS/MAINT         8,400.00             .00           10.96       15,879.11       -7,490.07
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 4220 OPER CONTRACT SERV         8,000.00        2,212.50             .00       31,472.01      -23,472.01
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 5510 OPER HEATING GAS         100,000.00             .00             .00       51,224.89       48,775.11
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 5520 OPER ELECTRICITY         130,000.00          362.77             .00      123,346.56        6,653.44
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 5910 OPER OFFICE SUPPLIE           40.00             .00             .00             .00           40.00
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 5980 OPER MAINTENANCE SU       20,157.00          608.00             .00       13,434.49        6,722.51
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 5981 OPER BOILER TREATME             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1261-000-0000-00000-0031 5990 OPER MISC. SUPPLIES       26,000.00       10,689.58             .00       28,306.30       -2,306.30
11-1455-000-0000-00000-0031 6220 AQUIS FURN/EQUIP BL      128,000.00             .00             .00      150,917.51      -22,917.51
11-1455-000-0000-00000-0031 6221 AQUIS FURN/EQUIP GR        5,000.00             .00             .00       32,481.00      -27,481.00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - OPERATION-MAINTENANCE          1,206,005.64       64,963.29           10.96    1,041,589.00      164,405.68

11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 1160 PAC SALARY SCH. DIR       31,500.00          500.00             .00        4,787.04       26,712.96
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 2130 PAC EMPLOYEE INSURA             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 2820 PAC EMPLOYEE RETIRE       10,623.00          124.70             .00        1,215.84        9,407.16
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 2821 PAC RETIREMT STUDEN        3,673.28             .00             .00        2,003.40        1,669.88
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 2830 PAC EMPLOYER SOCIAL        2,880.00           38.26             .00          383.69        2,496.31
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 2920 PAC CASH IN LIEU OF        6,142.00             .00             .00          227.49        5,914.51
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 3110 PAC PURCHASED SERVI             .00          360.00             .00        1,272.37       -1,272.37
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 5110 PAC TEACHING SUPPLY          103.00             .00             .00          198.81          -95.81
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 5990 PAC MISC. SUPPLIES/          150.00             .00             .00             .00          150.00
11-1391-000-0000-02316-0032 6410 PAC NEW EQUIP/FURN         3,910.00             .00             .00        3,756.13          153.87
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - PAC                               58,981.28        1,022.96             .00       13,844.77       45,136.51

11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 1170 TRANS SALARY SUPVR-       33,125.00        2,453.70             .00       26,990.70        6,134.30
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 1550 TRANS SALARY - MAIN        9,963.00             .00             .00             .00        9,963.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 1610 TRANS SALARY VEHICL      119,672.00       12,302.08             .00      111,712.33        7,959.67
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 1611 TRANS SALARY-EXTRA        24,146.00        2,102.42             .00       17,466.03        6,679.97
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 1620 TRANS SALARY-SECR          1,650.00             .00             .00             .00        1,650.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 1630 TRANS SALARY AIDE         10,661.00          337.00             .00        3,261.25        7,399.75
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2130 TRANS EMPLOYEE INSU          770.00           37.20             .00          534.61          235.39
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2820 TRANS EMPLOYEE RETI       73,906.00        4,336.40             .00       40,760.84       33,145.16
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2821 TRANS RETIREMT STUD       24,243.67             .00             .00       13,222.50       11,021.17
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2830 TRANS EMPLOYER SOCI       15,475.00        1,332.84             .00       12,385.95        3,089.05



SPI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 05/11/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                                      EXPSTA11
TIME: 08:56:00                                    DETAIL EXPENDITURE STATUS REPORT

SELECTION CRITERIA: orgn.fund='11'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 10/17

SORTED BY: FUND,DEPARTMENT,FUNCTION,ACCOUNT
TOTALED ON: FUND,DEPARTMENT
PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND

FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

ORGANIZATION / ACCOUNT / TITLE                                             PERIOD       ENCUMBRANCES    YEAR TO DATE       AVAILABLE
                                                              BUDGET    EXPENDITURES     OUTSTANDING             EXP         BALANCE

11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2840 TRANS WORKMANS COMP        2,232.00             .00             .00        1,555.00          677.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2850 TRANS UNEMPLOYMENT              .00             .00             .00        2,886.66       -2,886.66
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2920 TRANS CASH IN LIEU         3,071.00          227.48             .00        2,502.28          568.72
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 2990 TRANS SICK DAY REIM          930.00             .00             .00             .00          930.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 3192 TRANS PHYSICALS            1,300.00           82.00             .00        1,146.00          154.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 3220 TRANS WKSHOPS/CONF              .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 3930 TRANS TRANSPORTATIO        7,927.00             .00             .00        8,111.00         -184.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 4130 TRANS BUS MECHANIC        27,796.00        1,428.00             .00       16,067.18       11,728.82
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 4230 TRANS CONTRACTED SE        3,125.00          150.00             .00          746.00        2,379.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 5710 TRANS GASOLINE, OIL       30,000.00        3,270.11             .00       24,518.53        5,481.47
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 5720 TRANS TIRES,TUBES A       10,000.00             .00             .00        2,004.84        7,995.16
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 5730 TRANS VEHICLE REPAI       35,000.00        1,480.77             .00       24,583.38       10,416.62
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 5910 TRANS OFFICE SUPPLI          200.00             .00             .00             .00          200.00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 5990 TRANS MISC. SUPPLIE        5,350.00             .00             .00        5,640.73         -290.73
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 6410 TRANS NEW EQUIP/FUR             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 6510 TRANS NEW VEHICLES              .00             .00             .00       26,376.20      -26,376.20
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 6610 TRANS SCHOOL BUS PU             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1271-000-0000-00000-0033 7410 TRANS DUES/CHAUFFEU          220.00             .00             .00          210.00           10.00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - TRANSPORTATION                   440,762.67       29,540.00             .00      342,682.01       98,080.66

11-1621-000-0000-00000-0040 8110 MODFUND ATHLETIC                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1633-000-0000-00000-0040 8110 MODFUND DEBT ATHLET             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
11-1641-000-0000-00000-0040 8110 MODFUND B&S ATHLETI             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00
      TOTAL DEPARTMENT - MODICATIONS                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00

      TOTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND                        17,010,030.47    1,016,305.08        4,186.40   11,423,755.42    5,582,088.65

TOTAL REPORT                                           17,010,030.47    1,016,305.08        4,186.40   11,423,755.42    5,582,088.65



SPI                                                                                                         PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 05/10/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                               VENCHK11
TIME: 16:01:28                                             CHECK REGISTER                                   ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/17

     FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

 CHECK NUMBER CASH ACCT   DATE ISSUED --------------VENDOR--------------  ACCT     -------DESCRIPTION-------            AMOUNT

 22525        9101        05/15/17    325      ACP OF LENAWEE INCORPORAT  5990     INSTALL ROOF LADDERS               5,810.00

 22526        9101        05/15/17    6870     AMERICAN OFFICE SOLUTIONS  4220     C1851 HS COPIER                        1.28
 22526        9101        05/15/17    6870     AMERICAN OFFICE SOLUTIONS  4220     C1851 HS COPIER                       62.51
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                             63.79

 22527        9101        05/15/17    12965    BLACK SWAMP EQUIP.         4220     VAR BB SB - TOILET                   161.50

 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       6427     2883255 - SEAGATE HD FOR               6.09
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       6427     2883255 - SEAGATE HD FOR              79.03
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       6427     2883255 - SEAGATE HD FOR              94.23
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       6427     2883255 - SEAGATE HD FOR             124.63
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       9134     4316313 QUICKBOOKS PRO 20            177.68
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       3450     4316313 QUICKBOOKS PRO 20            177.68
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       6427     4398280 - RUCKUS WIRELESS            833.56
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       5997     1737920 - PROJECTOR LAMP              97.99
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       5997     1737920 - PROJECTOR LAMP              97.99
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       6427     4010096 - EPSON DOCUMENT             499.00
 22528        9101        05/15/17    16240    CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.       6427     4010096 - EPSON DOCUMENT             998.00
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                          3,185.88

 22529        9101        05/15/17    22468    CONSUMERS ENERGY           5520     ELECTRIC                              26.00
 22529        9101        05/15/17    22468    CONSUMERS ENERGY           5520     ELECTRIC                             107.39
 22529        9101        05/15/17    22468    CONSUMERS ENERGY           5520     ELECTRIC                             217.07
 22529        9101        05/15/17    22468    CONSUMERS ENERGY           5520     ELECTRIC                              12.00
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                            362.46

 22530        9101        05/15/17    25912    THE DAILY TELEGRAM         3610     EMPLOYMENT AD                        395.00

 22531        9101        05/15/17    35580    FRAME'S PEST CONTROL, INC  4220     PEST CONTROL                          51.00

 22532        9101        05/15/17    46248    LINDA J HOOKER             5110     ART STOOL                             30.00

 22533        9101        05/15/17    47396    IMPREST FUND               5990     POST CARD POSTAGE                     68.00
 22533        9101        05/15/17    47396    IMPREST FUND               5990     POSTAGE                              245.00
 22533        9101        05/15/17    47396    IMPREST FUND               5990     POSTAGE                              196.00
 22533        9101        05/15/17    47396    IMPREST FUND               5910     POSTAGE                              196.00
 22533        9101        05/15/17    47396    IMPREST FUND               5980     WILBUR ELLIS FIELD LI                166.25
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                            871.25

 22534        9101        05/15/17    71668    J W PEPPER OF DETROIT      5110     ESTIMATED SHIPPING/HANDLI             10.99
 22534        9101        05/15/17    71668    J W PEPPER OF DETROIT      5110     ITEM NUMBER: 2341683                  60.00
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                             70.99

 22535        9101        05/15/17    50576    JONES SCHOOL SUPPLY CO IN  5130     5002BL 7/8" BLUE NECK RIB              3.43
 22535        9101        05/15/17    50576    JONES SCHOOL SUPPLY CO IN  5130     5002BLGO 7/8" BLUE/GOLD N             14.70
 22535        9101        05/15/17    50576    JONES SCHOOL SUPPLY CO IN  5130     6837GOM ACADEMIC EXCEL GO             38.70
 22535        9101        05/15/17    50576    JONES SCHOOL SUPPLY CO IN  5130     6856GOM DRAMA GOLD 2" VAL              9.03
 22535        9101        05/15/17    50576    JONES SCHOOL SUPPLY CO IN  5130     ESTIMATED SHIPPING/HANDLI              5.25
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                             71.11

 22536        9101        05/15/17    50582    JOSTENS, INC.              5130     DIPLOMAS, CERTIFICATE                404.11

 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  8220     QUART CAPITAL FEE                    268.54
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  8220     QUART CAPITAL FEE                    268.54
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  8220     QUART CAPITAL FEE                    268.55



SPI                                                                                                         PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 05/10/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                               VENCHK11
TIME: 16:01:28                                             CHECK REGISTER                                   ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/17

     FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

 CHECK NUMBER CASH ACCT   DATE ISSUED --------------VENDOR--------------  ACCT     -------DESCRIPTION-------            AMOUNT

 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  5910     TAX FORMS, CHECKS                    101.74
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  3220     E STRASSHOFER                         15.00
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  3220     E STRASSHOFER                         15.00
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  4230     BUS #4 TOW                           150.00
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  8220     TECH SERV JAN-MAR17                1,342.72
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  8220     TECH SERV JAN-MAR17                1,342.72
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  8220     TECH SERV JAN-MAR17                1,342.72
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  5730     BUS 3 & 11 PARTS                     130.92
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  4130     BUS 3 & 11 SERVICE                   384.00
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  5730     BUS 3 & 11 SHOP                        6.55
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  5730     BUS 4 & 10 PARTS                     621.17
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  4130     BUS 4 & 10 SERVICE                 1,044.00
 22537        9101        05/15/17    55432    LENAWEE INTERMEDIATE SCHO  5730     BUS 4 & 10 SHOP                       31.06
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                          7,333.23

 22538        9101        05/15/17    60890    MARSHALL'S                 6450     REPAID ON PICCOLO                     10.00

 22539        9101        05/15/17    60897    MAS/FPS                    3220     ABBY MILLER PD                       249.00

 22540        9101        05/15/17    60900    MASSP                      3220     HANDBOOK N WHITELEY                  169.00
 22540        9101        05/15/17    60900    MASSP                      3220     HANDBOOK R ROWE                      250.00
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                            419.00

 22541        9101        05/15/17    57730    MCGRAW HILL SCHOOL EDUCAT  5210     PO 170340                          1,344.85
 22541        9101        05/15/17    57730    MCGRAW HILL SCHOOL EDUCAT  5210     CR ON PO 140340                     -316.50
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                          1,028.35

 22542        9101        05/15/17    64183    MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY  4220     SRTS PHASE 1 & 2                   2,000.00

 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  5990     STAPLES FOR COPIER                   160.00
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  5990     STAPLES FOR COPIER                   203.84
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     U3867 K WING COPIER                    4.15
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     U3867 K WING COPIER                  203.29
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     U2350 ELEM COPIER                    302.98
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     U2350 ELEM COPIER                      6.18
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     W8440 HS COPIER                        2.69
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     W8440 HS COPIER                      131.59
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 BOOSTERS COLOR                    .48
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 CO B/W                            .40
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 CO B/W                           2.17
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 CO COLOR                       118.44
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 COLOR COPIERS                 -117.49
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 EL B/W                            .36
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 EL COLOR                       149.48
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 HS B/W                            .01
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8137 HS COLOR                          .44
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8788 ELEM COPIER                      4.80
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8788 ELEM COPIER                    235.02
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8850 HS COPIER                        3.70
 22543        9101        05/15/17    65990    MT BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES,  4220     Y8850 HS COPIER                      180.65
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                          1,593.18

 22544        9101        05/15/17    94650    NICHOLS                    5990     VAC MOTOR                            281.82
 22544        9101        05/15/17    94650    NICHOLS                    5990     BATH TISSUE, CAN LINE              4,597.76
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                          4,879.58



SPI                                                                                                         PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 05/10/2017                                      MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT                               VENCHK11
TIME: 16:01:28                                             CHECK REGISTER                                   ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/17

     FUND - 11 - GENERAL FUND

 CHECK NUMBER CASH ACCT   DATE ISSUED --------------VENDOR--------------  ACCT     -------DESCRIPTION-------            AMOUNT

 22545        9101        05/15/17    69403    OCCUHEALTH                 3130     EL NURSE                           2,555.19
 22545        9101        05/15/17    69403    OCCUHEALTH                 3130     HS NURSE                             425.86
 22545        9101        05/15/17    69403    OCCUHEALTH                 3130     MS NURSE                             425.87
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                          3,406.92

 22546        9101        05/15/17    72336    PERRY PRO TECH             4220     I1825 I1826 MS COPIER                310.72
 22546        9101        05/15/17    72336    PERRY PRO TECH             4220     I1825 I1826 MS COPIER                  6.34
 22546        9101        05/15/17    72336    PERRY PRO TECH             4220     A5986 EL COPIER                       -6.14
 22546        9101        05/15/17    72336    PERRY PRO TECH             4220     A5986 EL COPIER                     -300.74
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                             10.18

 22547        9101        05/15/17    72652    PETTY CASH                 3220     PARKING FOR CONF                      15.00
 22547        9101        05/15/17    72652    PETTY CASH                 5910     POSTAGE HS COUN                        4.20
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                             19.20

 22548        9101        05/15/17    68790    PRESIDIO NETWORKED SOLUTI  4190     1022825163200 - LAPTOP BA            594.00

 22549        9101        05/15/17    62322    PROMEDICA MONROE CORP CON  3192     DRIVER EXAM                           82.00

 22550        9101        05/15/17    74940    QUILL CORPORATION          5990     HP 81X BLACK LASERJET TON            252.44
 22550        9101        05/15/17    74940    QUILL CORPORATION          5990     HP 81X BLACK LASERJET TON            252.44
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                            504.88

 22551        9101        05/15/17    76026    REEVES, INC                3110     1ST QUART PAC SPRINKL                360.00

 22552        9101        05/15/17    77905    S.R. WIERCKZ               3190     UNEMPLOY SERVICES                    240.00

 22553        9101        05/15/17    81745    SEHI COMPUTER PRODUCTS     5910     CE390X 171121 REMC: HP TO            206.31
 22553        9101        05/15/17    81745    SEHI COMPUTER PRODUCTS     5910     ESTIMATED SHIPPING/HANDLI              6.00
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                            212.31

 22554        9101        05/15/17    82981    SIGNING SAVVY, LLC         5110     EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION M            711.08

 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR                         32.50
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR - LABOR                 81.25
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR TOUCHPAD                47.77
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR EL14130                 32.50
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR ML14140                 48.75
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR ML15197                 56.68
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR ML15223                 56.68
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR HL15187                 56.68
 22555        9101        05/15/17    86104    STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS       4190     LAPTOP REPAIR HL15192                 56.68
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                            469.49

 22556        9101        05/15/17    89052    THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C.       3170     LEGAL AID                            955.50

 22557        9101        05/15/17    90470    TRANSPORTATION ACCESSORIE  5730     ACTUATOR, BLADES, PAR                635.88
 22557        9101        05/15/17    90470    TRANSPORTATION ACCESSORIE  5730     WIPER BLADE                           55.19
                 TOTAL CHECK                                                                                            691.07

 22558        9101        05/15/17    93316    WARDS NATURAL SCIENCE      5110     LIVE DAPHNIA                          20.99

     TOTAL FUND                                                                                                      37,267.05

     TOTAL REPORT                                                                                                    37,267.05



Superintendent’s Report 
May 15, 2017 
 
First Meeting: 
 
LISD Biennial Election of School Board Members (Information Item) 
 
The Board shall consider a Resolution of the Madison Board of Education for the LISD 
Biennial Election of School Board Members. 
 
Second Meeting: 
 
LISD Biennial Election of School Board Members Resolution (Action Item) 
 
The Resolution includes the designation of a member as its representative and an 
alternate member to serve on the 2017 electoral body responsible for electing 
members to the LISD Board of Education. Furthermore, consideration shall be given 
to candidates running for two available seats on the Board. The representative is 
directed to vote for the candidates at a meeting of electoral body to elect LISD Board 
Members June 5, 2017, 5:30 p.m. at the LISD ESC. The Resolution also authorizes 
and directs the secretary to file the Resolution with the secretary of the LISD Board 
of Education. I recommend the Board appoint a representative to vote for the two 
candidates determined by the Board. 
 
District-Sponsored Trips (Action Item) 
 
In accordance with Madison Board Policy 2340 – Field and Other District-Sponsored 
Trips, the following trips are planned for students at Madison and require Board 
approval: 
 
Boys Golf 
MHSAA State Meet occurring Thursday, June 8 – Saturday, June 10 in Big Rapids, 
Michigan.  
 
Boys and Girls Track 
Team State Track Meet occurring Friday, May 26 – Saturday, May 28 in Clare 
(accommodations in Mount Pleasant). 
 
Individual State Meet occurring Friday, June 2 – Saturday, June 3 in Comstock Park 
(accommodations in Grandville). 
 
I recommend the Board approve these District-sponsored trips. 
 
 



District Handbooks (Action Item) 
 
Since January I have communicated aspects pertaining to the District’s review and 
revision process of five documents including the Elementary Student Handbook, 
Middle School Student Handbook, High School Student Handbook, Madison Youth 
Athletic Council (MYAC) Handbook, and the Madison Athletic Code of Conduct. Thrun 
Law Firm recently conducted a legal review of each document. The review process 
was insightful and we believe this process has lead to more comprehensive district 
handbooks including standards and expectations for those using each resource. I 
have provided a copy of each document for your review and, if there are no other 
additions or edits, recommend that the Board adopt the documents as presented.   
 
2017 – 2018 LISD Budget Resolution (Action Item) 
 
Several members of the Madison Board of Education and I attended the LISD Budget 
Planning Meeting and LISD Budget Review Meeting. By law each of the constituent 
local school boards is required to pass a resolution either supporting or rejecting the 
LISD budget. Local board action is required, however, the Board’s vote is only 
advisory. I recommend the Board pass the Resolution in support of the LISD 2017-
18 budget. LISD administration and local public school superintendents continue to 
work towards ways in which LISD funds can be utilized to support educational 
opportunities for students throughout Lenawee County. 
 
First Reading – NEOLA Policies (Information Item) 
 
It is the time of year to consider several revisions to the District’s Board Policies. I 
recently met with NEOLA representative Paul Palka to review the proposed changes. 
The modifications are provided to you as a first reading. 
 
Tri-County Conference (TCC) By-Laws (Action Item) 

Kris and I were present at the April 12th TCC Conference meeting where it was 
proposed to amend the TCC By-Laws.  Currently the By-Laws state, to become a TCC 
sponsored sport, six out of eight schools must sponsor that sport.  With three 
emerging sports within the TCC, it is proposed to amend the by-laws to require five 
rather than six schools for the TCC to sponsor a specific sport.  It is believed that this 
modification will help the league grow and be able to retain league sports even with 
fluctuating numbers of student-athletes from year to year within a given sport. In 
addition, the TCC will have the opportunity to honor and support more student-
athletes, programs, and schools.  The motion was made by Whitmore Lake to amend 
the TCC by-laws to reflect this amendment.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion 
passed 8-0. This process now proceeds to each school’s board of education for their 
consideration and potential approval. Kris and I recommend the Board approve 
amending the TCC By-Laws to reflect this proposed change.   

 
 
 



LISD ISSI Grant Report (Information Item) 
 
Since August 27, 2014 teachers and administration at Madison have worked diligently 
to accomplish goals outlined within the District Improvement Plan, specifically work 
pertaining to the UbD process. As I stated in August 2014, the District Improvement 
Plan is a three-year endeavor, not a one-year plan. We now near the finale of our 
second year and it is important to reflect on what has been accomplished and then 
set a course for what is to come, including goals and expectations for the next year. 
The District is very appreciative that the LISD provided, in part, funds to invest over 
$30,000 in teacher stipends the past two summers last summer for those able to 
take advantage of collaborative work towards constructing UbD units. In addition, 
several PD days since August 2014 have been devoted to efforts related to UbD and 
the following strategies outlined within the District Improvement Plan: 
 
Strategy 1 (Planning and Preparation): Staff will participate with professional 
development related to Understanding by Design (UbD) and utilize UbD to guide their 
planning and preparation to improve student proficiency. 
 
Strategy 2 (Instruction and Learning): All content area staff will utilize the Gradual 
Release of Responsibility model to ensure students learning. 
 
Strategy 3 (Instruction and Learning): Staff will facilitate academic literacy strategies 
(Response to Text) in all content areas. 
 
Strategy 4 (Monitoring, Assessment, and Follow-Up): Teachers will model depth of 
knowledge levels 2 and 3 (Skills and Concepts & Strategic Thinking and Reasoning) 
on a daily basis. 
 
School Health Care Provider – Job Posting (Action Item) 
 
With the retirement of Nurse Ellen Young effective July 31, 2017 and the end (July 
31, 2017) of the current contract with Athetico for Athletic Training services, the 
District has taken the opportunity to discuss the potential of employing a District 
Health Care Provider as a Madison School District employee rather than contract with 
two third-party providers for these services. A lot of research and dialogue has 
occurred throughout this exploratory process. In addition, numerous documents 
related to the position of School Health Care Provider are provided within the Board 
Packet for your review.  
 
A discussion regarding these documents and details regarding the District employing 
a District Health Care Provider will occur at Monday’s meeting. If approved by the 
Board, a job posting will occur to seek viable candidates. I am recommending that 
this occur now so that, if a viable candidate is not found, contracts with Promedica 
for nursing and Athletico have time to be renewed, if necessary.  
 
Madison School District would invite applications for an individual to serve as the 
District Health Care Provider. This would be a 12-month position to begin in June, 
2017.  Salary would be commensurate with experience and credentials. The 



successful candidate would provide school health and athletic training services to 
students and student-athletes at Madison School District. Additionally, the successful 
candidate would work closely with a strong community of school professionals to 
coordinate and deliver the highest standard of care. It would be expected that the 
successful candidate would maintain a commitment to excellence and to the 
advancement and growth of Madison School District. The posting would include the 
following: 
 
Required Qualifications: 

• BOC certified and Michigan state licensed Athletic Trainer 
• Michigan state licensed Emergency Medical Technician 

 
Preferred Qualifications: 

• CPR and First Aid instructor certification 
 
Essential Job Functions  

1. Assess and provide appropriate care and/or referral of illness or injury to 
elementary, middle and high school students in accordance with school 
district policy and procedure.  
 

2. Coordinate and deliver athletic training services to student athletes 
including but not limited to: coordination of pre-participation exams, 
emergency care, evaluation and treatment of injuries at practices and 
games, design and supervision of rehabilitation and performance 
enhancement programs, appropriate referral, and administration of athletic 
training operations 

 

I recommend the Board approve the District post a position seeking qualified 
candidates to serve as the District Health Care Provider. An update regarding 
progress will be provided to the Board at the June meeting.  
 
Safe Routes To School (SR2S) (Information Item) 

Madison School District is surrounded by subdivisions where each day numerous 
pedestrians walk or bike to and from school. However, the main route from these 
subdivisions to and from school is not a sidewalk, rather it is Treat Highway. 
Individuals walk on or near the busy street with limited visibility for those driving a 
vehicle. There is significant risk to those, as young as five years old, attempting to 
travel to and from campus. This concern regarding pedestrian safety, as well as 
efficient and effective traffic flow, prompted the District, Township, and community 
to work together to explore opportunities to improve the safety for all concerned.  
 
With this, the District submitted a request to Michigan State University asking for 
assistance to facilitate the Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) planning process. The MSU 
SR2S team selected Madison School District - one of only a few school districts 
selected throughout the state - to provide full action plan assistance. This assistance 
included various supports including facilitation of a feasibility study and dissemination 
of data collected through surveys of students and parents. Based on the preliminary 



study and design by the MSU Team, the District is in position to apply for and 
potentially be awarded grant funds from the Michigan Fitness Foundation/MDOT in 
excess of $400,000. These funds can be used to improve the walking and biking 
routes to and from school. Future improvements may include, but are not limited to, 
lighting, signage, crosswalks, sidewalks, bike racks, and commuter lot resources.  
 
I invite you to view findings of the study including conceptual drawings of potential 
improvements. The meeting will be held in the Madison Performing Arts Center 
Monday, May 15th from 7:30 – 8:30 p.m. If you are not able to participate with the 
meeting please feel free to contact me so that I may share information with you at a 
time that is convenient. 
 
 
Request to Move June Meeting Date (Action Item)  
 
Each year it is requested to move the June meeting date (this year scheduled for 
June 19th) one week later to June 26th. This is to accommodate the planning and 
preparation process to present the District’s final 2016-17 budget and the proposed 
2017-18 budget for Board review and consideration.   
 
 

 

Ryan Rowe, Superintendent 

 

 

 

 



Board Report – May 2017 
Kristin Thomas 
HS Principal 
 

I. College Readiness – Earlier in the trimester, this year’s college readiness teachers and I 
met to discuss this course and our desire to better align the course to student 
outcomes related to test-taking strategies and college and career readiness. After the 
initial meeting, we held a second meeting with Sophomore & Senior Seminar 
teachers, as well as other teacher leaders. I am excited about the redesign of this 
course, which will now be called Junior Seminar. I will inform you of the details of 
this course as things fall into place over the next month. 
 

II. Student Assessments –  
• The 9th & 10th graders are completing NWEA testing. As you recall, they take 

assessments in Reading, Math, and Science. 
• Our 12th graders took the Accuplacer College Placement Tests administered 

by Jackson College on May 1st & 2nd.   
• AP exams in Calculus, English Literature, English Language, Biology, US 

History, and World History were administered over the past two weeks. 
Overall, the percentage of students who choose to take these exams is rather 
large and something that we are quite proud of! 

• We are still patiently awaiting PSAT 9, PSAT 10, and SAT scores . Juniors 
who took the SAT did receive their scores on May 10th, so we should have the 
ability to view those scores very soon. 
 

III. National Honor Society – The National Honor Society Induction Ceremony was held on 
May 4th in the Madison Performing Arts Center. This is certainly a highlight of the 
year for me and I very much appreciate the work that Mr. Madziar, Mrs. Tedora and 
the NHS officers put in to make this a very nice ceremony and celebration.  
 

IV. Prom/After Prom – This year’s Junior/Senior prom was held at Hilltop Manor in Clark 
Lake. Senior class advisors, Chris Lobkovich and Jen Stelzer did a great job 
organizing this event. It was an enjoyable evening for those in attendance. 
Our After Prom committee of parents also deserves a big thanks for all of their efforts 
in planning/hosting this years’ After Prom event. I sincerely appreciate the work of 
these parents, I only wish there were more parents willing to volunteer. 
 

V. Teacher Appreciation – May 2nd – May 6th was Teacher Appreciation Week!  I cannot 
say enough about how blessed I am to work with such a group of committed & hard-
working people. Our students, parents, and community are fortunate to have these 
individuals on the Madison staff!  

 
VI. Fine Arts Festival – We sent approximately 40 students to this year’s Fine Arts Festival 

at Siena Heights University. Students have the opportunity to learn from experts in a 
variety of tracks (Creative Writing, Choir, Band, Dance, Art, Drama, & Video/Audio 
Production) and then put on a performance for the public in the evening.  



 
VII. AP Biology Cadaver Lab – Our AP Biology students visited a cadaver lab this past 

Friday at the University of Toledo. Thanks to teacher, Mrs. Sara Jackler for providing 
this extremely valuable opportunity to our students. 

 
 

Upcoming Events: 
 
May 25th – Senior Night, 6:30pm in the PAC 
 
June 1st   – Spring Sports Banquet  
 
June 2nd  – Senior Breakfast and Graduation Rehearsal, 8:20am 
 
June 1st  – Honors Assembly for grades 9-11, 1:15pm in the HS Activities Center 
 
June 4th – Commencement, 1:00pm HS Activities Center 
 
June 6th  – HS Cedar Point Trip 
 
June 13th – June 15th HS Exams, grades 9-11 
 

 
 

 
 



Board Report 
Brad Anschuetz 
Madison Middle School 
May 15, 2017 
 
 

I. From April 12th – May 18th Madison Middle School students have been taking 
the Michigan Student Test of Educational Progress (M-STEP), which is aligned 
to the state’s rigorous academic standards. The M-STEP is given online each 
spring and is designed to gauge how well students are mastering the standards.  
Students were asked to read complex fiction and non-fiction texts and use 
evidence from these texts to answer questions, make inferences, and present 
persuasive arguments. The assessment goes beyond multiple-choice questions 
for math and science, as well.  Students are presented with multi-step problems, 
conceptual questions, and real-world applications.  Not only are students 
expected to get answers correct but also explain how they arrived at their 
conclusions. 
 
The chart below outlines the average time a Madison Middle School student 
took to finish a particular assessment. 
  

Month Day Subject Grade 
Average Time to 
Complete 

      
 

 

April 12 Social Studies 8 1 hr  40 min 

April 18 ELA 8 2 hrs 20 min 

April 20 ELA Performance Task 8 3 hrs 45 min 

April 25 Math 8 2 hrs 15 min 

April 27 Math Performance Task 8 1 hr  45 min 

May 2 ELA 6 4 hrs 20 min 

May 3 ELA  7 3 hrs 40 min 

May 9 Math 6 3 hrs 

May 10 Science 7 2 hrs 15 min 

May 11 Math Performance Task 6  

May 16 Math 7  

May 18 Math Performance Task 7  

      
 

 
 

II. The NWEA testing window for Madison Middle School began the last week of 
March and will conclude at the end of May.  This assessment runs concurrently 
with M-Step, thus the larger window to strategically fit everything into the 
calendar. With NWEA we will test reading comprehension, science and 
mathematics aptitude. The students have done well to use the tool for goal 
setting purposes and taking ownership of their learning.  As a faculty, we pay a 
great deal of attention to these scores.  It is nice to see the growth in students.  It 
validates all the hours of hard work.  For the student that shows little to no 



growth, we need to intervene and address any concern before it compounds.  
You may also recall that the NWEA assessment tool is 20% of the teacher 
evaluation. 

 
III. On Wednesday, May 10th, 15 of our 8th grade students attended the Pay-Back 

for Education program.   Each student was paired with a business in the 
community that matches their career pathway interests.   The students spend a 
day with their business partner learning about the inner workings of the career.  

 
IV.  The 6th Grade Quiz Bowl Team Roster included eleven students.  Six students 

were chosen to compete in the county Quiz Bowl tournament on April 28th, 
2017.  Those students were Cameron Bozyk, Haydn Stover, Roman Roberts, 
Hannah Leupold, Jamari Williams, and Jimmy Rodriguez.  The team 
represented Madison very well displaying their academic knowledge while 
qualifying to compete in the finals that will be held at the Lenawee County Fair 
on July 24th.  

 
A 7th & 8th grade team consisting of Walker Claiborne, Alison Creamer, 
Makenzie Francoeur, Matson Garza, Polly Graham, Cody Seegert, and 
Christopher Warwick, competed in the county Quiz Bowl tournament on April 
28, 2017. The students answered a myriad of questions about history, literature, 
science, and current events.  They battled valiantly to make it to the final round, 
which will be held at the Lenawee County Fair on July 24th.  

 
V. Our 6th, 7th, and 8th grade Equations Team Roster included 29 participants.  The 

Madison Middle School Equations Team competed in multiple scrimmages that 
were held on November 17th, January 20th, February 24th, and March 24th in 
preparation for the Super Tournament which was held on April 21st.  Equations 
is “the game of creative mathematics and involves authentic learning 
experiences and problem solving at the highest levels.” Our team, along with 
multiple other districts in the county, practiced this creativeness throughout the 
season.  On the day of the Super Tournament, the Madison Equations team 
competed fiercely and brought home two awards for their efforts.   
 

VI. This past week was teacher appreciation week.  Mrs. Jordan, Mrs. Swinehart, 
and I enlisted student leaders to deliver an afternoon treat each of the five days 
to members of our faculty.  Our budget was not very big, but there was passion 
behind the effort.  I would put our faculty up against all others with great 
confidence.  There are certainly high expectations for student achievement at 
Madison and our teachers work very hard to help our students meet these 
standards. 

 

VII. For each of the Fridays from April 21st - May 12th, Kelly McNicol, Substance 
Abuse Prevention Specialist from Communities In Schools of Lenawee, 
presented a lesson to our sixth-grade students.  Most of the lesson material is 



coming from the Michigan Model for Health to ensure evidence-based 
materials.  

Lesson 1: Positive & Negative Risks & The Importance of Choosing Friends 
Wisely 

Lesson 2: Being a Good Listener & Communicating Appreciation & 
Speaking Assertively & Respectfully 

Lesson 3: Making Healthy Decisions Using Problem Solving  

Lesson 4: Learning How to Manage Strong Feelings in Healthy Ways 

 
VIII. The annual Middle School Honors Assembly will be held at 1:15 p.m. on June 

2nd in the HS gymnasium.  We will utilize the stage set up for graduation.  
There are several other events planned for May and June.  I will include a 
calendar that highlights these events.  Please feel free to join us for any of the 
events. 

 
Schedule of Events for Madison Middle School 

 
 

May 19th……Early Dismissal Staff PD  

May 26th…….7th & 8th grade Cedar Point Trip 
May 29th......Memorial Day 

May 31st ……6th grade Cedar Point Trip 
June 1st …….Cedar Point Rain Date 
June 2nd .....MS Honors Assembly (1:15 p.m. - 2:30 p.m.) 
June 5th ……Cedar Point Rain Date 
June 13th ....Exams 1 & 2 
June 14th ....Exams 3 & 4 
June 15th ....Exams 5 & 6 

 

 
  

 



Elementary Board Report 
May 2017 
Nate Pechaitis, Abby Miller 
 
I. Projected 2017 Kindergarten Enrollment: As of May12th, we have distributed 164 registration 
packets to interested families. These registrations include students in both kindergarten and our 
Young Fives program.  
 
II. Nurse Appreciation Week & Teacher Appreciation Week 
Last week was both Nurse Appreciation Week and Teacher Appreciation Week.  We are very 
fortunate to have a colleague who is as upbeat and positive as Nurse Ellen.  She fixes scrapes 
and bruises, showers us with band aids, and reminds us of the important things in life.  Thank 
you, Nurse Ellen! 
 
We are reminded daily of the talented teaching faculty we have at Madison Elementary.  The work 
they have accomplished with our curriculum this year has been significant and makes a difference 
in student learning expectations and focus.   Our teachers have great expectations for our 
students and their achievements, and they provide the skills and supports that are needed to meet 
the new standards.  Thank you, Madison Elementary teachers, for all you do for our students and 
families! 
 
III. May School Events The days (and evenings!) have been very busy in the elementary with all 
of our family events! 

 Kindergarten Mother’s Tea: Kindergarten students shared an afternoon of tea, cookies 
and music with their mothers this month. 

 Field Trips: Madison students have been on many field trips, and will continue to have 
many opportunities throughout the month. These opportunities include the Healthy Snack 
Summit at the LISD Tech Center, the Stubnitz Center, Hidden Lake Gardens, the Adrian 
Symphony Orchestra, the Henry Ford Museum, and more. 

 A Day in the Life of Kindergarten: Our future kindergarten parents spent an evening 
filled with information, suggestions and supports on April 27th, Mrs. Lisa Segur and Mrs. 
Karin Poling led this workshop that helped prepare families for their upcoming 
kindergarten year.  In addition, supporting the evening, were early childhood experts Mrs. 
Michelle Palpant, Mrs. Stephanie Terrazas, and Mrs. Tammy Cremeans. Families were 
excited about the information shared that evening and found the opportunity to share with 
one another helpful.   

 
 
 



2016/17 July &Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April

Revenue
Breakfast $0.00 $646.90 $912.50 $821.90 $459.00 $782.10 $932.00 $1,039.70 $758.10
Lunch & Ala Cart $122.05 $15,565.99 $12,717.69 $11,167.17 $8,435.55 $12,697.89 $12,666.36 $12,587.91 $9,496.22
Juice Machine $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
State Matching Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Interest & Rebates $0.00 CACFP 655.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Lunch & Breakfast Reimb $16,103.93 $64,328.15 $71,253.57 $67,153.74 $40,876.22 $64,255.65 $65,882.49 $74,216.37 $49,004.04
Total $16,225.98 $80,541.04 $84,883.76 $79,142.81 $49,770.77 $77,735.64 $79,480.85 $87,843.98 $59,258.36

Expenses
Payroll $6,260.89 $11,281.03 $17,603.29 $16,856.12 $23,469.71 $12,380.03 $16,602.66 $16,726.91 $13,914.08
Retirement $1,342.09 $2,570.02 $3,545.14 $4,014.44 $5,577.83 $2,919.59 $3,952.44 $3,982.83 $3,294.82
F.I.C.A. $478.96 $863.00 $1,346.65 $1,289.49 $1,795.43 $947.07 $1,270.10 $1,279.61 $1,276.61
Aids $0.00 $4,290.00 $4,290.00 $4,290.00 $2,290.00 $4,290.00 $4,290.00 $4,290.00 $4,290.00
Food $4,298.93 $31,832.93 $46,018.11 $40,310.68 $39,541.08 $30,258.92 $4,245.16 $31,107.72 $33,113.14
Uniforms $4,120.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Equipment/ Capital outlay $0.00 $11,597.75 $679.27 $8,198.48 $843.75 $66.54 $30.93 $409.45 $220.37
Supplies $810.63 $5,399.51 $4,555.46 $3,526.99 $2,911.47 $2,684.75 $3,875.00 $2,651.85 $2,951.71
Sales Tax $0.00 $41.15 $0.00 $44.54 $28.60 $68.45 $54.16 $0.00 $59.00
Repairs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $470.00 $979.00 $159.20 $335.36 $0.00 $47.30
Misc./Dues/Fees/Indrect $1,560.00 $5,168.44 $221.91 $155.85 $157.52 $1,991.01 $209.49 $178.32 $1,011.15
Juice $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total $18,871.50 $73,043.83 $78,259.83 $79,156.59 $77,594.39 $55,765.56 $34,865.30 $60,626.69 $60,178.18

Monthly  Loss/ Gain ($2,645.52) $7,497.21 $6,623.93 ($13.78) ($27,823.62) $21,970.08 $44,615.55 $27,217.29 ($919.82)

Year To Date ($2,645.52) $4,851.69 $11,475.62 $11,461.84 ($16,361.78) $5,608.30 $50,223.85 $77,441.14 $76,521.32

$11,500.00 $6,653.10 3 pay periods
for lights Dishwasher $4500.00 pd early to Praie Farms

2 VIP & 3 honor role breakfasts $1,756.44
$843.00 Signage

Cafeteria Board Report
May, 2017



Madison Lenawee’s Child/Family Resource Room 
Board Report, May 2017 
Tricia Moyer-Fowler, Parent Educator 
 
*Play Groups:  Playgroups are every Monday-Thursday and Kindergarten Readiness on Friday. We have been 
adding families throughout the year. Attendance is up again as we are getting to the end of the year.    
 
Family Contacts: 
Play Group families received the following information by email and/or flyers this month: 

*Lenawee Great Start Newsletter, Community events-  
*Early Childhood “Parents make the Difference!” newsletters 
*Weekly updates of playgroup information from emails, texts and Facebook 
*Reading, math, and science extra activities and resources for parents for after school activities 
*Local extracurricular activities and opportunities in the community 
*Connecting parents to resources we have and those resources in the community.  
*Love and Logic Workshop taking place at Madison Starting on April 11th and ended on May 9, 2017.  
*Lenawee’s Child Preschool Summer Camp will be at Madison again on Tuesday, July 18th, 25th, Aug. 1st, & 
8th.  10:30-Noon at the Pavilion and Playground.  
 

 
*Donations:  No donations at this time.  
 
*Meetings:  Monthly Lenawee Child’s meeting at LISD  
  PATT meeting 
  Professional Development 
  MYAC meetings 
  Home Visits  
    
*Resource Room:  
Love and Logic class was great success with an average of 20 adults and 8 children each night. We are looking 
at planning our dates earlier next year so that parents can sign up at open house.  

Summer Preschool Camp registration was April 19-21 and Madison was full on the first day again. We will have 
on average 60 campers and families at Madison on Tuesday, July 18th, 25th, Aug. 1st, & 8th from  10:30-noon at 
the Pavilion and Playground. 

*Trojan Talk and Monthly Newsletter: Love and Logic workshop, Madison Playgroup and Kindergarten 
readiness class.  



RESOLUTION OF THE MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

WHEREAS, the biennial election of the Board of the Lenawee Intermediate School District will be held on 
Monday, June 5, 2017, at a meeting of representatives from constituent school boards. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 614(2) of the Revised School Code requires a constituent school board to designate 
its representative and identify the intermediate school board candidate the Board supports for each 
position to be filled on the Board by a resolution adopted not earlier than 21 days prior to the date of 
the election, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board previously considered the resolution at an open meeting conducted in a manner 
prescribed under the Open Meetings Act on _____________. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

1. The Board designates _______________________ as its representative to serve on the 2017 
electoral body responsible for electing members to the Lenawee Intermediate School 
District Board of Education and _______________________ as alternate representative in 
the event the designated representative is unable to attend. 
 

2. The Board supports candidate(s) _______________________ for a position on the Lenawee 
Intermediate School District Board of Education for a term of six years. 

 
 

3. The Board directs its representative __________________________ to vote for candidate(s) 
________________________ at least on the first ballot taken at the June 5, 2017, election. 
 

4. The Board authorizes and directs its secretary to file this resolution with the secretary of the 
Lenawee Intermediate School District Board of Education. 

 
Ayes: _____Members 
Nays: _____Members 
 
Resolved, this _________ day of _________, 2017. 
 
Signature: 
 
Secretary, Board of Education 
 

 



1 
 

Student/Parent Handbook  

For 

Madison Elementary School 

 

 

 

Welcome to Madison Elementary School! All the members of the staff and I are pleased to have you as a 

student and will do our best to help make your experience as productive and successful as you wish to 

make it.  

 

Ryan Rowe, Superintendent of Schools  [517-263-0741 Ext. 120] 

Nate Pechaitis, Upper Elementary Principal [517-263-0741 Ext. 130] 

Abby Miller, Early Elementary Principal  [517-263-0741 Ext. 145] 

Eric M. Frederick, Intervention Specialist [517-263-0741 Ext. 132] 

Tracey Brackelman, Guidance Counselor  [517-263-0741 Ext. 525] 

Laurie Hedy, School Secretary   [517-263-0741 Ext. 144] 

Kristie Miller, School Secretary   [517-263-0741 Ext. 134] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Forward 

Mission of the School 

Equal Education Opportunity 

Parent Involvement 

School Day 

Student Rights and Responsibilities 

Student Well-Being 

Injury and Illness 

Homebound Instruction 

 

Section I – General Information 

Enrolling in the School 

Scheduling and Assignment 

Early Dismissal 

Transfer Out of the District 

Withdrawal from School 

Immunizations 

Emergency Medical Authorization 

Use of Medications 

Control of Casual-Contact Communicable Disease 
and Pests 

Control of Noncasual-contact Communicable 
Diseases 

Individuals with Disabilities 

Limited English Proficiency  

Student Records 

Student Fees, Fines, Supplies 

Student Fund Raising 

Student Valuables 

Review of Instructional Materials and Activities 

Meal Service 

Fire, Lock Down and Tornado Drills 

Emergency Closings and Delays 

Preparedness for Toxic and Asbestos Hazards 

Visitors 

Use of the Library 

Use of School Equipment and Facilities 

Lost and Found 

Student Sales 

Use of Telephones 

Advertising Outside Activities 

 

 



3 
 

Section II – Academics 

Grades 

Promotion, Placement, and Retention 

Homework 

Computers Technology and Networks 

 

Section III – Student Activities 

School-Sponsored Clubs and Activities 

Nonschool-Sponsored Clubs and Activities 

Athletics 

 

Section IV – Student Conduct 

Attendance 

Code of Conduct 

Student Discipline Code 

Discipline 

Search and Seizure 

Student Rights of Expression 

Student Concerns, Suggestions, and Grievances 

 

Section V – Transportation 

Bus Transportation to/from School 

Bus Conduct 

Videotapes on School Buses 

Penalties for Infractions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

FORWARD 

This student handbook was developed to answer many of the commonly asked questions that you and 

your parents may have during the school year and to provide specific information about certain Board 

policies and procedures.   This handbook contains important information that you should know.  

Become familiar with the following information and keep the handbook available for frequent reference 

by you and your parents.  If you have any questions that are not addressed in this handbook, you are 

encouraged to talk to your teachers or the building principal.  

This handbook summarizes many of the official policies and administrative guidelines of the Board of 

Education and the District.  To the extent that the handbook is ambiguous or conflicts with these policies 

and guidelines, the policies and guidelines shall control.  This handbook is effective immediately and 

supersedes any prior handbook and other written material on the same subjects.  

 

This handbook reflects current Board policies and School rules as of June 1, 2017. If any of the policies or 

administrative guidelines referenced herein are revised after June 1, 2017, the language in the most 

current policy or administrative guideline prevails.  

MISSION OF THE SCHOOL 

Madison School District, in cooperation with our community, will enable each student to develop his or 

her full potential to be successful in an ever-changing world.  

EQUAL EDUCATION OPPORTUNITY 

It is the policy of this District to provide an equal education opportunity for all students. Any person who 

believes that s/he has been discriminated against on the basis of his/her race, color, disability, religion, 

gender or national origin, while at school or a school activity should immediately contact the School 

District’s Compliance Officer listed below: 

Ryan Rowe 

Superintendent 

517-263-0741 Ext. 120 

Complaints will be investigated in accordance with the procedures as described in Board Policy 2260. 

Any student making a complaint or participating in a school investigation will be protected from any 

threat or retaliation.  The Compliance Officer can provide additional information concerning equal 

access to educational opportunity.  

PARENT INVOLVEMENT 

It is the policy of Madison School District to included parents, as appropriate, in decision-making, 

planning, advising, and implementing activities to improve academic quality and student performance.  

Parent and family involvement means parents and families participate in a regular meaningful 

communication involving student academic learning and other school activities.  The Madison School 

District Parent Engagement Policy is consistent with state and federal law. 



5 
 

We welcome parent volunteers and chaperones.  In order to provide optimum safety for our students, a 

criminal background check must be completed for volunteers and chaperones before they can work 

with Madison students. Visit the elementary school office to fill out the appropriate paperwork.  It takes 

one week to process the background check.  Be sure to get your paperwork in at least two weeks before 

the event you plan on attending.  

Chaperones must: 

1. Be 21 years of age 

2. Be on the student’s emergency form in the office 

3. Not bring young children/siblings 

4. Pay their way into any field trip or event 

 

SCHOOL DAY 

School begins at 8:30 A.M. and ends at 3:30 P.M. 

Students may enter the building no earlier than 8:05 A.M. Any student in the building before 8:05 A.M. 

will be enrolled in the Latch-Key program for that day. A bill will be sent to the parents of the child.  

STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

The rules and procedures of the school are designed to allow each student to obtain a safe, orderly, and 

appropriate education.  Students must respect the rights of fellow students and staff, including the right 

to freedom of expression and association.  Students must follow teachers’ directions and obey all school 

rules. Disciplinary procedures are designed to ensure due process (a fair hearing) before a student is 

removed because of his/her behavior.  

Parents have the right to know how their child is succeeding in school and will be provided information 

on a regular basis and as needed, when concerns arise.  Many times it will be the student’s responsibility 

to deliver that information.  If necessary, mail or hand delivery may be used to ensure contact.  Parents 

are encouraged to build a relationship with their child’s teachers and support staff by informing the staff 

of suggestions or concerns that may help their child better accomplish his/her educational goals.   

Students must arrive at school on time, prepared to learn and participate in the educational program.  If, 

for some reason, this is not possible, the student should seek help from the building principal. 

STUDENT WELL-BEING 

Student safety is a responsibility of the staff.  All staff members are familiar with emergency procedures 

such as fire, lock down and tornado drills and accident reporting procedures.  Should a student be aware 

of any dangerous situation or accident, s/he must notify any staff person immediately.  

State law requires that all students must have an emergency medical card completed, signed by a parent 

or guardian, and filed in the School office. Be sure to list all people who are allowed to pick up your 

child and update the office when changes occur. Please remember to sign the emergency card.   A 

student may be excluded from school until this requirement has been fulfilled.  



6 
 

Students with specific health care needs should deliver written notice about such needs and proper 

documentation by a physician to the School Office. 

No animals, except working service animals, are allowed on school campus without consent from the 

building principal.   

INJURY AND ILLNESS 

All injuries must be reported to a teacher or the office.  If minor, the student will be treated and may 

return to class.  If medical attention is required, the office will follow the School’s emergency 

procedures.  

A Student who becomes ill during the school day should request permission to go to the office.  An 

appropriate adult in the office or the school nurse will determine whether the student should remain in 

school. No student will be released from school without proper parental permission.  

HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION 

The District shall arrange for individual instruction to students of legal school age who are not able to 

attend classes because they are medically confined to the home. 

Parents should contact the school administration regarding procedures for such instruction.  

Applications must be approved by the building principal.  The District will provide homebound 

instruction only for those confinements expected to last at least five days.  

Applications for individual instruction shall be made by a physician licensed to practice in this State, 

parent, student or other caregiver.  A physician must: (1) certify the nature and existence of a medical 

condition; (2) state the probable duration of the confinement; (3) request such instruction; and (4) 

present evidence of the student’s ability to participate in an educational program.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

SECTION I – GENERAL INFORMATION 

ENROLLING IN THE SCHOOL 

In general, State law requires students to enroll in the school district in which their parent or legal 

guardian resides unless enrolling under the District’s open enrollment policy (School of Choice). New 

students under the age of eighteen must be enrolled by their parent or legal guardian.  When enrolling, 

parents must provide copies of the following: 

1. A birth certificate or a certified copy of the birth certificate, 

2. Court papers allocating parental rights and responsibilities, or custody (if appropriate), 

3. Proof of residency, 

4. Proof of immunizations. 

Under certain circumstances, temporary enrollment may be permitted.  In such cases, parents will be 

notified about documentation required to establish permanent enrollment. 

Homeless students who meet the Federal definition of homeless may enroll and will be under the 

direction of the District Liaison for Homeless Children with regard to enrollment procedures.  

A student who has been suspended or expelled by another public school in Michigan may be denied 

admission to the District’s schools during the period of suspension or expulsion even if that student 

would otherwise be entitled to attend school in the District.  Likewise, a student who has been expelled 

or otherwise removed for disciplinary purposes from a public school in another state and the period of 

expulsion or removal has not expired, may be denied admission to the District’s schools during the 

period of expulsion or removal or until the expiration of the period of expulsion or removal which the 

student would have received in the District had the student committed the offense while enrolled in the 

District.  Prior to denying admission, however, the Superintendent shall offer the student an opportunity 

for a hearing to review the circumstances of the suspension or expulsion and any other factors the 

Superintendent determines to be relevant. When required by state law, the student may be required to 

first request reinstatement from the suspending or expelling school district, even if the student does not 

intend to re-enroll there.  

 

SCHEDULING AND ASSIGNMENT 

Our wish at Madison is to work with you in putting your children first. It is little wonder 

parents/guardians often feel strongly about having a voice in the selection of their child’s class 

placement. However, there are many things that need to be considered in order to create successful 

classrooms. Balanced classrooms make the best classrooms. When the initial information gathering 

tasks have been completed, your child’s current grade level team of teachers, special education 

teachers, specials teachers, literacy coach and the school counselor meet with the principal to draft the 

upcoming year’s classes. The objective is to match student learning styles to teacher strengths and areas 

of talent, while creating balanced classrooms. It is important that students learn to work and socialize in 

environments of diversity. This not only prepares them for “the real world” but also allows individual 

talents to shine. As staff works together in developing balanced classrooms, they factor in all student 



8 
 

information gathered from the variety of sources. Creating balanced classrooms to focus on meeting all 

students’ needs is our top priority! 

We invite parents to share input regarding your child’s learning style and any educational needs that 

should be considered by completing the Student Information form, which can be found at 

www.madisonk12.us/elementary-school. We always work to place children in classroom environments 

that best fit their individual learning needs.  We ask that parents do not request specific teachers. 

 EARLY DISMISSAL  

No students will be allowed to leave school prior to the scheduled dismissal time without a person listed 

on the emergency card coming to the school office to request the release.  

Occasionally school will be released early so that our teaching staff may participate in professional 

development.  Lunch will be served any time the children are dismissed at 12:00 p.m. or beyond. The 

early dismissal dates and times can be found on the district calendar on our website (madisonk12.us). 

 

TRANSFER IN/OUT OF THE DISTRICT 

If a student plans to transfer from Madison Elementary, the parent must notify the principal.  Transfer 

will be authorized only after the student has completed the arrangements, returned all school materials, 

and paid any fees or fines that are due.  School records may not be released if the transfer is not 

properly completed.  Parents are encouraged to contact the building principal for specific details. 

Within 14 days after enrolling a transfer student, the school shall request in writing directly from the 
student's previous school a copy of his or her school record. Any school that compiles records for each 
student in the school and that is requested to forward a copy of a transferring student's record to the 
new school shall comply within 30 days after receipt of the request unless the record has been tagged as 
“missing”. 

School officials, when transferring student records, are required to transmit disciplinary records 

including suspension and expulsion actions against the student.  

WITHDRAWING FROM SCHOOL 

No student under the age of eighteen will be allowed to withdraw from school without the written 

consent of his/her parents.  

IMMUNIZATIONS 

Students must be current with all immunizations required by law or have an authorized waiver from 

State immunization requirements.  If a student does not have the necessary shots or waivers, the 

principal may remove the student or require compliance with a set deadline.  This is for the safety of all 

students and in accordance with State law. Any questions about immunizations or waivers should be 

directed to the building principal.  

 

 

http://www.madisonk12.us/elementary-school


9 
 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL AUTHORIZATION 

The Board has established a policy that every student must have an Emergency Medical Authorization 

Form completed and signed by his/her parent in order to participate in any activity off school grounds.  

This includes field trips, spectator trips, athletic and other extra-curricular activities, and co-curricular 

activities. 

USE OF MEDICATIONS 

In order to best meet your child’s health and educational needs in school, please inform the school 

nurse of any health related issues or any current medications.  The school staff working with your child 

will be notified of your student’s health related issues and medication needs. In the event of a health-

related issue during school hours, it is very important that the school be notified of any change in 

emergency numbers.  The nurse is in the building from 10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. daily.  

In those circumstances where a student must take prescribed medication during the school day, the 

following guidelines are to be observed: 

1. Parents should, with their physician’s counsel, determine whether the medication schedule 

can be adjusted to avoid administering medication during school hours.  

2. The Medication Request and Authorization From 5330 F1, F1a, F1b and F1c must be filed 

with the respective building principal before the student will be allowed to begin taking any 

medication during school hours.  

3. All medications must be registered with the nurse’s office.  

4. Medication that is brought to the office will be properly secured. 

a. Medication may be conveyed to school in its original container by the parent or 

transported by transportation personnel (bus driver and/or bus aide at parental 

request.  This should be arranged in advance.  A two to four (2-4) week supply of 

medication is recommended.  

b. Medication MAY NOT be sent to school in a student’s lunch box, pocket, or other 

means on or about his/her person, except for emergency medications for allergies 

and/or reactions.  

5. Any unused medication unclaimed by the parent will be destroyed by school personnel 

when a prescription is no longer to be administered or at the end of a school year.  

6. The parents shall have sole responsibility to instruct their child to take the medication at the 

scheduled time, and the child has the responsibility for both presenting himself/herself on 

time and for taking the prescribed medication.  

7. A log for each prescribed medication shall be maintained which will note the personnel 

giving the medication, the date, and the time of day.  This log will be maintained along with 

the physician’s written instructions and the parent’s written permission release.  

 

Parents may authorize the school to administer a nonprescribed medication using a form 

which is available at the school office.  A physician does not have to authorize such 

medication but all of the other conditions described above under prescribed medications 

will also apply to nonprescribed medications.   The student may be authorized on the 

request from by his/her parent to self-administer the medication in the presence of a school 

staff member.  No other exceptions will be made to these requirements.  



10 
 

 

Asthma Inhalers and Epi-pens 

Students, with appropriate written permission from the physician and parent, may possess and use a 

metered dose inhaler or dry powder inhaler to alleviate asthmatic symptoms or an epinephrine auto-

injector.  Possession of an inhaler or epinephrine auto-injector requires that the school keep on file a 

written emergency care plan prepared by a physician and updated as needed.  

CONTROL OF CASUAL-CONTACT COMMUNICABLE DISEASES AND PESTS 

The school’s professional staff has the authority to remove or isolate a student who has been ill or has 

been exposed to a communicable disease or highly-transient pest, such as lice.  

Specific diseases include; diphtheria, scarlet fever, strep infections, whooping cough, mumps, measles, 

rubella, and other conditions indicated by the Local and State Health Departments.  

Any removal will only be for the contagious period as specified in the school’s administrative guidelines 

and in compliance with any directive from the local or state health department.  

INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES 

The American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act provide that no 

individual will be discriminated against on the basis of a disability.  This protection applies to all 

individuals who have access to the District’s programs and facilities, including students.  

Students may receive special education services following an evaluation.  Parent involvement in this 

procedure is important and required by Federal (IDEA) and State law.  Contact Christine Lobkovich at 

517-263-0741 ext. 142 to inquire about evaluation procedures and programs.  

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY  

Limited proficiency in the English language should not be a barrier to equal participation in the 

instructional or extra-curricular programs of the District.  Students identified as having limited English 

proficiency will be provided additional support and instruction to assist them in gaining English 

proficiency and in accessing the educational and extra-curricular program offered by the District.  

Parents should contact the building principal to inquire about evaluation procedures and programs 

offered by the District.  

STUDENT RECORDS 

The District maintains student records including both directory information and confidential 

information. 

Neither the Board nor its employees shall permit the release of the social security number of a student, 

or other individual except as authorized by law.  Documents containing social security numbers shall be 

restricted to those employees who need to know or access that information. When documents 

containing social security numbers are no longer needed, they shall be shredded by an employee who 

has authorized access to such records.  



11 
 

Directory information can be provided upon request to any individual, other than a for-profit 

organization, even without the written consent of a parent.  Parents may refuse to allow the Board to 

disclose any or all of such “directory information” upon written notification to the Board.  For further 

information about the items included within the category of directory information and instructions on 

how to prohibit its release, you may consult the Board’s annual Family Education Rights and Privacy Act 

(FERPA) notice which can be found on our district website.  

Other than directory information, access to all other student records is protected by FERPA and 

Michigan law.  Except in limited circumstances as specifically defined in State and Federal law, the 

School District is prohibited from releasing confidential education records to any outside individual or 

organization without the prior written consent of the parents. 

Confidential records include test scores, psychological reports, behavioral data, disciplinary records, and 

communications with family and outside service providers. 

Students and parents have the right to review copies of all educational records. The school may charge a 

fee for copying student records. To review student records please provide a written notice identifying 

requested student records to the building principal.  You will be given an appointment with the 

appropriate person to answer any questions and to review the requested student records.  

Parents have the right to request amendment of a student record when they believe that any of the 

information contained in the record is inaccurate, misleading or violates the student’s privacy.  A parent 

must request the amendment of a student record in writing and if the request is denied, the parent will 

be informed of their right to a hearing on the matter. 

Individuals have a right to file a complaint with the United States Department of Education if they 

believe that the District has violated FERPA.  

Consistent with the Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA), no student shall be required, as a 

part of the school program of the District’s curriculum, without prior written consent of his/her parents, 

to submit to or participate in any survey, analysis, or evaluation that reveals information concerning: 

1. Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or his/her parents; 

2. Mental or psychological problems of the student or his/her family; 

3. Sex behavior or attitudes; 

4. Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating or demeaning behavior; 

5. Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom respondents have close family 

relationships; 

6. Legally recognized privileged and analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, 

physicians, and ministers; 

7. Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs or the student or his/her parents; or  

8. Income (other than that required by law to determine eligibility for participation in a 

program or for receiving financial assistance under such a program). 

Consistent with the PPRA and Board policy, the Superintendent shall ensure that procedures are 

established whereby parents may inspect any materials used in conjunction with any such survey, 

analysis, or evaluation. 



12 
 

Further, parents have the right to inspect, upon request, a survey or evaluation created by a third party 

before the survey/evaluation is administered or distributed by the school to the student.  The parent 

will have access to the survey/evaluation within a reasonable time after the request is received by the 

building principal.  

The Superintendent will provide notice directly to parents of students enrolled in the District of the 

substantive content of this policy at least annually at the beginning of the school year, and within a 

reasonable time after any substantive change in this policy.  In addition, the Superintendent is directed 

to notify parents of students in the District, at least annually at the beginning of the school year, of the 

approximate dates during the school year when the following activities are scheduled or expected to be 

scheduled: 

1. Activities involving the collection, disclosure, or use of personal information collected from 

students for the purpose of marketing or for selling that information or otherwise providing 

that information to others for the purpose; and 

2. The administration of any survey by a third party that contains one or more of the items 

described in 1 through 8 above.  

The Family Policy Compliance Office in the U.S. Department of Education administers both FERPA and 

PPRA. Parents and/or eligible students who believe their rights have been violated may file a complaint 

with: 

Family Policy Compliance Office 

U.S. Department of Education 

400 Maryland Avenue, SW 20202-4605 

Washington, D.C. 

www.ed.gov/offices/OM/fpco 

 

Informal inquiries may be sent to the Family Policy Compliance Office via the following email addresses: 

FERPA@ED.Gov; and  

PPRA@ED.Gov  

STUDENT FEES, FINES, AND SUPPLIES 

Madison Elementary charges specific fees for noncurricular activities and programs such as field trips 

and merit trips.  Such fees are determined by the cost of materials, freight/handling fees, and add-on 

fees for the loss or damage to school property.   

Fees may be waived at the District’s discretion in situations where there is financial hardship. 

The District will provide all basic supplies needed to complete the required course curriculum.  The 

student and/or his/her family may choose to purchase their own supplies if they desire to have a greater 

quantity or quality of supplies, or desire to help conserve the limited resources for use by others.  The 

http://www.ed.gov/offices/OM/fpco
mailto:FERPA@ED.Gov
mailto:PPRA@ED.Gov


13 
 

teacher or appropriate administrator may recommend useful supplies for these purposes. (See Policy 

6152). 

Students using school property and equipment can be fined for excessive wear and abuse of the 

property and equipment.  The fine will be used to pay for the damage, not to make a profit.  

Late fines may be charged if borrowed property is not returned by the due date assigned.  

STUDENT FUND-RAISING 

Students participating in school-sponsored groups and activities will be allowed to solicit funds from 

other students, staff members, and members of the community in accordance with school guidelines.  

The following general rules will apply to all fundraisers.  

1. Students involved in a fundraiser must not interfere with students participating in other 

activities when soliciting funds. 

2. Students must not participate in a fundraising activity for a group in which they are not 

members. 

3. Students may not participate in school-sponsored fund-raising activities off school property 

without proper supervision by approved staff or other adults. 

4. Students may not participate in a “door-to-door” type fundraiser.  

5. Students who engage in fundraisers that require them to exert themselves physically, such 

as “runs for…,” will be monitored by a staff member in order to prevent potential harm.  

6. Students may not participate in a fundraising activity conducted by a parent group, booster 

club, or community organization on school property without the approval of the Principal.  

STUDENT VALUABLES 

Students should not bring items of value to school. Items such as jewelry, expensive clothing, electronic 

equipment, and the like, are tempting targets for theft. The School is not responsible for their 

safekeeping nor liable for loss or damage to personal items.  

REVIEW OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS AND ACTIVITIES 

Parents have the right to review instructional materials being used in the school and observe class 

instruction, subject to reasonable restrictions and limits. Any parent who wishes to review materials or 

observe instruction must contact the principal prior to coming to the School.    

MEAL SERVICE 

The Board believes the development of healthy behaviors and habits with regard to eating cannot be 

accomplished by the District alone.  It will be necessary for the school staff, in addition to parents and 

the public at large, to be involved in a community-wide effort to promote, support, and model such 

healthy behaviors and habits.  Parents interested in being involved should contact the building principal. 

The school participates in the National School Lunch Program and provides assistance to students for 

breakfast and lunch.  An extra entrée can be purchased for $1.00. Extra milk costs 40 cents. Students 

may also bring their own lunch to school. According to the federal rules under which our meal service 

operates, milk is only free to those students that get the lunch being served by the cafeteria. Students 



14 
 

that bring their lunch have to purchase milk for 40 cents.  No student shall be allowed to leave the 

school premises during the lunch period. 

Lunch/Recess Schedule 

Grade 
 

Y-5 K 1 2 3 4 5 

Lunch 11:30-
11:55 

11:00-
11:25 

12:05-
12:30 

12:30-
12:55 

12:05-
12:30 

12:15-
12:40 

12:35-
1:00 

Recess 11:10-
11:30 

11:25-
11:45 

11:45-
12:05 

12:10-
12:30 

12:30-
12:50 

12:40-
1:00 

1:00-
1:20 

  

FIRE, LOCKDOWN AND TORNADO DRILLS 

The school complies with all fire safety laws and will conduct fire drills in accordance with State law.  

Specific instructions on how to proceed will be provided to students by their teachers who will be 

responsible for safe, prompt, and orderly evacuation of the building. 

Tornado drills will be conducted throughout the school year using the procedures provided by the State. 

Lock down drills, in which the students are restricted to the interior of the school building and the 

building secured, will occur a minimum of two (2) times each school year.  

EMERGENCY CLOSINGS AND DELAYS 

If the school must be closed or the opening delayed because of inclement weather or other conditions, 

the School will notify WLEN radio and TV stations 11, 13, and 24. Parents will also be notified by our 

Alert Now Instant Alert System. 

PREPAREDNESS FOR TOXIC AND ASBESTOS HAZARDS 

The School is concerned for the safety of students and complies with all Federal and State Laws and 

Regulations to protect students from hazards that may result from industrial accidents beyond the 

control of school officials or from the presence of asbestos materials used in previous construction. A 

copy of the School District’s Preparedness for Toxic Hazard and Asbestos Hazard Policy and asbestos 

management plan will be made available for inspection at the Board offices upon request. 

VISITORS 

Part of growing up is learning how to do things on your own. It is important to help children foster 

independence. All of our students are encouraged to walk themselves to class respectfully, responsibly 

and safely. Parents of students are invited to accompany their children to class for the first day of school 

ONLY. Please obtain a pass from the office before entering the building. Adults in the building without a 

pass will be reported to the building principal.   Students may not bring visitors to school without prior 

written permission from the Principal.  

If a person wishes to confer with a member of the staff, s/he should call for an appointment prior to 

coming to the School, in order to schedule a mutually convenient time. Parents should not be in the 

building after 8:30 unless they have a scheduled appointment.  



15 
 

If a teacher has planned for an event to which parents and family members are invited, teachers will 

communicate the plan to the office. Parents will need to sign in and get a visitor sticker. 

For family events, such as grade level family breakfasts or Honor Roll breakfasts taking place in the Café, 

parents should enter and exit through the exterior doors of the café.  

 

USE OF LIBRARY 

The library is available to students throughout the school day.  Passes may be obtained from a student’s 

teacher or from the librarian.  Books on the shelves may be checked out for a period of two weeks.  A 

student may not check out additional items from the library until previously checked out items are 

returned or a fine is paid for those items.  

USE OF SCHOOL EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES 

Students must receive the permission of the teacher before using any equipment or materials in the 

classroom and the permission of the Principal to use any other school equipment or facility.  Students 

will be held responsible for the proper use and protection of any equipment or facility they are 

permitted to use.  

LOST AND FOUND 

The lost and found area is in the fifth grade hallway. Students who have lost items should check there 

and may retrieve their items if they give a proper description. Unclaimed items will be given to charity at 

the winter holiday break and at the close of the school year.  

STUDENT SALES 

No student is permitted to sell any item or service in school without the approval of the building 

principal. Violation of this may lead to disciplinary action.  

USE OF TELEPHONES 

Office telephones are not to be used for personal calls.  Except in an emergency, students will not be 

called to the office to receive a telephone call. Telephones are available in the school for students to use 

when they are not in class. Students are not to use telephones to call parents to receive permission to 

leave school.  Office personnel will initiate all calls on behalf of a student seeking permission to leave 

school.  

ADVERTISING OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES 

Students may not post announcements or advertisements for outside activities without receiving prior 

approval from the principal.  The principal will try to respond to requests for approval within twenty-

four (24) hours of their receipt. 

 

 

 



16 
 

SECTION II – ACADEMICS 

GRADES 

Madison Elementary has a standard grading procedure, as well as additional notations that may indicate 

work in progress or incomplete work.  The purpose of a grade is to indicate the extent to which the 

student has acquired the necessary learning.  In general, students are assigned grades based upon test 

results, homework, projects and classroom participation. Each teacher may place a different emphasis 

on these areas in determining a grade and will inform the students at the beginning of the course work.  

If a student is not sure how his/her grade will be determined, s/he should ask the teacher. 

The Great Start program and Young Fives use the following grading system: 

 S = Successful 

 P = Progressing 

 N = Needs Improvement 

The Early Elementary (Kindergarten – 3rd grade) uses the following grading system: 

 O = Often Exceeds Grade Level 

 S = Satisfactory, At Grade Level 

 N = Needs Improvement, below grade level  

The Upper Elementary (Grade 4 and 5) uses the following grading system: 

 90 to 100 = A = Excellent achievement 

 80 to 89 = B = Good achievement 

 70 to 79 = C = Satisfactory achievement 

 60 to 69 = D = Minimum-Acceptable achievement  

   F = Failure 

   I = Incomplete 

   P = Acceptable achievement 

 

Grading Periods 

Students shall receive a report card at the end of each trimester indicating their grades for each course 

of study for that portion of the academic term.  Progress reports are sent home for all 4th and 5th grade 

students midway through each trimester.  

 

 



17 
 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION 

Promotion to the next grade is based on the following criteria: 

1. Current level of achievement 

2. Potential for success at the next level 

3. Emotional, physical, and/or social maturity 

The District may consult parents on elementary promotion and retention. The District has final authority 

over whether a student will be promoted or retained.  

 

RECOGNITION OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

Students who have displayed significant achievements during the course of the year are recognized for 

their accomplishments.  Areas that may merit recognition included but are not limited to academics, 

athletics, performing arts, citizenship, and volunteerism.  Recognition for such activities is initiated by 

the staff and coordinated by the building principal. Each grade level, in conjunction with administration, 

will develop a systematic plan for positively acknowledging student behavior.  

HOMEWORK 

The assignment of homework can be expected.  Student grades will reflect the completion of all work, 

including assignments to be completed at home.  Homework is also part of the student’s preparation for 

the State mandated tests and graduation.  

Homework will not generally be used for disciplinary reasons but only to enhance the student’s learning.  

The general guideline for homework is the student’s grade times 10 minutes per night.  Thus, first 

graders will have approximately 10 minutes per night, while fifth graders will have approximately 50 

minutes per night.  Students should be practicing reading every night in addition to homework. Parents 

are strongly encouraged to promote educational activities above and beyond homework.  These 

activities can be spontaneous, brief, and fun but should also be as frequent as possible.  Some suggested 

activities include pleasure reading, educational discussion, educational games, and trips to the library or 

to other educational settings. Parents are the child’s most important teacher and are strongly 

encouraged to take this role seriously.  

Culture of Achievement Program (CAP) (Grades 3-5) 

Madison Elementary School strongly believes that students who come to class consistently unprepared 

and/or without completed assignments will not achieve to their fullest potential.  Furthermore, the 

establishment of poor work habits will make middle school and high school very difficult.  In an effort to 

enable all students to be successful, Madison Elementary School insists that students demonstrate 

initiative and take responsibility for their learning.  Students who do not complete and turn in 

assignments will be referred to the Culture of Achievement Program (CAP). CAP is supervised by 

classroom teachers and takes place during the student’s lunch and recess period. Students receiving a 

CAP referral are required to attend CAP until their assignment(s) is complete.  Students completing 

assignments before the end of the lunch/recess period may rejoin their peers in the cafeteria or on the 

playground. Students who do not complete their assignments will be expected to complete their 



18 
 

assignment for homework. Parents whose students have received a CAP referral will receive notification 

via the instant alert system. 

COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY AND NETWORKS 

Before any student may take advantage of the School’s computer network and the internet, s/he and 

his/her parents must sign an agreement that defines the conditions under which the student may 

participate.  Failure to abide by all of the terms of the agreement may lead to termination of the 

student’s computer account and possible disciplinary action as outlined in the Student Code of Conduct 

or referral to law enforcement authorities.  Copies of the School District’s Student Network and Internet 

Acceptable Use and Safety Policy and the requisite student and parent agreement will be distributed on 

the first day of school.  

Students must complete a mandatory training session/program regarding the appropriate use of 

technology and online safety and security as specified in Policy 7540.03 – Student Network and Internet 

Acceptable Use and Safety before being permitted to access the Network and/or being assigned an e-

mail address. 

 

SECTION III – STUDENT ACTIVITIES 

SCHOOL-SPONSORED CLUBS AND ACTIVITIES 

Madison Elementary provides students the opportunity to broaden their learning through curricular-

related activities. A curricular-related activity may be for credit, required for a particular course, and/or 

contain school subject matter.  

The Board authorizes many student groups and activities that are sponsored by a staff member. 

Authorized groups/activities include: 

1. Student Council  

2. Science Club 

3. Science Olympiad 

4. Math Night 

5. Science Night 

6. S’more Reading 

7. Honor Roll Breakfast 

8. Field Day 

9. Fifth Grade Camp 

Extra-curricular-related activities do not reflect the School curriculum, but are made available to 

students to allow them to pursue additional worthwhile activities. The groups/activities include: 

1. Recycled Fashion Show 

2. Talent Show 

3. Drama Club 

4. Earth Club 

5. Girls on the Run 



19 
 

 

NON-SCHOOL SPONSORED CLUBS AND ACTIVITIES 

Non-school-sponsored student groups organized for religious, political, or philosophical reasons may 

meet during noninstructional hours. The applicant must verify that the activity is being initiated by 

students, that attendance is voluntary, that no school staff person is actively involved in the event, that 

the event will not interfere with school activities and that non-school persons do not play a regular role 

in the event.  All school rules will still apply regarding behavior and equal opportunity to participate. 

Non-school-sponsored groups/activities include: 

1. Boy Scouts 

2. Girl Scouts 

3. Brownies 

4. Daisy Troop  

5. 4-H 

6. Bible Study 

No nondistrict-sponsored organization may use the name of the school or school mascot.  

ATHLETICS 

The Madison Youth Athletic Counsel (MYAC) provides a variety of athletic activities in which students 

may participate providing they meet the eligibility requirements that may apply.  The following is a list 

of activities currently being offered by MYAC: 

1. Sideline cheer 

2. Tackle football 

3. Flag football 

4. T-Ball 

5. Baseball 

6. Softball (not currently affiliated with MYAC) 

7. Wrestling  

8. Basketball  

All athletic programs of the District shall comply with the concussion protocols of the Michigan High 

School Association, the requirements of state law, and Department of Community Health guidelines 

regarding concussion awareness training and protection of youth athletes.  

 

SECTION IV – STUDENT CONDUCT 

ATTENDANCE 

School Attendance Policy 

Classroom attendance instills a concept of self-discipline, exposes a student to group interactions with 

teachers and fellow students, and enables a student to hear and participate in class discussion and other 

related learning experiences. 



20 
 

Regular attendance is critical in the development and learning of all students.  Absences are lost hours 

of learning and instruction, rather than a simple tally of days.  The mission of our attendance policy is to 

clearly and effectively communicate the ways in which absences will be defined. 

Research shows that chronic absence is a directly linked to lower test scores, increased dropout rates, 

and significantly lower levels of reading and math abilities.  Chronic absence is defined as missing 10% or 

more of any school period for any reason.  Therefore, when interventions take place, it is not necessary 

to determine whether absences are excused or unexcused. 

Goal 

The goal of the school district is to link all students and families with the appropriate resources which 

will enable them to overcome the barriers that interfere with regular attendance.   

Absences 
All absences must be communicated to the school office by the parent or guardian on the day of the 

absence. Please call the attendance line at 517-263-0744 and explain the reason for the absence. You 

can leave a message between 5:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m. Children arriving at school after 8:40 a.m. but 

before 11:30 a.m. will be marked absent for the entire a.m. half of the day.  If your child is signed out of 

the building before 11:30 a.m., they will be marked absent for both the a.m. and p.m. if they do not 

return the same school day. Any children signed out between the hours of 11:30 a.m. and 3:20 p.m. will 

be marked absent for the entire p.m. half of the day. Children signed out after 2:20 p.m. until the end of 

the school day will be marked tardy in the p.m.   

Absences will be either counted or not counted, depending on the circumstances surrounding the 

absence.  All absences will be counted with the exception of the following appropriately documented 

circumstances: 

1. Funeral Visitations 

2. The day of a doctor’s visit 

3. Hospitalization 

4. School related activity including suspensions 

5. Court dates 

Assignments will be allowed to be made up with the rule of one day per absence. 

 

All counted absences will be handled in the following manner per semester: 

Step 1: After four counted absences a letter will be mailed home to notify the parent 

Step 2: After seven absences a letter will be sent reminding parents about the importance of regular 

attendance 

Step 3: After nine absences, a call will be made along with a referral to the Truancy Specialist.  Direct 

parent communication will take place, and an action plan will be agreed upon to address the root cause 

of the absences.  The school attendance team will be notified and discussions to improve attendance 

will take place. 



21 
 

Step 4: After eleven absences, a notice of truancy will be mailed home, and contact will be made by the 

Truancy Specialist to the student or parent.  A meeting will be requested with the student and/or parent 

at the school with the appropriate members of the attendance team.  An attendance agreement will be 

developed with clear expectations from all parties. 

Step 5: If absences continue, a re-evaluation of the root cause of the absences will be examined and a 

corrective action plan pursued.  Failure to cooperate and comply will result in a complaint on behalf of 

the school district against the parent or guardian in probate court.  

Truancy 

Any student whose absence is not communicated by the parent/guardian will be considered truant.  

Classwork for that day cannot be made up and no credit will be given for those daily assignments.  An 

accumulation of three truant days will result in a referral to the Truancy Specialist 

Tardy Policy 
A student who enters a classroom after the bell not only misses learning time, but also interrupts the 

learning of other students in the class. A student who is not in his/her assigned location by 8:30 a.m. 

shall be considered tardy. Any child who arrives to school after 8:30 a.m., but before 8:40 a.m. should go 

straight to their classroom where the teacher will mark them tardy.  Children arriving after 8:40 a.m. 

should report to the office where they must sign in and receive a student pass.   

Procedure: 

1. Any student who enters class after 8:30 will be marked tardy and given a verbal warning. 

2. Any student who enters a class without a pass ten minutes after the bell will be marked 

absent and will be notified by the teacher.  A note will be made in the school’s student data 

system as to the arrival time. 

3. Any student with a pass from another school official will not be counted tardy. 

Parents: 

It is the goal of the school to maximize the amount of learning time for each student while they are in 

our care.  Chronic absence, or missing 10% of the school time, is a substantial predictor of negative 

outcomes.  We ask for your cooperation in helping to ensure that your child does not fall into this 

category.   The following are things that you can do to be a partner in the education of your child. 

1 Plan family vacations on weekends or around school breaks.  A one week vacation causes a 

student to miss approximately 35 hours of instruction that his/her classmates will receive. This is 

valuable learning that is difficult to make up for when the student returns.  Please make every 

effort to schedule any doctor and dentist appointments after school hours. 

2 Have a plan as well as a backup plan to get your child to school on time every day.  Too often a 

disruption in the morning or transportation issues cause children to miss entire days of school.  

Communicate to school officials if this is a problem, so that appropriate resources can be sought 

to help correct the issue.   



22 
 

3 Only allow your child to stay home if they are too sick to come to school.  Fever, vomiting, pink 

eye, or severe viral infections are causes to keep them at home.  Complaints of a headache or 

stomachache can be signs of anxiety and should be communicated to school officials. 

4 Keep track of your child’s attendance.  Chronic absence is missing just two days per month, but 

over the course of a school year equates to about 126 hours of learning.  Parents can use a 

calendar system at home to track attendance, or use the school’s online program. 

5 Communicate.  Most attendance related issues can be solved fairly easily by utilizing the 

appropriate resources and staff.  Talk to your school officials about what is causing attendance 

problems, and remember that we are here to help.  We will commit to work eagerly with you to 

provide the services needed to ensure that your child has the opportunity to have excellent 

attendance. 

Suspension from School 

Absence from school due to suspension shall be considered an authorized absence, neither excused nor 

unexcused. A suspended student will be responsible for making up schoolwork lost due to suspension.  

It is recommended that a student complete missed assignments during the suspension and turn them in 

to the teacher upon his/her return from school.  Make up of missed tests may be scheduled. The 

student will be given credit for properly completed assignments and a grade on any made-up tests.  

Student Sign-In/Sign-Out 

If a student arrives late, after 8:40 a.m., the parent must come into the school office to sign the student 

in.  If a student needs to go home early, the parent must sign the student out in the office.  Teachers will 

not dismiss students from their classrooms without confirmation from the office. For the safety of our 

students, all children must be signed in and out of the office during the school day. 

Make-up of Tests and Other School Work 

Students who are excusably absent from school or who have been suspended shall be given the 

opportunity to make-up work that has been missed.  The student should contact their classroom teacher 

as soon as possible to obtain assignments. Students will be given the number of days of excused 

absence within which to make-up work.  

If a student misses a teacher’s test due to excused absence, s/he may make arrangements with the 

teacher to take the test.  If s/he misses a State mandated test or other standardized test, the student 

should consult with the building principal to arrange for taking the test.  

STUDENT ATTENDANCE AT SCHOOL EVENTS 

The school encourages students to attend as many school events held after school as possible, without 

interfering with their schoolwork and home activities.  Enthusiastic spectators help to build school spirit 

and encourage those students who are participating in the event.  

However, in order to ensure that students attending evening events as nonparticipants are properly 

safeguarded, it is strongly advised that students be accompanied by a parent or adult chaperone when 

they attend the event.  The School will not be able to supervise unaccompanied students nor will it be 

responsible for students who arrive without an adult chaperone.  



23 
 

The school will continue to provide adequate supervision for all students who are participants in a 

School activity.  Students must comply with the Code of Conduct at school events, regardless of the 

location.  

CODE OF CONDUCT 

A major component of the education program at Madison Elementary School is to prepare students to 

become responsible workers and citizens by learning how to conduct themselves properly and in 

accordance with established standards.  

Madison Elementary is committed to creating a school environment that teaches, promotes and instills 

characteristics that will allow students to be successful.  A Positive Behavior Support System is a means 

to create a proactive discipline structure.  It allows for the modeling of desired behaviors and a balance 

in addressing both positive and negative behaviors.  Research has shown that implementation of a 

Positive Behavior Support System will result in an improved school climate, reduced discipline referrals, 

increased attendance rates, and increased student achievement. (modelprogram.com) Madison 

Elementary school has developed the motto, “We Are Respectful. We Are Responsible. We Are Safe. We 

Are All Leaders In Our Madison Family.” In order to recognize students exhibiting these behaviors, 

“Trojan Tickets” are used.  Any staff member that observes a student displaying these behaviors may 

award him/her with a Trojan Ticket. The tickets will be placed into a classroom container and are used in 

drawings to award individuals and their classrooms.  

Expected Behaviors 

Each students shall be expected to: 

1. Abide by national, State and local laws as well as the rules  of the school; 

2. Respect the civil rights of others; 

3. Act courteously to adults and fellow students; 

4. Be prompt to school and attentive in class; 

5. Work cooperatively with others when involved in accomplishing a common goal, regardless 

of the other’s ability, gender, race, religion, height, weight, disability, or ethnic background; 

6. Complete assigned tasks on time and as directed; 

7. Help maintain a school environment that is safe, friendly, and productive; 

8. Act at all times in a manner that reflects pride in self, family, and in the school. 

 

Dress and Grooming 

While fashion changes, the reason for being in school does not. Students are in school to learn.  Any 

fashion (dress, accessory, or hairstyle) that disrupts the educational process or presents a safety risk will 

not be permitted.  Personal expression is permitted within these general guidelines. 

Students should consider the following questions when dressing for school: 

1. Does my clothing expose too much? (no) 

2. Does my clothing advertise something that is prohibited to minors? (no) 



24 
 

3. Are there obscene, profane, drug-related, gang-related, or inflammatory messages on my 

clothing? (no) 

4. Would I interview for a job in this outfit? (yes) 

5. Am I dressed appropriately for the weather? (yes) 

6. Do I feel comfortable with my appearance? (yes) 

If a student has selected a manner of appearance that is beyond mere freedom of expression and 

disrupts the educational process or presents risk to themselves or others, they may be removed from 

the educational setting.  

Students shall not wear the following: 

1. Distracting and/or inappropriate clothing, such as shirts with logos that advertise something 

prohibited to minors or contain obscene imagery, short-shorts, inappropriate wording (ex. 

Profanity and/or references to drugs or alcohol, put downs, violence) 

2. Hats, bandanas, other head coverings, and sunglasses are not to be worn in the school 

building. This is enforced in both classrooms and the hallways. 

3. Shirts and blouses that expose the midriff and/or are too revealing (chin must be able to 

touch the neckline) are not acceptable.  

4. Cut away shirts (muscle shirts) are not allowed.  Shirts must cover the top of the shoulders.  

Spaghetti strap shirts and halter-tops are not permitted.  Undergarments must not be 

showing.  

5. Since our students go outside for recess, they should dress appropriately for the weather. 

Closed toe shoes are necessary for playground safety.  Flip flops are not allowed on the 

playground and are discouraged at school.   

6. No miniskirts. Skirts (and shorts) must not be shorter than 2 inches above the knee.  

7. Chains of any sort, including but not limited to chains attached to wallets, are not allowed. 

Chains brought to school may be considered a weapon.  

Care of Property 

Students are responsible for personal property. Valuables such as jewelry or irreplaceable items should 

not be brought to school.  The school may confiscate such items and return them to the student’s 

parents.  

Damage to or loss of school equipment and facilities wastes taxpayers’ money and undermines the 

school program.  Therefore, if a student damages or loses school property, the student or his/her 

parents will be required to pay for the replacement or damage.  If the damage or loss was intentional, 

the student will also be subject to discipline according to the Student Discipline Code.  

STUDENT DISCIPLINE CODE 

The Board of Education has adopted the following Student Discipline Code. The Code includes the types 

of misconduct that will subject a student to disciplinary action.  The Board has also adopted the list of 

behaviors and the terms contained in the list.  

It is the school staff’s responsibility to provide a safe and orderly learning environment.  History has 

shown that certain student actions are not compatible with a “safe” and “orderly” environment.  



25 
 

Discipline is within the sound discretion of the School’s staff and administration.  Due process ensures 

that disciplinary action is imposed only after review of the facts and/or special circumstances of the 

situation.  

EXPLANATION OF TERMS APPLYING TO THE STUDENT DISCIPLINE CODE 

Each of the behaviors described below may subject the student to disciplinary action including 

suspension and/or expulsion from school. 

1.  Student disorder/demonstration 

Students will not be denied their rights to freedom of expression, but the expression may not infringe on 

the rights of others.  Disruption of any school activity will not be allowed.  If a student (or students) feels 

there is a need to organize some form of demonstration, s/he is encouraged to contact the Principal to 

discuss the proper way to plan such an activity.  Students who disrupt the school may be subject to 

suspension or expulsion.  

 

2.  Possession of a weapon 

A weapon includes, but is not limited to, firearms, guns of any type whatsoever including air and gas-

powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, metallic knuckles, 

martial arts weapons, and explosives.  It may also include any toy that is presented as a real weapon or 

reacted to as a real weapon.  Criminal charges may be filed for this violation.  Possession of a weapon 

may subject a student to permanent expulsion.   

State law may require that a student be permanently expelled from school, subject to a petition for 

possible reinstatement if s/he brings onto or has in his/her possession on school property or at a school-

related activity any of the following: 

1. Any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas including bombs, grenades, rockets, missiles, mines, 

or device that can be converted into such a destructive item 

2. Any knife with a blade over three (3) inches long  

3. Any similar object that is intended to invoke bodily harm or fear of bodily harm (e.g. air gun, 

blowgun, toy gun, etc.)  

3.  Use of an object as a weapon 

Any object that is used to threaten, harm, or harass another may be considered a weapon.  This includes 

but is not limited to padlocks, pens, pencils, laser pointers, jewelry and so on.  Intentional injury to 

another can be a felony and/or a cause for civil action. This violation may subject a student to expulsion. 

4. Knowledge of Dangerous Weapons or Threats of Violence 

Because the Board believes that students, staff members, and visitors are entitled to function in a safe 

school environment, students are required to report knowledge of dangerous weapons or threats of 

violence to the principal. Failure to report such knowledge may subject the student to discipline.  

 



26 
 

5. Purposely setting a fire 

Anything, such as fire, that endangers school property and its occupants will not be tolerated.  Arson is a 

felony and intentionally setting a fire will subject the student to expulsion. 

6. Physically assaulting a staff member/student/person associated with the District 

Physically assaulting a District employee, volunteer, or contractor may result in charges being filed and 

subject the student to expulsion.  Physical assault is defined as “intentionally causing or attempting to 

cause physical harm to another through force or violence.” 

7. Verbally threatening a staff member/student/person associated with the District. 

A verbal threat is a communicated intent to inflict physical or other harm on another person, with a 

present intent and ability to act on the threat. Verbal threats include making threats directed at a school 

building, property, or a school-related activity.  Verbal threats may result in suspension and expulsion. 

8. Falsification of schoolwork, identification, forgery 

Forgery of hall/bus passes and excuses as well as false I.D.’s are forms of lying and are not acceptable.  

Plagiarism and cheating are also forms of falsification and subject the student to academic penalties as 

well as disciplinary action.  Violations of this rule could result in suspension or expulsion.  

9.  False alarms, false reports, and bomb threats 

A false emergency alarm, report or bomb threat endangers the safety forces that are responding, the 

citizens of the community, and persons in the building. What may seem like a prank is a dangerous 

stunt.  Violations of this rule could result in suspension or expulsion.  

10. Explosives 

Explosives, fireworks, and chemical-reaction objects such as smoke bombs, pipe bombs, bottle bombs, 

small firecrackers, and poppers are forbidden. Violations of this rule could result in suspension or 

expulsion.  

11.  Trespassing 

Although schools are public facilities, the law does allow the school to restrict access on school property.  

If a student has been removed, suspended, or expelled, the student is not allowed on school property 

without authorization of the Principal.  In addition, students may not trespass onto school property at 

unauthorized times or into prohibited areas of the school.  Violations of this rule could result in 

suspension or expulsion.  

12. Theft 

When a student is caught stealing property, s/he will be disciplined and may be reported to law 

enforcement officials.  Students are encouraged not to bring anything of value to school that is not 

needed for learning without prior authorization from the building principal. The school is not 

responsible for personal property.  Theft may result in suspension or expulsion.  

 



27 
 

13. Disobedience 

School staff is acting “in loco parentis,” which means they are allowed, by law, to direct a student as 

would a parent.  This applies to all staff, not just teachers assigned to a student.  If given a reasonable 

direction by a staff member, the student must comply. Chronic disobedience or failure to obey staff can 

result in discipline, up to and including expulsion.  

 14.  Unauthorized use of school or private property 

Students are expected to obtain permission to use any school property or any private property located 

on school premises.  Any unauthorized use shall be subject to disciplinary action.  This included use of 

the internet and communication networks in a manner not sanctioned by policy and administrative 

guideline.  Violations of this rule could result in suspension or expulsion 

15. Refusing to accept discipline 

The school may use informal discipline to prevent the student from being removed from school.  When 

a student refuses to accept the usual discipline for an infraction, the refusal can result in a sterner action 

such as suspension or expulsion.  

16. Aiding or abetting violation of school rules 

If a student assists another student in violating any school rule, they will be disciplined and may be 

subject to suspension or expulsion.  Students are expected to resist peer pressure and exercise sound 

decision-making regarding their behavior.  

17.  Displays of affection 

Students demonstrating affection between each other is personal and not meant for public display.  This 

includes touching, petting, or any other contact that may be considered sexual in nature.  Such behavior 

may result in suspension from school or possibly expulsion.  

18.  Possession of Wireless Communication Devices (WCDs) 

A student may possess a cell phone, wireless communication device (WCD) or other electronic 

communication device (ECD) and electronic storage devices (ESD) in school prior to and after school 

hours. A student may not possess a WCD, ECD or ESD during school hours unless special permission is 

given by the building principal or the student’s teacher. Devices should be stored in lockers during the 

school day. 

Except as authorized under Board policy, use of WCDs and electronic storage devices in school, on 

school property, at after school activities and at school-related functions will be subject to disciplinary 

action.  

The school prohibits the use of any video or camera device in any restroom, locker room or other 

location where students and staff “have a reasonable expectation of privacy.”  A student improperly 

using any device to take or transmit images will face disciplinary action up to and including suspension 

or expulsion.  



28 
 

Taking or transmitting images or messages during testing is also prohibited.  If a student is caught 

transmitting images or messages during testing, s/he will fail the exam and receive up to a 10-day 

suspension. 

19. Violation of individual school/classroom rules 

Each learning environment has different rules for students.  Individual rules are for the safe and orderly 

operation of that environment.  Students will be oriented to specific rules, all of which will be consistent 

with the policy of the school.  Persistent violations of rules could result in suspension or expulsion.  

20. Disruption of the educational process 

Any actions or manner of dress that interferes with school activities or disrupts the educational process 

is unacceptable.  Such disruptions also include delay or prevention of lessons, assemblies, field trips, 

athletic events, and performing arts events. 

21. Harassment 

Harassment of students is prohibited, and will not be tolerated.  This includes inappropriate conduct by 

other students as well as any other person in the school environment, including employees, Board 

members, parents, guests, contractors, vendors and volunteers.  It is the policy of the District to provide 

a safe and nurturing educational environment for all of its students.  This policy applies to all activities 

on school property and to all school-sponsored activities whether on or off school property.  

Harassment is defined as inappropriate conduct that is repeated enough, or serious enough, to 

negatively impact a student’s educational, physical or emotional well-being.  To qualify as “harassment,” 

the conduct must be based on any of the legally protected characteristics, such as sex, race, color, 

national origin, religion, height, weight, marital status or disability.   

Harassment through any means, including electronically transmitted methods (e.g. internet, telephone 

or cell phone, personal digital assistant (PDA), computer or wireless handheld device), may be subject to 

District disciplinary procedures.  Such behavior is considered harassment whether it takes place on or off 

school property, at any school-sponsored function, or in a school vehicle if it is considered to have a 

negative impact on the school environment.  

Every student should, and every staff member must report any situation that they believe to be 

improper harassment of a student.  Reports may be made to those identified above.  

If the investigation finds harassment occurred it will result in prompt and appropriate remedial action.   

This may include up to expulsion for students, up to discharge for employee, exclusion for parents, 

guests, volunteers and contractors, and removal from any officer position and/or a request to resign for 

Board members. 

Retaliation against any person for complaining about harassment, or participating in a harassment 

investigation, is prohibited.  Suspected retaliation should be reported in the same manner as 

harassment.  Intentionally false harassment reports, made to get someone in trouble, are also 

prohibited.  Retaliation and intentionally false reports may result in disciplinary action as indicated 

above.  



29 
 

The following definitions are provided for guidance only.  If a student or other individual believes there 

has been harassment, regardless of whether it fits a particular definition, s/he should report it and allow 

the administration to determine the appropriate course of action. 

Sexual Harassment, may include, but is not limited to: 

1.   Verbal harassment or abuse; 

2. Pressure for sexual activity; 

3. Repeated remarks with sexual or demeaning implications; 

4. Unwelcome touching; 

5. Sexual jokes, poster, cartoons, etc.; 

6. Suggesting or demanding sexual involvement, accompanied by implied or explicit threats 

concerning one’s grades, or safety,; 

7. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 

to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/ or humiliation to another; 

8. Remarks speculating about a person’s sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one’s 

own sexual activities or sexual history. 

Students who believe that they have been subjected to unlawful harassment should report the 

harassment to a teacher or to the District’s Title IX Coordinator:  

Ryan Rowe, Superintendent 

517-265-1856 

 

22a.  Hazing 

Hazing activities of any type are inconsistent with the educational process and all such activities are 

prohibited at any time in school facilities on school property, and at any district-sponsored event. 

Hazing shall be defined for purposes of this policy as performing any act of coercing another, including 

the victim, to perform any act of initiation into any class, group, or organization that causes or creates a 

risk of causing mental, emotional, or physical harm.  Permission, consent, or assumption of risk by an 

individual subjected to hazing shall not lessen the prohibitions contained in this policy. 

Hazing – any type of initiation procedure for any school related activity, which involves conduct such as 

but not limited to: 

1. Illegal activity, such as drinking or drugs; 

2. Physical punishment or infliction of pain 

3. Intentional humiliation or embarrassment; 

4. Dangerous activity; 

5. Activity likely to cause mental or psychological stress; 

6. Forced detention or kidnapping; 

7. Undressing or otherwise exposing initiates 

 

22b. Bullying and Other Aggressive Behavior 



30 
 

It is the policy of the District to provide a safe and nurturing educational environment for all of its 

students. 

This policy protects all students from bullying/aggressive behavior regardless of the subject matter or 

motivation for such impermissible behavior.  

Bullying or other aggressive behavior toward a student, whether by other students, staff, or third 

parties, including Board members, parents, guests, contractors, vendors, and volunteers, is strictly 

prohibited.  This prohibition includes written, physical, verbal, and psychological abuse, including hazing 

gestures, comments, threats, or actions to a student, which cause or threaten to cause bodily harm, 

reasonable fear for personal safety or personal degradation.  

Demonstration of appropriate behavior, treating others with civility and respect, and refusing to tolerate 

harassment or bullying is expected of administrators, faculty, staff, and volunteers to provide positive 

examples for student behavior.  

This policy applies to all “at school” activities in the District, including activities on school property, in a 

school vehicle, and those occurring off school property if the student or employee is at any school-

sponsored, school-approved or school-related activity or function, such as field trips or athletic events 

where students are under the school’s control, or where an employee is engaged in school business.  

Misconduct occurring outside of school may also be disciplined if it interferes with the school 

environment.  

Refer to the Madison School District Board policy on bullying for additional details. 

Notification 

Notice of this policy will be annually circulated to and posted in conspicuous locations in all school 

buildings and departments within the District and discussed with students, as well as incorporated into 

the teacher, student, and parent/guardian handbooks.  State and Federal rights posters on 

discrimination and harassment shall also be posted at each building.  All new hires will be required to 

review and sign off on this policy and the related complain procedure.  

Parents or legal guardians of the alleged victim(s), as well as of the alleged aggressor(s), shall be 

promptly notified of any complaint or investigation as well as the results of the investigation to the 

extent consistent with student confidentiality.  A record of the time and form of notice or notice 

attempts shall be kept in the investigation file.  

To the extent appropriate and/or legally permitted, confidentiality will be maintained during the 

investigation process.  However, a proper investigation will, in some circumstances, require the 

disclosure of names and allegations.  Further, the appropriate authorities may be notified, depending on 

the nature of the complaint and/or the results of the investigation.  

Implementation 

The Superintendent is responsible to implement this policy, and may develop further guidelines, not 

inconsistent with this policy.  



31 
 

This policy is not intended to and should not be interpreted to interfere with legitimate free speech 

rights of any individual. However, the District reserves the right and responsibility to maintain a safe 

environment for student, conducive to learning and other legitimate objectives of the school programs.  

Procedure 

Any student who believes s/he has been or is the victim of bullying, hazing or other aggressive behavior 

should immediately report the situation to the Principal or Intervention Specialist. The student may also 

report concerns to a teacher or counselor who will be responsible for notifying the appropriate 

administrator or Board official.  Complaints against the building principal should be filed with the 

Superintendent.  Complaints against the Superintendent should be filed with the Board President.  

Every student is encouraged, and every staff member is required, to report any situation that they 

believe to be aggressive behavior directed toward a student.  Reports shall be made to those identified 

above.  Reports may be made anonymously, but formal disciplinary action may not be taken solely on 

the basis of an anonymous report.  

The Principal (or other administrator as designated) shall promptly investigate and document all 

complaints about bullying, aggressive or other behavior that may violate document all complaints about 

bullying, aggressive or other behavior that may violate this policy. The investigation must be completed 

as promptly as the circumstances permit after a report or complaint is made.  

If the investigation finds an instance of bullying or aggressive behavior has occurred, it will result in 

prompt and appropriate remedial action.  This may include up to expulsion for students, up to discharge 

for employees, exclusion for parents, guests, volunteers and contractors, and removal from any official 

position and/ or a request to resign for Board members.  Individuals may also be referred to law 

enforcement or other appropriate officials.  

The individual responsible for conducting the investigation shall document all reported incidents and 

report all verified incidents of bullying, aggressive or other prohibited behavior, as well as any remedial 

action taken, including disciplinary actions and referrals, to the Superintendent.  The Superintendent 

shall submit a compiled report to the Board ion an annual basis.  

Non-Retaliation/False Reports 

Retaliation or false allegations against any person who reports, is thought to have reported, files a 

complaint, participates in an investigation or inquiry concerning allegations of bullying or aggressive 

behavior (as a witness or otherwise), or is the target of the bullying or aggressive behavior being 

investigated, is prohibited and will not be tolerated.  Such retaliation shall be considered a serious 

violation of Board policy, independent of whether a complaint of bullying is substantiated.  Suspected 

retaliation should be reported in the same manner as bullying/aggressive behavior.  

Making intentionally false reports about bullying/aggressive behavior for the purpose of getting 

someone in trouble is similarly prohibited and will not be tolerated.  Retaliation and intentionally false 

reports may result in disciplinary action as indicated above.  

 



32 
 

23.  Possession of a Firearm, Arson, Criminal Sexual Conduct, and Physically Assaulting an 

Employee, Volunteer, or Contractor 

In compliance with State law, the Board shall permanently expel any student who possesses a 

dangerous weapon in a weapon-free school zone or commits either arson or criminal sexual conduct in a 

District building or on District property, including school buses and other school transportation, or any 

student who physically assaults an employee, volunteer, or contractor.  

Before suspending or expelling any student, the District will consider the following factors: 

a) The student’s age. 

(b) The student’s disciplinary history. 

(c) Whether the student is a student with a disability. 

(d) The seriousness of the violation or behavior committed by the student. 

(e) Whether the violation or behavior committed by the student threatened the safety of any student or 

staff member. 

(f) Whether restorative practices will be used to address the violation or behavior committed by the 

student. 

(g) Whether a lesser intervention would properly address the violation or behavior committed by the 

student. 

The District retains sole discretion in determining how these factors will be considered with respect to 

student discipline. 

A dangerous weapon is defined as “a firearm, dagger, dirk, stiletto, knife with a blade over three (3) 

inches in length, pocket knife opened by a mechanical device, iron bar, or brass knuckles: or other 

devices designed to or likely to inflict bodily harm, including, but not limited to, air guns and explosive 

devices.  

Students with disabilities under IDEA of Section 504 shall be expelled only in accordance with Board 

Policy 2461 and Federal due process rights appropriate to students with disabilities.  A student who has 

been expelled under this policy may apply for reinstatement in accordance with state law and guidelines 

that are available in the principal’s office.  

Criminal acts 

Any student engaging in criminal acts at or related to the school may be reported to law enforcement 

officials and may be disciplined by the school.  It is not considered “double jeopardy” (being tried twice 

for the same crime), when school rules and the law are violated. Students should be aware that state 

law requires that school officials, teachers and appropriate law enforcement officials be notified when a 

student of this District is involved in crimes related to physical violence, gang related acts, illegal 

possession of a controlled substance, analogue or other intoxicants, trespassing, property crimes, 

including but not limited to theft and vandalism, occurring in the school as well as in the community.  

 



33 
 

Safety Concerns 

Students should not use roller blades, bicycles, skateboards, scooters, or any other form of personal 

transportation device in school hallways or District pedestrian traffic areas.  Exceptions may be made to 

reasonable accommodate students with mobility impairments.  Students violating this expectation will 

be subject to disciplinary action. 

Profanity 

Any behavior or language which is obscene, disrespectful, vulgar, or profane may be subject to 

disciplinary action.   

 

DISCIPLINE 

It is important to remember that the school’s rules apply going to and from school, at school, on school 

property, at school-sponsored events, and on school transportation. In some cases, a student can be 

suspended from school transportation for infractions of school bus rules.  

Ultimately, it is the principal’s responsibility to keep things orderly.  In all cases, the School shall attempt 

to make discipline prompt and equitable and to have the punishment match the severity of the incident. 

Two types of discipline are possible: informal and formal.  

Informal Discipline 

Informal discipline takes place within the school. It may include: 

1. Writing assignments; 

2. Change of seating or location; 

3. Lunch and recess-time detention; 

4. In-school suspension. 

A student missing any portion of his/her assigned in-school suspension may be given additional time.  

Failure to timely serve in-school suspension may lead to a suspension from school for a period not to 

exceed 10 days.  Any such suspension shall be in accordance with the District guidelines on suspension 

and expulsion. 

The following rules shall apply to in-school suspension: 

1. Students are required to have class assignments with them. 

2. Students are not to communicate with each other unless given special permission to do so. 

3. Students are to remain in their designated seats at all times unless permission is granted to 

do otherwise 

4. Students shall not be allowed to put their heads down or sleep.  

5. No radios, cards, magazines, or other recreational articles shall be allowed in the room.  

6. No food or beverages shall be consumed unless permission is granted to do otherwise.  

Discipline of Students with Disabilities 



34 
 

Students with disabilities are entitled to the rights and procedures afforded by the Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act (I.D.E.A.) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A), and Section 504 of 

the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

Suspension from School 

When a student is being considered for a suspension of ten (10) days or less, the administrator in charge 

will notify the student of the charges.  The student will then be given an opportunity to explain his/her 

side and the administrator will then provide the student the evidence supporting the charges.  After that 

informal hearing, the principal will make a decision whether to suspend.  If a student is suspended, s/he 

and his/her parents will be notified within one (1) day of the reason for and the length of the 

suspension.  The suspension may be appealed to the Superintendent within two (2) school days after 

receipt of the suspension notice. Suspension from co-curricular and extra-curricular activities may not 

be appealed.  

During the appeal process, the student shall not be allowed to remain in school.  

When a student is suspended, s/he may make-up work missed after the return to school or while on 

suspension.  Any learning that cannot be made up such as labs, field trips, skill-practices, or any learning 

that the student chooses not to make-up may be reflected in the grades earned. 

Long-term suspension or expulsion from school 

When a student is being considered for long-term suspension (more than ten school (10) days) or 

expulsion, the student will receive a formal letter of notification addressed to the parents that will 

contain: 

1. The charge and related evidence; 

2. The time and place of the Board of Education meeting at which the hearing will be held; 

3. The length of the recommended suspension or a recommendation for expulsion; 

4. A brief description of the hearing procedure; 

5. A statement that the student may bring parents, guardians, and counsel (at parent 

expense); 

6. A statement that the student and/or parent may request a translator for hearing impaired 

students or parents.  

7. A statement that the student may explain his or her side of the story, present evidence, and 

provide a defense; 

8. A statement that the student may request attendance of school personnel who were part to 

the action or accused the student of the infraction; 

 

Students being considered for long-term suspension or expulsion may be immediately removed from 

school.  The District will schedule a  formal hearing with the Board of Education during which the 

student may be represented by his/her parents, legal counsel (at parent expense), and/or by a person of 

his/her choice.  

Madison Elementary makes a sincere effort to have disciplinary actions take place that will allow the 

student to remain in school.  If a disciplinary action does not result in removal from school, it is not 



35 
 

appealable.  Should a student or parent have questions regarding the propriety of an in-school 

disciplinary action, they should contact the building principal.  

Discipline of Students with Disabilities 

Students with disabilities are entitled to the rights and procedures afforded by the Individuals with 

Disabilities education Act (I.D.E.A.), the Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.), and Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act.  

SEARCH AND SEIZURE 

Search of a student and his/her possessions may be conducted at any time the student is under the 

jurisdiction of the Board of Education, if there is a reasonable suspicion that the student is in violation of 

law or school rules.  A search may also be conducted to protect the health and safety of others.   All 

searches may be conducted regardless of the student’s consent.  

Students are provided lockers, cubbies, desks, and/or other equipment in which to store material. These 

are all considered the property of the school and may be searched at any time, with or without 

reasonable suspicion.  Locks are to prevent theft, not to prevent searches.  If student lockers require 

student-provided locks, each student must provide the lock’s combination or key to the principal.  

Anything that is found in the course of a search that may be evidence of a violation of school rules or the 

laws may be taken and held or turned over to the police.  The school reserves the right not to return 

items which have been confiscated.  In the course of any search, students’ privacy rights will be 

respected regarding any items that are not illegal.  

All computers located in classrooms, labs and offices of the District are the District’s property and are to 

be used by students, when appropriate, solely for education purposes.  The District retains the right to 

access and review all electronic, computer files, databases, and any other electronic transmissions 

contained in or used in conjunction with the District’s computer system, and electronic mail. Students 

should have no expectation that any information contained on such systems is confidential or private.  

Review of such information may be done by the District with or without the student’s knowledge or 

permission.  The use of passwords does not guarantee confidentiality, and the District retains the right 

to access information in spite of a password.  All passwords or security codes must be registered with 

the instructor.  A student’s refusal to permit such access may be grounds for disciplinary action.  

STUDENT RIGHTS OF EXPRESSION 

The School recognizes the right of students to express themselves.  With the right of expression comes 

the responsibility to do it appropriately. Students may distribute or display, at appropriate times (based 

on district policy), written material and petitions; buttons, badges, or other insignia; clothing, insignia, 

and banners; and audio and video materials.  All items must meet the following school guidelines: 

1. A material cannot be displayed if it: 

a. Is obscene to minors, libelous, indecent or vulgar, 

b. Advertises any product or service not permitted to minors by law,  

c. Intends to incite fighting or presents a likelihood of disrupting school or a school 

event, 



36 
 

d. Presents a clear and present likelihood that, either because of its content or manner 

of distribution or display, it causes or is likely to cause a material and substantial 

disruption of school or school activities, a violation of school regulations, or the 

commission of an unlawful act.  

2. Materials may not be displayed or distributed during class periods, or during passing times 

between classes.  Permission may be granted for display or distribution during lunch periods 

and after school in designated locations, as long as exits are not blocked and there is proper 

access and egress to the building.  

Students who are unsure whether or not materials they wish to display meet school guidelines may 

present them to the building principal twenty-four (24) hours prior to display.  

STUDENT CONCERNS, SUGGESTIONS, AND GREIEVANCES 

The school is here for the benefit of the students.  The staff is here to assist each student in becoming a 

responsible adult.  If a student has suggestions that could improve the school, s/he should feel free to 

offer them.  Written suggestions may be presented directly to the principal or to the student 

government. 

When concerns or grievances arise, the best way to resolve the issue is through communication.  No 

student will be harassed by any staff member or need fear reprisal for the proper expression of a 

legitimate concern.  Any suggestions, concerns, and grievances may be directed to the principal or to the 

student government.  

A student may have the right to a hearing if the student believes s/he has been improperly denied 

participation in a school activity or has been subjected to an illegal rule or standard.  A student may not 

petition to have a change in grade.  

 

SECTION V – TRANSPORTATION 

BUS TRANSPORTATION TO SCHOOL 

The transportation schedule and routes are available by contacting the Transportation Director at 517-

263-0741 Ext. 133. 

Students may only ride assigned school buses and must board and depart from the bus at assigned bus 

stops. Students will not be permitted to ride unassigned buses for any reason other than an emergency, 

except as approved by the principal. A parent/guardian is required to meet or be present at the bus stop 

for any student in second grade and younger.  

We know that changes in regular transportation need to occur from time to time, but due to the 

increased volume of changes at the end of the school day, we have determined it is necessary to adopt 

the following procedures:  

 A note must be presented to the office secretary in the morning before school starts for the following 

conditions:  

• A student will be walking home  

• A student will be transported to a different location than his/her regularly scheduled stop  



37 
 

Please note:  Large numbers of students will not be provided transportation to non-school activities (birthday 
parties, sleepovers, babysitting, etc.)  

  

If an emergency should occur during the school day that requires a change in transportation, parents 

should alert the office via phone call before 2:00 p.m.  This will allow our staff adequate time to notify 

teachers, students, and bus drivers of the change.    

  

Should you need a permanent transportation change, please complete a new Transportation Request 

Form available in the Elementary Office.  

  

If one of the above arrangements have not been made, the student will be sent home 
according to his/her usual form of transportation.  
  

The safety of your child is always a top priority for us.  We want to be sure that parents, students, office 

staff, teachers, and bus drivers have clear lines of communication to assure that your student arrives at 

his or her intended destination.   

BUS CONDUCT 

Students who are riding to and from school on transportation provided by the school are required to 

follow all basic safety rules identified below. This applies to school-owned buses and any contracted 

transportation. 

The driver may assign seating or direct students in any reasonable manner to maintain transportation 

safety.  

Students must comply with the following basic safety rules: 

Previous to loading (on the road and at school) 

Each student shall: 

1. Be on time at the designated loading zone (10 minutes prior to scheduled stop); 

2. Stay off the road at all times while walking to and waiting for the school transportation; 

3. Line up single file off the roadway to enter; 

4. Wait until the school transportation is completely stopped before moving forward to enter; 

5. Refrain from crossing a highway until the driver signals it is safe to cross; 

6. Go immediately to a seat and be seated.  

It is the parents’ responsibility to inform the bus driver when their child will not be aboard school 

transportation.  Drivers will not wait for students who are not at their designated stops on time.  

During the trip 

Each student shall: 

1. Remain seated while the school transportation is in motion; 

2. Keep head, hands, arms, and legs inside the school vehicle at all times; 

3. Not litter in the school vehicle or throw anything from the vehicle; 

4. Keep books, packages, coats, and all other objects out of the aisle; 



38 
 

5. Be courteous to the driver and to other riders; 

6. Not eat or play games, cards, etc.; 

7. Not tamper with the school vehicle or any of its equipment.  

Leaving the bus 

Each student shall: 

1. Remain seated until the vehicle has stopped; 

2. Cross the road, when necessary, at least ten (10) feet in front of the vehicle, but only after 

the driver signals that it is safe; 

3. Be alert to a possible danger signal from the driver.  

The driver will not discharge students at the places other than their regular stop at home or at school 

unless s/he has proper authorization form school officials. 

 

VIDEOTAPES ON SCHOOL BUSES 

The Board of Education has installed video cameras on school buses to monitor student behavior.  

Actual videotaping of the students on any particular bus will be done on a random-selection basis.  

If a student misbehaves on a bus and his/her actions are recorded on a videotape, the tape will be 

submitted to the principal and may be used as evidence to the misbehavior.  Since these tapes may be 

considered a student’s educational record, they can be viewed only in accordance with Federal law. 

PENALTIES FOR INFRACTIONS 

A student who misbehaves on the bus shall be disciplined in accordance with the Student Discipline 

Code and may lose the privilege of riding on the bus. In instances involving an IDEA-eligible student who 

has an IEP that requires transportation, an alternate form of transportation will be made available. 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Julie Ramos, President 

Ruben Villegas, Vice President 

Natasha Manchester, Treasurer 

Mark Swinehart, Secretary 

Dana Pink, Trustee 

Eric McDonald, Trustee 

Tina Claiborne, Trustee 

 

 



 1 

2017-2018 
MADISON HIGH SCHOOL HANDBOOK 

 “Students Are The Reason Madison School Exists” 
 
Our Mission: Madison School in cooperation with our community is dedicated to identifying and developing each 
student’s personal potential to be successful in an ever-changing world. 
 
Our Vision: Developing individual excellence through rigorous academics, innovative technology and personal 
attention. 

FORWARD 
 

This handbook has been prepared to acquaint the student body with expectations, regulations, 
activities, courses of study, and suggestions intended to aid every student in making the most of 
his/her school career. The material in this handbook is an outgrowth of the need for the school to 
operate in an efficient manner through the use of reasonable policies, and understandable rules of 
behavior. All students are expected to familiarize themselves with and abide by the provisions in 
this handbook. The District’s Board of Education has developed a comprehensive set of policies, 
available on the District’s website. Students and parents are also bound by Board Policies. 
 
In order to utilize this guide in the best way, read the handbook, ask questions concerning it, 
make suggestions to your student council, teachers, counselors, and administrators, and keep it 
on hand for reference. By so doing, you will have a voice in shaping Madison School NOW, and 
in the future. 
 

ANNUAL FERPA STATEMENT 
The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) is a federal law that affords parents 
the right to have access to their children’s education records, the right to seek to have the records 
amended, and the right to consent to the disclosure of personally identifiable information from 
education records, except as provided by law. 
 
When a student turns 18 years old, or enters a postsecondary institution at any age, the rights 
under FERPA transfer from the parents to the student (“eligible student”). 
 
 

WELCOME 
 
We want to extend to you a cordial welcome to Madison High School. Education is one of the 
most important ingredients in your life. We feel confident that you will want to make the best 
possible use of your educational opportunities so that you will become a responsible, active 
citizen in our school community. 
 
Our offices are open to each and every one of you, and we hope you will feel free to ask us, or 
any of the staff members, for help at any time. In so doing, we hope you will prosper and grow in 
knowledge. 
 
Kristin E. Thomas                                  Nick Whiteley  
Principal                                                                                Assistant Principal  
            



 2 

 
  

STATEMENT OF PHILOSOPHY 
 
The Board of Education of the Madison Public Schools recognizes that proper student conduct is 
essential in all programs and activities of the school. Proper conduct is essential (1) to develop 
and maintain a healthy teaching/learning environment in the classroom, (2) to develop and 
maintain those conditions necessary for an orderly, safe, and efficient operation of the school and 
the school program, and (3) as a teaching tool, illustrating the fact that orderly conduct is a 
prerequisite to cooperative and productive participation in adult life. 
 
In order to ensure each student’s right to educational opportunities in the school system, various 
policies, rules, and regulations governing student conduct and discipline have been developed. It 
is the responsibility of the student to be aware of those specific regulations and interpretations. 
 
Discipline is the joint responsibility of students, parents, and the school. When a student is 
apprehended for violation of a school regulation, the support and cooperation of both student and 
parent is essential to the school in disciplinary measures taken. The school is charged with the 
responsibility of administering a discipline that is educational, rehabilitative, reasonable, fair, 
and that takes into account individual student rights as an inherent tenet of democracy. The 
school shall keep a confidential written record of student misconduct and the disposition deemed 
appropriate. 
 
It is not the purpose of this school district to provide educational services to students guilty of 
gross misconduct or persistent disobedience. Students unable or unwilling to conform to these 
policies, rules, and regulations may be suspended or expelled. 
 
It is the purpose of this handbook to outline those general rules and regulations, which if 
violated, may lead to some form of disciplinary action, up to and including, expulsion from 
school. This handbook reflect current Board policies and School rules as of June 1, 2017. If any 
of the policies or administrative guidelines referenced herein are revised after June 1, 2017, the 
language in the most current policy or administrative guideline prevails. 
 
Provisions of the handbook are in effect, unless the Principal approves specific exemptions, 
for any student who is on school premises, in a school-related vehicle, at a school sponsored 
activity, or whose conduct at any time or place directly interferes with the operations, 
discipline, or general welfare of the school.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
 

School Accreditation 
 
Madison High School is accredited by AdvacedED. 
 
Madison High School has met Annual Yearly Progress (AYP) Requirements as established by 
the Every Student Succeeds Act in December of 2015 
 

 
Open Message to the Student Body 

 
We at Madison Schools learn to discipline ourselves and follow the Golden Rule: “Do unto 
others as you would have them do unto you.” If we do this, there will be little need, if any, for 
disciplinary measures. Our goal is to excel at whatever we do. We must first respect ourselves 
and then others will respect us too. 
 
Our teachers hold the key to our future and are here to prepare us today to meet the challenges in 
the world of tomorrow. When we fail to conform by listening, concentrating, observing, 
inquiring, responding, and cooperating, we become short changed and will fail to meet the 
requirements that society expects from us. When we fail to obey the rules and regulations, we 
must and will have to face the consequences. 
 
We all make mistakes at times. However, there is a way in which to correct those mistakes by 
having an honest, apologetic attitude with your teachers and peers. This will make all the 
difference in the world as you learn to grow in today’s society and tomorrow’s world. What 
really counts is a desire to improve and show visible proof of that improvement as we strive 
toward excellence. 
 
We all should be proud of our school. Madison is a pleasant place to learn and grow together. 
The group most responsible for this is the student body.   As students of Madison High School, 
we must have high expectations of our peers and ourselves. No one will be allowed to threaten 
our pleasant learning environment unless we let him or her by standing idly by or by saying 
nothing when we know something is not right. 
 
Together, let’s make this school year a success. Everyone can be successful if they attend class 
regularly, on time, and consistently do the best work they can each day. Choose to be successful. 
 

Attendance 
State law requires that children attend school from the age 6 until age 18 unless a specific legal 
exception applies. The District has imposed additional attendance requirements for its students in 
order to maintain academic standards for earning credit. 
 
Student grades in all classes will include 10% attendance/participation. For purposes of 
determining the attendance/participation grade school related absences will not affect a student’s 
score. In certain circumstances, such as when a student’s disability or unique health needs 
prevent regular attendance, this requirement may be waived.  Consecutive days missed that are 
from the “exempted category” will be blocked as one absence when calculating a student’s 
attendance/participation grade. 



 4 

 
1.    An attempt will be made by the attendance office to call parents each day a student is absent. 
 
2.    If the absence problem continues, a conference (or home visit) will be called with the 
student, parent, and principal. 
 
3.    If the problem persists the Lenawee Intermediate School District Truant Officer will be 
contacted. 
 
 
There are two types of absences: 
 
1. Countable Absence (count towards attendance policy) 
 - personal illness 
 - leaving school without signing out 
 - excusable parent request of absence including prearranged absences 
  
 **Note: Absences that are prearranged or excused by the parent still count  
 towards the total number of days allowed by the attendance policy. 
 
2. Non-Countable Absences (do not count towards attendance policy)  
 - funeral  
 - school related activity 
  - doctor or dentist appointments 
 - doctor ordered illness, injury, or hospitalization requiring absence from school 
 - special orthodontic or medical situations that are ongoing and school time injury 
 requiring hospital or doctor care Suspension (does not count toward attendance policy) 

- Suspensions (In-School and Out-of-School)  
Students suspended out-of-school are responsible for obtaining their assignment(s) from 
a peer (study buddy) and turn the work in upon return. 
 

**Note: Verification for medical, doctor ordered absence, orthodontic appointments, or 
other special reasons should be submitted to the office.   
 
**Tardy Policy: Students arriving up to 10 minutes late to a class period will be marked tardy.  
  
 Three Tardies = 1 absence (countable towards attendance policy) 
      
 

Reason for absence: 
Countable 
Towards 

Attendance Policy 

Not Countable 
Towards 

Attendance Policy 

Parent request for absence X  
Pre-arranged absence   X  

Funeral  X 
Personal illness X  

Doctor/dentist/counseling 
appointment 

 X 

Required absence by doctor  X 



 5 

Hospitalization  X 

Verified ongoing orthodontic  X 

Verified ongoing medical  X 

Out-of-school suspension  X 

School related absence  X 

Truant/ Unexcused Absence  X 
 
 
 

REGULATIONS CONCERNING ABSENCES 
1. When students are absent from school a parent/guardian must do one of the   
 following: 
a. Call the office at 263-0742 the day of the absence or the day that a student returns to 

school after an absence, by 7:45 a.m. 
b. Send a note with the student when the student returns to school. 
 
**Absences not reported within the provisions outlined above will be countable and considered 
as truancy. 
 
2. When a student returns to school after an absence, he/she must report to the office to 

receive admittance “blue slip.” 
 
3. Upon reaching the 6th countable absence per class period in a trimester and each 

subsequent absence up to eight, the student must make up the missed time by: 
 
 (a) Serving time in the long detention room after school. 
 (b) Completing assignments in Culture of Achievement Program (CAP) after school. 
  
Students that have 9 or more countable absences during a trimester will not earn credit for 
the trimester.  To earn full academic credit students must fulfill these attendance requirements. 
Regular attendance and classroom participation are integral to deriving benefit from the 
educational program.  A student failing to receive credit under the attendance policy still has the 
right to Due Process and may petition to have their attendance record re-evaluated due to 
extenuating circumstances. Students wishing to have their attendance re-evaluated will be 
required to meet with an Attendance Board that shall consist of the principal, student, 
parent, and a minimum of two current classroom teachers.   

 
When a student misses his/her 5th countable absence for a class in a trimester, the parent will be 
notified by letter.  The letter will remind parent(s)/guardian(s) and student of the required make-
up time for reaching absences six through eight and the failure to earn credit at absence nine.  
One letter alerting the student of consequences for excessive absences above five will be sent per 
trimester.  Once a student receives this warning it is their responsibility to stay informed as to the 
number of absences they have accumulated.  An absence report may be obtained from the office. 

 
**A student who misses ten or more minutes at any time during a class period will incur an 
absence. 
 
Students are expected to spend a minimum of 60 minutes to make up each absence per class . 
 



 6 

Attendance make up time remaining at the end of a trimester must be completed before the start of the following 
trimester. Do not procrastinate!  
 
Students transferring in after the start of the trimester will have the above-mentioned days prorated. 
 

Sign out Policy 
 
Madison Schools maintains a Closed Campus Policy.  The Closed Campus Policy is in effect 
from the moment a student arrives on campus and extends through the end of the school day. 
Students are expected to call home and get permission from their parent/guardian before the 
school will grant an excused sign out. Someone from the office must personally speak to the 
parent/guardian. If a parent cannot be reached, an adult listed on the student’s emergency card 
may grant permission for the student to leave school. Students leaving school without a proper 
sign out will be considered to be leaving the building/campus without proper authorization and 
will receive the appropriate consequence. 
If questions arise as to the validity of a student’s sign out request, the burden of proof will be on 
the student. 

 
Unexcused Absence/Leaving an Area of Assignment 

 
Students unexcused from class(es) or leaving an area of assignment (leaving class, gym, dining 
room, etc.) without proper authorization will be assigned detention, leading up to suspension if 
necessary. 
   First Offense - Long Detention  
   Second Offense – 1 day Suspension.  
   Third Offense - 3 day Suspension 
 
Upon arriving on school grounds no student should leave the school without properly signing 
out. A student that leaves the building/campus without properly signing out will be dealt with 
more severely. Parking lots are off limits to students during the school day, unless a staff 
member has granted permission. 
   First Offense:      2 long detentions.  

Second Offense: 1 day suspension/Parent must meet with Principal before  
      child is permitted to return to class.  

   Third Offense:    2 day Suspension 
 

Students Coming Late To School 
 
A student late to school must report directly to the office and obtain a pass. The student should 
have an excuse, either written or phoned in by a parent/guardian. Students late to school will not 
be allowed to interrupt classroom learning. 

 
Incomplete and Make-Up Work 

 
Students have time equal to their excused absences to make up work.  At a maximum, this time 
may not extend beyond five (5) school days following the end of that trimester. NO credit is 
earned if incomplete work is not made up in that time period. Any exception to this must be 
approved prior to the end of the trimester by the administration. If a student misses an announced 



 7 

or regularly scheduled test, the student must make it up as soon as you on the day the student 
returns to school. Pre-assigned work is due on the pre-announced day, unless other arrangements 
have been made with the teacher.  This would normally concern long term projects, notebooks, 
term papers, etc., that would be due in to the teacher five (5) school days or more after being 
assigned.  
 

Hallway Passes 
 
Students are expected to utilize passing time efficiently and report to class in a timely manner.  It 
is expected that students use their passing time to prepare for the next class period.  When the 
two-minute warning music is played, students should be in their area of assignment or making 
their way to class. Loitering in the hallways in not acceptable. 
 
1. Students requesting their tardy be excused must obtain a pass from a staff member. 
Ultimately, the only person that can excuse your presence from a class is the office or the teacher 
of the class you are expected to report to. (Area of Assignment) 
 
2.  All students are expected to carry a pass with them when out of the classroom. This is the 
responsibility of the classroom teacher. 
 

Health and Safety 
 
Students who become ill or injured during the school day should report to the office.  First aid 
supplies are available in the office, in the gym, and on each school bus.   
**Information regarding the dispensing of student medication(s) is located in the HS office. 
Board Policies on the administration of medication, health care needs, and epinephrine auto-
injectors are on the District’s website 
 

After School Activities 
 
Any student or groups of students involved in any after school activity shall have a chaperone or 
sponsor present at all times.  Students not involved in after school activities shall leave the building 
when school is over (2:40 p.m.). For safety reasons, the school will be locked down at 5:00 p.m. 
or shortly after any nightly events. Students will not be permitted to loiter in the hallways after 
school hours. All students in the building that are not participating in a supervised activity 
will be required to be outside of the building Students that do not comply will be subject to 
disciplinary action. 
 

SOME SUCCESSFUL STUDENT HINTS 
 
Student “make up” work is the student’s responsibility! 
If a student will be absent with “prior knowledge” (such as for vacations, medical appointments, 
sport related activities, college visits,...) you must make prior arrangements with the teacher for 
assignments, notes, and other class responsibilities.   
 
If a student is absent without prior knowledge (such as sudden illness or death in the family...) 
the student must see the teacher for assignment(s) immediately upon return to school.  
 
If a student is absent the day of a test the student must make up the test immediately upon return 
to class! 



 8 

 
Students are strongly encouraged to exchange telephone numbers with 2 or 3 classmates so the 
student can contact them regarding assignments, notes, or HELP! 
 

Merit System 
Students that meet all of the following criteria will be rewarded at the end of the first, second, 
and third trimesters with the incentives, which may include sundae parties, bowling trips, field 
trips to the movies, possible sporting events, etc. 
 (a) Less than four countable absences in a class for the trimester.  
 (b)   A grade of a C- or better for all classes. 
 (c)   No more than four days of assigned CAP 
 (d) No more than one disciplinary/bus referral for the trimester.  
 (e) Earning no in-school or out-of-school suspensions.  
 
The ultimate goal is to qualify for the end-of-year trip. To earn the year-end trip a student must 
have qualified for at least one merit trip during the 1st & 2nd trimester and meet 
the criteria listed above.  Furthermore, he/she must have received a C- or better in all classes on the 
third trimester progress report.  
 

*Students that have not qualified for the end-of-the-year trip, but choose to 
attend the event will be considered insubordinate.  

 
 
 

Code of Conduct 
Students at Madison are expected to use reasonable behavior and to show respect to themselves 
and others so that teachers can teach and students can learn. Madison students are also expected 
to respect school property in order to maintain a pleasing and pleasant environment in which to 
learn. The following school rules and consequences have been established for the student body to 
ensure student conduct conducive to an orderly educational environment. The behaviors outlined 
below are not intended to be comprehensive but rather illustrative in nature. A violation of these 
regulations may be deemed a serious offense by the administration and justify an immediate 
referral for expulsion. Any offense beyond a third offense will be dealt with at the principal’s 
discretion. 
 
Provisions of the handbook are in effect, unless the Principal approves specific exemptions, 
for any student who is on school premises, on a school-related vehicle, at a school-
sponsored activity, or whose conduct at any time or place directly interferes with the 
operations, discipline, or general welfare of the school. 
 

 
Due Process Rights 

 
The District recognizes the importance of safeguarding a student's constitutional rights, 
particularly when subject to the District's disciplinary procedures. To better ensure appropriate 
due-process is provided a student, the District’s Board of Education has established the following 
guidelines: 
  



 9 

 
Students subject to short-term suspension: 
 
Except when emergency removal is warranted, a student must be given oral or written notice of 
the charges against him/her and the opportunity to respond prior to the implementation of a 
suspension. When emergency removal has been implemented, notice and opportunity to respond 
shall occur as soon as reasonably possible. The principal or other designated administrator shall 
provide the opportunity to be heard and shall be responsible for making the suspension decision. 
An appeal may be addressed to the Superintendent whose decision will be final. 
 
 
Students subject to long-term suspension and expulsion: 
  
A student and his/her parent or guardian must be given written notice of the intention to suspend 
or expel and the reasons therefore, and an opportunity to appear with a representative before the 
Board to answer the charges. The student and/or his/her guardian must also be provided a brief 
description of the student's rights and of the hearing procedure, a list of the witnesses who will 
provide testimony to the Board, and a summary of the facts to which the witnesses will testify. 
At the student's request, the hearing may be private, but the Board must act publicly.  
 

 
Suspension/Expulsion 

 
 Before suspending or expelling a student from school, District administration will 
consider the following factors (referred to throughout this document as “the factors” or “the 
legally-required factors”): 
 
(a) The student’s age. 
 
(b) The student’s disciplinary history. 
 
(c) Whether the student is a student with a disability. 
 
(d) The seriousness of the violation or behavior committed by the student. 
 
(e) Whether the violation or behavior committed by the student threatened the safety of any 
student or staff member. 
 
(f) Whether restorative practices will be used to address the violation or behavior committed by 
the student. 
 
(g) Whether a lesser intervention would properly address the violation or behavior committed by 
the student. 

 
The District retains sole discretion in determining how these factors will be considered with respect to student 
discipline. 
 

 



 10 

Academic Conduct/Academic Dishonesty 
All students are expected to practice and uphold standards of academic integrity and honesty. Students must 
assume that individual work on exams, reports, and documentation of sources is expected unless the teacher 
specifically says that it is not necessary. Plagiarism or any act of academic dishonesty will result 
in the following consequences. 
   

First Offense:   No credit. 1 long detention 
  Second Offense: No credit. 2 long detentions  
  Third Offense:  No credit. 1 day suspension 

 
 
 

Bullying and other Aggressive Behavior Toward Students 
 
It is the policy of the District to provide a safe and nurturing educational environment for all of 
its students.  This policy protects all students from bullying/aggressive behavior regardless of the 
subject matter or motivation for such impermissible behavior. 
 
Bullying or other aggressive behavior toward a student, whether by other students, staff, or third 
parties, including Board members, parents, guests, contractors, vendors, and volunteers, is 
strictly prohibited. This prohibition includes written, physical, verbal, and psychological abuse, 
including hazing, gestures, comments, threats, or actions to a student, which cause or threaten to 
cause bodily harm, reasonable fear for personal safety or personal degradation.  School 
administration is in a position to take comments at face value.  Such comments will not be 
dismissed as merely a “joke”. 
 
Demonstration of appropriate behavior, treating others with civility and respect, and refusing to 
tolerate harassment or bullying is expected of administrators, faculty, staff, and volunteers to 
provide positive examples for student behavior. 
 
This policy applies to all “at school” activities in the District, including activities on school 
property, in a school vehicle, and those occurring off school property if the student or employee 
is at any school-sponsored, school-approved, or school-related activity or function, such as field 
trips or athletic events where students are under the school’s control, or where an employee is 
engaged in school business. Misconduct occurring outside of school may also be disciplined if it 
interferes with the school environment. 
Notification 
Parents or legal guardians of the alleged victim(s), as well as of the alleged aggressor(s), shall be 
promptly notified of any complaint or investigation as well as the results of the investigation to 
the extent consistent with student confidentiality requirements. A record of the time and form of 
notice or attempts at notice shall be kept in the investigation file. 
To the extent appropriate and/or legally permitted, confidentiality will be maintained during the 
investigation process. However, a proper investigation will, in some circumstances, require the 
disclosure of names and allegation. Further, the appropriate authorities may be notified, 
depending on the nature of the complaint and/or the results of the investigation 
Procedure 
Any student who believes s/he has been or is the victim of bullying, hazing, or other aggressive 
behavior should immediately report the situation to the Principal or assistant principal. The 
student may also report concerns to a teacher or counselor who will be responsible for notifying 



 11 

the appropriate administrator or Board official. Complaints against the building principal should 
be filed with the Superintendent. Complaints against the Superintendent should be filed with the 
Board President.  The student may submit the report in writing, by telephone, or in person.  The 
reporting student should provide the name of the person(s) whom s/he believes to be responsible 
for the inappropriate behavior and the nature of that behavior.   
Every student is encouraged to report any situation that they believe to be aggressive behavior 
directed toward a student.  Formal disciplinary action may not be taken solely on the basis of an 
anonymous report. 
 
All students are encouraged to reflect on the importance of being a good bystander and 
reference both Appendix A and Appendix B for tips on how to effectively deal with 
aggression.  
 
The Principal shall promptly investigate and document all complaints about bullying, aggressive 
or other behavior that may violate this policy. The investigation must be completed as promptly 
as the circumstances permit after a report or complaint is made.  If the investigation finds an 
instance of bullying or aggressive  behavior has occurred, it will result in prompt and appropriate 
remedial action. This may include up to expulsion.  Individuals may also be referred to law 
enforcement or other appropriate officials. 
 
Non-Retaliation/False Reports 
Retaliation or false allegations against any person who reports, is thought to have reported, files 
a complaint, participates in an investigation or inquiry concerning allegations of bullying or 
aggressive behavior (as a witness or otherwise), or is the target of the bullying or aggressive 
behavior being investigated, is prohibited and will not be tolerated. Such retaliation shall be 
considered a serious violation of Board policy, independent of whether a complaint of bullying is 
substantiated. Suspected retaliation should be reported in the same manner as bullying/aggressive 
behavior. 
Making intentionally false reports about bullying/aggressive behavior for the purpose of getting 
someone in trouble is similarly prohibited and will not be tolerated. Retaliation and intentionally 
false reports may result in disciplinary action as indicated above. 
 
Definitions 
The following definitions are provided for guidance only. If a student or other individual 
believes there has been bullying, hazing, harassment or other aggressive behavior, regardless of 
whether it fits a particular definition, s/he should report it immediately and allow the 
administration to determine the appropriate course of action. 
 
“Aggressive behavior” is defined as inappropriate conduct that is repeated enough, or serious 
enough, to negatively impact a student’s educational, physical, or emotional well-being. Such 
behavior includes, for example, bullying, hazing, stalking, intimidation, menacing, coercion, 
name-calling, taunting, making threats, and hitting/pushing/shoving. 
 
“At School” is defined as in a classroom, elsewhere on school premises, on a school bus or other 
school related vehicle, or at a school-sponsored activity or event whether or not it is held on 
school premises. It also includes conduct using a telecommunications access device or 
telecommunications service provider that occurs off school premises if either owned by or under 
the control of the District. 
 
“Bullying” is defined as any gesture or written, verbal, graphic, or physical act (including 



 12 

electronically transmitted acts – i.e. internet, telephone, or cell phone, personal digital assistant 
(PDA), or wireless hand held device) that, without regard to its subject matter or motivating 
animus, is intended or that a reasonable person would know is likely to harm one (1) or more 
students either directly or indirectly by doing any of the following: 

A. Substantially interfering with educational opportunities, benefits, or programs of one  
     (1) or more students; 
B. Adversely affecting the ability of a student to participate in or benefit from the school 

district’s educational programs or activities by placing the student in reasonable fear   
of physical harm or by causing substantial emotional distress; 

C. Having an actual and substantial detrimental effect on a student’s physical or mental 
     health; and/or 
D.  Causing substantial disruption in, or substantial interference with, the orderly      
operation of the school. 

 
Bullying can be physical, verbal, psychological, or a combination of all three. Some examples of 
bullying are: 

A. Physical – hitting, kicking, spitting, pushing, pulling; taking and/or damaging 
personal belongings or extorting money, blocking or impeding student movement, 
unwelcome physical contact. 

B. Verbal – taunting, malicious teasing, insulting, name calling, making threats. 
C. Psychological – spreading rumors, manipulating social relationships, coercion, or 

engaging in social exclusion/shunning, extortion, or intimidation. This may occur in a 
number of different ways, including but not limited to notes, emails, social media 
postings, and graffiti. 

 
"Cyberbullying" is defined as any electronic communication that is intended or that a 
reasonable person would know is likely to harm one or more pupils either directly or indirectly 
by doing any of the following:  

A.  Substantially interfering with educational opportunities, benefits, or programs of one   
or more pupils. 

B.  Adversely affecting the ability of a pupil to participate in or benefit from the school 
district’s or public school’s educational programs or activities by placing the pupil in 
reasonable fear of physical harm or by causing substantial emotional distress. 

C.  Having an actual and substantial detrimental effect on a pupil’s physical or mental    
health. 

D.  Causing substantial disruption in, or substantial interference with, the orderly 
operation of the school.  

 
 
“Harassment” includes, but is not limited to, any act which subjects an individual or group to 
unwanted, abusive behavior of a nonverbal, verbal, written or physical nature, often on the basis 
of age, race, religion, color, national origin, marital status or disability, but may also include 
sexual orientation, physical characteristics (e.g., height, weight, complexion), cultural 
background, socioeconomic status, or geographic location (e.g., from rival school, different state, 
rural area, city, etc.). 
 
“Intimidation/Menacing” includes, but is not limited to, any threat or act intended to: place a 
person in fear of physical injury or offensive physical contact; to substantially damage or 
interfere with person’s property; or to intentionally interfere with or block a person’s movement 
without good reason. 



 13 

 
 
 

Anti-Harassment 
Discriminatory harassment based on race, color, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation 
and transgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized by law), religion, height, weight, 
marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic information (collectively, "Protected 
Classes") that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to as unlawful 
harassment), is prohibited. This prohibition will be vigorously enforced. The District encourages 
students who believe they have been harassed to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The 
District will investigate all allegations of unlawful harassment and in those cases where unlawful 
harassment is substantiated, the District will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent 
its recurrence, and remedy its effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful 
harassment will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action. 
 
If a student believes that he or she is the victim of harassment, the student should immediately 
report the harassment to: Mr. Ryan Rowe, Superintendent. 
 
 

Classroom Behavior 
Students are to respect their teachers/media director and comply with established classroom/library rules. In addition, 
substitute teachers should be treated with the same respect as the classroom teacher and students will continue to 
abide by the classroom/library expectations.  Students that choose not to be respectful or to follow classroom/library 
rules will result in teachers/media direct taking corrective measures. Such measures include, but are not limited to, 
imposing detention, revoking privileges, enlisting parental assistance, and referral of students to the administration. 
 
Students will receive a copy of classroom guidelines and rules at the beginning of each course.  Teachers may 
require a copy of their classroom guidelines and rules to be signed by the parent/guardian and returned as 
acknowledgment to the receipt of said documents. 
 
 

Cell Phones/Communication Devices 
In order to maintain a learning environment that is safe and optimal for student performance, all 
communication devices/cell phones are prohibited from student use during school hours. School telephones 
are available in every classroom, as well as, the HS Office. In addition, messages can be left for students in 
the HS office throughout the school day.    
The consequences for using a cell phone/communication device during school hours are as follows: 
  First Offense:  Cell Phone/ Communication device will be confiscated and   
     locked in the HS Office until student serves a long detention.   
     Once detention has been served, communication device will be  
     returned to student. 
 
  Second Offense:  Cell Phone/ Communication device will be confiscated and   
     locked in the HS Office until student serves a long detention.   



 14 

     Once detention has been served, communication device will be  
     returned only to the student’s parent/guardian. 
 
  Third Offense:  1 day suspension 
 
**Note: Refusing to turn over a cell phone when asked to by a staff member will be considered 
insubordinate and result in an automatic 3-day suspension. 
 

Criminal Acts 
 
A student’s commission of, or participation in, any act prohibited by federal or state law or local 
ordinance also violates this Student Code of Conduct when such act affects the safe and orderly 
operation of the school, including but not limited to acts committed on school property, on 
school transportation, or otherwise related to any school program, function, or activity. School 
officials may take disciplinary action regardless of whether a criminal charge results.  

 
 

 
Dangerous Items 

Students having dangerous items in their possession in school or on the school grounds, at school 
activities, or en route to or from school on a school bus will have the dangerous object taken 
away from them and the student will be sent to the principal. Dangerous items include chains, 
firecrackers, vials of chemicals (such as “stink bombs”), paint balls, C02 cartridges, and any 
harmful materials or sharp objects. 
 
Students violating this provision of the student code of conduct will be subject to discipline 
commensurate with the offense and the degree of harm caused, up to and including expulsion 
from school. 
 
 
The District reserves the right to report to the local law enforcement agency when students have 
any of the above-mentioned dangerous items. 

 
Dining Room Behavior 

Students are expected to respect the kitchen workers and the dining room supervisors. Lack of 
respect will not be tolerated. 
 
Students eating hot lunch should be quiet while going through the dining room line. Pushing, cutting in line, 
running, throwing food, general horseplay and being disrespectful will result in disciplinary action at the 
discretion of the principal ranging from:  
 
   - Cleaning the tables and floors 
   - Short/Long Detention 
   - Suspension for serious or repeat offenders 
 
 
 



 15 

Disruptive Conduct 
 
Conduct that substantially interferes with the educational process is prohibited and will subject 
the student to appropriate disciplinary consequences.  

 
Dress Code 

Students should dress for success.  If students are to have an appropriate environment in which to 
learn and if parents and visitors are to have a favorable impression of our school, it is important 
that our students and staff dress in a manner that indicates their respect for one another and their 
appreciation that school is a place for work.  The school Principal or Designee will be the final 
judge about whether a student’s clothing is appropriate for school. 
 

1. Students shall not wear distracting and/or inappropriate clothing, such as shirts 
with inappropriate wording, obscene or vulgar language or imagery; alcohol or tobacco 
logos; and pictures depicting alcohol, tobacco, or drug use, clothing that represents gang 
affiliation, or clothing that is a threat to a student’s health and safety, etc. Any items 
determined to be gang related will be confiscated and may be turned over to the 
police. 

 
2. Students shall not wear shoes without a hard sole (no slippers), hoods, bandannas, hats, 

gloves, and/or sunglasses at school. This is enforced both in class and in the hallways. 
 

3. Students shall not wear shirts and blouses that expose the midriff, and/or have a low 
neckline that exposes cleavage.  All garments must be long enough to clearly overlap the 
beltline or stay tucked. 

 
 

4. Sleeveless shirts are permitted if the material covering the shoulder is at least 3 inches 
wide and all undergarments are covered. Shirts should be buttoned up front in a 
normal manner and cover the back completely. No cut-off t-shirts are permitted. 

 
5. Leggings, jeggings, and spandex-type bottoms(yoga pants, compression leggings, etc.) 

are not permitted unless worn underneath: shorts(within six inches of the top of the 
kneecap), skirts or tops (within four inches of the top of the kneecap) that comply 
with the dress code. 

 
6. Shorts must not be shorter than the end of one’s fingertips (fingertip length) when the 

arms are placed in a relaxed manner at one’s side or within six inches of the top of the 
kneecap. Compression shorts, stretch spandex shorts, or thermal underwear are not 
permitted.  

 
7. Skirts must be within four inches of the top of the kneecap.  

 
8. Pants must be worn at the waist (top of the hip bone). Pants that do not stay at the waist 

are considered inappropriate school attire.  All undergarments must be covered. 
 

9. Jeans, pants, or shorts with frays, holes, cuts, or slits where skin above the knee is exposed 
are not permitted. 

 



 16 

10. Undergarments /Sleepwear/Loungewear may not be visible and/or worn as outer garments. 
 

11. Students shall not wear jackets during the school day (dress up attire excluded). In addition, 
students shall not wear gloves during class. (The classroom teacher when environmental 

 conditions are extreme will exercise professional discretion.) 
 

12. Students shall not wear chains of any sort, including but not limited to chains attached to 
wallets. Any chain brought to school will be considered a dangerous weapon as previously 
defined. 

 
13. Students shall not carry backpacks, purses, or duffle-bags to and from class except for 

physical education courses. 
  
Classroom teachers are required to send students not complying with this dress code directly to 
the office. Absences from class will be unexcused. If student’s clothing does not meet the above 
dress code, they will be given the opportunity to change without consequence. Students refusing 
to cooperate will receive disciplinary action. Repeat violators may be suspended at the discretion 
of administration. 
 
 

 
 

Drugs & Alcohol 
The school has a “Drug Free” zone that extends 1000 feet beyond the school boundaries as well 
as to any school activity and transportation. This means that any activity, possession, sale, 
distribution, or use of drugs, alcohol, fake drugs, steroids, inhalants, or look-alike drugs is 
prohibited. Attempted sale or distribution is also prohibited. Sale also includes the possession or 
sale of over-the-counter medication to another student.  Students in violation will be penalized as 
follows: 
 
 First Offense:  Minimum 10 day Suspension  

Second Offense:  May bring a request from administration for expulsion 
 
Students violating this provision of the student code of conduct will be subject to discipline 
commensurate with the offense and the degree of harm caused, up to and including expulsion 
from school. 
 
Local law enforcement agencies will be contacted by the school administration. 
 
Students apprehended under the school’s drug policies (drugs and/or drugs and alcohol), are 
requested to get a drug/alcohol evaluation at a school-approved agency before they can return to 
school. The expense for such evaluation will be borne by the student. Students may access 
information concerning Madison’s Student Assistance Program by contacting the Guidance 
Counselor. 

 
 
 
 



 17 

Drug Prevention Program 
 

Pursuant to section 5145 of the Safe & Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act of 1986, the Madison School 
District wishes to state the following: 
 

1. The Madison Board of Education categorically supports the rationale that the use,  
    possession, and/or distribution of illicit drugs, “look-a-likes”, inhalants, and alcohol  
 is wrong and harmful. 
 
2. The Madison School District will provide age-appropriate and developmentally based drug and  
 alcohol education programs from K-12th grades. The means of  instruction will  

include, but not be limited to, the use of individual classroom instruction, the Michigan Health Model, 
the DARE program, the Student Assistance Program, and other outside agencies when appropriate. 
 

    3. The standards of conduct that apply to all students in the school district clearly prohibit the unlawful 
possession, use, or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by students on school premises or as any part of 
any of its activities. Student compliance with the following Drug/Alcohol policies of the Madison 
School District is mandatory. 

 
 

False Excuse or Lying 
Students are expected to be honest and forthright when asked a direct question by the staff or administration. 
Being dishonest or withholding information is not acceptable. 
Students who are found to be lying or giving a false excuse will be assigned a long detention 
up to out-of-school suspension. 
 

 
False Alarms, False Reports, and Bomb Threats 

A false emergency alarm, report or bomb threat endangers the safety forces that are responding, 
the citizens of the community, and persons in the building. What may seem like a prank is a 
dangerous stunt. Violations of this rule will result in suspension or expulsion in accordance with 
state law. 
 
   
 

Fighting, Verbal Confrontation, & Dangerous Conduct 
Fighting, physical aggression, instigating a fight, verbal confrontation, or conduct potentially 
dangerous to oneself or others is not acceptable behavior. Normally, all students involved in a fight 
will be sent home on suspension. Students are permitted and encouraged to utilize the 
Principal’s Office and/or the Guidance Office to peacefully resolve conflicts with other 
students.  Handling problem situations in a manner that distracts from the learning 
environment will not be tolerated. 

First offense: Minimum 3-day suspension (Local law enforcement  

may be contacted) 
   Second offense: Minimum 5-day suspension 

(Local law enforcement agency will be contacted) 



 18 

 
Third offense: Minimum 10-day suspension and/or Madison Board 

of Education discipline hearing 
(Local law enforcement agency will be contacted) 

 
Students violating this provision of the student code of conduct will be subject to discipline 
commensurate with the offense and the degree of harm caused, up to and including expulsion 
from school. 
 
 

Forgery 
Signing another person’s name or initials to a document is considered forgery. Forging or 
misusing the name of another person will result in the assignment of a long detention up to 
out-of-school suspension. 

 
 

Hallway Behavior 
Students are expected to control themselves in an orderly fashion in the hallways. Running, 
yelling, and general horseplay and/or outright disrespect to staff and/or support personnel will 
not be tolerated. 
 
Disciplinary action will range from: 

- Verbal Warning 
- Short/Long Detention 
- Suspension (severe or repeat offenders) 

 
 

 
Arson and Criminal Sexual Conduct 

In compliance with State law, the Board shall, if appropriate after considering all legally- 
required factors, permanently expel any student who commits either arson or criminal sexual 
conduct in a District building or on District property, including school buses and other school 
transportation.  Students expelled pursuant to State law may apply for reinstatement in 
accordance with State law.  

 
 

Nuisance Items 
Under Section 1303 of the Revised School Code, school districts may prohibit students from 
carrying electronic communication devices or other personal communication devices in school. 
Items such as lasers, toy guns, noisemakers, electronic games, trading cards, or other objects that 
disrupt the educational process are not permitted in school. The use of items such as radios, 
Ipod’s/MP3 players, etc. are not permitted in the classroom, without permission of 
classroom teacher. Students are NOT permitted to listen to Ipod’s/MP3 players in the 
hallways or lunchroom. 
 

First offense: Object confiscated and student may pick up at the end of the 
school day. 



 19 

Second Offense: Object confiscated and parent must pick up at the end of the school 
day. 

Third Offense: Student receives one long detention. Object will be confiscated. 
 

**Note: Refusing to turn over a nuisance item when asked to by a staff member will be considered 
insubordination and result in an automatic 3-day suspension. 

 
 

 
 

Physical  Assault by Students Against School Personnel 
 

State law requires the Board of Education to permanently expel a student that commits a physical 
assault against a district employee or against a person engaged as a volunteer or contractor for the 
district on school property, on a school bus or other school related vehicle, or at a school-sponsored 
activity or event. Physical assault is defined as intentionally causing or attempting to cause 
physical harm to another through force or violence if the expulsion is warranted after considering 
all legally-required factors. 

 
 
 
 

Threat to Harm School Personnel 
Any student that commits a verbal threat of harm on school property, on a school bus or other 
school related vehicle, or at a school-sponsored activity or event against a district employee or 
against a person engaged as a volunteer or contractor for the district will be subject to discipline, 
up to and including expulsion from school. Threat of harm means any willful act, written 
statement, or verbal threat to inflict injury upon another person, under such circumstances that 
create a reasonable fear of imminent injury, coupled with an apparent ability to inflict injury. 
Bomb threats and similar threats directed at a school building, school property, or a school-
related event, are included in the definition of verbal assault/verbal threat of harm. 
  

 
Physical Assault Against Another Student 

The Board will, if appropriate after considering all legally-required factors, suspend or expel a 
student who commits a physical assault against another student on school property, on a school 
bus or other school-related vehicle, or at a school-sponsored activity or event. Physical assault is 
defined as intentionally causing or attempting to cause physical harm to another through force or 
violence. 
 

Possession Of A Weapon 
A weapon includes, but is not limited to, firearms, guns of any type whatsoever including air and 
gas-powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded, knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, metallic 
knuckles, martial arts weapons and explosives). It may also include any toy that is presented as a 
real weapon or reacted to as a real weapon. Criminal charges may be filed for this violation. 
Possession of a weapon may subject a student to permanent expulsion if the board determines 



 20 

expulsion is appropriate after considering all legally-required factors.  The board will not 
consider the factors for a student who possesses a firearm at school.  
 
State law may require that a student be permanently expelled from school, subject to a petition 
for possible reinstatement if s/he brings onto or has in his/her possession on school property or at 
a school-related activity any of the following: 

1. Any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas including bombs, grenades, rockets, 
missiles, mines, or device that can be converted into such a destructive item; 

2. Any cutting instrument consisting of a sharp blade over three (3) inches long fastened 
to a handle; 

3. Any similar object that is intended to invoke bodily harm or fear of bodily harm (e.g. 
air gun, blow-gun, toy gun, etc.) 

4.  

Public Display of Affection 
Physical contact between students is limited to nothing more than handholding. Displays of 
intimacy are not appropriate in a school environment. 
 
 First Offense:  Verbal warning/sent to office to call parents. 
 Second Offense:  Sent to the principal’s office and assigned detention.  
 Third Offense:  1 long detention. Parent must meet with administrator. 
 

Search & Seizure 
All lockers assigned to pupils are the property of the school district. At no time does the school 
relinquish its exclusive control of its lockers. The school principal or his/her designee shall have 
custody of all combinations to all lockers or locks. Pupils are prohibited from placing locks on any 
locker without the advance approval of the school principal or his/her designee. The school assigns 
lockers to its pupils for the pupils’ convenience and temporary use. Pupils are to use lockers 
exclusively to store school-related materials and authorized personal items such as outer garments, 
footwear, grooming aids, or lunch. Pupils shall not use the lockers for any other purpose, unless 
specifically authorized by school board policy or the school principal or his/her designee, in 
advance of the pupils bringing the items to school. Pupils are solely responsible for the contents 
of their lockers and should not share their lockers with other pupils, nor divulge locker 
combinations to other pupils, unless authorized by the school principal or his/her designee. 
 
Random searches of school lockers and their contents have a positive impact on deterring 
violations of school rules and regulations, ensure proper maintenance of school property, and 
provide safety and security for pupils and personnel. Accordingly, the board authorizes the 
school principal or his/her designee to search lockers and locker contents at any time, without 
notice, without reasonable suspicion, and without parental/guardianship or pupil consent. 
 
In the course of the locker search, the public school principal or his/her designee shall respect the 
privacy rights of the pupil regarding any items discovered that are not illegal or against school 
policy and rules. 
 
When conducting locker searches, the school principal or his/her designee may seize any illegal 
or unauthorized items, items in violation of board policy and rules, or any other items reasonably 
determined by the school principal or his/her designee to be a potential threat to the safety or 



 21 

security of others. Law enforcement officials shall be notified immediately upon seizure of such 
dangerous items, or seizure of items that schools are required to report to law enforcement 
agencies under the Statewide School Safety Information Policy. Any items seized by the school 
principal or his/her designee shall be removed from the locker and held by school officials for 
evidence in disciplinary proceedings and/or turned over to law enforcement officials. The 
parent/guardian of a minor pupil, or a pupil eighteen (18) years of age or older, shall be notified 
by the school principal or his/her designee of items removed from the locker. 
 
A student’s person and/or personal effects on them (e.g. purse, book bag, athletic bag) may be 
searched whenever a school official has reasonable suspicion to believe that the student is in 
possession of illegal or unauthorized materials and that the search of those personal effects will 
reveal the illegal or unauthorized materials. A student’s failure to permit searches and seizures as 
provided by this policy will be considered grounds for disciplinary action. 
 
In addition, vehicles parked on the property of the school are subject to random inspection and 
search, including canine searches. Madison school officials will periodically utilize contraband 
detection canine services on campus, both inside the building and on the grounds. 
 

 
Stealing 

Students apprehended or admitting to stealing will be suspended from school and must return, 
repair, or replace any and all items before they may return to classes. By law, a school incident 
law enforcement report must be filed. 
 
  First Offense:  3-5 day Suspension 
  Second Offense: 10 day Suspension 
  Third Offense:  10 day Suspension (possible expulsion) 
 
 

Student Cooperation With And Respect For School Employees 
Students must show proper respect and actions toward all employees both in and out of school.  
Authority of employees must be recognized. School staff is acting “in loco parentis,” which 
means they are allowed, by law, to direct a student as a parent.  If given a reasonable direction by 
a staff member, the student is expected to comply.  Students that are incorrigible and defiant of 
these rules will be severely disciplined. 
 
  First Offense:  up to 5 day suspension 
  Second Offense: up to 10 day suspension 
  Third Offense:  10 day suspension (possible expulsion) 
 
 

Technology Use/Internet Access 
Computer use is a privilege. Furthermore, students should be aware that no expectation of 
privacy exists. Students are expected to use technology, which includes computers, software, 
media retrieval equipment, etc. for educational purposes only in an ethical and responsible 
manner. Misuse will result in disciplinary action that may include forfeiting the right to use any 
school technology. 
The Madison Acceptable Use Policy places the following responsibilities on 



 22 

the user of school technology: (for a complete listing refer to Board Policy 4510) 
 
 1.) Each user is responsible for all material sent and received under his/her account. 
 
 2.) Users will accept the responsibility of keeping copyrighted software of any kind from  

entering the local area network via the Internet or modem. Consent by the technology  
administrator or building  principal must be obtained before any software is installed. 

 
3.) Users may not use File Transfer Protocol to access any inappropriate files, or files 

dangerous to the integrity of the local network or the Internet. 
 
4.) It is the users responsibility to maintain the integrity of the private electronic mail  
           system and for making sure all e-mail sent and received by him/her does not  
           contain inappropriate material. 
 
5.) Students are not permitted to use/visit social networking sites on school 

computers without permission. Such sites include, but are not limited to, 

Facebook, Twitter, Snapchat, & Instagram. 
 

Any violations of the use of school technology should be immediately reported to the teacher 
assigned to the user, technology facilitator, or administrator.   
 
While in school, students who post comments/messages on any social networking or media 
site will receive the following consequence: 
   First Offense:   1 day suspension 
 

Second Offense: 1 days suspension and loss of all 
technology privileges. 

 
   Third Offense:  2 day suspension 

 
Tobacco Use 

Smoking and other tobacco uses are a danger to a student’s health and to the health of others.  
The school prohibits the sale, distribution, use, or possession of any form of tobacco, electronic 
cigarettes or similar devices, vaporizers, and other tobacco alternatives during school time or at 
any school activity.  This prohibition also applies when going to and from school and at school 
bus stops.  “Use of tobacco” shall mean all uses of tobacco, including cigars, cigarettes, or pipe 
tobacco, chewing tobacco, snuff, or any other matter or substance that contains tobacco, in 
addition to papers used to roll cigarettes.  The display of unlighted cigars, cigarettes, pipes, other 
“smoking” paraphernalia or tobacco products on one’s person is also prohibited by this policy. 
 
   First Offense:  3 day Suspension 
   Second Offense: 5 day Suspension 
   Third Offense:   10 day Suspension (possible expulsion) 
 
 

Use Of An Object As A Weapon 
Any object that is used to threaten or harm another may be considered a weapon. Intentional injury to 
another can be a felony and/or cause a civil action suit. This violation may subject a student to expulsion. 
 



 23 

Vandalism 
Vandalism to the school buildings, grounds, staff equipment, or school equipment cannot be 
tolerated. Students apprehended will replace or repair vandalized areas and/or equipment, and 
will be suspended from school for a first offense, unless the principal feels another alternative 
would be more beneficial, such as a work program, etc. In certain cases, local law enforcement 
officials may be called in at the discretion of the administration. 
 

Modes of Discipline 
Short/Long Detention 
 Students may be assigned detention for academic and/or disciplinary reasons.   
     Detention Times: 
 Short Detention  
   After School - 2:45 - 3:30 p.m. 
   Before School - 7:00 - 7:55 a.m. 
 Long Detention  
   Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday 2:45 - 4:15 p.m. 
1.  Students will be given one-day notice before being assigned detention.  The student 
 or his/her parents are responsible for transportation.   
2. A student missing detention (UNEXCUSED by the administration)                
 will be given double the original detention amount for the first            
 offense, and will be suspended up to three (3) school days for a       
 second offense. 
3. A student that becomes a behavior problem while serving  
 detention will be suspended for up to three (3) school days. 
In-School Suspension 
The following rules shall apply to in-school suspension: 

1. Students are required to have class assignments with them. 
2. Students are not to communicate with each other unless given special permission to 

do so. 
3. Students are to remain in their designated seats at all times unless permission is 

granted to do otherwise. 
4. Students shall not be allowed to put their heads down or sleep.  
5. No radios, cards, magazines, or other recreational articles shall be allowed in the 

room.  
6. No food or beverages shall be consumed unless permission is granted to do otherwise.  
7. Students suspended in-school for a half-day or more by the administration will not be 

allowed to participate in, or attend, any extra-curricular activities or special school 
functions outside of the classroom experience. 
 

Out-of-School Suspension 
Students receiving an out-of-school suspension are responsible for making up any missed school 
work.   
 
- Students who are suspended must have a parent/principal conference before the student is 
admitted back into school.   



 24 

 
- Students suspended out-of-school will not be allowed to participate in, or attend, any school 
activities for the entire length (including weekends) of the suspension. 
 

 
Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Eligibility Requirements 

The following activities are considered a part of this eligibility policy unless performance/participation is an 
extension of a class curriculum: 
 1. Student government and its related activities and organizations 
 2. Special interest clubs 
 3. Interscholastic and intramural athletics 
 4. Cheerleading 
 5. School plays 
 
NOTE: The following regulations are a combination of the State High School Athletic Association rules and the 
rules of the Madison School District. 
I.  Prior Trimester Requirement 
The passing of a minimum of at least four courses the trimester prior to participation in an 
extracurricular activity. Or, if a student was enrolled in less than five classes at the start of the 
trimester, the passing of every class in which enrolled. If a student does not fulfill this trimester 
requirement, he/she will be ineligible to participate for the following trimester. Summer school 
classes approved by the administration may be used to fulfill this requirement. (Students that 
transfer to Madison from a school that operates on a six or seven period day must have passed 
five courses under this requirement.) 
 
 
II. Current Trimester Requirement 
A student failing two or more classes will be ineligible for a minimum of one week and until 
passing work is done in at least four classes. If, because of special circumstances, a student is 
enrolled in less than five classes, that student must continually pass all of those classes. At least 
four of the classes must be full credit classes.  
 
In addition to all of the above, students must also meet the Michigan High School Athletic 
Association requirements. 

 
EQUIVALENT EDUCATION OUTSIDE THE SCHOOLS 

The following guideline has been developed to communicate eligibility to participate with 
District-sponsored extra-curricular activities and athletics for students choosing to enroll in the 
JC/LISD Academy: A Regional Middle College.   

A. Any student who enrolled in the JC/LISD Academy: A Regional Middle College prior to 
the 2016-17 school year is eligible to participate with District-sponsored extra-curricular 
activities and athletics. 
 

B. Any student who enrolled in the JC/LISD Academy: A Regional Middle College after the 
2015-16 school year is not eligible to participate with District-sponsored extra-curricular 
activities and athletics. 

 
C. Any student enrolled in the LISD PREP Academy is not eligible to participate with 

District-sponsored extra-curricular activities and athletics.  



 25 

 
 
 
 
 

Locker/Book Deposit 
All students will be required to pay a deposit before they are assigned to a locker or are 
distributed their textbooks. Students have the option to share a locker with someone ($10.00 
deposit) or to have a locker of their own ($20.00 deposit). 
 
The school will not be responsible for the loss of valuables from students’ lockers. Students are 
urged to keep combinations confidential and promptly report locker malfunctions to the office. 
Special financial arrangements made among students to pay locker/book fees will be the 
responsibility of the students involved. 
 
Locker/book deposits will be returned to students the week after school is dismissed for the 
summer IF the following criteria have been followed: 
 a. The locker is cleaned in a manner acceptable to the administration. 
 b. Fines and charges have been paid, and books, materials, etc., have    
  been returned in acceptable condition.  
 
The locker/book deposit will be returned to a student withdrawing during the school year if the 
withdrawal process is completed as stated in the “Withdrawing from School” section of the 
handbook. 
NOTE: ONE MEMBER OF A FAMILY FAILING TO RETURN BOOKS, AND/OR 
BEING FINED FOR DAMAGES TO BOOKS CAN CAUSE ALL MEMBERS OF THE 
FAMILY TO HAVE THEIR DEPOSITS WITHHELD UNTIL THE FINES, ETC. HAVE 
BEEN RESOLVED. LOCKER DEPOSITS MUST BE PICKED UP IN THE HIGH 
SCHOOL OFFICE DURING THE WEEK AFTER SCHOOL IS DISMISSED FOR THE 
SUMMER. DEPOSITS NOT PICKED UP WILL BE FORFEITED. 

 
Madison MS/HS Media Center Procedures 

Students may use the Media Center before school, during the day with a pass from their teacher, 
or when accompanied by their teacher for class time.  Students should sign in and out when 
visiting the Media Center.  Students should not be in the Media Center during lunch except when 
they have a pass from their teacher. 
 
The Madison MS/ HS Media Center is open to students in grades 6-12 and Elementary students 
with special permission from their teacher and a pass from the Elementary Media Director.  
Some library materials have been reviewed to be appropriate for older readers.  These books are 
marked with a pink star and are available for high school students only.  Parents who wish their 
middle school student to be able to sign out these books should send written permission to the 
Media Director. 
 
Students are to demonstrate respect, trustworthiness, responsibility, and good citizenship at all 
times.  Food and drinks are not permitted in the library or computer labs.  Media Center 
computers are to be used for class project work only.  All other school rules regarding 
technology use apply in the Media Center.   
 



 26 

Students may have two books signed out at one time unless the Media Director has granted 
special permission.  Books are checked out for two weeks at a time, but may be renewed if there 
is not a waiting list for the book.  Library materials should be returned on time and in good 
condition.  Fines will be issued for lost or damaged books.  Students will not be allowed to check 
out books until books have been returned or fines have been resolved. 
 

Driving Privileges 
1.) It is a student privilege to drive a motor vehicle to school. Students driving to school must file 
for, and obtain a permit from the office.  A one-time permit fee of $15 will be assessed to pay 
for the parking permits and maintain periodic safety checks in the parking lot. Permits will be 
issued at the principal’s discretion.  Student programs that require personal transportation must 
be pre-approved by the administration.  
 
2.) All motor vehicles are to be driven to and from school in a safe, sensible manner which 
demonstrates the driver is able and willing to accept her/his social responsibility while driving. 
The speed limit on school grounds is a maximum of 10 miles per hour. Drivers considered in 
violation of this responsibility will be subject to loss of driving privileges up to 183 days. 
 
3.) Driving to school is not an excuse to be late. Students who are consistently tardy will risk 
having their permits revoked. 
 
4.) Parking lots are off limits to students during the school day, unless permission is obtained 
from a staff member. Students in the parking lot without permission will be considered not 
within their area of assignment 
 
5.) Parking on campus without proper authorization or in lots designated for staff and visitors will result in 
strict discipline. The student parking lot will be the lot directly in front of the Student Activity Center.  
Vehicles without a visible permit or vehicles parked in an unauthorized area will be towed at the owner’s 
expense.  
 
6.) Students driving to school without a permit or while their driving privileges have been 
revoked will be suspended up to three days for insubordination.  Repeat offenders may face 
additional discipline. 
 
7.) Students must have advanced written permission from the administration in order to drive to 
and or from the Tech-Center, Co-op, work experience, college classes, or off campus in general. 
This permission includes specifically which day(s) of the week and approved passengers both to 
and from site of campus. 
 
 First offense:          Long Detention; loss of driving privileges up to 10 school days 
     
 Second offense:  Loss of driving privilege up to 90 school days               
 Third offense:   Driving privileges revoked 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 27 

 
 
 

Bus Transportation 
The Transportation Office will be open during normal school hours on days that school is 
in session.  Messages left on the transportation phone line (265-1845 ext. 133) will be 
returned during those hours.  In the case of an emergency, please contact the High School 
office (263-0743 ext153). 
In order to ensure that riding the bus is a safe experience for every student, it is necessary that the 
following rules and regulations be followed: 

- Students are required to sit, not stand, while they are on the bus. 
- Students must keep their hands, head, etc., inside the bus windows.  
- Students must keep their hands to themselves.  
- Yelling, fighting, swearing, and horseplay will not be tolerated.  
- At all times, respect the bus drivers and do as you are told. 

Please Note: Provisions of the handbook are in effect while a student is at the bus stop or on the 
bus.   A student who fails to abide by these provisions will be held accountable according the 
guidelines set in the handbook.  
 
 First Offense: The bus driver writes up the student. The parent must come in  
 to talk with the transportation supervisor and bus driver. The parent must make 
 an appointment within 24 hours or the student is suspended from the bus. 
 
 Second Offense: A parent must come to the school for a meeting with the Bus Driver and  
             Bus Supervisor.  Student is written up and will be suspended from the bus for 5 days. 
 
 Third Offense: Student is suspended from all Madison  busses  for 30 school days.  
 
 Fourth Offense: Student is suspended from all Madison busses for the remainder of the 
             school year. 
 
Fighting on the bus and disrespectful behavior will also be penalized by the school policy as 
previously stated. 
Incidents of misbehavior that involve inappropriate conduct deemed to have caused significant 
danger or harm to oneself or other students may result in a suspension from Madison busses for 
up to one year. 
Due to the number of students on the busses, and for liability reasons, parents must 
provide written notes, faxed notes (265-5635), or e-mail (jerry.isom@madisonk12.us) if 
there are any transportation changes with a student.  These notes must be sent to the 
transportation office by 9:00am so appropriate arrangements can be made. Phone calls will not 
be accepted 
 
 

Visitors 
All visitors must report to the office upon entering the school building. Someone entering the 
building without permission from the office, other than a student currently enrolled, will be 
trespassing and subject to prosecution. 
 

mailto:jerry.isom@madisonk12.us


 28 

It is not our policy to allow visitors during the school day. Only special situations will be taken 
into consideration and each situation will be handled individually. You must talk with the 
principal before receiving a Guest Visitors Application from the office. 
 

 
Withdrawing from School 

It is the student’s responsibility to obtain a withdrawal form from the high school office before 
leaving Madison School. This form must be signed by the teachers, the librarian, and the class 
advisor to ensure that textbooks, library books, fund-raising money, etc. have been turned in. A 
student withdrawing must not disturb classes. Locker deposits will be withheld if a student 
does not complete the withdrawal process as stated above. 
 
 

Culture of Achievement (CAP) Program 
Madison High School strongly believes that students who come to class consistently unprepared 
and/or without completed homework WILL NOT achieve to their fullest potential. In an effort to 
enable all students to be successful, Madison High School insists that students demonstrate 
initiative and take responsibility for their learning. Students who do not complete homework 
assignments will be referred to the Culture of Achievement Program (CAP). CAP is supervised 
by classroom teachers and runs from 2:45pm until 4:15pm, Monday through Friday. Students 
receiving a CAP referral are required to attend CAP until their homework assignment(s) is 
complete. Students completing assignments before 4:15pm may be signed out by a 
parent/guardian. Transportation for students living within Madison School District is provided.  
Parents whose child has received a CAP referral will receive notification via the Instant Alert System. 
 
Students who have been assigned to CAP, but fail to attend will be assigned a long detention. 
 

Trimester Grading and Test Policy 
All students will take an end-of-course assessment at the end of each trimester.  
 
- Test schedules will be announced prior to the testing periods on the days set by the school 
calendar. Students failing to show up to take a trimester test for a class will fail the 
trimester for that class. If a student is going to be absent, a parent must call the school and talk 
to a principal on the test day before 8:00 a.m. to verify the student’s absence for that day. 
 
- The student’s trimester final grade will be the average of the trimester percentage and the end-
of-course assessment percentage. Grades will be computed by a percent average: A+=100%, 
A=93%,  A- =90%, B+=87%, B=83%, B- =80%, C+=77%, C=73%, C- =70%, D+=67%, 
D=63%, and D- =60%. The end-of-course assessment will count 20% of the trimester grade.  
Grade point averages are based on a 4.0 grading scale except grades earned in Advanced 
Placement courses will be weighted on a 5.0 scale. 

 
 
 
 
 



 29 

 
Michigan Merit Curriculum Graduation Requirements 

The Michigan Merit Curriculum High School graduation requirements must be met in order to earn a 
Michigan High School Diploma. 

 
Academic Requirements 

 
Students will be promoted sequentially from 9

th - 12th grades unless they are unable to 
accumulate a minimal number of credits. Students that fall behind in academic credit will be 
reclassified as a Freshman, Sophomore, Junior or Senior based on the number of credits they have earned prior to 
the school year. This status will remain constant throughout the entire year. 
            Sophomore…………………minimum of 4 credits 
            Junior……………………….minimum of 10 credits 
            Senior……………………….minimum of 18 credits 
 
- Seniors must complete all academic requirements before going through graduation exercises. Descriptions 
of all classes, and amount of credit given may be found in the “Course of Study Bulletin”.  
 
- In addition, seniors must pass a minimum of twelve (12) trimester courses during their senior 
year to qualify to participate in graduation exercises. This policy would also apply to students 
involved in Vo-Tech., Co-Op. programs and related instruction. The Principal and the Director 
of Guidance will rule on special situations. 
 

Credit Requirements  
 (As established by the Michigan Merit Curriculum) 

Mathematics  4-credits 
Algebra I , Algebra II, Geometry, One math course in final year of high school 

English Language Arts-5 Credits (4 credits) 
English Language Arts 9*, 10*, 11, 12  
*English 9 and English 10 will consist of three full academic trimesters of English Language 
Arts for all incoming freshman 
Science-3 Credits 
Biology, Physics or Chemistry, One additional science credit 
Social Studies-3 Credits 
.5 credit Civics, .5 credit Economics, U.S. History and Geography, World History and 
Geography 
Physical Education & Health- 2 Credits 
.5 Health, 1.5 Physical Education 

ONLINE Learning Experience  - embedded throughout Michigan Merit Curriculum 
coursework   
Visual, Performing and Applied Arts- 1 Credit 
Sophomore Seminar - .5 Credit Senior Seminar -  .5 Credit  
Computer/Technology - 1 Credit 
Foreign Language – 2 credits  
Electives 4 credits 
26 Total Credits  



 30 

 
Course Revision 

Each student, with the aid of his/her parents and our staff is responsible for making up his/her 
own schedule. We expect each student to give considerable thought about his/her future goals 
prior to the selection of courses so that he/she will seek those courses which best suit his/her 
particular academic needs. We encourage any student, or parent, to contact the Counseling 
Department if they have any questions regarding scheduling. Occasionally a student’s schedule 
might need to be revised, such as job related changes for seniors or teacher-initiated changes. A 
student requesting a schedule change should follow the course revision procedure. Please note 
that no course changes will be made for reasons other than academic after a class has met four or 
more times. 
 
COURSE REVISION PROCEDURE: 
 1. Pick up a schedule change form from the Counselor’s Office. 
 2. Fill out the form carefully, and specifically state the reasons for the  
  request. 
 3. Have your parent sign the form, and turn it in to your counselor for   
  review. 
 4. Your counselor will notify you if/when your request has been    
  approved. 
 5. You are to follow your original schedule until you have been notified   
  of a change. 
 

Dual Enrollment 
Dual Enrollment is an option open to our high school students. 
 
Under the Dual Enrollment Policy, a student who has met all required qualifications may sign up 
for a college class in place of a class at Madison High School. Students are required to be 
enrolled in five (5) classes, but some of these could be at the college level. Classes that are taken 
at one of the local colleges should only be those that are not offered at Madison (i.e. AP English 
is taught here, so students would not be permitted to take an English Course at the college).  
Once a student has successfully completed and exhausted all course offerings within a content 
area, they may dual enroll in that area (i.e. a student who has successfully completed Psychology 
at the high school level, may then enroll in a Psychology course at the college level.)  
 
The college class taken under the dual enrollment option will be paid for by Madison School, as 
long as the student has received high enough scores on the PLAN, ACT, MME, SAT or PSAT 
test.  Eligible test scores can be found on the district webpage on the Counseling link. If a student 
has not received an eligible score on one of the tests listed, they are not eligible to dual enroll.     
 
Students who are eligible to dual enroll and would like to take a class tha t is offered 
at Madison (i.e. English, Calculus), may do so at their expense. 
 
Any student that is dual enrolled is responsible for their own transportation to and 
from the college class or classes, and must make sure that their college classes will 
not create an attendance or tardy concern for classes here at Madison. Arriving late 
to a Madison class because of a college class will not be accepted.  
**Students interested in Dual Enrollment should contact the Counseling Office.  
 



 31 

 
Special Services Available To Madison High School Students 

For Students who qualify, the following services are available: 
 504 Plan (Accommodations in General Education Setting) 
 Teacher Consultant Services in General Education Setting 
 Learning Disabled Programs 
 Emotionally Impaired Supports 
 Mildly Cognitively Impaired Programs 
 School Social Work Support (Provided by LISD staff) 
 Speech & Language Support (Provided by LISD staff) 
 Occupational Therapy (Provided by LISD staff) 
 Physical Therapy (Provided by LISD staff) 
 Support for students with Visual Impairments 
 Support for students with Hearing Impairments 

*Parents/Students wishing to know more about the programs above should contact the high 
school office. 

NCAA Student Athletic Requirements 
NCAA Bylaw 5-1-0) affects all high school athletes eligible for NCAA Division I & II athletic 
scholarships and those who plan to participate in any Division I or 11 athletic program as a non-
scholarship athlete (walk on). 
 
All athletes in high school or younger come under this rule.  Only core courses are used in 
calculating GPA's. 
 
The basic requirements are as follows: 
Division I (Division II) 
16 (16) Core Classes 
4 (3) English 
3 (2) Math – Algebra I and higher 
2 (2) Science 
1 (3) Additional English, Math, Science 
2 (2) Social Science (World History, American History, etc.) 
4 (4) Additional courses from any above area or foreign language 
 
Earn a 2.0 GPA in core courses 
 
For Division I, a sliding scale based on GPA and SAT/ACT sum score is used to determine 
eligibility. The higher the ACT sub score the lower the GPA can be. 
 
For Division II  a SAT combined 820 or  68 ACT sum score. 
 
This is a summary of the NCAA’s requirements, and may be modified by the NCAA at any time. 
Madison has no control over the NCAA’s eligibility determinations.  
 
 
 
 

 



 32 

Honor Roll & V.I.P. Honor Roll 
These are to honor students who have achieved academic success for the trimester. 
Criteria:           - Maintain a “B” average, and 
  - Can have 1 “C”, if they have an “A”,  
  - Student cannot have a “D or F” 
 

- Students that earn all A’s and B’s will be honored on the V.I.P. Honor Roll. 
 
 

National Honor Society 
The National Honor Society (NHS) recognizes and promotes the fine qualities of scholarship, 
leadership, service, and character.  To be eligible for membership in the Madison chapter, students 
must have a minimum 3.50 NHS-adjusted GPA after at least five high school trimesters.  In 
addition, candidates who meet this scholastic requirement must be confirmed by a five-member 
faculty committee.  The following process will be used: 
 

 Application and renewal of the NHS membership will be available in January of 
each year.  Students will have until the first Friday of February to submit all 
necessary paperwork.  No late paperwork will be accepted. 

 At the completion of the second trimester of each school year, the chapter advisor(s) 
and principal will invite faculty members to be a part of the selection committee.   

 The faculty committee will review the status of current members.  The qualities of 
scholarship, leadership, service, and character will be assessed.  Those who earn at 
least a four-fifths vote from the faculty committee are eligible for continued 
membership in the NHS. 

 The committee will also review the names of all potential new members: students 
whose NHS-adjusted GPA is 3.50 or greater.  A student’s NHS-adjusted GPA shall 
be equal to his/her official cumulative high school GPA plus 0.02 for any/all of the 
following courses completed with a grade of C- or higher:  Advanced English 10, 
Trigonometry, Pre-Calculus, and Physics.   

 The committee will vote on each candidate’s worthiness of NHS membership based 
on the qualities of leadership, service, and character. 

 Those candidates who meet all of the NHS requirements will receive an invitation 
for membership in the NHS. 

 Candidates do not become members until they are inducted at the annual ceremony.  

 Students who do not uphold the character expectations of NHS members are subject 
to removal.  

 These procedures are based on the national NHS guidelines; more information may 
be found at www.nhs.us.   

 
 
 
 

http://www.nhs.us/


 33 

Graduation Honors 
   Highest Honors........G.P.A. of 3.95 or higher 
   High Honors.............G.P.A. of 3.90 - 3.94 
   Honors......................G.P.A. of 3.85 - 3.89 
 
Students graduating with academic honors will be recognized with honor cords to be worn 
during commencement exercises.  
Class Rankings will still be listed on a student’s final transcript. 

 
 

Graduation Speeches 
All honor students can request to be considered to give a speech at graduation. This request must be in writing and 
submitted to the principal’s office before April 1st of the graduation year. Each student must then submit a written 
speech by May 15 and committee of students and teachers will select (2) to be given at commencement. 
 

 
Participation in Commencement Exercises 

Seniors must satisfy all of the academic requirements established by the Madison Board of 
Education to earn a diploma and pass a minimum of twelve (12) trimester courses during their 
senior year to qualify to participate in graduation exercises. This applies to students involved in 
the Tech Center, Co-Op. programs and related instruction. The Principal and the Director of 
Guidance will rule on special situations. 
 
In addition, students participating in Commencement Exercises must also follow the dress code 
requirements listed below: 

 Graduates are not permitted to wear tennis shoes or flip-flops.  
 Graduates are not permitted to wear jeans or shorts. 

 
Graduates who do not meet the requirements listed above, will not participate in Commencement 
Exercises. 
 
 

IMPORTANT DATES TO REMEMBER 
Fall Homecoming  Friday, September 16th, 2016 
Picture Day  Wednesday, September 21st, 2016 
Senior Parent Meeting/Financial Aid Meeting September 2016 
College Night for Juniors and Seniors (Siena Heights) Thursday, October 20th, 2016 
1st Trimester Exams  November 21st, 22nd, & 23rd 
10th Grade Tech-Center Visitation Wednesday, December 7th, 2016 
Junior Parent Night  December 2016 
ASVAB Test – 10th graders December 2016 
Christmas Break  Dec 19th – January 2nd, 2017  
2nd Trimester Exams  March 8th, 9th, & 10th  
Spring Break  April 3rd -7th  
11th Grade SAT Test  Tuesday, April 11th, 2017  
11th Grade WorkKeys Test Wednesday, April 12th, 2017 
9th Grade PSAT  April 11th or 12th 2017 



 34 

10th Grade PSAT  April 11th or 12th 2017 
Spring NWEA Testing  April/May 2017 
Senior Night  Thursday, May 25th, 2017 
Graduation               Sunday, June 4th, 2017 
3rd Trimester Exams              June 13th, 14th, & 15th  

 

2016-2017 ACT Test Dates & Registration Deadlines 

Test Date Registration 
Deadline 

Late Registration 
Deadline 

Complete Score 
Release*** 

June 11, 2016** May 6, 2016 May 7-20, 2016 June 29, 2016 

September 10, 2016 August 5, 2016 August 6-9, 2016 September 20, 2016 

October 22, 2016 September 16, 2016 September 17-30, 2016 November 8, 2016 

December 10, 2016 November 4, 2016 November 5-18, 2016 December 20, 2016 

February 11, 2017 January 6, 2017 January 7-20, 2017 February 22, 2017 

 
2016-17 SAT Administration Dates and Deadlines 

SAT Date Registration Deadline 

Late Registration Deadline 

Deadline for Changes 

Mail 
Phone/ 

Online 

Oct. 1, 2016 Sept. 1, 2016 Sept. 13, 2016 Sept. 20, 2016 Sept. 20, 2016 

Nov. 5, 2016 Oct. 7, 2016 Oct. 18, 2016 Oct. 25, 2016 Oct. 25, 2016 

Dec. 3, 2016 Nov. 3, 2016 Nov. 15, 2016 Nov. 22, 2016 Nov. 22, 2016 

Jan. 21, 2017 Dec. 21, 2016 Jan. 3, 2017 Jan. 10, 2017 Jan. 10, 2017 

March 11, 2017 Feb. 10, 2017 Feb. 21, 2017 Feb. 28, 2017 Feb. 28, 2017 

May 6, 2017 Apr. 7, 2017 Apr. 18, 2017 Apr. 25, 2017 Apr. 25, 2017 

June 3, 2017 May 9, 2017 May 16, 2017 May 24, 2017 May 24, 2017 

 
 

DAILY SCHEDULE OF CLASSES 
Hour Time Contact Time 
1st 7:50 – 9:00 70 minutes 
2nd 9:05 – 10:15 70 minutes 
3rd 10:15 – 11:30 70 minutes 



 35 

Lunch 11:30 – 11:58 28 minutes 
4th M/W/F 12:03 – 1:19 76 minutes 
Homeroom T/Th 12:03 – 12:30 27 minutes 
4th T/Th 12:34 – 1:35 61 minutes 
5th M/W/F 1:24 – 2:40 76 minutes 
5th T/Th 1:39 -2:40 61 minutes 

 
High School    Email Address   Phone Ext. 
Alvarado-Coleman, Sylvia  Sylvia.alvarado-cole@lisd.us   226 
Covey, Keith    keith.covey@madisonk12.us    417 
Cox, Kris    kris.cox@madisonk12.us   420 
Fisher, Lora    lora.fisher@madisonk12.us     210 
Ford, Marlys    marlys.ford@madisonk12.us    413 
Griffin, Mike    mike.griffin@madisonk12.us   415 
Hague, Becky    becky.hague@madisonk12.us   428 
Hamilton, Jim    jim.hamilton@madisonk12.us   406 
Hooker, Linda    linda.hooker@madisonk12.us   208 
Horwath, Mandy   mandy.horwath@madisonk12.us   426  
Isom, Jerry    jerry.isom@madisonk12.us     133 
Isom, Kris    kris.isom@madisonk12.us     124 
Jackler, Sara    sara.jackler@madisonk12.us    429 
Johnston, Beth    beth.johnston@madisonk12.us   432 
Lesko, Mary    mary.lesko@madisonk12.us    423 
Lobkovich, Christine   chris.lobkovich@madisonk12.us   142 
Madziar, Tom    tom.madziar@madisonk12.us   430 
McGormley, Katie   Katie.mcgormle@madisonk12.us     427 
Norlock, Betsy   betsy.norlock@madisonk12.us  418 
Pape, Jerry    jerry.pape@madisonk12.us    419 
Powers, Josh    josh.powers@madionsk12.us   137 
Roback, Sandi    sandi.roback@madisonk12.us   153 
Salters, Kathy    kathy.salters@madsionk12.us   214 
Sessink, Erika    Erika.sessink@madisonk12.us   230 
Shirk, Susan    susan.shirk@madisonk12.us   421 
Squires, Julie    Julie.squires@madisonk12.us    410 
Stelzer, Jennifer   jen.stelzer@madisonk12.us      135 
Tabarez, Deborah   deb.tabarez@madisonk12.us    414 
Tedora, Angela   angela.tedora@madisonk12.us   425 
Thomas, Kristin   kristin.thomas@madisonk12.us   154 
Thompson, Eric   erik.thompson@madisonk12.us    414 
Wallace, Taz    taz.wallace@madisonk12.us    148 
Whiteley, Nick   nick.whiteley@madisonk12.us   126 
Wilharms, Bill    bill.wilharms@madisonk12.us    204 

mailto:Sylvia.alvarado-cole@lisd.us
mailto:keith.covey@madisonk12.us
mailto:kris.cox@madisonk12.us
mailto:lora.fisher@madisonk12.us
mailto:marlys.ford@madisonk12.us
mailto:mike.griffin@madisonk12.us
mailto:becky.hague@madisonk12.us
mailto:jim.hamilton
mailto:linda.hooker@madisonk12.us
mailto:mandy.horwath
mailto:jerry.isom@madisonk12.us
mailto:kris.isom@madisonk12.us
mailto:sara.jackler@madisonk12.us
mailto:beth.johnston@madisonk12.us
mailto:mary.lesko@madisonk12.us
mailto:chris.lobkovich@madisonk12.us
mailto:tom.madziar@madisonk12.us
mailto:Katie.mcgormle@madisonk12.us
mailto:betsy.norlock@madisonk12.us
mailto:jerry.pape@madisonk12.us
mailto:josh.powers@madionsk12.us
mailto:sandi.roback@madisonk12.us
mailto:kathy.salters@madsionk12.us
mailto:Erika.sessink@madisonk12.us
mailto:susan.shirk@madisonk12.us
mailto:Julie.squires@madisonk12.us
mailto:jen.stelzer@madisonk12.us
mailto:deb.tabarez@madisonk12.us
mailto:angela.tedora@madisonk12.us
mailto:kristin.thomas@madisonk12.us
mailto:erik.thompson@madisonk12.us
mailto:taz.wallace@madisonk12.us
mailto:nick.whiteley@madisonk12.us
mailto:bill.wilharms@madisonk12.us


 36 

Wolf, Robynn      robynn.wolf@madisonk12.us   424 
Young, Nurse Ellen   ellen.young@madisonk12.us    354 
Zeckner, Marcie   marcie.zeckner@madisonk12.us   400 
 

Visit the Madison High School webpage at http://www.madisonk12.us/high-school/ 
 

mailto:robynn.wolf@madisonk12.us
mailto:ellen.young@madisonk12.us
mailto:marcie.zeckner@madisonk12.us
http://www.madisonk12.us/high-school/


Page | 1 
 

Madison School District 
Athletic Code of Conduct  

 

 
 



Page | 2 
 

Madison Trojans  
Athletic Handbook 

 
3498 Treat Highway, Adrian, Michigan 49221 

Phone (517) 265 – 1842 
Fax (517) 265 – 1848 

The Athletic Office is located in Madison High School 
Athletic Director: Kris Isom 

Athletic Department Secretary: Sandi Roback 

 
For more information about teams, schedules, and directions please go to: 
www.madisonk12.us 

Note: The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, sex, disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, 
ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, (collectively, "Protected 
Classes") in its programs and activities. 

Madison School District Mission (Purpose) Statement 

Madison School, in cooperation with our community, will empower each student to develop his 
or her full potential to be successful in an ever-changing world. 

Madison School District Vision (Direction) Statement 

Developing individual excellence through rigor, innovation, and personal attention 

This handbook reflects current Board policies and School rules as of June 1, 2017. If any of 
the policies or administrative guidelines referenced herein are revised after June 1, 2017, the 
language in the most current policy for administrative guideline prevails. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Athletic Department at Madison School District is governed by the Board of Education. 
Madison School District is a member school of the Michigan High School Athletic Association 
(M.H.S.A.A.) and adheres to their rules and regulations. Madison’s conference affiliation is the 
Tri-County Conference (TCC).  

The Athletic Code of Conduct aligns with the rules and regulations adopted by the Madison 
School District’s policies and procedures. All athletes and coaches are expected to adhere to 
the rules set forth by the Board of Education, MHSAA, TCC, and the Athletic Department. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.madisonk12.us/


Page | 3 
 

Table of Contents 

 

1. Introduction 

2. Player, Coach, and Parent Expectations 

3. Eligibility 

4. Rules for Athletic Participation  

a. Withdraw (Quitting) or Dismissal from Athletic Competition 

b. Transfers  

c. Attendance/Participation 

d. Breaking the Law 

e. Use of Illegal Substances 

f. Pranks or Improper Use of Social Media  

g. Hazing 

h. Discipline from School 

5. Multi-Sport Participation 

6. Facilities & Equipment 

7. Transportation 

8. Injuries/Medical Care 

9. MHSAA Rule Infraction Resulting in Ineligibility  

10. Awards 

11. Appeals/Formal Compliant Procedure  

  



Page | 4 
 

INTRODUCTION 

Each student who participates in athletics must exhibit responsible behavior and conduct in 
which all of us can be proud. He/she is representing himself, his teammates, and Madison 
School District. These rules apply during the entire year; the school year as well as the 
summer. Penalties will carry over from one school year to the next school year, except that a 
student entering high school will not typically have prior offenses from middle school affect 
his/her high school eligibility. These rules and associated penalties will apply throughout 
a student’s entire high school career at Madison. 

The following rules and regulations apply to all participants in all sports at Madison School 
District, but are not intended to be all inclusive. These rules and regulations cover areas 
specific to participants in athletics and are in addition to all rules and regulations outlined in 
the High School and Middle School Student Handbooks, District Policies, and the MHSAA. 

These rules were established as a minimum standard for all coaches to follow in order to 
maintain consistent team expectations of all athletic teams at Madison School District. An 
individual coach may establish rules above and beyond the expectations presented 
throughout this document. However, if a coach does choose to establish stronger rules, the 
rules must be presented in writing to the Athletic Director for approval prior to distribution to 
student-athletes at the start of the season. The sport-specific rules must be approved by the 
Athletic Director to confirm they conform to the Madison Athletic Department Rules and 
Regulations, the High School and Middle School Student Handbooks, District Policies, and 
the MHSAA. Any issues not covered by the Madison School District Athletic Code of Conduct, 
the student handbooks, District Policies, the MHSAA rules, or specific team rules will be 
resolved by an Athletic Board. The Athletic Board is a five-member committee consisting of 
the coach involved, the head coach, athletic director, principal, and a Board member. IN the 
event one of these members is unable to participate for any reason, another school 
administrator will be added. 

EXPECTATIONS 

Coaches at Madison are proud members of the MHSAA and TCC. The coach’s purpose is to 
provide a sound, competitive athletics program that provides student-athletes the opportunity 
to develop physically, emotionally, mentally, ethically, and socially. In doing so, coaches will 
be held responsible for assisting young men and women in their educational pursuits, as well 
as the development of skills in their respected sport in order for the student to reach his/her 
full potential. Coaches will work closely with the community, alumni, parents, and staff to build 
a supportive structure and environment to achieve success for student-athletes. The coaches 
are committed to the philosophy, vision, rules and regulations implemented by the MHSAA, 
Athletic Department, and Board of Education. 

 

 

 



Page | 5 
 

Madison Coaches will: 

• Establish a vision and set goals for the team, players, and program 
• Develop student-athletes as proud members of the team, school, and community 
• Establish expectations to ensure the safety of the student-athlete at all times 
• Promote good sportsmanship 
• Develop daily practice plans 
• Serve as an ambassador with teachers, administrators, parents, and community 
• Communicate effectively with everyone in the program as outlined in Policy 7545 
• Build a program as a whole 
• Establish and maintain a positive image as a role model at all times 
• Maintain and update inventory and equipment 
• Organize an off-season program (designated for specific sports)  
• Lead by example 
• Supervise athletes at all times 
• Participate in Athletic Department fundraising activities  
• Treat the student-athletes the way you would want your own children to be treated 
• Help promote and support all Madison athletic teams and activities 

Madison Student-Athletes will: 

• Understand they are a student first, athlete second 
• Communicate effectively with his/her coach  
• Meet the academic requirements for participation 
• Attend all practices and contests on time 
• Follow all rules and regulations presented in the student handbook 
• Be Respectful, Responsible, Dedicated, and Committed to the Team  
• Always show good sportsmanship 
• Be leaders in the school and community 
• Support other student activities  

Madison Parents will: 

• Support the Team 
• Cheer for the Team 
• Be a good role model for the Team 
• Show proper sportsmanship for the Team 
• Help promote the Team 
• Adhere to the “24 hour rule”, which states that parents will not engage in difficult 

conversations with coaches about practice or competition until 24-hours after the end of 
the practice or competition in question. 

 

 



Page | 6 
 

ELIGIBILITY  

Student athletic eligibility is governed by the MHSAA as well as the Madison School District 
Athletic Code of Conduct. A summary of the MHSAA Eligibility Rules is stated below. This list 
is not exhaustive. Students who have questions about athletic eligibility should promptly 
contact the Athletic Director. 

REQUIREMENTS FOR PARTICIPATION  

1. Student-athletes must be under 19 years of age at the time of any contest unless the 19th 
birthday occurs on or after September 1st of a current school year, in which case the student-
athlete is eligible for the balance of that school year in all sports. For an 8th grade student-
athlete he/she must be under 15 years of age (14 for 7th grade) prior to September 1st.  

2. No student-athlete shall participate in any phase of the athletic program before a Physical 
Examination Form for the current school year is on file in the athletic office. This form must be 
signed by the examiner (M.D., D.O., Physician’s Assistant, or Nurse Practitioner) indicating 
that the student is physically able to compete in the athletic activity concerned. For the form to 
be valid, the physical examination must be given on or after April 15th of the previous school 
year. As a further condition of participation, a student’s parent or guardian must also consent 
to the student’s athletic participation. In cases of serious injury or extended illness, school 
officials reserve the right to require an athlete to be re-examined by a physician (M.D. or D.O.) 
before being allowed to participate in interscholastic athletics. 

3.  All athletes must have a signed copy of receipt of the athletic rules on file in the office.  

Participation in any athletic activity binds each student-athlete to the terms of this Athletic 
Handbook. 

ACADEMIC REQUIREMENTS FOR PARTICIPATION 

Academic Eligibility Requirements 

The MHSAA requirements are that an athlete must have passed at least 66% of a full credit 
load in the previous semester and must be currently passing the same on the transcript of the 
school they represent in competition. 

In addition to the State Requirement, Madison School District requires the following: 

I. Prior Trimester Requirement  

High School - The passing of a minimum of at least four courses the trimester prior to 
participation in an extracurricular activity. Or, if a student was enrolled in less than five classes 
at the start of the trimester, the passing of every class in which enrolled. If a student does not 
fulfill this trimester requirement, he/she will be ineligible to participate for the following 
trimester. Summer school classes approved by the administration may be used to fulfill this 
requirement. (Students that transfer to Madison from a school that operates on a six or seven 
period day must have passed five courses under this requirement.)  



Page | 7 
 

Middle School - A student is required to pass a minimum of at least five courses the trimester 
prior to participation in an extra-curricular activity. If a student was enrolled in less than six 
classes at the start of the trimester, the student must pass every class in which enrolled. If a 
student does not fulfill this trimester requirement, he/she will be ineligible to participate for a 
minimum of six weeks into the new trimester, and until he/she is passing five classes.   A 
student passing less than four courses in the trimester prior to participation, is ineligible to 
participate for a minimum of the following trimester, and until he/she is passing five classes. 

Credit recovery classes approved by the administration may be used to fulfill this requirement. 
(Students that transfer to Madison from a school that operates on a six period day must have 
passed five courses under this requirement.). 

II. Current Trimester Requirement  

High School - A student failing two or more classes on a cumulative basis will be ineligible for 
a minimum of one week, and until passing work is done in at least four classes. Eligibility is 
confirmed at the end of each week (Friday). If, because of special circumstances, a student is 
enrolled in less than five classes, that student must continually pass all of those classes. At 
least four of the classes must be full credit classes.  

Middle School - An academic eligibility check will be conducted weekly. Each Friday, during 
the season or event, the coach or director of the team or event will receive a report.  If a 
student is not passing a minimum of five out of six courses, the student is ineligible for 
competition or performance until the next check.  The academic check will report the student’s 
current overall trimester grade. 

MANDATORY PARENT MEETINGS 

For every athletic team there will be a mandatory parent meeting. One or both parents are 
required to attend this meeting before an athlete can participate in a contest. If for some 
reason a parent/guardian cannot attend, he/she must contact the coach to make other 
arrangements. 

VIOLATION OF RULES AND REGULATIONS 

All school administrators, teachers, coaches, team captains, and parents are required to see 
that these rules are enforced. Any violation of the rules by a student-athlete should be 
reported in a reasonable time frame to the Administration, Athletic Director, or head coach of 
the sport in which the student is participating. A violation that is reported will be kept 
confidential, but the accuser must officially go on record for the report to be investigated.  
Anonymous and otherwise unsubstantiated reports will not be investigated.   

WITHDRAW (QUITTING) OR DISMISSAL FROM ATHLETIC COMPETITION 

If a student-athlete withdraws or is dismissed from athletic participation after the first game or 
scrimmage, once cuts have been made, or before the final game of that sports season, no 
matter what the level of competition, he/she will not be eligible to participate in the next 
athletic season. A student-athlete can, however, participate in the following season if he/she is 
released by the Athletic Board. Students experiencing extenuating circumstances have the 



Page | 8 
 

opportunity to meet with the Athletic Board to further determine eligibility. Upon reinstatement, 
a student may be required to meet additional obligations as determined by the Athletic Board. 
A request for an Athletic Board meeting may be initiated by the coach, athlete, building 
administrator, or Athletic Director. A request for an Athletic Board hearing must occur at least 
15 school days for high school and 7 school days for middle school, prior to the first 
scheduled practice of the next sport the student-athlete wishes to participate in if he/she is 
dismissed from the team.  

TRANSFERS 

A student who transfers to Madison School District after becoming ineligible because of a 
student or athletic code of conduct violation(s) at the previously attended school shall remain 
ineligible at Madison for not less than the period of ineligibility imposed by the previously 
attended school. This would be the case even if the student’s situation would otherwise satisfy 
one or more of the exceptions to the transfer regulation of Madison School District and the 
MHSAA (Regulation I, Section 9), and even if the act which caused the student’s ineligibility at 
the previous school would not be a violation or cause the same period of ineligibility at 
Madison School District. 

That student was subject to the rules and penalties of the previous school and shall not be 
allowed to escape the consequences of his/her conduct and, in doing so, displace students of 
Madison from teams, positions, events, and awards at least until the full period of ineligibility 
has been served. 

ATTENDANCE/PARTICIPATION 

THE DEFINITION OF “IN SEASON” 

Season Start: The season begins with the first day of practice allowed by the Michigan High 
School Athletic Association (MHSAA).  

Season End: The season ends at the conclusion of competition/athletic banquet. If a violation 
that would result in removal from the team or suspension of play occurs between the end of 
competition and prior to the post-season banquet, a student-athlete will forfeit their varsity 
letter AND will receive discipline applicable to the specific offense per the Athletic Code of 
Conduct.   
 
PRACTICE AND COMPETITION ATTENDANCE 

Athletes must be in attendance at school or at a school-approved event for a minimum of half 
the school day to participate in a practice session, game or meet.  (Special cases such as 
death in the immediate family, etc., will be handled by administration) 
 
All student-athletes are expected to be at the first day of practice or tryouts. Exceptions must 
be discussed with the coach and AD in order to participate in the sport. Make-up work will 
then be determined by the coach and AD. 

It is expected that once a student-athlete commits to a sport and team, he/she will not be 
absent from this responsibility for other interests. This includes family vacations during school 



Page | 9 
 

breaks, travel teams outside of school, and non-curricular school functions (i.e. day of Prom). 
We attempt to minimize as many of these types of conflicts as we can, but circumstances do 
not always allow us to eliminate team responsibilities during such times. All athletes will still 
be held accountable for absences due to these types of conflicts of interest. The only 
exception regarding a conflict of interest would be if one of the student-athlete’s academic 
classes requires attendance at a different event at the same time. 
 
All student-athletes are expected to be at all practices and competitions throughout the 
season.  If a student athlete is injured or unable to participate, he/she is still expected to 
attend practices and competitions as part of the team. Absences must be discussed with the 
coach prior to the missed practice or competition.  

Madison Middle School athletics are designed to empower student-athletes to explore, 
experience, and enjoy MHSAA-sanctioned competition. Students today, more than ever, 
participate with extra-curricular activities including but not limited to travel teams, dance 
teams/groups, scouts, etc. that have the potential to coincide with Madison Middle School 
sports. 

Rules and expectations regarding attendance at practice and competitions is communicated 
through handbooks, as well as, the parent meeting for each individual sport. Scheduling 
conflicts are often anticipated prior to the season depending on individual circumstances - this 
warrants dialogue between the student, parent/guardian, and coach. When a scheduling 
conflict is anticipated based on the participation of a middle school sport and a non-school 
sponsored activity, a meeting must occur prior to the start of the season. A meeting requested 
by the parent and facilitated through the AD shall occur to determine if participation with both 
the middle school sport and the extra-curricular activity is viable. The determination shall be 
made through input of the coach and ultimately decided by the AD so that the student and 
parent/guardian is fully aware if the student should indeed proceed with participation of the 
specific Madison Middle School sport. 

It is noted that student-athletes are no longer considered “exploring” a sport once they enter 
high school.  Rather, the student-athlete is making a significant commitment which requires 
100% commitment to the team. 

After the first practice, the consequences for missed practices and/or competitions will be 
determined by the specific sport’s team rules as approved by the AD.  

*Exceptions to the consequences (as stated above, must be communicated with the coach) 

-  death in the family or other emergency 
-  religious observation 
-  curricular class requirement (See “Conflicts of Interest” for explanation) 
 
 

 

 



Page | 10 
 

BREAKING THE LAW 

If a student athlete is charged with breaking the law (misdemeanor, felony, other than minor 
traffic violations), discipline will be administered. The District reserves the right to separately 
investigate any allegations that a law or rule was violated, and independently determine 
whether, in the District’s sole discretion, the student can continue to participate in athletics. 

If a student athlete’s action (as described above) is also a violation of the regulations in the 
Student Handbook or the Athletic Code of Conduct, discipline will be administered. Penalties 
could include suspension from competition or expulsion from the team. 

Note:  During an investigation (police or school), the student-athlete in question may be 
temporarily suspended by the administration from all team activities. 

USE OF ILLEGAL SUBSTANCES 

Madison School District recognizes that the use of tobacco, alcohol, and other drugs 
interferes with the physical, intellectual, social, and emotional development of our student 
athletes. Reflecting the prevention philosophy of both our athletic program and our school 
system, this policy’s intent is to send a clear and consistent message to all athletes, coaches, 
parents, and program administrators regarding tobacco, alcohol, and other drugs. The 
adolescent use of tobacco or nicotine-based products, alcohol, and other drugs is illegal and 
presents a significant threat to an athlete’s health and safety and to the orderly conduct of 
athletic programs. The District also prohibits its student-athletes from using “e-cigarettes”, 
vaporizers, “hookah”; or other similar devices that contain tobacco or nicotine. The additional 
safety factors associated with active, competitive participation give the athletic community an 
added responsibility to provide the safest and healthiest environment for all concerned. 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE VIOLATION  

 Substance abuse will not be tolerated. Smoking, use and/or possession of any tobacco or 
nicotine-based products, drinking and/or possession of intoxicating beverages, use and/or 
possession of drugs is strictly prohibited. 
 
SEXTING/DIGITAL TECHNOLOGY 
 

 Sexting will not be tolerated. Sexting is defined as the sending of sexually explicit photos, 
images, text messages, or e-mails by using a cell phone or other electronic device. A student-
athlete who engages in sexting will be suspended from the team as follows: 

 
1. FIRST OFFENSE: The student-athlete will be suspended from competition for ½ of the 

games scheduled in the sport season that he/she is involved in; or be suspended from 
½ of the games scheduled in the next sport that he/she participates in if he/she is not 
participating in a sport at the time of the offense.  If less than ½ of the sport season 
remains, the athlete will be suspended for the remainder of that sport season and will 
not receive any post-season awards or honors. 

 
2. SECOND OFFENSE: The athlete will be suspended from all athletic competition for 

the six calendar months following his/her second offense.  If less than six months 
remain in the school year, this penalty will carry over to the succeeding school year. 



Page | 11 
 

 
3. THIRD OFFENSE: The athlete will be suspended from all athletic competition for one 

calendar year from the beginning of the suspension. 
 

4. FOURTH OFFENSE: The athlete will be suspended for the remainder of their athletic 
eligibility. 

 
Because every circumstance is difference, the District reserves the right to impose longer 
suspensions or additional discipline. 
 
 
PRANKS/IMPROPER USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA/THEFT 

 
Theft:  

Stealing, or being caught in the act of stealing property or equipment, (belonging to the 
school, a business or an individual) will not be tolerated. Theft will result in suspension from 
the team for a length of time determined by the coach, Athletic Director, and Principal. 

Pranks/Improper Use of Social Media:  
 
Student-athletes shall not become involved in serious school pranks or improper use of social 
media (improper use of social media may include, but not be limited to, Facebook, texting, 
and Twitter).   
 
Any athlete involved in serious school pranks, improper use of social media, and theft, will be 
brought before the Athletic Board where one of the following penalties may be imposed; 

 
1. Suspension from two weeks of athletic competition. 
2.  Suspension for ½ of a sport season. 
3.  Suspension for the remainder of the school year. 

 

Note:  Violations of the above standards regarding theft will result in appropriate discipline 
ranging from corrective action prescribed by the coach to suspension from competition(s) or 
expulsion from the team. The police may also be notified. 
 
HAZING 
Hazing is defined as harassment, abuse, or humiliation by way of initiation. This definition can 
include both physical and mental forms of hazing. Hazing is associated with, but not limited to 
being initiated into, or pledging, a team. Student-athletes participating in hazing activities will 
be subject to discipline appropriate to the offense. Depending on the severity of the violation, 
penalties may range from suspension to expulsion from the team as determined by the 
Athletic Board. 

 

 

 



Page | 12 
 

DISCIPLINE FROM SCHOOL 

All violations of rules and regulations outlined in the Madison Student Handbook that result in 
a student-athlete being assigned any form of discipline by school administration (such as 
detention or suspension from school) could result in suspension from the next competition. 
Recurring violations may result in further suspension or expulsion from the team. 

MULTI-SPORT PARTICIPATION WITHIN THE SAME SEASON 
 
Two sports in the same season:   

In rare cases, a student-athlete may be interested in participating in two sports during an 
athletic season. To participate in two sports during the spring athletic season, there are a 
couple steps that the student-athlete must take. First, the student-athlete must pick a primary 
sport. Second, a written and signed statement by the student-athlete must be submitted to the 
Athletic Director prior to the start of the season. Student-athletes are students first; the 
student-athlete’s participation in one or two sports must not impact the student’s academics. 

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT 

Facilities: 

A student-athlete using any facility including but not limited to the weight room, gym, Indoor 
Athletic Facility must be under the direct supervision of a coach at all times. 

Trainer’s Room and Coaches’ Offices: 

The trainer’s room and coaches’ offices are off-limits to all student athletes unless they are 
under the supervision of the trainer or coach. 

Equipment: 

All student-athletes are financially responsible for equipment issued to them during their 
season. Equipment issued to a student athlete is to be worn only for practice or competitions, 
unless given express permission by the coach of the sport.  

Athletes will not be permitted to participate in another sport until their equipment from the 
previous sport is turned in. If damaged or not returned the student athlete is charged the price 
of replacement for all missing pieces of uniform and damaged equipment.  If the student-
athlete is a senior their transcripts and diploma may be held up until equipment and uniform is 
turned in or replaced.   

Vandalism: 

A student-athlete will be financially responsible for acts of vandalism of athletic equipment or 
facilities home and away. 

 

 



Page | 13 
 

TRANSPORTATION 

When the school provides transportation (bus, van, etc.), all student-athletes must travel to 
and return from the destination together nonstop. However, students may ride home with a 
parent/guardian or designee if/when appropriate paperwork (sign-out) occurs. This is up to the 
coach’s discretion.  

INJURIES/MEDICAL CARE 

All injuries must be reported to the coach and/or trainer promptly.  The coach, trainer and/or 
athlete will then notify the parents of this injury. 

If a student-athlete receives care from any physician, including a physician’s assistant (PA) or 
certified nurse practitioner (CNP), for any injury or illness, then that athlete is required to 
present a written note from a medical professional to the coach and trainer stating his/her 
status. Athletes will not be allowed to practice or compete until a written medical release to 
return to practice and/or competition is received. 

Licensed athletic trainers must work under the authority of a designated physician. Madison 
School District has appointed an athletic trainer and team physician to deliver athletic health 
care to our student-athletes. Owing an obligation to student-athlete welfare, policies and 
procedures have been established to deliver the best possible health care. 

• Student-athletes must report sport-specific injuries/illnesses to the athletic trainer. As 
appropriate, the athletic trainer will communicate with parents or guardians regarding 
any care rendered and future treatment recommendations. Federal privacy laws 
regarding the disclosure of health information apply. 

• If a student-athlete is seen by any physician for an injury, they are required to obtain 
and present a clearance note to the athletic trainer. The note must be signed by a 
licensed physician (not a nurse or other surrogate), state the diagnosis, list any 
restrictions or limitations and indicate the date the athlete may safely return to practice 
and competition. 

• For the well-being of the student-athlete, the team physician and athletic trainer 
appointed by Madison School District may consult with the student-athlete’s physician 
regarding return to play.  

MHSAA RULE INFRACTIONS RESULTING IN INELIGIBILITY 

The following represent a few of the commonly misunderstood MHSAA rules that will result in 
ineligibility. For more information regarding these and other rules go to www.mhsaa.com 

-  A student-athlete’s amateur status can be jeopardized if a student or family member 
receives money or valuables for participation in sports sponsored by Madison School District. 
The period of ineligibility will be dictated by current MHSAA rules. 

http://www.mhsaa.com/


Page | 14 
 

-  A student-athlete who plays a sport concurrently for a team other than a Madison athletic 
team, will be considered ineligible. The period of ineligibility will be dictated by current MHSAA 
rules. 

-  A student-athlete who receives an award for participation in athletics that exceeds $25 in 
value will become ineligible.  The period of ineligibility will be dictated by current MHSAA 
rules. 

AWARDS 

An athlete will receive a maximum of one (1) varsity letter “M” while participating as a high 
school athlete.  

Only members of a team finishing the season in good standing will receive any type of award 
or recognition (such as a certificate or varsity letter). The head coach in consultation with the 
AD and building administrator will determine the status of “in good standing.” Also, a student-
athlete must attend the sports banquet in order to receive any award, unless a prearranged 
absence has been approved. 

Awards values shall not exceed a total of $25 per MHSAA guidelines. 

Note: Student-athletes who have been expelled from the team for violations will not receive a 
team award and will not be allowed to attend the team banquet. 

Senior Athletic Award – Criteria 

Varsity Letter= 10pts 
Captain (Varsity) = 3 points  
Banquet Award = 5pts.  
TCC All-League= 1st Team= 10 pts 
2nd Team=5 pts, HM= 2 pts 
All County= Same as above 
District Champ=10pts         
Regional Champ=15pts 
All State= 1st team=10pts, 2nd team=7pts HM=5pts. 
 
GPA must be a 2.5 or above. If there is a 25 point or less discrepancy between student-
athletes, the Coaches will have an input on who they believe is deserving. Character, Team 
player, sportsmanship and athletic ability are taken into account.  Must be in good standing 
with school and team rules. 
 
APPEALS/ FORMAL COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Any suspension or expulsion of a student athlete from practice(s) or competition(s) because of 
a violation of the rules may appeal the decision by following these steps: 

1)  Set up a meeting with the head coach involved. 

2)  If the appellant/complainant is not satisfied with the Head Coach’s decision, he/she may 
appeal to the Athletic Director by setting up a meeting. 



Page | 15 
 

3)  If the appellant/complainant is not satisfied with the Athletic Director’s decision, he/she 
may appeal to the High School or Middle School Principal (whichever applies) by setting up a 
meeting. 

4)  If the appellant/complainant is not satisfied with the Principal’s decision, he/she may 
appeal to the Superintendent by setting up a meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 16 
 

Student-Athlete and Parent signatures to acknowledge the participant contract: 

I have chosen to participate in athletics at Madison School District. I have read and 
understand the athletic rules and regulations and the consequences of violating them. I 
pledge to keep all rules and regulations and to help all of my teammates abide by the same. 
In addition, my signature below acknowledges that I have read the Athletic Department Rules 
and Regulations, and the sport-specific rules, and accept the rules and regulations as a 
condition of participation. 

Student Athlete Signature                                                          

Date ______________________________                                     

Please print your name (student athlete) ___________________________________                                                                

 

 

As the parent/guardian of                                                           , I understand and support this 
contract that my son/daughter has signed. Optimum health and exemplary sportsmanship are 
the primary goals of our athletic program, and I support the school system in the efforts to 
attain these goals. I acknowledge the consequences stated above for athletes who violate the 
rules and regulations of Madison School District. In addition, my signature below 
acknowledges that I have read the Athletic Department Rules and Regulations and accept the 
rules and regulations as a condition of participation for my child. 

Parent/Guardian Signature       _________________________________________                                          

Date                                         

 



1 

 

 

Co-Presidents: Chad Barber and 

Heather Barber 

Secretary: Kristi Douglas 

Treasurer: Greg Choinski 

Member at Large: Eric Dopp 

MYAC@madisonk12.us 

Vice President: Jeff Grof 

Participation Handbook 
The Madison Youth Athletic Council (MYAC) provides opportunities to students in grades kindergarten through sixth 

grade, until which time the MHSAA sponsors competitive league athletic teams 

Table of Contents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MYAC monthly meetings 

The MYAC Board meets the third Wednesday of the 

month from 7:30—8:30 p.m. in the Board Room. We 

welcome and encourage attendance by anyone who 

would like to learn more, help with planning, share 

ideas, or volunteer. 

MYAC Board Members 

MYAC Mission, Vision, and Purpose Statements 2 

Who’s Who, Contact Info 3 

Timeline of Events 4 

Expectations 5 

Code of Conduct and Chain of Command 6 

Constitution and Bylaws 7-12 

Letter to Parents 13 

Sport Director Pre-Season Checklist 14 

Sport Director Post-Season Checklist 15 

Pre-Season Inventory Form 16 

Post-Season Inventory Form 17 

New Member Information Form 18 

Volunteer/Mentor Application Form 19-20 

Student Fee or Fundraising Activity Approval Form 21 

 

mailto:MYAC@madisonk12.us


2 

 

 

 

Mission, Vision and Purpose Statements 

MYAC Mission Statement: 

Madison Youth Athletic Council, in cooperation with our community, strives to develop and coordinate youth athletic 

opportunities intended for the youth attending Madison School District. 

MYAC Vision Statement: 

Developing individual excellence through athletic activities so that each student can reach his or her full potential. 

MYAC Purpose Statement: 

The Madison Youth Athletic Council meetings advance the goals set by the Council and the district in accordance 

with our mission and vision statements. 



3 

 

 

Who’s Who & Contact Info 
 

Role and Name Phone Email 

Superintendent—Ryan Rowe 517-264-0741 x160 Ryan.Rowe@madisonk12.us 

Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent – Ramie Overbey 517-265-1856 Ramie.Overbey@madisonk12.us 

Business Office Specialist—Jill Myers 517-265-1840 Jill.Myers@madisonk12.us 

Upper Elementary Principal—Nate Pechaitis 517-264-0741 x130 Nate.Pechaitis@madisonk12.us 

Elementary Intervention Specialist—Eric Frederick 517-264-0741 x132 Eric.Frederick@madisonk12.us 

MYAC Liaison/Success Coach—Taz Wallace 517-264-0741 x148 Taz.Wallace@madisonk12.us 

Communications Coordinator—Lucas Rains 517-264-0741 x140 Lucas.Rains@madisonk12.us 

MYAC Presidents—Chad Barber 

Heather Barber 

517-215-3907 

517-215-3908 

barber.chad@yahoo.com 

barber1028@yahoo.com 

MYAC Vice President—Jeff Grof 517-403-0724 grof.jeff@gmail.com 

MYAC Treasurer—Greg Choinski 517-960-9202 choinskg@yahoo.com 

MYAC Secretary—Kristi Douglas 517-215-4055 kristi-douglas@hotmail.com 

MYAC Member at Large—Eric Dopp 517-902-1458 edopp24@hotmail.com 

MYAC Football Directors—Mike Dopp (tackle) 

Scott Goodlock (flag) 

517-673-1754 

517-260-7838 

mdopp@summitfinancialgroup.net 

sgoodlock@gmail.com 

MYAC Cheerleading Directors—Kristi Douglas 
 

Melina Tillman 

517-215-4055 
 

517-215-8264 

kristi-douglas@hotmail.com 
 

mtillman1126@gmail.com 

MYAC Basketball Director—Robert Burciaga 517-403-8964 robertburciaga@yahoo.com 

MYAC Wrestling Directors — Letty Goodlock 
 

Michael Weissend 

517-260-7812 
 

517-215-2051 

Letty.Goodlock@madisonk12.us 
 

Michael.Weissend@madisonk12.us 

MYAC Baseball/T-Ball Directors—Greg Choinski 
 

Chad Barber 

517-960-9202 
 

517-215-3907 

choinskg@yahoo.com 
 

barber.chad@yahoo.com 

MYAC Softball Directors—Tammy Cantu and Ray Cantu 517-605-2042 tammymcantu@yahoo.com 

“Madison Family” Vendor: Fanatic Apparel—Jessica Fowler 866-694-6208 fanaticapparelco@gmail.com 

“Madison Family” Vendor: Mugs N’ More—Mindy Sloop 517-265-2640 mugsnmoreembroidery@hotmail.com 

mailto:Ryan.Rowe@madisonk12.us
mailto:Nate.Pechaitis@madisonk12.us
mailto:Eric.Frederick@madisonk12.us
mailto:Taz.Wallace@madisonk12.us
mailto:Lucas.Rains@madisonk12.us
mailto:barber.chad@yahoo.com
mailto:barber1028@yahoo.com
mailto:grof.jeff@gmail.com
mailto:choinskg@yahoo.com
mailto:kristi-douglas@hotmail.com
mailto:edopp24@hotmail.com
mailto:mdopp@summitfinancialgroup.net
mailto:sgoodlock@gmail.com
mailto:kristi-douglas@hotmail.com
mailto:mtillman1126@gmail.com
mailto:robertburciaga@yahoo.com
mailto:Letty.Goodlock@madisonk12.us
mailto:Michael.Weissend@madisonk12.us
mailto:choinskg@yahoo.com
mailto:barber.chad@yahoo.com
mailto:tammymcantu@yahoo.com
mailto:fanaticapparelco@gmail.com
mailto:mugsnmoreembroidery@hotmail.com


4 

 

 

 

Timeline of Events 

Subject to Changes 

 June – Football/Cheer registrations begin 
 

 July – Football/Cheer registrations end 
 

 July - Football Evaluations & Equipment Fittings and Cheer uniform fittings 
 

 August – Football/Cheer practice begins 
 

 September - Football/Cheer games begin 
 

 October– 1st/2nd and 5th/6th basketball registrations & evaluations 

 November – 1st/2nd and 5th/6th basketball practice & games begin & 3rd/4th bball registration 

 December – (end) wrestling registration begins 
 

 January – (beginning) wrestling registration ends 
 

 January (middle) 3rd/4th basketball practices & games begin 

 January (end) T-ball, Softball, Baseball registrations 
 

 February – Wresting practices/matches begin 
 

 March – Softball/Baseball evaluations & practices begin 
 

 April – T-ball practices begin, Tball/softball/baseball games begin 
 

 May — Baseball Games begin 
 

 June — MYAC Banquet and Football/Cheer registrations begin again 
 



5 

 

 

 Madison Youth Athletic Council Code of Conduct 
 

Madison Youth Athletic Council (MYAC) recognizes participation in sports as a vital part of an education. To that end, rules have been 
established to reflect Madison School District's educational objectives and promote the ideals of good sportsmanship, ethics, and integrity. 
These are the standards for a student/athlete’s participation in all MYAC programs. If a coach chooses to establish additional rules/ 
expectations, they will put them in writing and distribute them to the athlete at the start of the season. It is understood at Madison that 
athletic participation is a privilege, not a right. Madison Student/Athletes are expected to be responsible, respectful and safe. They are 
expected to be leaders in our Madison family. 
All administrators, teachers, coaches, parents and athletes are asked to see that these rules are enforced. Any alleged infraction of 
these rules will be recorded and investigated, and may result in appropriate action. 
In accordance with the Madison School District Athletic code of conduct… 

 

Student/Athletes are NOT to: 
 

Smoke, use tobacco based products, drink or possess intoxicating beverages, use and/or possess drugs, steal and/or possess 
stolen property. 

 

Student/Athletes SHOULD: 
 

Obey school rules and civil laws. Use good language. Exhibit good leadership and citizenship in school and the community.  
Exhibit good sportsmanship while participating as an athlete or while observing as an attendee at sporting events. 

These rules will apply during the student/athlete’s entire athletic career during MYAC programs. Penalties may carry from one sport 
season to the next, or from one year to the next if necessary. Rules infractions will result in suspension from participation in MYAC 
sporting events. 

 1st Offense: The student/athlete will be suspended for ½ of the next game following the incident. If the offense is at the end of the 

season, the student/athlete will be suspended for ½ of the first game of the next season. 

 2nd Offense: The student/athlete will be suspended for one full game following the incident. If the offense is at the end of the sea- 

son, the student/athlete will be suspended for the first full game of the next season. 

 3rd Offense: The student/athlete will be suspended from MYAC sports for the remainder of the current season. If the incident occurs 

at the end of the season, the student/athlete will be suspended for the next season. 
*The Madison School District reserves the right to administer discipline up to and including dismissal from participation altogether de- 
pending on the severity of the infraction. 

 

 Student/Athletes MUST: 
 

Be in attendance at school the day of a practice or game in order to participate. If the practice or game falls on a 
Saturday, the student/athlete must be in attendance at school on Friday. (Special circumstances such as a 
funeral, excused doctor’s visits, etc. would be acceptable and excused for participation). 

 

Be in good academic standing. If a student/athlete is failing any subject, they will not participate in the sport until the grade is 
passing. Remember that academics come first. 

 

 

Parent Signature Date Student/Athlete Signature Date 



6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Expectations 

 
 
Role of the Player 

1. Know the expectations. 
2. Be coachable—The coach’s job is to make you better, but you must take and accept the coaching 
3. Have integrity—Do what is right. Be honest and loyal to parents, coaches, and teachers 
4. Discipline—Do the right thing at the right time, all of the time. Be prompt and prepared. 
5. Maintain grades and appropriate classroom behavior. Uphold success on and off the field. 
6. Have fun 

Role of the Coach 
1. Know the expectations. 
2. Develop athletes to perform and progress at a level consistent with their ability. 
3. Keep everyone involved. Nobody should be standing around at practices/games. Keep interest level high. 
4. Maintain proper communication with athletes and their families. 

Role of the Family 
1. Know the expectations. 
2. Be positive with your athlete. Let them know you are proud they are part of the team. 
3. Allow your athlete to perform and progress at a level consistent with their ability. 
4. Always support the coaching staff when controversial decisions are made to keep good morale. 

Chain of Command for Conflict Resolution 

 

1. Child’s head coach—follow 24 hour rule 
2. Director of Sport 
3. MYAC President 
4. MYAC Liaison/Success Coach 
5. MYAC Board 
6. Principal 
7. Superintendent 

* See page 3 for contact information 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 6 

 

Constitution and By-Laws 

 
Wherever the words “Council” appear herein, they shall be construed to mean Madison Youth Athletic Council. 
 

Article I 
 

Sec. 1 The purpose of this Council is to constitute an organization for the development and coordination of 
youth athletic opportunities at Madison School District. 

 
Sec. 2 The organization is an instrument of, and exclusively for, the benefit of the District and/or its students. A 

student must be actively enrolled at Madison and registered in School as a Madison School District 
student to participate with any MYAC- sponsored activity. 

 

Article II 
Membership 

 
Sec. 1 Membership is open to volunteers who are determined to be such by the Board of Directors and who are 

interested in participating in the activities of this Council as outlined in Article I. An individual has the 
opportunity to join the Council at any time however, the individual must be accepted by the Board as a 
member through the membership process and, per Board Policy, pass a background check prior to serving 
as a volunteer. The prospective member will complete a member- ship form and be recognized as a 
member once the membership form is accepted by the Board of Directors. Membership will be 
recognized by the secretary at a Council meeting and be included in the meeting minutes. An individual 
may re- main a MYAC member until which time the Board determines expectations described in Article II, 
Section 2, either (a) and/ or (b) has not been met. Proposed discontinuation of membership for any 
individual is to be recommended by the Board to the Success Coach for consideration and determination. 

 
Sec. 2 In order to become a member of this Council, an individual shall: 
 

(a) Subscribe to the purpose of this Council as defined by Article I 
 
(b) Represent Madison School District in a manner that continues a standard of excellence. 
 
(c) The Board of Directors may provide for the appointment of committees from the membership to 

undertake certain studies or functions under the direction of the Board of Directors. Non-members 
may be included as a part of such committees when appropriate. 

 
(d) A Volunteer Application (Background check) must be processed for anyone wishing to 

volunteer with a MYAC- sponsored activity. The Volunteer Application Procedure for MYAC 
athletics is as follows: 

 
1. Obtain a Volunteer Application Form available in each office and turn the form into the 

coordinator of that sport. The director shall provide to the District’s Central Office a list of 
individuals he/she requests be processed along with all completed Volunteer Forms. All forms 

remain on file for only the current school year therefore, any individual on the list 
presented to Central Office having already been processed (approved or denied) will 
be documented along with those submitting forms to be processed. 

 
2. All background checks will be ran on a request only basis when prompted by the coordinator 

of each sport. The director must provide at least 7 days to allow time for forms to be processed. 
 



 

Page 2 of 6 

3. Once the process is complete communication to the coordinator will occur from Central 
Office so that the director can update the comprehensive list and individuals involved. 

 
Article III 

Voting 
 

Sec. 1 The approved member is then able to vote on Council business at the meeting following his/her 
approval as a member.  

 
Sec. 2 Each member shall have one vote on each matter submitted to the membership. 
 
Sec. 3 The membership shall vote on regular business placed on the agenda by the Board of Directors for 

consideration and approval. 
 

Article IV 
Board of Directors 

 
Sec. 1 There shall be a Board of Directors which shall facilitate the business and affairs of the Council consisting 

of five positions elected by the membership to a term of two years at the annual meeting in June of each 
year. 

 
Sec. 2 Three or more directors shall constitute a quorum sufficient for transaction of the business of the Board of 

Directors. 
 
Sec. 3 The Board of Directors shall meet as often as, in their opinion, it is necessary to do so for the proper 

direction of the affairs of the Council. 
 
Sec. 4 Special meetings of the Board of Directors- The President, or in his/her absence, the Vice President or 

any of the five di- rectors acting jointly may call a special meeting of the Board of Directors by giving 
notice to the membership. The notice shall specify all items to be discussed or acted upon at the special 
meeting and no action may be taken on any matter up- on which notice is not specifically given in said 
notice. 

 
Sec. 5 Candidates shall be nominated for each position on the Board of Directors and provisions shall be made 

for nomination from the floor. 
 
Sec. 6 Directors shall serve for a term of two (2) years or until their successors are elected. Terms shall be 

staggered so no more than the terms of three Directors shall expire in any year. 
 
Sec. 7 The Board of Directors shall propose a slate of candidates to fill a vacancy occurring on the Board of 

Directors. The new Director shall be elected by the membership and shall serve until the next annual 
meeting. 

 
Sec. 8 At the annual meeting of the membership in the month of June, directors shall be elected by written 

ballot by member- ship to fill expiring terms. The Board shall hold an organizational meeting following 
the election. 

 

 
 

Article V 
Officers, Directors of MYAC Sports, and Head Coaches 

 



 

Page 3 of 6 

Sec. 1 The officers of the Council shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and one 
Member at Large. Two individuals may serve in a co-officer capacity if approved by the Board and voted 
upon to serve as such. When a vote is conducted, any position constitutes one vote, even if two 
individuals serve in a co-officer capacity. A Madison staff member will be appointed by Madison 
administration and serve as a non-voting liaison (MYAC Liaison/Success Coach) for the District and 
Council. 

 
Sec. 2 The President shall: 
 

(a) Preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the membership 
(b) Be responsible for the active management and control of the activities of the Council under the 

Board of Directors and carry out the directions and policies of the Board of Directors 
(c) Perform such other duties as may be delegated to him/her by the Board of Directors 
(d) Appoint all committees 
(e) Oversee functions of individual sport directors and coaches and assist when needed 
(f) Have access to MYAC email 
(g) Have and facilitate administrative access to MYAC-related social media 
(h) Surrender access to MYAC email and administrative access to MYAC-related social media upon end of 

term 
 
Sec. 3 The Vice-President shall: 
 

(a) In the absence of the President, perform the duties of the President 
(b) Communicate with the school Communications Coordinator for publicity and public relations 

including social media, when applicable, as directed by the President 
(c) Perform such other duties as may be delegated to him/her by the Board of Directors 
 

Sec. 4 The Secretary shall: 
 

(a) Have control of the files and records of the Council 
(b) Send out notices of all meetings 
(c) Keep accurate minutes of all meetings and distribute to members of the MYAC Board by the Friday 

following the MYAC meeting. Make the minutes accessible to any member by request 
(d) Maintain a copy of the By-laws and make available the By-Laws to any member upon request 
(e) Keep an official and current list of the names and contact information of all members 
(f) Turn over to his or her successor, all records and documents within ten (10) days after leaving the 

office or at end of term 
(g) Monitor MYAC email inbox and distribute correspondence to appropriate individuals, as necessary 
(h) Submit agenda for each monthly meeting in District-standardized format to the President for approval 

at least five days in advance of meeting 
(i) Post agenda to members/public the Monday before the meeting 
(j) Serve as an administrator for MYAC-related social media, if directed by the President 
(k) Initiate sign-up sheet for meetings, maintain records of attendance, and verify membership by anyone 

prior to conducting a vote 
(l) Keep official list of names and contact information of all MYAC members 
(m) Surrender access to MYAC email and administrative access to MYAC-related social media sites upon 

leaving office or end of term 
 
Sec. 5 The Treasurer shall work collaboratively with Central Office to: 
 

(a) Receive all monies of the Council, and within 48 hours deposit all receipts in an Activity Account of 
the School District’s General Fund, and follow all applicable accounting procedures and processes, 
including facilitating use of the District’s online payment system 



 

Page 4 of 6 

(b) Keep an accurate record of all income and expenditures and of all funds of the Council 
(c) Have joint control with the President, Vice-President or Secretary of all financial transactions through 

the District’s Activity Account. The signature of the Treasurer counter-signed by one of the other 
above designated officers shall be required to withdrawal funds from the Activity Account 

(d) Pay all bills when authorized by the Board of Directors. 
(e) Submit a record of all financial transactions to the Board of Directors at each monthly meeting for 

examination or at any other time required by the Board of Directors 
(f) Turn over to the District’s Central Office all books of account for review within ten (10) days of leaving 

office or at the end of term 
(g) Review and/or Approve any purchases above $500 

 
Sec. 6 The Member At-large is a designation for an elected member of the Board of Directors who shall: 
 

(a) Represent the whole membership of the body on issues of interest or concern. 
(b) Conduct projects to further the goals of the organization or to develop services for the membership. 
(c) Serve as chair of any ad hoc committee formed to develop these projects. 
(d) Listen to membership and communicate their issues, needs and interests to the Board of Directors. 
(e) Identify potential problems and opportunities. 
(f) Work effectively toward common goals as a team member. 
(g) Set objectives and develop action plans for selected and/or assigned projects. 

 
Sec. 7 Expectations of the Director of a MYAC Sport include, but are not limited to: 
 

(a) Be assigned by the Board upon Board approval; assignment to be reviewed and approved annually 
(b) Facilitate timely communication to the school, coaches, and the MYAC board; Articulate to coaches 

specific drills and skills to be taught, if any 
(c) Facilitate communication to parents prior to the first practice and ensure communication occurs 

between head coaches and parents/guardians of participants 
(d) Designate the head coach for each team prior to the beginning of practices; designation is to be 

reviewed and approved by the board 
(e) Coordinate and assign practice times and locations, provide a master list to Central Office for 

coordination of resources 
(f) Organize and facilitate directors/coaches meeting to discuss timeline & expectations of upcoming 

season to ensure follow-through by all throughout the season 
(g) Organize and attend any and all evaluations and roster drafts 
(h) Keep accurate and accessible records of registrations, rosters, sizing, equipment, etc. 
(i) Organize and attend the parent meeting(s) prior to the season 
(j) Complete Pre-Season and Post-Season Inventory Checklists and submit both to MYAC President 
(k) Maintain accurate records of practice schedules and contacts for all coaches 
(l) Coordinate schedules with other league sport directors. Work together to benefit student-athletes 
 

(m) Oversee operations/functions of any events/games/practices 
(n) Organize season ending events/recognitions 

 
Sec. 8 Expectations of the Head Coach for each MYAC Team include, but are not limited to: 
 

(a) Role model behavior similar to a “teacher” as the “field of play” is an extension of the classroom/school 
(b) Be assigned by the Director of a MYAC Sport and recruit coaches, if necessary 
(c) Work with Coordinator to establish practice times that are best suited for parents/children/coaches 
(d) Be on time to practice with a pre-planned agenda 
(e) Remain at the site until the last child is picked up by parent/guardian from practice, contest, 

or other function 



 

Page 5 of 6 

(f) Assist Director of a MYAC Sport by encouraging parent participation with concession/chain 
gang/score clock, etc. 

(g) Facilitate safe/instructional/fun activities with focus on development of athletic skills and 
abilities as well as responsibility and team effort 

(h) Utilize “Remind app” to communicate efficiently and effectively with parents/guardians once practices 
begin 

(i) Hold a parent meeting for parents of the assigned team after providing parents/guardians at 
least a seven day notice to parents 

 
Article VI 
Meetings 

 
Sec. 1 The annual meeting of the membership shall be held during the month of June of each year at Madison 

Schools. 
 
Sec. 2 Regular meetings shall be held monthly as determined by the Board of Directors. Time and location 

within the Madison Schools campus shall be designated by the Board of Directors. 
 
Sec. 3 A schedule of meetings will be set in advance of each school year. Meetings may be changed with at least 

five days’ notice and with Board approval. Special meetings shall be held as often as the Board of Directors 
may determine to be in the best interests of the Council and the notice of such meetings shall contain the 
subjects to be acted upon at such meetings, and no matters may be acted upon which is not clearly within 
the purview of the items set forth in notice. If an unforeseen emergency matter comes before the Council 
at a scheduled meeting it may be considered by the Council upon the approval of 75% of those in 
attendance to add the matter to the agenda. 

 
Sec. 4 All notices must be given at least three (3) days in advance of the date of Board Meetings and ten (10) 

days in advance of membership meetings. 

 
Article VII 

Finance – Student Fees and Fundraisers 
 
Sec. 1 The expression "Purpose and Process Driven" means having the opportunity to successfully perform a 

task or responsibility independently or as a team by following an intentional and deliberate process. The 
process requires team members to do work in a consecutive manner without skipping, adding, or 
modifying the procedure. Madison School District strives to be a purpose and process-driven 
organization. The District desires to achieve strategic objectives by effectively managing activities and 
tasks through a detailed process. Team members shall understand and follow the steps within the 
Student Fee and Fundraiser process to achieve desired outcome(s). Madison School District-sponsored 
organizations and those that volunteer through MYAC shall abide by any and all steps outlined within the 
Student Fee and Fundraiser process. 

 
Sec 2. Any member of MYAC is asked to abide by the following: 
 

(a) Any and all fundraiser ideas must be presented to the Treasurer through a District Student Fee & 
Fund raiser Approval Form. The Treasurer will then present the proposed Student Fee & Fundraiser 

Approval Form to the Board for consideration and potential approval. A two-thirds vote 
is required for approval. There must be specific purpose for the funds, and funds must be 
used for the specified reason. Once approved the Form is to be presented to the 
Superintendent for his/her signature. 

 



 

Page 6 of 6 

(b) A Student Fee & Fundraiser Report Form must then be completed no later than three days 
following the fundraiser (date indicated on the Student Fee & Fundraiser Approval Form) 

 

(c) Contact Central Office if you have questions regarding any step throughout the Student Fee & 
Fundraising process. Central Office is able to assist. 

 
(d) Complete a Student Fee/Fundraiser form for any collection of funds. You must present to the Form 

to the MYAC Board for approval. Once approved, a copy of the form will be provided to the requester 
as confirmation. Do not proceed with your event/activity until a confirmation is received. The MYAC 
Board will sign the form if approved and provide it to Central Office to be processed. 

 
(e) My School Bucks will be utilized to collect all funds. Communicate with the MYAC Board to begin the 

process. It is never too early to contact Central Office (x 120) to discuss lead time for product build. 
While some products may take up to a week to build before they are ready to pay online, others may 
take longer. Please allow time for this to occur. 

 
(f) Announcements and information posted on the District Website will occur after approval is given 

and the product is built; Flyers and letters may be distributed after approval is given and the product 
is built. 

 
Article VIII 
Purchasing 

 

(a) Purchases over $500 must be presented to the Treasurer for approval. At least three quotes must 
be received and presented to the MYAC Board for approval prior to purchase when the total expense 
exceeds $1,500; unless the purchase is pre-approved by the MYAC Board. 

 

(b) The District purchase order process must be followed by any and all individuals on behalf of MYAC. 
Every purchase shall be processed through a purchase order approved by Central Office for 
accurate record keeping. 

 
Article IX 

Amendments 
 
Sec. 1 These By-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the membership present and voting at any annual 

meeting of the membership, regular meeting, or special meeting of the membership, provided that the 
proposed amendment shall have been submitted in writing to each person entitled to vote thereon at 
least ten (10) days before action is to be taken. 

 
Revised November 15, 2016 



13 

 

 

 



Sport Director Name  Signature  Date    
14 

 

 

Sport Director Pre-Season Checklist 

By initialing each item, I acknowledge and verify that I have completed each task: 

  Attend all MYAC meetings leading up to your sport, and all meetings held during your sport 

  Work with Central office Admin to get MySchoolBucks ready to go for registration sign-ups 

  Distribute paper copies of registrations to students via their teachers and post on website 

  Schedule Evaluation Date 

  Complete Pre-Season Inventory Form 

  End registrations and submit registrations to school principal for proper screening for Madison enrollment 

  Hold Evaluations and Record needed sizes for uniforms/coaches shirts 

  Form Teams / Assign Coaches 

  Determine what is needed based on pre-season inventory vs amount of kids and coaches signed up 

   Quote pricing and obtain Purchase Order from Central office for equipment, uniforms, coach’s shirts (need MYAC 

Treasurer’s approval for purchases above $500 and board approval for purchases above $1,500) 

  Order Equipment, Jerseys, Coaches Shirts 

  Contact other league coaches / schedule coordinator 

  Finalize game schedule 

  Determine practice schedule for all teams 

  Coordinate photographer for team photos and schedule team photo date 

  Obtain and distribute photo pricing packets to coaches and ensure they distribute to parents 

  Set dates for special events (examples: Football Under the Lights, End of Season Cookout, etc.) 

  If any money will be spent on special events, get purchase order approved by Central office 

  Give practice/game/event schedule to superintendent and post on MYAC page on school Website 

  Establish parent meeting agenda (and any skills/drills you need all coaches to teach) 

   Hold Coaches Meeting and distribute practice/game/event schedule. Discuss expectations for season, provide parent 

meeting agenda to utilize and collect volunteer/background check forms and turn in to Central Office. 

  Ensure each Head Coach sets up Parent Meeting with established agenda 

By signing this document, I have ensured that each outcome has been met by the start of the season. 



Sport Director Name  Signature  Date    
15 

 

 

Sport Director Post-Season Checklist 

By initialing each item, I acknowledge and verify that I have completed each task: 

  Ensure each Head Coach collects and turns in all equipment/MYAC property 

  Complete Post-Season Inventory Form 

  Pack away all inventory in designated area 

  Hold post season coaches meeting to discuss what went well, what needs improvement, etc. 

  Attend MYAC meeting following season to report back any improvements needed for next season 

 

By signing this document, I have ensured that each outcome has been accomplished at the end of the season: 

 



Pre-Season Inventory Form 

Sport: Person responsible for inventory:  Date completed:    

 

 

 
 

Item Name Color Size Quantity Location 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

16
 



Post-Season Inventory Form 

Sport: Person responsible for inventory:  Date completed:    

 

 

 
 

Item Name Color Size Quantity Location 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

17
 



18 

 

 

 



19 

 

 

 



20 

 

 

 



 

 

21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21 



Support for Budget 
ISD BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
_________________________________ (the “District”).  
 
A __________ meeting of the board of education of the District was held in the_______________ in the district, 
on the day of _______________, 2017, at __________ o’clock __.m. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by _____________________, President. 
 
 Present: Members 
 
 Absent: Members 
 
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member _______________ and supported by  
Member _________________: 
 
WHEREAS: 

1. Section 624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, requires the intermediate school board to submit 
its proposed budget not later than May 1 of each year to the board of each constituent district for review; 
and 

 
2. Not later than June 1 of each year, the board of each constituent district shall review the proposed 

intermediate school district budget, shall adopt a board resolution expressing its support or disapproval of 
the proposed intermediate school district budget, and shall submit to the intermediate school board any 
specific objections and proposed changes the constituent district has to the budget. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The board of education has reviewed the proposed intermediate school district budget in accordance 
with Section 624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, and by the adoption of this resolution, 
expresses its support for the proposed intermediate school district budget. 

2. The secretary of the board of education or his/her designee shall forward a copy of this resolution to 
the intermediate school board or its superintendent no later than June 1, 2017.   

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the procedures of this resolution 
be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

 
 Ayes:  Members 
 
 Nays: Members 
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
       _______________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 
The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of 
the_________________________ School District, Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true and 
complete copy of the a resolution adopted by the Board of Education at a ________________ meeting held on 
______________, 2017, the original of which resolution is a part of the Board’s minutes, and further certifies that 
notice of the meeting was given to the public under the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 
 

         
 ___________________________________ 

       Secretary, Board of Education  
 
 
 
3.  Disapproval of Budget Resolution 



Disapproval of Budget 
ISD BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
_________________________________ (the “District”).  
 
A __________ meeting of the board of education of the District was held in the_______________ in the district, 
on the day of _______________, 2017, at __________ o’clock __.m. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by _____________________, President. 
 
 Present: Members 
 
 Absent: Members 
 
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member _______________ and supported by  
Member _________________: 
 
WHEREAS: 

1. Section 624 of the Revised School Code, as amended, requires the intermediate school board to 
submit its proposed budget not later than May 1 of each year to the board of each constituent district 
for review; and 

2. Not later than June 1 of each year, the board of each constituent district shall review the proposed 
intermediate school district budget, shall adopt a board resolution expressing its support or 
disapproval of the proposed intermediate school district budget, and shall submit to the intermediate 
school board any specific objections and proposed changes the constituent district board has to the 
budget. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The board of education has reviewed the proposed intermediate school district budget and has 
determined that it disapproves of certain portions of the proposed intermediate school district budget 
which objections, along with proposed changes, if any, are set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The superintendent is hereby directed to submit a certified copy of this resolution to the intermediate 
school board and/or to the intermediate school district superintendent with the specific objections and 
proposed changes that this board has to the budget.   

3. All resolutions insofar as they conflict with the procedures of this resolution be and the same are 
hereby rescinded. 

 
 Ayes:  Members 
 
 Nays: Members 
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
       _______________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education 
 
The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of the ___________________  
School District,  Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the a resolution 
adopted by the Board of Education at a ________________ meeting held on ______________, 2017, the original 
of which resolution is a part of the Board’s minutes, and further certifies that notice of the meeting was given to 
the public under the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 
 

       ___________________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Education  

 





















































































































































































































School Health Professional  

Guiding Principles (Appendix A): 
• School based health care is valued by Madison School District  
• Student health is a cornerstone of academic success 
• Within its means, Madison School District is committed to providing the best student health care 

possible 

Current Health Coverage Model: Contracted Outreach (ProMedica and Athletico) 

o Nurse  
 Provides part-time health care to school population daily for minimum of 4 hours 

(typically 9:30-2:30) 
 Main Responsibilities: 

• Assesses and evaluates the health and development status of students, and 
provides first-aid treatment to students and staff as needed 

• Interprets results of medical evaluations to students, parents and staff 
• Stimulates the ongoing development of health and safety education 

curriculum by serving on committees and acting as a resource person 
• Knowledgeable and stays current with an awareness of community resources 

who screen vision and hearing, provide immunizations, provide information 
about communicable diseases and health and safety instruction 

• Conducts in-service for staff and students in identified areas (first-aid, child 
abuse, communicable diseases, universal precautions, seizure control etc.) 

• Administers medication and maintains proper records related to the 
administration of medication 

• Assists in the development of policy, administrative procedures, and 
implementation for sound health practices for students and staff, including 
medical protocols in classroom 

• Coordinates the update and monitoring of Madison district wide 
implementation of exposure control plans, universal precautions, including 
Bloodborne pathogens, and hepatitis vaccines 

• Serves as the intermediary between the school and the home, private 
physician and health and social agencies, regarding the health status of 
students and their needs for consideration in future student health planning 

• Serves on the district’s Reproductive Health and Sex Education Advisory 
Committee 

o Athletic Trainer, ATC 
 Provides part-time athletic health care to athletic population for a minimum of 20 

hours per week (typically 2:45 on, including travel time and home event coverage) 
 Main responsibilities: 

• Provides athletic health care to student-athletes (emergency medicine, 
evaluation, treatment, rehabilitation, performance enhancement) 



• Provides athletic health care during home events plus away football 
competitions 

• Conducts in-services and staff/student education 
• Provides CPR/AED training for coaching staff 
• Assists in the development of policies and procedures for the implementation 

of sound health practices 
• Communicates with the health care team (physician, therapists, etc) to 

deliver comprehensive care 
• Provides education and communicates with families of student regarding 

health status 
• Assists in coordination of Pre-participation exams 
• Maintains medical records 

Proposal for Comprehensive Health Care Model: 

• Hire Madison employee (not outsourced) to provide “consistent and familiar access to comprehensive 
health care” for all students (non-athletes & athletes) 

o Recommended minimum credentials 
 Athletic Trainer 
 Emergency Medical Technician 

Emergency Medical Technician (EMT)– “EMTs provide out of hospital emergency medical 
care and transportation for critical and emergent patients who access the emergency medical services 
(EMS) system. EMTs have the basic knowledge and skills necessary to stabilize and safely transport 
patients ranging from non-emergency and routine medical transports to life threatening emergencies. 
Emergency Medical Technicians function as part of a comprehensive EMS response system, under 
medical oversight. Emergency Medical Technicians perform interventions with the basic equipment 
typically found on an ambulance. Emergency Medical Technicians are a critical link between the scene of 
an emergency and the health care system (National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians).” 

In order to work in the state of Michigan, EMTs must hold a current state license through the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services 

 EMT Michigan State Practice Act – Appendix B 
 EMT Scope of Practice – Appendix C 

Athletic Trainer (ATC) – “Athletic trainers are highly qualified, multi-skilled health care 
professionals who collaborate with physicians to provide preventative services, emergency care, clinical 
diagnosis, therapeutic intervention and rehabilitation of injuries and medical conditions. Athletic trainers 
work under the direction of a physician as prescribed by state licensure statutes. 

In order to work in the state of Michigan, ATCs must hold a current state license through the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

 Athletic Training Michigan State Practice Act – Appendix B 
 Athletic Training Scope of Practice – Appendix D 



Opportunities  

1. Risk Mitigation (Appendix E) 
2. Employee vested interest/stakeholder 
3. Continuity of health care  

a. The continuum of care can be provided from pre-hospital emergency care to rehabilitation 
and performance enhancement 

4. Coordinate with mental health and other health related services provided (development of health care 
team) 

a. Return to learn concussion protocols, etc 
5. Improved communication regarding: 

a. Student welfare 
b. Return to the classroom 
c. Return to physical education 
d. Return to athletics 

6. Improved rapport as a single “health care team” 
a. All students 
b. Faculty 
c. Coaches 
d. Parents 
e. Staff 
f. Administration 

7. Cost savings to families as a result of fewer EMS calls, ER visits and on site injury prevention/ 
rehabilitation 

8. Possible interface with youth sports council 
9. Community support and collaboration with Madison Fire and Adrian College 
10. Job Shadow and learning opportunities for pre-health studies students 

 

Threats 

1. Apprehensions regarding on qualifications of health care provider for non-athletic population (if other 
than nurse) 

a. Transition and education will be important 
2. Duties currently provided by the school nurse (ie: reproductive health classes) may not be appropriate 

for an ATC and/or EMT.  
3. Cost to Madison will need to be evaluated 

a. Salary 
b. Benefits 
c. Supplies/equipment to uphold standard of care (Appendix F) 
d. Continuing education to maintain licensure and certification 
e. Annual State licensure and re-certification fees  
f. Insurance 
g. Potential additional need for per diem  



4. Employee hours 
a. With the currently hourly model, one person will likely not be able to be available for all of 

the necessary hours required during the school day and by athletics (nights/weekends) 
i. Consider a change in the number and/or time of student health care hours 

ii. Evaluate per-diem needs and cost 
5. Some additional training may be necessary (ie medication administration, Appendix G) 
6. As is currently the case, a medical director (MD or DO) for Athletic Training and EMT services 

(Appendix H) will be necessary 

  



Frequently Asked Questions 
(Michigan Department of Education) 

 
Q. Are Michigan schools required to have a school nurse? 
A. There is no statutory requirement for Michigan schools to employ a school nurse (Michigan 

Department of Education (MDE) 
 

Q. How do Michigan schools address health services delivery if nurses are not required? 
A. “When nurses are not available to provide health services to students, this responsibility is 

assigned by the school principal to other staff, usually office staff or other paraprofessionals. 
Some districts include health services delivery as a responsibility of teachers. If a student requires 
a health related service because of an eligible health concern, the school will investigate the need 
for an Individualized Education Plan or a 504 Accommodation Plan to meet the child’s needs and 
provide required nursing services.” (MDE) 
 

Q. Can schools use credentialed medical assistive personnel in schools such as athletic trainers 
and EMTs? 

A. Yes. “It is important that school districts are familiar with the practice laws for the specific 
practitioner.” (MDE)  

• Please refer to Appendices, B, C and D for scope of practice and Michigan state practice 
acts 

 
Q. Who can administer medications to students in schools? 
A. “Michigan School Code Section 1178 REVISED (1995) states “a school administrator, teacher, 

or other school employee designated by the school administrator” may administer medication. 
The Michigan Education Code allows for the school administrator to assign the task of medicine 
administration to unlicensed staff. School districts are accountable for policies and procedures for 
safe administration of medication.” (MDE) 
 

Q. Who can administer an epinephrine auto-injector in schools? 
A. “If any trained staff member determines that an allergic reaction is potentially life-threatening, the 

staff member will administer epinephrine at the direction of the school nurse (or designee) and 
according to the standing order and/or emergency action plan (EAP) for the student. It is 
recommended that ALL school staff be trained in recognition of the signs and symptoms of an 
allergic response, and in the safe and proper use of epinephrine premeasured auto-injection 
devices. This training should be reviewed and updated at least yearly.” (MDE) 

  



Appendix A 

School Based Health Care: A critical component of education 

“School based health centers bring critical, developmentally appropriate services to children and 

adolescents where they spend most of their waking hours…at school (Keeton et al., 2014).” Health 

professionals in schools provide students with preventative care, health maintenance and the treatment 

of acute injury and illness.  A quality school health professional is a child advocate who is appreciative of 

the complex interactions between education and health care. The impact of school health professionals 

with varying nursing and allied health credentials has been documented at length.  

 School health services have been proven to reduce lost instructional time (NATA Secondary 

School Committee, 2013) and improve educational outcomes such as improved GPA, and 

lower absence and tardiness rates (Gall et al., 2000, American Academy of Pediatrics). 

 School health care leads to injury prevention, lower re-injury rates and improved concussion 

diagnosis (LaBella et al., 2012), leading to healthier students and lower absenteeism (Marsh 

et al., 2003; American Academy of Pediatrics). 

 Return to learn concussion programs improve educational outcomes (Halstead et al., 2013) 

 The impact of chronic illness (ie asthma, diabetes) on academics can be mitigated with 

school based health care (Keeton et al., 2014). 

 Mental health services may be integrated into the health care model to assist with early 

identification and referral (Johnson et al., 2006; Costello-Wells et al., 2003). 

 Minority children (70% of students nationwide) who historically face higher risk of sub-

optimal health are better served (Gall et al., 2000; Walker et al., 2010). 

 School health services decreases lost work time of parents and reduces health care 

(diagnosis, treatment and rehabilitation) costs to families (Berry et al., 1993; Almquist & 

Reynolds, 1999) 

 



Athletic Training Practice Act – Michigan Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(qnlx1uf1n22f0eghp14lrkeh))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectNam

e=mcl-368-1978-15-179. 

"Practice of athletic training" means the treatment of an individual for risk management and injury 

prevention, the clinical evaluation and assessment of an individual for an injury or illness, or both, the 

immediate care and treatment of an individual for an injury or illness, or both, and the rehabilitation and 

reconditioning of an individual's injury or illness, or both, if those activities are within the rules 

promulgated under section 17904 and performed under the direction of, on the prescription of, or in 

collaboration with an individual licensed under part 170 or 175. 

Emergency Medical Technician – Michigan Department of Health and Human Services 

http://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/0,5885,7-339-73970_5093_28508---,00.html 

“Emergency medical technician” means an individual who is licensed by the department to provide basic 

life support.” 

“Basic life support” means patient care that may include any care an emergency medical technician is 

qualified to provide by emergency medical technician education that meets the educational 

requirements established by the department under section 20912 or is authorized to provide by the 

protocols established by the local medical control authority under section 20919 for an emergency 

medical technician” 

 33.20919 Protocols for practice of life support agencies and licensed emergency medical 

services personnel; development and adoption; procedures; conflict with Michigan do-

not-resuscitate procedure act prohibited; requirements; appeal; standards for 

equipment and personnel; negative medical or economic impacts; epinephrine auto-

injector; availability of medical and economic information; review; findings. 

o A medical control authority shall establish written protocols for the practice of life 

support agencies and licensed emergency medical services personnel within its 

region. The medical control authority shall develop and adopt the protocols 

required under this section in accordance with procedures established by the 

department and shall include all of the following: 

o The acts, tasks, or functions that may be performed by each type of emergency 

medical services personnel licensed under this part. 

o Protocols to ensure that each life support agency that provides basic life support, 

limited advanced life support, or advanced life support is equipped with epinephrine 

or epinephrine auto-injectors and that each emergency services personnel 

authorized to provide those services is properly trained to recognize an anaphylactic 

reaction, to administer the epinephrine, and to dispose of the epinephrine auto-

injector or vial. 

http://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/0,5885,7-339-73970_5093_28508---,00.html


MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 
BUREAU OF EMS, TRAUMA AND PREPAREDNESS 

EMS SECTION 
201 TOWNSEND STREET 

LANSING, MI  48913 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
 EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN EDUCATION PROGRAM 
 
 
 INITIAL 
 
 and 
 
 REFRESHER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Emergency Medical Technician programs must be based on this criteria and approved by the Michigan 
Department of Health & Human Services.  Individuals completing non-approved programs shall be ineligible 
for licensure. 
 
 
6/85, Revised 7/91, 5/95, 9/01, 9/06, 3/07, 11/12, 04/16 Authority: Act 368, P.A. 1978 as amended



 

 
 
 TA-1 

 
 
PREFACE 
 
I. General Provisions 
 
 Each EMT education program shall: 
 
 A. Assure the course is approved through the Initial Program Application 

process as outlined by MDHHS, EMS & Trauma Systems Section. 
  1. Students who complete an unapproved program course will not  
   be eligible for licensure.   
 
 B. Utilize clearly stated behavioral objectives and performance criteria for the 

didactic, practical, affective and clinical activities. 
 
 C. Provide clinical training in a hospital and basic or advanced life support 

agency.  Each clinical site shall be capable of meeting the clinical 
educational objectives developed by the Instructor-Coordinator. 

 
Course Requirements 
 
 Once a course has been approved, the EMS Instructor-Coordinator is responsible 

to provide each student with, or make available for their review and study, the 
following information: 

 
 A. A copy of the MDHHS course approval 
 B. EMT program objectives 
 C. A copy of the current EMS legislation; P.A. 368 of 1978 as amended and 

administrative rules 
 D. All student policies and relevant operational policies as outlined in the 
  Initial Program Approval process 
 
 The education program sponsor is responsible for notifying the Regional 

Coordinator of any modifications to their program schedule on the Approved 
 Education Program Sponsor Notification of Interim Courses (BHS-EMS 136A).   
 As Regional Coordinators conduct periodic on-site visits to evaluate courses, any 

changes to an approved education program must be reported.   
 
II. Course Length and Organization 
 
 It is recommended that the initial course comprise a minimum of 194 clock hours.  

This includes didactic presentations, practical demonstrations, skills practice, 
examination time, and clinical experience.  A minimum of 32 clinical hours are 
required.  The sequence in which lessons are presented is left to the discretion of 
the I-C.  It is expected, however, that Module 1 Preparatory 
(Roles/Responsibilities, Well Being of EMT, Medical/Legal Considerations, etc.) 
will be presented first. 

 



 

 
 
 TA-2 

 Clinical Objectives 
 At a minimum, the EMT student shall complete 32 hours of clinical experience. 

The clinical experience shall include the Emergency Department (minimum 8 
hours) and BLS or ALS vehicle rotations (minimum 8 hours).  Although other 
clinical areas such as Post-Operating Recovery, Geriatric care, Pediatrics, Labor 
and Delivery, Psychiatric Unit, and Respiratory Therapy are desirable and strongly 
encouraged, they may not be practical in some medical facilities. 

 
 The IC should develop clinical objectives for the EMT student to be utilized for this 

portion of the program.  The objectives should be specific to the clinical area. 
 
III. Document Format and Utilization 
  
 Objectives 
 The information included is required in order to meet the established educational 

objectives for an EMT education program.  I-Cs and other instructors shall use this 
minimum required material in their education programs, as the licensure 
examination is based on these objectives. 

 
The objectives are written in the behavioral objective style and flow from cognitive 
information, to affective behaviors and then psychomotor objectives. The 
objectives are structured to identify minimal knowledge in those content areas. 

 
 Task Analysis  
 The skills that the EMT will minimally be able to perform are broken down into an 

abbreviated task analysis format for the instructor and student.  The instructor may 
modify the format as needed for practice and testing purposes.    

 
 Topic Format 

The topics have been re-named from the previous versions of MDCH Education 
Program Requirements.  The topic titles are identical to those used by the Basic 
National Standard Curriculum and should align more closely with chapter titles in 
current text. 

  
 Text 
 The choice of text and/or handout material is left to the discretion of the program 

sponsor and I-C.   
 
 Content material has been referenced to: 
 Emergency Medical Technician Basic: National Standard Curriculum 
 Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation: American Heart Association  
 Basic Trauma Life Support - Brady 
 Pediatric Emergency Management Curriculum-MDHHS/EMS-C Project 



 

 
 
 TA-3 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN EDUCATION PROGRAM 
INITIAL COURSE CONTENT AREAS 

 
TOPIC           RECOMMENDED COURSE HOURS 
 
PREPARATORY       26 hours 
Introduction to Emergency Medical Care      1 hour 
The Well-Being of the EMT-Basic       5 hours 
Medical / Legal and Ethical Issues      2 hours 
The Human Body       10 hours 
Baseline Vitals and SAMPLE History      4 hours 
Lifting and Moving Patients       4 hours 
General Pharmacology        4 hours 
 
AIRWAY        16 hours 
Airway. Oxygenation, Ventilation      12 hours 
EDTLA           4 hours 
 
PATIENT ASSESSMENT      17 hours 
Scene Size-up         1 hour 
Initial Assessment         2 hours 
Focused History and Physical Exam: Medical     4 hours 
Focused History and Physical Exam: Trauma     5 hours 
Detailed Physical Exam        2 hours 
On-Going Assessment        1 hour 
Communications         1 hour 
Documentation         1 hour 
 
MEDICAL        43 hours 
Respiratory Emergencies        6 hours 
Cardiovascular Emergencies      16 hours 
Diabetic Emergencies        2 hours 
Allergic Reactions         1 hour 
Poisoning/Overdose Emergencies      3 hours 
Environmental Emergencies       2 hours 
Behavioral Emergencies        3 hours 
Obstetrics          4 hours 
Abdominal Illness         1 hour 
CNS Illness          1 hour 
 
TRAUMA        38 hours 
Bleeding and Shock   (PASG and IV Maintenance)     12 hours 
Soft Tissue Injuries         10 hours 
Musculoskeletal Care         8 hours 
Injuries to the Head and Spine        8 hours 
 
SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS     10 hours 
Geriatrics           2 hours 
Pediatrics        8 hours 



 

 
 
 TA-4 

       
OPERATIONS       12 hours 
Ambulance Operations        2 hours 
Gaining Access         5 hours 
Overview Topics ( Triage, Disaster, HazMat)     5 hours 
 
   Recommended Classroom Hours   162 
   Total Required Clinical Hours     32 
   Total Course Hours    194 



 

 
 
 TA-5 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN EDUCATION PROGRAM 
REFRESHER COURSE CONTENT AREAS 

 
TOPIC            REQUIRED COURSE HOURS 
        Minimum minimum practical 
PREPARATORY      2  hours 
Introduction to Emergency Medical Care     
The Well-Being of the EMT-Basic      
Medical / Legal and Ethical Issues     
The Human Body        
Baseline Vitals and SAMPLE History     
Lifting and Moving Patients      
General Pharmacology 
 
AIRWAY       6  hours   2  hours 
Airway. Oxygenation, Ventilation      
EDTLA         
 
PATIENT ASSESSMENT     4  hours   1  hour 
Scene Size-up        
Initial Assessment        
Focused History and Physical Exam: Medical     
Focused History and Physical Exam: Trauma    
Detailed Physical Exam       
On-Going Assessment       
Communications        
Documentation        
 
MEDICAL       10  hours   2  hours 
    
Respiratory Emergencies       
Cardiovascular Emergencies      
Diabetic Emergencies       
Allergic Reactions        
Poisoning/Overdose Emergencies     
Environmental Emergencies      
Behavioral Emergencies       
Obstetrics         
Abdominal Illness        
CNS Illness         
 
TRAUMA       8  hours   1  hour 
Bleeding and Shock   (PASG and IV Maintenance)    
Soft Tissue Injuries        
Musculoskeletal Care       
Injuries to the Head and Spine      
 
SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS    4  hours   1  hour 
Geriatrics 



 

 
 
 TA-6 

Pediatrics  
 
OPERATIONS      2  hours 
Ambulance Operations       
Gaining Access        
Overview Topics ( Triage, Disaster, HazMat)    
 
 
   Required Minimum      36 
   Required Practical Hours      7 
   Total Required Clinical Hours     0 
 
 
The refresher course must include a minimum of 7 practical hours in the 
appropriate categories.  These hours are inclusive of, not in addition to, the 
minimum required category hours. 
 
 
Completion of an approved EMT refresher program may be necessary to satisfy eligibility 
requirements for National Registry certification.  Refresher programs must be submitted 
for approval by an approved Education Program Sponsor. 
 
Course content must follow the initial training objectives as outlined in this document.  
 
It is strongly encouraged that CPR re-certification and AED refresher become  
pre-requisites or co-requisites of a refresher program.  These topics are not included in 
the above listed topics/hours.  
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-7 

MODULE 1  PREPARATORY 
 
Introduction to Emergency Medical Care 
Familiarizes the EMT candidate with the introductory aspects of emergency medical 
care.  Topics covered include the Emergency Medical Services system, roles and 
responsibilities of the EMT, quality improvement, and medical direction. 
 
Well-Being of the EMT (Stress Management, Communicable Disease) 
Covers the emotional aspects of emergency care, stress management, introduction to 
Critical Incident Stress Debriefing (CISD), scene safety, body substance isolation (BSI), 
personal protection equipment (PPE), and safety precautions that can be taken prior to 
performing the role of an EMT. 
 
Medical/Legal and Ethical Issues 
Explores the scope of practice, ethical responsibilities, DNR legislation, consent, 
refusals, abandonment, negligence, duty to act, confidentiality, and special situations 
such as organ donors and crime scenes.  Medical/legal and ethical issues are vital 
elements of the EMT's daily life. 
 
The Human Body (Anatomy and Physiology 
Enhances the EMT's knowledge of the human body.  Medical terminology, body 
systems, anatomy, physiology and topographic anatomy will be covered in this session. 
 
Baseline Vital Signs and SAMPLE History 
Teaches assessing and recording of a patient's vital signs and a SAMPLE history. 
 
Lifting and Moving Patients (Patient Handling) 
Provides students with knowledge of body mechanics, lifting and carrying techniques, 
principles of moving patients, and an overview of equipment.  Practical skills of lifting 
and moving will also be developed during this lesson. 
 
General Pharmacology 
Provides students with the knowledge and skill of medication and medication 
administration. 
 
MODULE 2  AIRWAY 
 
Airway, Oxygenation, Ventilation 
Teaches airway anatomy and physiology, how to maintain an open airway, pulmonary 
resuscitation, variations for infants and children, and patients with laryngectomies.  The 
use of airways, suction equipment, oxygen equipment and delivery systems, and 
resuscitation devices will be discussed in this lesson. Use of the ETDLA (Combitube)  
and King Ltd will also be covered.  CPAP will also be covered in this section. 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-8 

MODULE 3  PATIENT ASSESSMENT 
 
Scene Size-Up 
Enhances the EMT's ability to evaluate a scene for potential hazards, determine by the 
number of patients if additional help is necessary, and evaluate mechanism of injury or 
nature of illness.  This lesson draws on the knowledge of Module 1. 
 
Initial Assessment 
Provides the knowledge and skills to properly perform the initial assessment.  In this 
session, the student will learn about forming a general impression, determining 
responsiveness, assessment of the airway, breathing and circulation. Students will also 
discuss how to determine priorities of patient care. 
 
Focused History and Physical Exam - Trauma Patients 
Describes and demonstrates the method of assessing patients' traumatic injuries. A 
rapid approach to the trauma patient will be the focus of this lesson. 
 
Focused History and Physical Exam - Medical Patients 
Describes and demonstrates the method of assessing patients with medical complaints 
or signs and symptoms.  This lesson will also serve as an introduction to the care of the 
medical patient. 
 
Detailed Physical Exam 
Teaches the knowledge and skills required to continue the assessment and treatment 
of the patient.   
 
On-Going Assessment 
Stresses the importance of trending, recording changes in the patient's condition, and 
reassessment of interventions to assure appropriate care. 
 
Communications 
Discusses the components of a communication system, radio communications, 
communication with medical direction, verbal communication, interpersonal 
communication, and quality improvement. 
 
Documentation 
Assists the EMT in understanding the components of the written report, special 
considerations regarding patient refusal, the legal implications of the report, and special 
reporting situations.  Reports are an important aspect of prehospital care. This skill will 
be integrated into all student practices. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-9 

MODULE 4  MEDICAL/BEHAVIORAL EMERGENCIES AND 
OBSTETRICS/GYNECOLOGY 
 

General Pharmacology 
Provides the student with a basic knowledge of pharmacology, providing a foundation 
for the administration of medications given by the EMT and those used to assist a 
patient with self-administration. 
 

Respiratory Emergencies (Chest Injury) 
This chapter reviews components of the lesson on respiratory anatomy and physiology. 
 It will also provide instruction on assessment of respiratory difficulty and emergency 
medical care of respiratory problems, and the administration of prescribed inhalers. 
 

Cardiovascular Emergencies (AED, CPR) 
Review of the cardiovascular system, an introduction to the signs and symptoms of 
cardiovascular disease, administration of a patient's prescribed nitroglycerin, and use of 
the automated external defibrillator are covered. 
 

Diabetes/Altered Mental Status 
Review of the signs and symptoms of altered level of consciousness, the emergency 
medical care of a patient with signs and symptoms of altered mental status and a 
history of diabetes, and the administration of oral glucose are covered. 
 

Allergies 
Teaches the student to recognize the signs and symptoms of an allergic reaction, and 
to assist the patient with a prescribed epinephrine auto-injector. 
 

Poisoning/Overdose 
Teaches the student to recognize the signs and symptoms of poisoning and overdose.  
Information on the administration of activated charcoal is also included in this section. 
 

Environmental Emergencies 
Covers recognizing the signs and symptoms of heat and cold exposure, as well as the 
emergency medical care of these conditions.  Information on aquatic emergencies and 
bites and stings will also be included in this lesson. 
 

Behavioral Emergencies 
Develops the student's awareness of behavioral emergencies and the management of 
the disturbed patient.  Restraining the combative patient will also be taught in this 
lesson. 
 

Obstetrics/Gynecology 
A review of the anatomical and physiological changes that occur during pregnancy, 
management of normal and abnormal deliveries, signs and symptoms of common 
gynecological emergencies, and neonatal resuscitation are covered. 
 

Abdominal Illness 
Briefly reviews conditions related to abdominal complaints and the emergency care of 
the "acute abdomen". 
 



 

 
 
 TA-10 

Central Nervous System Illness 
Covers the assessment, related pathophysiology and provision of emergency medical 
care for stroke and seizure disorders.  
 
 
MODULE 5 TRAUMA 
 
Bleeding and Shock (PASG, IV Maintenance) 
Reviews the cardiovascular system, describes the care of the patient with internal and 
external bleeding, signs and symptoms of shock (hypoperfusion), and the emergency 
medical care of shock (hypoperfusion). 
 
Soft Tissue Injuries (Burns) 
Continues with the information taught in Bleeding and Shock, discussing the anatomy 
of the skin and the management of soft tissue injuries and the management of burns.  
Techniques of dressing and bandaging wounds will also be taught in this lesson. 
 
Musculoskeletal Care 
Review of the musculoskeletal system, recognition of signs and symptoms of a painful, 
swollen, deformed extremity and splinting are taught in this section. 
 
Injuries to the Head and Spine 
Review the anatomy of the nervous system and the skeletal system.  Injuries to the 
spine and head, including mechanism of injury, signs and symptoms of injury, and 
assessment are covered.  Emergency medical care, including the use of cervical 
immobilization devices and short and long back boards will also be discussed and 
demonstrated by the instructor and students.  Other topics include helmet removal and 
infant and child considerations. 
 
 
MODULE 6 SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Geriatrics 
This topic reviews situations of providing emergency care to geriatric patients and other 
patients who may need modified communications and special handling. 
 
Pediatrics 
Presents information concerning the developmental and anatomical differences in 
infants and children. There is discussion of common medical and trauma situations, 
along with infants/children dependent on special technology.  Dealing with an ill or 
injured infant or child patient has always been a challenge for EMS providers.   
 
 
MODULE 7  OPERATIONS 
 
Ambulance Operations 
Presents an overview of the knowledge needed to function in the prehospital 
environment.  Topics covered include responding to a call, emergency vehicle 
operations, transferring patients, and the phases of an ambulance call. 



 

 
 
 TA-11 

 
Gaining Access 
Provides the EMT student with an overview of rescue operations.  Topics covered 
include roles and responsibilities at a crash scene, equipment, gaining access, and 
removing the patient. 
 
Overview Topics 
Provides the EMT student with information on hazardous materials, incident 
management systems, mass casualty situations, and basic triage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-12 

 MODULE 1  Preparatory 
Introduction to Emergency Care   (Roles, Responsibilities) 

 
At completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define Emergency Medical Services (EMS) systems. (Cognitive) 
2. Differentiate the roles and responsibilities of the EMT from other prehospital care  

providers. (Cognitive) 
3. Describe the roles and responsibilities related to personal safety. (Cognitive) 
4. Discuss the roles and responsibilities of the EMT towards the safety of the crew, the 

patient and bystanders. (Cognitive) 
5. Explain who has authority for management of the scene and management of the patient  
 according to Michigan statute. (Cognitive) 
6. Define quality improvement and discuss the EMT's role in the process. (Cognitive) 
7. Define medical direction and discuss the EMT's role in the process. (Cognitive) 
8. Assess areas of personal attitude and conduct of the EMT. (Affective) 
9. Characterize the various methods used to access the EMS system in your community. 
 (Cognitive) 
10. Explain these terms: (Cognitive) 

Certification    Licensure Reciprocity    
  Standing Orders   Protocols Medical Control Authority 
 
 
MODULE 1  Preparatory 

Well Being of the EMT  (Stress Management, Communicable Disease) 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
Stress Management 

 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

Acceptance   Acute Stress Reaction 
Anger    Bargaining 
Coping    Cumulative Stress Reaction 
Defense Mechanisms  Delayed Stress Reaction 
Denial    Depression 
Humor    Isolation 
Rationalization  Repression 
Stress    Stressor 

 
2. Explain the body's response to stress in these identified states: (Cognitive) 

Stage One: Alarm Reaction 
Stage Two: Resistance 
Stage Three: Exhaustion 

3. Identify and/or describe these types of stress reactions: (Cognitive) 
Acute Stress Reaction 
Delayed Stress Reaction 
Cumulative Stress Reaction 



 

 
 
 TA-13 

4. Identify the different causes of anxiety and stress. (Cognitive) 
5. Identify and/or describe the defense mechanisms used to reduce anxiety and stress.  
 (Cognitive) 
6. Recognize the signs and symptoms of critical incident stress. (Cognitive) 
7. Identify and describe the stages of the grief process. (Cognitive) 
8. State the steps in the EMT's approach to the dying patient and their family. (Cognitive) 
9. Discuss the possible reactions that a family member may exhibit when confronted with  
 death and dying. (Cognitive) 
 

Communicable Diseases 
 
1. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 

Communicable   Contamination   Contagious  
Personal Protective Device Personal Protective Equipment 
Body Substance Isolation  Universal precautions  Transmission    
Host    Carrier    Source of infection  
Infection    Pathogen   Reservoir 
Exposure    Virulence   Incubation period  

 C.D.C.    OSHA     Patient confidentiality 
HIV    AIDS    Meningitis  
Tuberculosis   MERSA   VRS   
HEPA    Period of communicability  Percutaneous injury  
      

2. Describe the possible sources of disease. (Cognitive) 
3. Recall the factors for transmission of a disease to occur. (Cognitive) 
4. Explain direct and indirect contact. (Cognitive) 
5. Explain transmission via respiratory droplets. (Cognitive) 
6. Explain vehicle transmission. (Cognitive) 
7. Explain airborne transmission. (Cognitive) 
8. Explain vector transmission. (Cognitive) 
9. Describe the greatest hazard for transmission to occur. (Cognitive) 
10. Recall the  factors which increase the risk of infection. (Cognitive) 
11. List additional actions, other than PPE's, to prevent infectious exposure. 
 (Cognitive) 
12. List the different types of PPE and how/when they are used: (Cognitive) 

gloves   mask   HEPA mask 
gowns   eye wear  disposable equipment 

13. Recognize the importance of universal precautions, or BSI.(Affective) 
14. Define hepatitis. (Cognitive) 
15. Recall the causes of hepatitis. (Cognitive) 
16. Recognize and define jaundice. (Cognitive) 
17. List the different forms of hepatitis. (Cognitive) 
18. List the different routes of transmission for each form of hepatitis. (Cognitive) 
19. Describe the most appropriate PPD for each form of hepatitis. (Cognitive) 
20. Describe the importance of vaccinations. (Cognitive) 
21. Define herpes and list the different forms. (Cognitive) 
22. Define and recognize herpetic whitlow. (Cognitive) 
23. Recall how the herpes virus is transmitted. (Cognitive) 
 



 

 
 
 TA-14 

 
24. Define meningitis. (Cognitive) 
25. Explain how meningitis is transmitted. (Cognitive) 
26. Recall which airborne transmitted diseases are highly dangerous. (Cognitive) 
27. Recall how HIV is carried and transmitted. (Cognitive) 
28. Describe which routes of HIV contamination cause high or low probability of exposure.  
 (Cognitive) 
29. List behaviors or practices which increase the risk for infection with HIV. (Cognitive) 
30. Differentiate between AIDS and HIV. (Cognitive) 
31. Recall the complications from AIDS. (Cognitive) 
32. Discuss procedures to follow when potential HIV exposure has occurred to EMS  
 personnel. (Cognitive) 
33. Discuss current diagnostic procedures following HIV exposure. (Cognitive) 
34. Explain and recognize the signs and symptoms of tuberculosis. (Cognitive) 
35. Explain how TB is transmitted and when exposure is most likely to occur. (Cognitive) 
36. Explain why disposable items must be discarded after each use. (Cognitive) 
37. Explain why contaminated equipment must be handled using universal precautions. 

(Cognitive) 
38. Define and list regulated waste. (Cognitive) 
39. Determine the need for a biohazard bag. (Cognitive) 
40. Describe how to properly dispose of contaminated waste. (Cognitive) 
41. Describe how to properly dispose of waste that contains body fluids. (Cognitive) 
42. Recall how equipment or surface contaminated with blood or body fluids must be 

cleaned. (Cognitive) 
43. Demonstrate appropriate use of PPE in various simulated patient scenarios.(Psychomotor) 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-15 

Module I Preparatory 

Medical Legal and Ethical Issues 

 
 At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the terms and discuss implications of: (Cognitive) 

Abandonment    False Imprisonment  Libel    
Implied consent   Expressed consent   Civil Law   
Actual consent   Informed consent   Assault  

  Administrative Law  Law of consent   Battery 
Malpractice    Negligence    Liability 
Breech of duty   Causation/Proximate cause Tort 
Damages   Duty to act   Living wills 
Standard of Care   Scope of Practice               DNR 
Defendant   Plaintiff   Slander 
Res Ipsa Loquitur   Respondeat Superior   Patient confidentiality 
Good Samaritan Law  Emancipated Minor     

 
2. State the specific statutes and regulations in Michigan regarding the EMS system. 
 (Cognitive) 
3. List the levels of EMS licensure in Michigan. (Cognitive) 
4. List the requirements for licensure of EMS personnel in the state of Michigan. 

(Cognitive) 
5. Describe the differences in training necessary for each level of EMS licensure in 

Michigan. (Cognitive) 
6. List the requirements for maintaining an EMT license. (Cognitive) 
7. Explain the benefits and responsibilities of continuing education. (Cognitive) 
8. Discuss the EMT's obligations to the emergency patient. (Cognitive) 
9. Discuss the methods of obtaining consent. (Cognitive) 
10. Explain utilizing the consent of minors in providing care. (Cognitive) 
11. List the requirements and discuss the implications of securing written refusal of patient  
 treatment and/or transportation. (Cognitive) 
12. Explain patient confidentiality. (Cognitive) 
13. Describe some of the special patient situations which may result in special reports or  
 paper work. (Cognitive) 
14. List the aspects of the Standard of Care. (Cognitive) 
15. Explain negligence and how it relates to the standard of care using the four elements  
 needed to prove negligence. (Cognitive) 
16. Discuss the importance of Do Not Resuscitate [DNR] (advance directives) legislation  

 and local or state provisions regarding EMS application. (Cognitive) 
17. Discuss the considerations of the EMT in issues of organ retrieval. (Cognitive) 
18. Describe the actions that an EMT should take to assist in the preservation of a crime 

scene. (Cognitive) 
19. State the conditions that require an EMT to notify local law enforcement officials. 
 (Cognitive) 
20. Discuss the handling of patient's possessions during transportation of the patient.  
 (Cognitive) 
 

 



 

 
 
 TA-16 

MODULE 1  Preparatory 

The Human Body 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 

Introduction to A & P 

 
1. Define the following: (Cognitive) 

Abduction       Adduction       Prone    Supine 
Anterior           Posterior    Superior   Inferior  
External   Internal    Visceral  Parietal 
Deep   Superficial   Lateral   Medial  
Median  Midline   Horizontal       Vertical 
Midclavicular  Midaxillary   Frontal    Sagittal 
Anatomical position  Bilateral    Distal    Proximal  

 Extension     Flexion   Homeostasis   Metabolism 
Cell         Tissue     Aerobic  Anaerobic 
Semi-fowlers  Trendelenburg    Fowlers position     Recumbent 

  
2. Define the following medical prefixes & suffixes: (Cognitive) 

Prefixes: 
a  an   angio   arthro  
anti  bi   brady   cardio  
cephalo  chole   circum   contra  
cerebro cyst    cyt   dermato 
dys  endo   entero    epi    
erythro  extra   gastro   hem(ato)    
hemi  hepato   hystero   hyper    
hypo  in   intra   inter 
leuko  mal   meningo  myo 
nephro  ortho   osteo   oto 
para  peri   phlebo    pneumo 

 poly  post   pre   pulmo   
 pyo  quad    retro   rhino 
 sclero  super   supra  
 tachy  uro   vaso  

  
 Suffixes: 
 algia  asthenia  esthesia  ectomy 
 emia  genic   graph(y)  itis    
 megaly  oma   osis   ostomy  
 otomy  paresis   pathy   plegia  
 pnea  rrhea   scopy   uria 
 
3. Identify the body cavities. (Cognitive) 
4. Locate the boundaries of all body cavities. (Cognitive) 
5. Recognize the organs contained in each specific body cavity. (Cognitive) 
 6. Describe the characteristics of living matter. (Cognitive) 
 7. Discuss the relationship of cells, tissues, organs and body systems. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-17 

 8. Explain the needs of organisms. (Cognitive) 
 9. Describe the components of cells. (Cognitive) 
10. Explain the functions of cells. (Cognitive) 
11. Explain anaerobic and aerobic metabolism. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe the end products of metabolism. (Cognitive) 
13. Describe the general types of tissues in the body. (Cognitive) 
14. Describe the structure and function of epithelial tissue. (Cognitive) 
15. Explain the types and properties of muscle tissue. (Cognitive) 
16. Describe the role of connective tissue. (Cognitive) 
17. Describe the structure and function of nerve tissue. (Cognitive) 
 
Integumentary System 

 
18. Identify the following structures of the Integumentary System: (Cognitive) 

Skin     Dermis    
Epidermis   Sebaceous gland 
Subcutaneous fat    Hair follicles 

  Sweat glands  
19. Describe the functions of the integumentary system and the components of the system. 

(Cognitive) 
20. Describe and identify the different layers of skin. (Cognitive) 
21. Identify the structures found in the dermis. (Cognitive) 
 
Musculoskeletal System 

 
22. Describe the functions of the musculoskeletal system. (Cognitive) 
 
23. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 

Appendicular skeleton Axial skeleton 
Bone    Tendon  
Ligament   Joint       

  Synovial capsule   Cartilage 
Deltoid   Gluteus maximus 
Intercostal   Diaphragm 

24. Identify the structures and landmarks of the appendicular skeleton: (Cognitive) 
      Humerus     Medial humoral condyle       Clavicle   

Sternoclavicular joint   Acromioclavicular joint   Scapula 
Olecranon    Glenhumoral joint    Radius 
Carpals    Metacarpal     Ulna 
Lateral humoral condyle Phalanges or Digits (all)   Femur     

             Greater trochanter        Hip                    Tibia 
Fibula        Lateral femoral condyle   Ilium 
Symphysis pubis   Ischium     Patella 
Knee    Medial Malleolus    Ankle  
Lateral malleolus   Tarsals     Metatarsals 
   
                    



 

 
 
 TA-18 

25. Identify the following structures and landmarks of the axial skeleton: (Cognitive) 
Skull bones   Mandible   Maxillae 
Nasal bone   Hyoid bone   Vertabrae 
Sternum   Sternal landmarks  True ribs 
Floating ribs   False ribs   Xyphoid process 

26. Locate and describe the following bones of the skull and face: (Cognitive) 
Frontal bone   Mandible   Mastoid process  
Maxillae    Zygomatic    Occipital bone  

   Nasal bone    Parietal bone    Temporal bone 
  Suture    
27. Identify and describe the following regions of the spinal column and the number of  
 vertebrae in each: (Cognitive) 

Cervical   Sacral    Thoracic  
 Coccyx   Lumbar 

28. Identify the major parts of a single vertabrae. (Cognitive) 
29. Identify and describe the following structures of the chest: (Cognitive) 
      Clavicle      Scapula  Sternum 

Manubrium   Xiphoid process Angle of Louis     
Ribs    Diaphragm  Jugular notch 

30. Identify and describe the following structures of the pelvis: (Cognitive) 
Ilium    Ischium  Pubis 
Sacrum 

31. Describe the various types of joints. (Cognitive) 
32. Describe the purpose of muscle contraction. (Cognitive) 
33. Describe causes of muscle fatigue and dysfunction. (Cognitive) 
 
Respiratory System 

 

34. Identify the following structures and landmarks of the upper airway: (Cognitive) 
Nose   Tongue  Pharynx 
Epiglottis  Glottis   Larynx 

35. Identify the following structures and landmarks related to the lower airway: (Cognitive) 
Trachea  Bronchioles  Mainstem bronchus 
Carina    Alveoli  Visceral pleura 
Parietal pleura  Pleural fluid  Diaphragm 

36. Define the following terms relating to the respiratory system: (Cognitive) 
Nares    Vallecula  Vocal cords 
Pleural Space    Intrathoracic pressure Oxygen  
Carbon Dioxide   Hemoglobin  Red blood cell 
Capillary   Hypoxia  Anoxia  
Clinical death   Biological death Compliance 
Minute Volume  Total lung capacity Vital Capacity 

37. Explain the process of respiration. (Cognitive) 
38. Explain the process of inspiration and exhalation. (Cognitive) 
39. List and explain the factors that influence adequate oxygenation. (Cognitive) 
40. Explain the systems that work together to control ventilation. (Cognitive) 
41. Differentiate between respiration and ventilation. (Cognitive) 
42. Recall how much of the total supply of available O2 the brain needs. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-19 

43. Explain what influences the ability of oxygen to diffuse on to, and off of, 
 the red blood cells. (Cognitive) 
44. Explain the factors that influence the concentration of carbon dioxide in the body. 

(Cognitive) 
45. Explain the difference between biological and clinical death. (Cognitive) 
46. Define the time brain damage begins in the absence of oxygen. (Cognitive) 
 
Cardiovascular System 

 
47. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
 Atrium   Ventricles  Valves 
 Pericardial Fluid Epicardium  Endocardium 
48. Explain the structures and functions of the cardiovascular system. (Cognitive) 
49. Describe the components of blood. (Cognitive) 
50. Explain and diagram the systemic circulation. (Cognitive) 
51. Explain and diagram the pulmonary circulation. (Cognitive) 
52. Explain the coronary circulation. (Cognitive) 
53. Label the anatomy of the heart. (Cognitive) 
54 Recall and explain the factors affecting blood pressure. (Cognitive) 
55. List all of the major vessels from arteries to arterioles and veins to venules. (Cognitive) 
56. Explain the factors that effect the size of blood vessels. (Cognitive) 
57. Describe the factors necessary to maintain perfusion. (Cognitive) 
58. Explain the pressure wave in the circulatory system and how it relates to the pulse. 

(Cognitive) 
59. Identify the common pulse points. (Cognitive) 
60. Trace a drop of blood through the circulatory system starting and ending at the inferior  
 or superior vena cava. (Cognitive) 
 
Nervous System 

 
61. Review the structure of the skeletal system as it relates to the nervous system. (Cognitive) 
62. Identify the major portions of the brain and their functions. (Cognitive) 
63. List the layers of meninges. (Cognitive) 
64. Describe the role of cerebrospinal fluid. (Cognitive) 
65. Describe and identify the components of the central nervous system. (Cognitive) 
66. Describe and identify the components of the peripheral nervous system. (Cognitive) 
67. Define and explain the functions of the somatic and autonomic nervous systems. 

(Cognitive) 
68. Define and explain the functions of the sympathetic and the parasympathetic nervous  
 systems. (Cognitive) 
69. Explain the structure of a neuron, a nerve, and the spinal column. (Cognitive) 
70. Describe the various roles of the cranial nerves. (Cognitive) 
71. Identify the structures, and their functions, of the eye. (Cognitive) 
72. Identify the function of the ear and the tympanic membrane. (Cognitive) 
 
 
 
 
Abdomen (Gastro-Intestinal,  Genito-Urinary, Endocrine, Immune System): 



 

 
 
 TA-20 

 

73. Label a diagram of the abdominal quadrants. (Cognitive) 
74. Identify the location of each organ in the abdomen and the specific quadrant that each  
 organ is in. (Cognitive) 
75. List the organs in the digestive system and their role in digestion. (Cognitive) 
76. Describe the structure and function of the organs in the urinary tract. (Cognitive) 
77. Describe the structure and function of the reproductive organs. (Cognitive) 
78. Describe the structure and function of the organs in the endocrine system, especially the 

pancreas. (Cognitive) 
79. Explain which organs and tissues play a role in functioning of the immune system. 

(Cognitive) 
80. Define the terms antigen and antibody. (Cognitive) 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-21 

 
MODULE 1  Preparatory 
Baseline Vital Signs and SAMPLE History 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

Vital signs  Chief complaint  LOC    Glasgow Coma Scale 
Acute   Chronic  Symptom   Sign   

 Pulse   Bradycardia  Tachycardia   Pulse pressure 
 Blood pressure  Systolic pressure  Diastolic pressure  Auscultation  

Palpation   Hypotension   Hypertension  Orthostatic vital signs  
Pulse oximetry  Capillary refill  Ashen   Mottled   
Pallor   Cyanosis  Ecchymosis   Jaundice   
Dyspnea   Urticaria  Priapism   Trauma 
Mechanism of injury  Laws of motion Golden Hour  Emesis  
Coffee grounds Hematemesis  Hematuria  Melena  
Hematochezia   Dolls eyes  Anisocoria  Petechiae 

    
2. Identify the components of  "vital signs".(Cognitive) 
3. List the normal respiratory rates for adults. (Cognitive) 
4. List the normal pulse rates for adults. (Cognitive) 
5. List the normal blood pressure rates for adults. (Cognitive) 
6. Describe the methods used to obtain a breathing rate. (Cognitive) 
7. Identify the attributes that should be obtained when assessing breathing. (Cognitive) 
8. Differentiate between shallow, labored and noisy breathing. (Cognitive) 
9. Discuss signs of respiratory distress and respiratory failure. (Cognitive) 
10. Describe sounds of airway restriction or airway occlusion. (Cognitive) 
11. Discuss abnormal breath sounds possibly heard on auscultation. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe the procedure used to auscultate breath sounds. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe the universal sign of choking. (Cognitive) 
13. Demonstrate the skills involved in assessment of breathing.(Psychomotor) 
14. Identify locations, recognize the strength, regularity, and rate of the pulse. (Cognitive) 
15. Describe the methods used to obtain a pulse rate. (Cognitive) 
16. Identify the information obtained when assessing a patient's pulse. (Cognitive) 
17. Demonstrate the skills associated with obtaining a pulse. (Psychomotor)  
18. Describe the methods to assess the skin color, temperature, condition (capillary refill in  
 infants and children). (Cognitive) 
19. Identify the normal and abnormal skin colors. (Cognitive) 
20. Differentiate between pale, ashen, cyanotic, red, mottled, and jaundiced skin color. 

(Cognitive) 
21. Identify normal and abnormal skin temperature. (Cognitive) 
22. Differentiate between hot, cool and cold skin temperature. (Cognitive) 
23. Identify normal and abnormal skin conditions. (Cognitive) 
24. Identify normal and abnormal capillary refill in infants and children. (Cognitive) 
25. Demonstrate the skills associated with assessing the skin color, temperature, condition,  
 and capillary refill in infants and children.(Psychomotor) 
26. Explain the terms systole and diastole. (Cognitive) 
27. Describe the procedures used to auscultate and palpate blood pressure. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-22 

28. List and explain the main factors affecting blood pressure. (Cognitive) 
29. Explain how the presence of pulse relates to the presence of blood pressure. (Cognitive) 
30. Explain the significance of discovering an absent peripheral pulse. (Cognitive) 
31. Demonstrate the skills associated with obtaining blood pressure. (Psychomotor) 
32. Describe the assessment of sensory and motor function. (Cognitive) 
33. Describe the assessment of a patient's pain. (Cognitive) 
34. Describe the methods to assess the pupils. (Cognitive) 
35. List the criteria used to evaluate pupils. (Cognitive) 
36. Differentiate between dilated (big) and constricted (small) pupil size. (Cognitive) 
37. Differentiate between reactive and non-reactive pupils and equal and unequal pupils. 

(Cognitive) 
38. Demonstrate the skills associated with assessing the pupils.(Psychomotor) 
39. Utilize the acronym S A M P L E in history taking. (Cognitive) 
40. Explain the importance of obtaining a SAMPLE history. (Cognitive) 
41. Utilize the acronym A V P U to evaluate level of consciousness. (Cognitive) 
42. Describe the importance of observing behavioral changes as it relates to LOC. 

(Cognitive) 
43. Demonstrate the skills associated with evaluating level of consciousness.(Psychomotor) 
44. Discuss the need to search for additional medical identification.(Cognitive) 
45. Explain the value of performing the baseline vital signs.(Affective) 
46. Recognize and respond to the feelings patients experience during assessment.(Affective) 
47. Defend the need for obtaining and recording an accurate set of vital signs.(Affective) 
48. Explain the rationale of recording additional sets of vital signs.(Affective) 
49. Demonstrate the skills that should be used to obtain information from the patient,  

 family, or bystanders at the scene. (Psychomotor) 
 

Lifting and Moving Patients  (Patient Handling) 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define body mechanics. (Cognitive) 
2. Discuss the general considerations of moving patients. (Cognitive) 
3. Describe the guidelines and safety precautions that need to be followed when lifting a 
 patient or heavy equipment. (Cognitive) 
4. Describe the safe lifting of cots and stretchers. (Cognitive) 
5. Describe correct and safe carrying procedures on stairs. (Cognitive) 
6. State the guidelines for reaching and their application.  (Cognitive) 
7. Describe correct reaching for log rolls. (Cognitive) 
8. State the guidelines for pushing and pulling. (Cognitive) 
9. State situations that may require the use of an emergency move. (Cognitive) 
10. Discuss the positions of comfort for various patient conditions. (Cognitive) 
11. Describe the differences between the following: (Cognitive) 

Emergency move  Non-emergency move  Transfer 
12. Identify and/or describe the following one (1) person carries: (Cognitive) 

The fire fighters drag  The clothes drag  The blanket drag 
The fire fighters carry  The front cradle  The pack strap 
The side crutch 

 
13. Identify and/or describe the following two (2) person carries: (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-23 

The extremity lift and carry The seat (chair) lift and carry 
The side support crutch 

14. Identify and/or describe the following carrying devices: (Cognitive) 
Wheeled ambulance stretcher  
Portable ambulance stretcher (pole stretcher) 
Scoop stretcher 
Stair chair  
Basket (stokes) stretcher  
Long spine board  
SKED stretcher 

15. Describe the special considerations for lifting the following types of patients: (Cognitive) 
Geriatric  Pediatric  Handicapped 

16. Working with a partner, prepare each of the following devices for use, transfer a patient 
to the device, properly position the patient on the device, move the device to the 
ambulance and load the patient into the ambulance: (Psychomotor) 
Wheeled ambulance stretcher 
Portable ambulance stretcher 
Stair chair 
Scoop stretcher  
Long spine board 
Basket stretcher 
Flexible stretcher 

17. Working with a partner, the EMT will demonstrate techniques for the transfer of a 
patient from an ambulance stretcher to a hospital stretcher.(Psychomotor) 

 
General Pharmacology 

At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to:  
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
  Intramuscular  Intradermal  Subcutaneous 
  Intravenous  Intranasal   Buccal  
  Oral    Action   Indication     
                        Contraindication Precaution  Side-effect                          
                        Hypersensitivity Suspension   Generic name  
               Nebulizer 
2. Identify sources of drug derivatives. (Cognitive) 
3. Identify common routes of medication administration. (Cognitive) 
4. Discuss the forms in which the medications may be found. (Cognitive) 
5. Differentiate between the chemical name, generic name and trade name of a drug. 

(Cognitive) 
6. Describe routes of medication administration from the slowest to fastest absorption. 

(Cognitive) 
7. Identify which medications may be carried on the BLS EMS unit. (Cognitive) 
8. State the medications carried on the unit by the generic name. (Cognitive) 
9. Identify the medications with which the EMT may assist the patient with administering. 

(Cognitive) 
10. State the medications the EMT can assist the patient with by the generic name. 

(Cognitive) 
11. Describe the steps to assisting a patient in taking their medication. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-24 

12. State the action, the indications, the contraindications, the precautions, the common dose, 
and when to assist the patient, with these medications: (Cognitive) 

  Nitroglycerin 
  Aspirin   Metered Dose Bronchodilators 
  Activated Charcoal  Albuterol-nebulized                
  Oral Glucose preparations Oxygen 
13. Demonstrate general steps for assisting patient with self-administration of medications, 
 read the labels and inspect each type of medication. (Psychomotor) 
14.       State the medications that the EMT can administer, including the routes and dosage. 
15. Identify route of Epi-pen® administration. (Cognitive) 
16.       Identify routes of narcotic antagonist administration.  (Cognitive). 
17.       Demonstrate general steps for administering Epi-pen® and narcotic antagonist    
            medications.  (Psychomotor) 
 

 
MODULE 2    Airway, Oxygenation, Ventilation 
  (ETDLA), King Airways 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 
  Head tilt chin lift   Modified jaw thrust 
  Bag valve mask(BVM)  Pocket mask 
  Nasopharyngeal airway(NPA) Oropharyngeal airway (OPA) 
  Yankauer suction device   Gag reflex 
  Demand valve/Flow-Restricted Oxygen Powered Ventilation Device 
2. List the signs of adequate breathing. (Cognitive) 
3. List the signs of inadequate breathing. (Cognitive) 
4. Describe the methods of manually opening an airway and explain when they are used. 

(Cognitive) 
5. Describe which manual airway maneuver is most commonly used in the adult. 

(Cognitive) 
6. Describe which manual airway maneuver is most commonly used in infants and children. 

(Cognitive) 
 
 
7. Describe the appropriate method for manually opening an airway in a patient with  
 possible c-spine injuries. (Cognitive) 
8. Demonstrate the methods of opening an airway utilizing manual maneuvers on a medical 

or trauma patient.(Psychomotor) 
9. List the indications and contraindications for using an oropharyngeal airway. (Cognitive) 
10. Describe the benefits and risks of using an oropharyngeal airway. (Cognitive) 
11. List the indications and contraindications for using a nasopharyngeal airway. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe how to measure and insert oropharyngeal and nasopharyngeal airways. 

(Cognitive) 
13. Demonstrate measurement and insertion of an OPA. (Psychomotor) 
14. Demonstrate measurement and insertion of an NPA.(Psychomotor) 
15. State the importance of having a suction unit ready for immediate use when providing  
 emergency care.(Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-25 

16. Recall how much airflow a suction unit should generate and how much vacuum is  
 generated when the tubing is clamped.(Cognitive) 
17. Describe how to measure and insert a rigid or flexible suction catheter.(Cognitive) 
18. Describe the proper depth of insertion of a rigid or flexible suction catheter.(Cognitive) 
19. Recall the maximum time for suctioning between ventilations.(Cognitive) 
20. Describe the technique of suctioning. (Cognitive) 
21. Demonstrate appropriate suctioning technique.(Psychomotor) 
22. Describe how to assist the patient with a partially obstructed airway. (Cognitive)  
23. Describe how to perform artificial ventilation using: (Cognitive) 
  bag valve mask  flow-restricted oxygen powered ventilation device 
   barrier device   pocket face mask 
24. Describe which ventilation device delivers optimal ventilations and why.(Cognitive) 
25. List the parts of a bag-valve-mask system. (Cognitive) 
26. Describe the steps in performing the skill of artificially ventilating a patient with a bag- 
 valve-mask for one and two rescuers. (Cognitive) 
27. Describe the signs of adequate artificial ventilation using the bag-valve-mask. (Cognitive) 
28. Describe the signs of inadequate artificial ventilation using the bag-valve-mask. 
 (Cognitive) 
29. Describe the steps in artificially ventilating a patient with a flow restricted, oxygen- 
 powered ventilation device (demand valve). (Cognitive) 
30. Discuss the pro's and con's of flow restricted, oxygen-powered ventilation device(demand 

valve). (Cognitive) 
31. Demonstrate how to perform artificial ventilation using: (Psychomotor) 
  bag valve mask  flow restricted, oxygen-powered ventilation device 
  mouth-to-stoma  mouth-to-mouth with barrier device  
  pocket face mask 
32. Demonstrate ventilating a patient with a bag-valve-mask with one and two rescuers. 

(Psychomotor) 
33. Recall the percent concentration and liter flow used with the following: (Cognitive) 
   nasal cannula   simple mask 
   partial non-rebreather  non-rebreather 
   BVM with/without reservoir venturi mask 

  pocket mask   flow restricted, oxygen-powered ventilation device 
34. Describe the differences and indications for administering oxygen via: (Cognitive) 

  nasal cannula     simple face mask  
  partial non-rebreather mask  non rebreather mask 

35. Define the components of an oxygen delivery system. (Cognitive) 
36. List the procedures for connecting, properly using, and disconnecting any oxygen  
 regulator. (Cognitive) 
37. List the steps in performing the actions taken when providing mouth-to-mouth (with  
 barrier) and mouth-to-stoma artificial ventilation. (Cognitive) 
38. Explain the rationale for basic life support artificial ventilation and airway protection  
 skills taking priority over most other basic life support skills.(Affective) 
39. Explain the rationale for providing adequate oxygenation through high inspired oxygen 
 concentrations to patients who, in the past, may have received low concentrations.  
 (Affective) 
40. Given a simulated patient scenario, choose the appropriate oxygen delivery device for the 

patient's condition. (Psychomotor) 
41. Demonstrate how to properly apply these devices and administer oxygen via:  



 

 
 
 TA-26 

 (Psychomotor) 
 nasal  cannula    simple mask  
 partial non-rebreather  non-rebreather 

 
Advanced Airway (ETDLA) 

 
42. Discuss why the ETDLA and King Airway is an optional piece of equipment for BLS 

units. (Cognitive) 
43. List the indications for use of the Supraglottic airways (Cognitive) 
44. List the contraindications for use of the ETDLA, King Airway. (Cognitive)  
45. Explain why the ETDLA most often inserts into the esophagus. (Cognitive) 
46. Describe the procedure for insertion of the ETDLA. (Cognitive) 
47.  Describe the procedure for insertion of the King Airway (Cognitive) 
48. Describe the parts of the ETDLA and their purpose. (Cognitive) 
49. Explain the situations for when a supraglottic airway would be removed. (Cognitive) 
50. Describe the use of the supraglottic airways by ALS providers. (Cognitive) 
51. Demonstrate insertion and removal of an ETDLA And King Airway.(Psychomotor)  

 
 

MODULE 3 Patient Assessment 

Scene Size-up   

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Identify reasons for overviewing the scene. (Cognitive) 
2. Identify hazards/potential hazards. (Cognitive) 
3. Discuss the reason for identifying the total number of patients at the scene. (Cognitive) 
4. Explain the reason for identifying the need for additional help or assistance. (Cognitive) 
5. List the main criteria of a "load and go" situation. (Cognitive) 
6. Discuss common mechanisms of injury/nature of illness.(Cognitive) 
7. Recognize potential injuries due to mechanism of injury. (Cognitive) 
8. Discuss the most common types of motor vehicle accidents (MVA). (Cognitive)  
9. Explain and apply the main physical laws of motion, and how they relate to potential for 

trauma. (Cognitive) 
10. Predict possible injuries by looking at the "up and over pattern" of trauma in an MVA. 
 (Cognitive) 
11. Predict possible injuries by looking at the "down and under pattern" of trauma in an 

MVA. (Cognitive) 
12. Predict possible injuries by looking at a rear impact collision. (Cognitive) 
13. Predict possible injuries by looking at lateral impact collision. (Cognitive) 
14. Predict possible injuries by looking at roll-over MVA. (Cognitive) 
15. Predict possible injuries as a result of blunt trauma. (Cognitive) 
16. Predict possible injuries as a result of  penetrating trauma. (Cognitive) 
17. Discuss injury patterns as related to gunshot wounds. (Cognitive) 
18. Discuss injury patterns as related to explosion forces. (Cognitive) 
19. Discuss injury patterns as related to falls. (Cognitive) 
20. Discuss the management of the scene with a trauma patient based on priority. (Cognitive) 
21. Explain the rationale for crew members to evaluate scene safety prior to entering. 
 (Affective) 



 

 
 
 TA-27 

22. Observe various scenarios and identify potential hazards.(Psychomotor) 
23. Given a simulated patient scenario, determine if a scene is safe to enter.(Psychomotor) 
 
 
MODULE 3 Patient Assessment 
Initial Assessment 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Summarize the reasons for forming a general impression of the patient. (Cognitive) 
2. Explain the importance of forming a general impression of the patient.(Affective) 
3. Discuss methods of assessing altered mental status. (Cognitive) 
4. Differentiate between assessing the altered mental status in the adult, child and infant  
 patient. (Cognitive) 
5. Demonstrate the techniques for assessing mental status. (Psychomotor) 
6. Discuss methods of assessing the airway in the adult, child and infant patient.  

 (Cognitive) 
7. Demonstrate the techniques for assessing the airway.(Psychomotor) 
8. State reasons for management of the cervical spine once the patient has been 

 determined to be a trauma patient. (Cognitive) 
 9. Describe methods used for assessing if a patient is breathing adequately. (Cognitive) 
10. State what care should be provided to the adult, child and infant patient with adequate  
 breathing. (Cognitive) 
11.  Differentiate between a patient with adequate and inadequate breathing. (Cognitive) 
12. State what care should be provided to the adult, child and infant patient without  
 adequate breathing. (Cognitive) 
13. Distinguish between methods of assessing breathing in the adult, child and infant  
 patient. (Cognitive) 
14. Compare the methods of providing airway care to the adult, child and infant patient. 
 (Cognitive) 
15. Demonstrate the techniques for assessing if the patient is breathing.(Psychomotor) 
16. Differentiate between obtaining a pulse in an adult, child and infant patient. (Cognitive) 
17. Demonstrate the techniques for assessing if the patient has a pulse.(Psychomotor)  
18. Discuss the need for assessing the patient for external bleeding. (Cognitive) 
19. Demonstrate the techniques for assessing the patient for external bleeding. (Psychomotor) 
20. Describe normal and abnormal findings when assessing skin color. (Cognitive) 
21. Describe normal and abnormal findings when assessing skin temperature. (Cognitive) 
22. Describe normal and abnormal findings when assessing skin condition. (Cognitive) 
23. Describe normal and abnormal findings when assessing skin capillary refill in the infant  
 and child patient. (Cognitive) 
24. Demonstrate the techniques for assessing the patient's skin color, temperature,  
 condition and capillary refill (infants and children only).(Psychomotor) 
25. List in order the priority needs of the trauma patient. (Cognitive) 
26. Explain the reason for prioritizing a patient for care and transport.(Affective) 
27. Demonstrate the ability to prioritize patients.(Psychomotor) 
28. Assess pain using the acronym O P Q R S T . (Cognitive) 
29. Explain the difference between the subjective and objective interviews.(Affective) 
30. Explain the terms and describe primary and secondary patient assessments.(Affective)  
31. Demonstrate the assessment done in a Initial Assessment or Primary Survey. 



 

 
 
 TA-28 

 (Psychomotor) 
 

 

MODULE 3  Patient Assessment 

Focused History and Physical Exam: Trauma 
 

At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Discuss the reasons for reconsideration concerning the mechanism of injury.(Cognitive)  
2. State the reasons for performing a rapid trauma assessment. (Cognitive) 
3. Recite examples and explain why patients should receive a rapid trauma assessment.  
 (Cognitive) 
4. Describe the areas included in the rapid trauma assessment and discuss what should be  
 evaluated. (Cognitive) 
5. Differentiate when the rapid assessment may be altered in order to provide patient care.  
 (Cognitive) 
6. Discuss the reason for performing a focused history and physical exam. (Cognitive) 
7. Demonstrate the rapid trauma assessment that should be used to assess a patient based  
 on mechanism of injury. (Psychomotor) 
 
 
MODULE 3 Patient Assessment 
Focused History and Physical Exam:  Medical 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Describe the unique needs for assessing an individual with a specific chief complaint with 

no known prior history. (Cognitive) 
2. Differentiate between the history and physical exam that are performed for responsive  
 patients with no known prior history and responsive patients with a known prior  
 history. (Cognitive) 
3. Describe the need for assessing an individual who is unresponsive. (Cognitive) 
4. Differentiate between the assessment that is performed for a patient who is  

 unresponsive,  or has an altered mental status, and other medical patients requiring 
assessment. (Cognitive) 

5. Attend to the feelings that patients might be experiencing during assessment.(Affective) 
6. Demonstrate the patient assessment skills that should be used to assist a patient who is  
 responsive with no known history.(Psychomotor) 
7. Demonstrate the patient assessment skills that should be used to assist a patient who is  
 unresponsive or has an altered mental status.(Psychomotor) 
 
 
MODULE 3 Patient Assessment 
Detailed Physical Exam 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Discuss the components of the detailed physical exam. (Cognitive) 
2. State the areas of the body that are evaluated during the detailed physical exam.  



 

 
 
 TA-29 

 (Cognitive) 
3. Explain what additional care should be provided while performing the detailed physical  
 exam. (Cognitive) 
4. Distinguish between the detailed physical exam that is performed on a trauma patient and 

that of the medical patient. (Cognitive) 
5. Demonstrate the skills involved in performing the detailed physical exam.(Psychomotor) 
 
 
MODULE 3 Patient  Assessment 

On-Going Assessment 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Discuss the reasons for repeating the initial assessment as part of the on-going 

assessment. 
 (Cognitive) 
2. Describe the components of the on-going assessment. (Cognitive) 
3. Describe trending of assessment components. (Cognitive) 
4. Explain the term "secondary survey" as it relates to the detailed exam and on-going  
 assessment.(Affective) 
5. Recognize and respect the feelings that patients might experience during assessment. 
 (Affective) 
6. Explain the value of trending assessment components to other health professionals who 
 assume care of the patient.(Affective) 
7. Demonstrate the skills involved in performing the on-going assessment.(Psychomotor) 
 



 

 
 
 TA-30 

MODULE 3 Patient Assessment 
Communications 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to:  
 
1. List the proper methods of initiating and terminating a radio call. (Cognitive) 
2. State the proper sequence for delivery of patient information. (Cognitive) 
3. Identify the essential components of the verbal report. (Cognitive) 
4. Describe the attributes for increasing effectiveness and efficiency of verbal  
 communications. (Cognitive) 
5. State legal aspects to consider in verbal communication. (Cognitive) 
6. Discuss the communication skills that should be used to interact with the patient. 
 (Cognitive) 
7. Discuss the communication skills that should be used to interact with the family,  
 bystanders, individuals from other agencies while providing patient care and the  
 difference between skills used to interact with the patient and those used to interact with  
 others. (Cognitive) 
8. List the correct radio procedures in the following phases of a typical call: (Cognitive) 
 -To the scene       
 -At the scene      
 -To the facility       
 -At the facility       
 -To the station       
 -At the station  
9. Explain the importance of effective communication of patient information in the verbal  
 report.(Affective) 
10. Perform a simulated, organized, concise radio transmission.(Psychomotor) 
11. Perform an organized, concise patient report that would be given to the staff at a  

receiving facility.(Psychomotor) 
 

 



 

 
 
 TA-31 

MODULE 3  Patient Assessment 
Documentation 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to:  
 
1. Identify the various sections of the written report. (Cognitive) 
2. Describe what information is required in each section of the prehospital care report and  
 how it should be entered. (Cognitive) 
3. Describe the special considerations concerning documentation of patient refusal.  
 (Cognitive)  
4. Describe the legal implications associated with the written report. (Cognitive) 
5. Discuss all state and/or local record and reporting requirements. (Cognitive) 
6. Identify and/or describe the following acronyms SOAPE and CHART. (Cognitive) 
7. Explain the phrase "If it wasn't documented, it wasn't done". (Cognitive) 
8. Explain how to correct a mistake made on a run report. (Cognitive) 
9. Differentiate between a patient care report and an incident report. (Cognitive) 
10. Explain the rationale for using an accurate and synchronous clock so that information  
 can be used in trending. (Affective) 
11. Defend the rationale for accurate patient care documentation. (Affective) 
12. Explain the rationale for the EMS system gathering data. (Affective) 
13. Explain the rationale for using medical terminology correctly. (Affective) 
14. Complete a prehospital care report.(Psychomotor) 
 

 

 

MODULE 3  Patient Assessment 
Special Patient Considerations 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the terms: (Cognitive) 

Alzheimers Disease  Elder Abuse 
Geriatric   Vertigo 

2. Explain special communications required for geriatric patients. (Cognitive) 
3. Explain special history taking and physical exam considerations for geriatric patients. 
 (Cognitive) 
4. Identify and/or describe delirium and dementia. (Cognitive) 
5. Identify and/or describe abuse and neglect or geriatric patients. (Cognitive) 
6. Explain the anatomical and physiological changes affecting the elderly. (Cognitive) 
7. Describe modified techniques to communicate with the following types of patients: 

(Cognitive) 
 Blind    Elderly 

Hearing impaired  Non-English speaking patients 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-32 

MODULE 4  Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 
Respiratory Emergencies 
 

At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 

 Apnea               Dyspnea   Tachypnea   Bradypnea  
 Hyperpnea  Hypopnea   Anoxia   Hypoxia  
 Hyperventilation Hypoventilation  Retraction  Paradoxical 
 Aspiration   Embolism         Thrombosis  PO2 

  Kussmaul       Cheyne-stokes  Biots    Mucus  
  Pneumothorax   Flail chest            Hemothorax   Sputum 
  Asthma             COPD   Hemoptysis  CPAP 
  Sub-Q emphysema  Pleural Decompression 
  Tracheal deviation 
                 
2. Describe these terms as they relate to breath sounds, or description of respirations: 

(Cognitive) 
  Equal  Diminished  Normal   Rhonchi 
  Absent  Abnormal   Rales   Cough 
  Stridor  Crowing  Wheezing  Hiccough 
  Snoring Grunting  Adventitious   
3. Review the structure and function of the respiratory system. (Cognitive) 
4. Review assessment of breathing. (Cognitive) 
5. State the signs and symptoms of a patient with breathing difficulty. (Cognitive) 
6. List signs of adequate air exchange. (Cognitive) 
7. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with breathing difficulty. (Cognitive) 
8. Recognize the need for medical direction to assist in the care of the patient with breathing 

difficulty. (Cognitive) 
9. Establish the relationship between airway management and the patient with breathing  
 difficulty. (Cognitive) 
10. Distinguish between the emergency medical care of the infant, child and adult patient 

with breathing difficulty. (Cognitive) 
11. Recognize the signs of airway obstruction. (Cognitive) 
12. Recognize the signs and symptoms of laryngeal spasm or edema. (Cognitive) 
13. Use the mechanism of injury to predict potential laryngeal spasm or edema. (Cognitive) 
14. Differentiate between upper airway obstruction and lower airway disease in the infant  
 and child patient. (Cognitive) 
15. Recognize the signs and symptoms, describe the common causes of aspiration. 

(Cognitive) 
16. List respiratory illnesses that are considered to be Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary  
 Diseases. (Cognitive) 
17. Explain the pathophysiology of asthma. (Cognitive) 
18. List common factors that may induce an asthma attack. (Cognitive) 
19. Describe the signs and symptoms of an asthma attack. (Cognitive) 
20. Define "status asthmaticus" and explain its implications. (Cognitive) 
21. Explain the pathophysiology of chronic bronchitis. (Cognitive) 
22. Recognize the signs and symptoms of chronic bronchitis. (Cognitive) 
23. Explain the pathophysiology of emphysema. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-33 

24. Recognize the signs and symptoms of emphysema. (Cognitive) 
25. Explain hypoxic drive and its implications. (Cognitive) 
26. Define "pink puffer" and "blue bloater".(Cognitive) 
27. Define and recognize the signs and symptoms of pulmonary embolism. (Cognitive) 
28. Define and recognize the signs and symptoms of  pneumonia. (Cognitive) 
29. Define and recognize the signs and symptoms of hyperventilation syndrome. (Cognitive) 
30. Define and recognize the need for CPAP. (Cognitive) 
31. Describe the emergency medical care provided to patients with respiratory  
 difficulty. (Cognitive) 
32. Demonstrate the general emergency medical care for breathing difficulty.(Psychomotor) 
33. Demonstrate the treatment of airway obstruction.(Psychomotor) 
34. Perform the steps in facilitating the use of an inhaler.(Psychomotor) 
35. Perform the steps in facilitating the use of Continuous Positive Airway Pressure (CPAP)  
            (Psychomotor) 
 
Chest Injury 

 
36. Recognize a rib fracture as a possible respiratory emergency. (Cognitive) 
37. Describe the signs and symptoms of a possible rib fracture. (Cognitive) 
38. Differentiate between fractured ribs and a flail chest. (Cognitive) 
39. Recognize the signs and symptoms of a flail chest. (Cognitive) 
40. Demonstrate the management of a patient with rib fractures or with a flail chest. 

(Psychomotor) 
41. Recognize the signs and symptoms of a closed pneumothorax. (Cognitive) 
42. Recognize the signs and symptoms of an open pneumothorax. (Cognitive) 
43. Describe immediate treatment for an open pneumothorax. (Cognitive) 
44. Demonstrate the treatment for a open or closed pneumothorax. .(Psychomotor) 
45. Define tension pneumothorax and explain the pathophysiology. (Cognitive) 
46. Recognize the signs and symptoms of a tension pneumothorax. (Cognitive) 
47. Differentiate between tension pneumothorax and pneumothorax. (Cognitive) 
48. Demonstrate treatment for a tension pneumothorax. (Psychomotor) 
49. Recognize the signs and symptoms of hemothorax. (Cognitive) 
50. Define traumatic asphyxia. (Cognitive) 
51. Define the "paper bag syndrome" as it relates to traumatic asphyxia. (Cognitive) 
52. Recognize the signs and symptoms of traumatic asphyxia. (Cognitive) 
53. Define and recognize myocardial contusion. (Cognitive) 
54. Define and recognize pericardial tamponade. (Cognitive) 
55. Demonstrate the treatment for pericardial tamponade.(Psychomotor) 
56. Define and recognize pulmonary contusion. (Cognitive) 
57. Demonstrate the treatment for myocardial or pulmonary contusion.(Psychomotor) 
58. Explain the general emergency medical care for a patient with a possible chest injury. 
 (Cognitive) 
59. Demonstrate the general emergency medical care for a patient with a chest injury. 
 (Psychomotor) 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-34 

MODULE 4  Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 

Cardiac Emergencies  (AED, CPR) 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 
 Systemic Circulation  Pulmonary Circulation  Coronary Circulation  
 Coronary Artery Disease Arteriosclerosis   Atherosclerosis 
 Epigastrium   Angina Pectoris  Acute Myocardial Infarction  
 Dysrhythmia    Ischemia   Infarction 
 Necrosis    Lumen    Occlusion 
 By-pass Surgery   Artificial Pacemaker  Cardiac Arrest  
 Asystole   Ventricular Fibrillation  PEA 
 Defibrillation   Dependent lividity     Cardiogenic Shock  
 Cholesterol   Nitroglycerin   Conductivity  
 Congestive Heart Failure  Pedal Edema   Pulmonary Edema 
      
2. Review the structure and function of the cardiovascular system. (Cognitive) 
3. List and define the two major forms of Coronary Artery Disease (CAD). (Cognitive) 
4. List controllable risk factors of CAD. (Cognitive) 
5. List uncontrollable risk factors of CAD. (Cognitive) 
6. List minor risk factors of CAD. (Cognitive) 
7. Recognize signs or symptoms of angina pectoris. (Cognitive) 
8. Differentiate between angina pectoris and myocardial infarction. (Cognitive) 
9. Recognize the signs and symptoms of a myocardial infarction. (Cognitive) 
10. Explain the pathophysiology of a myocardial infarction. (Cognitive) 
11. Recall the major consequences of a myocardial infarction. (Cognitive) 
12. Discuss the position of comfort for patients with various cardiac emergencies. (Cognitive) 
13. List the indications for the use of nitroglycerin. (Cognitive) 
14. State the contraindications and side effects for the use of nitroglycerin. (Cognitive) 
15. Perform the steps in facilitating the use of nitroglycerin for chest pain or discomfort. 
 (Psychomotor)  
16. Recognize the need for medical direction to assist in the emergency medical care of the  
 patient with chest pain.(Cognitive)  
17. Describe the general emergency medical care of the patient experiencing chest 

pain/discomfort. (Cognitive) 
18. Explain the importance of prehospital ACLS intervention if it is available for the cardiac 

patient. (Cognitive) 
19. Explain the importance of urgent transport to a facility with Advanced Cardiac Life  

Support, if it is not available in the prehospital setting for the cardiac patient.(Affective) 
20. Demonstrate the emergency medical care of the patient experiencing chest pain.  
 (Psychomotor) 
21. Recall the most common cause of CHF. (Cognitive) 
22. Recognize signs and symptoms of CHF. (Cognitive) 
23. Differentiate the signs and symptoms of left and right sided heart failure. (Cognitive) 
24. Describe the emergency medical care for the patient with CHF. (Cognitive) 
25. Demonstrate the general emergency medical care for a patient with CHF. (Psychomotor) 
26. Describe cardiac arrest and its implications. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-35 

27. Define the primary cause of cardiac arrest in children.(Cognitive) 
28. List the cardiac dysrhythmias that produce cardiac arrest. (Cognitive) 
29. Recall the time frame for onset of permanent brain damage. (Cognitive) 
30. Explain why not all chest pain patients experience a cardiac arrest and do not need to be 

attached to an automated external defibrillator.(Cognitive) 
31. Define the role of EMT in the emergency cardiac care system.(Cognitive) 
32. Define and list the indications for automated external defibrillation (AED). (Cognitive) 
33. List the contraindications for automated external defibrillation. (Cognitive) 
34. Discuss the fundamentals of early defibrillation and its priority in patient care. 

(Cognitive)  
35. State the reasons for assuring that the patient is pulseless and apneic when using the  
 automated external defibrillator. (Cognitive) 
36. Explain the impact of age and weight on defibrillation. (Cognitive) 
37. Discuss the various types of automated external defibrillators. (Cognitive) 
38. Differentiate between the fully automated and the semi-automated defibrillator. 

(Cognitive) 
39. List the steps to operation, and discuss what must be taken into consideration for standard 

operations of the various types of automated external defibrillators. (Cognitive) 
40. Discuss the circumstances which may result in inappropriate shocks. (Cognitive) 
41. Explain the considerations for interruption of CPR, when using the automated external  
 defibrillator. (Cognitive) 
42. Discuss the advantages and disadvantages of automated external defibrillators. 

(Cognitive) 
43. Summarize the speed of operation of automated external defibrillation. (Cognitive) 
44. Discuss the use of remote defibrillation through adhesive pads. (Cognitive) 
45. Discuss the special considerations for rhythm monitoring. (Cognitive) 
46. Define the function of all controls on an automated external defibrillator, and  

describe event documentation and battery defibrillator maintenance. (Cognitive) 
47. Differentiate between the single rescuer and multi-rescuer care with an automated  
 external defibrillator.(Cognitive) 
48. Explain the reason for pulses not being checked between shocks with an automated  
 external defibrillator. (Cognitive) 
49. Discuss the importance of coordinating ACLS trained providers with personnel using  
 automated external defibrillators.(Cognitive) 
50. Discuss the standard of care that should be used to provide care to a patient with  
 persistent or recurrent ventricular fibrillation and no available ACLS. (Cognitive) 
51. List the components of and discuss the importance of post-resuscitation care. (Cognitive) 
52. Explain the importance of frequent practice with the automated external defibrillator. 
 (Cognitive) 
53. Discuss the need to complete the Automated Defibrillator: Operator's Shift Checklist. 
 (Cognitive) 
54. Explain the role medical direction plays in the use of automated external defibrillation. 
 (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-36 

55. Demonstrate the application and operation of the automated external defibrillator.  
 (Psychomotor) 
56. Demonstrate the maintenance of an automated external defibrillator. 
 (Psychomotor) 
57. Demonstrate the emergency medical care of the patient in cardiac arrest. 
 (Psychomotor) 
 
 
Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation  

(all CPR training should be referred to AHA or ARC standards) 

 

1. Identify the circumstances in which the rescuer is not responsible for initiating CPR. 
 (Cognitive)  
2. Recognize the circumstances when CPR can be stopped once began. (Cognitive) 
3. List reasons CPR may be temporarily interrupted. (Cognitive) 
4. List the signs of effective CPR. (Cognitive) 
5. List the complications of CPR. (Cognitive) 
6. Give the rates and ventilation to compression ratio for infant, child and adult CPR. 

(Cognitive) 
7. Describe the procedure for chest compressions during infant, child and adult CPR. 
 (Cognitive) 
8. List the suggested depth for chest compression for infant, child and adult CPR. 

(Cognitive) 
9. Skillfully perform CPR in accordance to the AHA or ARC standards.(Psychomotor) 
10. Recognize gastric distention. (Cognitive) 
11. Determine the cause of gastric distention and how to relieve it. (Cognitive)  
12. Recognize the most common cause of airway obstruction. (Cognitive) 
13. Describe the procedures for removal of a foreign body causing complete airway  
 obstruction. (Cognitive) 
14. Demonstrate removal of foreign body objects causing airway obstruction in conscious or 

unconscious patients (infant, child, adult).(Psychomotor) 
 
 
  



 

 
 
 TA-37 

MODULE 4 Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 

Diabetic Emergencies/ Altered Mental Status 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 
 Metabolism   Glucose   Insulin 
 Diabetes Mellitus  Glucometer  Hypoglycemia         
 Hyperglycemia  Ketones   Ketoacidosis    
 Polydipsia   Polyphagia  Polyuria    
   
2. Describe the process of glucose metabolism. (Cognitive) 
3. Define and qualify Type I diabetes (IDDM). (Cognitive) 
4. Define and qualify Type II diabetes (NIDDM). (Cognitive) 
5. List the signs and symptoms of the onset of diabetes. (Cognitive) 
6. List the complications of diabetes as a long term condition. (Cognitive) 
7. Explain the pathophysiology of hyperglycemia and ketoacidosis. (Cognitive) 
8. Recognize and list signs and symptoms of hyperglycemia. (Cognitive) 
9. Recognize signs and symptoms of diabetic ketoacidosis (diabetic coma). (Cognitive) 
10. Describe the appropriate treatment for diabetic ketoacidosis (diabetic coma). (Cognitive) 
11. Explain the pathophysiology of hypoglycemia and insulin shock. (Cognitive) 
12. Recognize and list signs and symptoms of hypoglycemia and insulin shock. (Cognitive) 
13. Describe the appropriate treatment for hypoglycemia and insulin shock. (Cognitive) 
14. Identify the patient taking diabetic medications with altered mental status and the 
  implications of a diabetes history. (Cognitive) 
15. List important questions to ask the patient with a possible diabetic emergency. 

(Cognitive) 
16. Differentiate, looking at signs and symptoms, between ketoacidosis (diabetic coma) and 

hypoglycemia (insulin shock). (Cognitive) 
17. Establish the relationship between airway management and the patient with altered  
 mental status. (Cognitive) 
18. State the generic and trade names, medication forms, dose, administration, action, and  
 contraindications for oral glucose. (Cognitive) 
19. Evaluate the need for medical direction in the emergency medical care of the diabetic  
 patient. (Cognitive) 
20. Explain the rationale for administering oral glucose.(Affective) 
21. Efficiently assess patients for any diabetic emergency.(Psychomotor) 
22. Demonstrates the steps in properly checking blood glucose level with glucometer, using 

sterile technique. (Psychomotor) 
23. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care for the patient taking diabetic  
 medicine with an altered mental status and a history of diabetes.(Psychomotor) 
24. Demonstrate the steps in the administration of oral or buccal glucose.(Psychomotor) 
 



 

 
 
 TA-38 

MODULE 4  Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 

Allergies 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
 Antibody  Antigen  Epinephrine 
 Uticaria  Anaphylaxis  Antihistamine 
 
2. Discuss the role of histamine as produced during an allergic reaction. (Cognitive) 
3. Describe the mechanisms of allergic response and the implications for airway  
 management. (Cognitive) 
4. Recognize the patient experiencing an allergic reaction. (Cognitive) 
5. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with an allergic reaction. (Cognitive)  
6. Establish the relationship between the patient with an allergic reaction and airway  
 management. (Cognitive) 
7. State the generic and trade names, medication forms, dose, administration, action, and  
 contraindications for the epinephrine auto-injector. (Cognitive) 
8. Evaluate the need for medical direction in the emergency medical care of the patient with 

an allergic reaction. (Cognitive)  
9. Differentiate between the general category of those patients having an allergic reaction  
 and those patients having an allergic reaction and requiring immediate medical care,  
 including immediate use of epinephrine auto-injector. (Cognitive) 
10. List signs and symptoms of anaphylactic shock. (Cognitive) 
11. Describe the pathophysiology of anaphylactic shock. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe the emergency medical care for the patient in anaphylactic shock. (Cognitive) 
13. Demonstrate the emergency medical care of the patient experiencing an allergic reaction. 

(Psychomotor) 
14. Demonstrate the use of epinephrine auto-injector.(Psychomotor) 
15. Demonstrate the emergency medical care of the patient experiencing anaphylactic shock. 

 (Psychomotor) 
 
MODULE 4 Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 
Poisoning/Overdose 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
 Substance abuse  Addiction   Dependency 
 Poison   Activated charcoal Psychologic dependence   
 Overdose  Emesis   Narcotic 
 Depressant  Stimulant  Hallucinogen   
 Contaminated   Toxin    Neurotoxic 
 Antidote  Antivenin  Rabies    
 Botulism   Gastric lavage  Alcoholism 
 Envenomation  Venom   Acute Alcohol Poisoning 
 Withdrawal  Delirium Tremens  Venous Tourniquet 
2. List the routes in which poisons can enter the body. (Cognitive) 
3. List common sources of ingested poisons. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-39 

4. List signs and symptoms of poison ingestion. (Cognitive) 
5. State which age group is most commonly effected by poisoning. (Cognitive)  
6. Describe the general steps in the emergency medical care for the patient with suspected  
 poisoning. (Cognitive) 
7. List common sources of inhaled poisons. (Cognitive) 
8. Explain the pathophysiology and list the signs and symptoms of carbon monoxide  
 poisoning. (Cognitive) 
9. List signs and symptoms of inhalation poisoning. (Cognitive) 
10. Discuss the emergency medical care for the patient with possible inhalation poisoning. 

(Cognitive) 
11. Identify and/or describe the signs and symptoms from the following  
 bites and stings: (Cognitive) 
  Brown Recluse spiders       Black Widow spiders         Marine animals 
   Scorpions   Pit vipers   Coral snakes           
12. Identify and/or describe the treatments for the following  
 bites and stings: (Cognitive) 
  Brown Recluse spiders   Black Widow spiders         Marine animals 
  Scorpions   Pit vipers   Coral snakes          
13. Discuss the various common sources of substance abuse. (Cognitive) 
14. Discuss the implications of long term substance abuse. (Cognitive) 
15. Discuss the emergency medical care for the patient with possible overdose. (Cognitive) 
16. Identify and/or describe the signs and symptoms of the following  
 types of overdoses: (Cognitive) 
  Alcohol   Amphetamine   Hallucinogen  
  Sedative  Narcotic   Tricyclic anti-depressant  

 Tylenol  Aspirin 
17. Identify and/or describe the treatments for the following  
 types of overdoses: (Cognitive) 
  Alcohol   Amphetamine   Hallucinogen    
  Aspirin  Narcotic  Sedative    
  Tricyclic anti-depressant   Tylenol 
18. Establish the relationship between the patient suffering from poisoning or  
 overdose and airway management. (Cognitive) 
19. State the generic and trade names, indications, contraindications, medication form, dose, 

administration, actions, side effects and re-assessment strategies for Syrup of Ipecac and  
activated charcoal. (Cognitive) 

20. Recognize the need for medical direction in caring for the patient with poisoning or  
 overdose. (Cognitive) 
21. List the problems associated with chronic alcoholism. (Cognitive) 
22. Describe alcohol withdrawal and delirium tremens. (Cognitive) 
23. Describe the general management of the patient experiencing drug withdrawal. 

(Cognitive) 
24. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care for the patient with suspected  
 poisoning. (Psychomotor) 
25. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care for the patient with possible  
 overdose. (Psychomotor) 
26. Perform the necessary steps required to provide a patient with activated charcoal. 
 (Psychomotor) 
MODULE 4 Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 



 

 
 
 TA-40 

Environmental Emergencies 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the following: (Cognitive) 
 Alpha particles  Beta particles  Neutrons  Gamma ray 
 Frostbite   Frostnip  Gangrene 
 Near-drowning  Drowning  Submersion  
 
2. State the body's normal temperature in Fahrenheit and Centigrade degrees. (Cognitive) 
3. List the methods that most efficiently cool the body. (Cognitive) 
4. Describe the pathophysiology of heat cramps. (Cognitive) 
5. List the signs and symptoms of heat cramps. (Cognitive) 
6. List the appropriate treatment for heat cramps. (Cognitive) 
7. Describe the pathophysiology of heat exhaustion. (Cognitive) 
8. List the signs and symptoms of heat exhaustion. (Cognitive) 
9. List the appropriate treatment for heat exhaustion. (Cognitive) 
10. Describe the pathophysiology of heat stroke. (Cognitive) 
11. List the signs and symptoms of heat stroke. (Cognitive) 
12. List the appropriate treatment for heat stroke. (Cognitive) 
13. When presented with patient information, differentiate between heat cramps, heat 

exhaustion and heat stroke. (Cognitive) 
14. Recognize the importance of slow cooling a patient with heat exhaustion. (Cognitive) 
15. Recognize the urgency of cooling a patient suffering from heat stroke. (Cognitive) 
16. Explain the steps in providing emergency care to a patient exposed to heat. (Cognitive) 
17. Demonstrate the assessment and emergency medical care of a patient with exposure to  
 heat.(Psychomotor)  
18. Describe the various ways that the body loses heat. (Cognitive) 
19. Define hypothermia. (Cognitive) 
20. Describe the mechanisms that the body uses to generate heat. (Cognitive) 
21. Recognize the signs and symptoms of hypothermia. (Cognitive) 
22. List the appropriate treatment for the hypothermic patient. (Cognitive) 
23. Describe the treatment of the hypothermic patient in cardiac arrest and how it differs from 

a cardiac arrest patient with normal body temperature. (Cognitive) 
24. Describe how much re-warming of the hypothermic patient should be attempted in the 
 field. (Cognitive) 
25. Explain the steps in providing emergency medical care to a patient exposed to cold. 

(Cognitive) 
26. Recognize the signs and symptoms of frostnip and frostbite. (Cognitive) 
27. List the appropriate treatment for frostnip and frostbite. (Cognitive) 
 
28. Discuss re-warming the frostbitten patient in the field if the potential for re-exposure to  
 cold temperatures exists. (Cognitive) 
29. Recognize the signs and symptoms of freezing. (Cognitive) 
30. Differentiate between frostbite, frostnip and freezing. (Cognitive) 
31. Demonstrate the assessment and emergency medical care of a patient with exposure to  
 cold.(Psychomotor) 



 

 
 
 TA-41 

32. Identify the rules for water rescue in regard for the safety of rescuers and the victim(s). 
 (Cognitive) 
33. Explain why spinal injuries should always be suspected in water related emergencies. 
 (Cognitive) 
34. Describe the proper procedures for removing a victim from the water when a spinal injury

 is suspected. (Cognitive) 
35. Differentiate between the conditions of drowning and near-drowning. (Cognitive) 
36. List factors that contribute to the occurrence of drowning. (Cognitive) 
37. Describe the complications of near drowning. (Cognitive) 
38. Describe the difference between a fresh water drowning and a saltwater drowning. 

(Cognitive) 
39. Describe the difference between a wet drowning and a dry drowning. (Cognitive) 
40. Describe the mammalian diving reflex. (Cognitive) 
41. Discuss the implications of hypothermia as it relates to the treatment of the near drowning 

patient. (Cognitive) 
42. Explain the protocol for drowning and initiation of CPR in accordance with the AHA. 
 (Cognitive) 
43. Explain that diving emergencies can happen on the surface, during descent and ascent, 

and on the bottom. (Cognitive) 
44. Explain the pathophysiology of air embolism, nitrogen narcosis and decompression  
 illness. (Cognitive) 
45. Describe appropriate treatment for "the bends" and pulmonary embolism. (Cognitive) 
46. Describe how water injuries in children may possibly be related to child abuse or neglect. 

(Cognitive) 
47. Demonstrate the assessment and emergency medical care of a near drowning patient. 
 (Cognitive) 
48. Explain the rescuer's first responsibility in regard to radiation exposure. (Cognitive) 
49. Recognize the indications of radioactivity. (Cognitive) 
50. List the tools needed to accurately evaluate an exposure to radiation. (Cognitive) 
51. List the ramifications of a long-term exposure to radiation. (Cognitive) 
52. List the ramifications of a short-term exposure to radiation. (Cognitive) 
53. List the possible signs and symptoms of radiation exposure. (Cognitive) 
54. List the proper steps in decontaminating a patient. (Cognitive) 
55. Describe the importance of not cross-contaminating patients, and wounds. (Cognitive) 
56. Describe the importance of the EMT remaining upwind, uphill, and upstream. (Cognitive) 
57. Demonstrate the assessment and treatment of a patient exposed to 

radiation.(Psychomotor) 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-42 

MODULE 4  Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 
Behavioral Emergencies 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
 Suicide   Homicidal patient  Crisis 
 Depression   Mania     Delusions 
 Disorganization  Paranoia    Hallucinations 
 Disorientation    Phobia    Psychosis 
 Disruptive behavior  Regression    Hysteria 
 Domestic violence  Schizophrenia    Catatonic 
 
2. Define behavioral emergencies. (Cognitive) 
3. Discuss the general factors that may cause an alteration in a patient's behavior. 

(Cognitive) 
4. State the various reasons for psychological crises. (Cognitive) 
5. Discuss the special considerations for assessing a patient with behavioral problems. 

(Cognitive) 
6. Explain the role drugs and alcohol play in behavioral emergencies. (Cognitive) 
7. Explain how substance abuse effects a patient's behavior. (Cognitive) 
8. List physical problems which can be caused by psychiatric problems. (Cognitive) 
9. Discuss the general principles of an individual's behavior which suggests that he is at risk 

for violence. (Cognitive) 
10. Discuss methods to calm behavioral emergency patients. (Cognitive) 
11. List steps to initiate crisis management procedures. (Cognitive) 
12. Discuss the characteristics of an individual's behavior which suggests that the patient is at 

risk for suicide. (Cognitive) 
13. Discuss special medical/legal considerations for managing behavioral emergencies. 

(Cognitive) 
14. Describe the actions taken by the EMT for the following situations: (Cognitive) 
  Aggressive behavior  Assault 
  Domestic violence  Rape victims 
  Suicide attempt 
15. Identify and describe the signs and symptoms for the following: (Cognitive) 
  Anxiety  Depression  Domestic violence 
  Mania   Schizophrenia  Suicidal tendencies 
16. Describe the emergency medical treatment for the patient with the  
 following: (Cognitive) 
  Anxiety   Depression  Domestic violence 
  Mania   Schizophrenia  Suicide attempt 
17. List the indications and procedures for restraining a violent patient. (Cognitive) 
18. Explain the rationale for learning how to modify your behavior toward the patient with a 

behavioral emergency.(Affective) 
19. Demonstrate the assessment and emergency medical care of the patient experiencing a  
 behavioral emergency.(Psychomotor) 
20. Demonstrate various techniques to safely restrain a patient with a behavioral problem. 
 (Psychomotor) 



 

 
 
 TA-43 

MODULE 4 Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 
Obstetrics/Gynecology 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
 Uterus   Cervix   Vagina    Ovaries 
 Fallopian tubes   Endometrium   Placenta   Perineum  
 Fetus    FHT   Umbilical cord  Amniotic fluid/sac   
 Natal    Prenatal   Antepartum   Post partum   
 Para    Gravida   Term   Dilation 
 Primipara   Primigravida   Multipara   Multigravida  
 Crowning  Bloody Show  Presenting Part   Neonate  
 Prolapsed cord  Nuchal Cord  Ectopic Pregnancy  Abortion 
 Spontaneous abortion  Inevitable abortion   Incomplete abortion    Missed abortion        
 Therapeutic abortion  Abruptio placenta    Placenta previa  Post-partum hemorrage 
 Eclampsia   Pre-eclampsia   Uterine inversion  Cesarean Section 
 Meconium 
   
2. Describe the anatomy and physiologic changes that occur during pregnancy. (Cognitive) 
3. Identify and/or describe the stages of labor. (Cognitive) 
4. List the information gathered from an obstetrics patient. (Cognitive) 
5. Identify and explain the use of the contents of an obstetrics kit. (Cognitive) 
6. Identify the conditions that may cause a  pre-delivery emergency. (Cognitive) 
7. Identify conditions that may cause bleeding pre-delivery. (Cognitive) 
8. Describe management of bleeding pre-delivery. (Cognitive) 
9. Describe possible complications due to trauma in the pregnant woman. (Cognitive) 
10. Explain the effects of pregnancy on pre-existing conditions such as: (Cognitive) 
 a. Diabetes 
 b. Hypertension 
 c. Cardiac problems 
11. List the conditions that contribute to a high risk pregnancy. (Cognitive) 
12. State the indications of an imminent delivery. (Cognitive) 
13. State the steps in the pre-delivery preparation of the mother. (Cognitive) 
14. List the steps for assisting with a normal delivery. (Cognitive) 
15. Explain how each of the following relate to the delivery of the baby: (Cognitive) 
 a. Timing of the contractions  

b. Rupture of membranes and/or "bag of water"  
 c. Sensation of needing a bowel movement. 
16. Define and explain the management of Supine Hypotensive Syndrome. (Cognitive) 
17. Describe care of the baby as the head appears. (Cognitive) 
18. Describe how and when to cut the umbilical cord. (Cognitive) 
19. Demonstrate necessary care procedures of the fetus as the head appears. (Psychomotor) 
20. Demonstrate the steps to assist in the normal cephalic delivery. (Psychomotor) 
21. Demonstrate how and when to cut the umbilical cord. (Psychomotor) 
22. Explain the procedure for when the amniotic sac remains intact following delivery of the 

infant's face. (Cognitive) 
23. List the care of the newborn infant immediately following delivery. (Cognitive) 
24. Summarize neonatal resuscitation procedures. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-44 

25. Demonstrate neonatal resuscitation procedures. (Psychomotor) 
26. Demonstrate post delivery care of infant. (Psychomotor) 
27. Explain the role of the placenta. (Cognitive) 
28. Discuss the steps in the delivery of the placenta. (Cognitive) 
29. List the steps in the emergency medical care of the mother post-delivery. (Cognitive) 
30. Demonstrate the post-delivery care of the mother. (Psychomotor) 
31. Discuss signs of prolonged delivery and the management. (Cognitive) 
32. Describe the procedures for the following abnormal deliveries: (Cognitive) 
 a. Breech birth  
 b. Prolapsed cord or nuchal cord   
 c. Limb presentation 
33. Describe the management of a multiple birth delivery. (Cognitive) 
34. Describe special considerations for the presence of meconium. (Cognitive) 
35. Describe special considerations for the delivery of a premature baby. (Cognitive) 
36. Identify and/or describe the signs and symptoms for the following: (Cognitive) 
  Ectopic pregnancy  Abortion  Abruptio placentae  
  Pre-eclampsia   Eclampsia  Placenta previa   
  Prolapsed cord  Uterine inversion Post partum hemorrhage    
  Uterine rupture    
37. When given a patient scenario, identify the following specific conditions  
 being described: (Cognitive) 
  Ectopic pregnancy   Abortion  Abruptio placentae  
  Pre-eclampsia    Eclampsia  Placenta previa   
  Prolapsed cord   Uterine inversion Post partum hemorrhage    
  Uterine rupture   Supine Hypotension 
38. When given a patient scenario, identify the appropriate treatment for the specific 

condition listed: (Cognitive) 
  Ectopic pregnancy   Abortion  Abruptio placentae  
  Pre-eclampsia    Eclampsia  Placenta previa   
  Prolapsed cord   Uterine inversion Post partum hemorrhage    
  Uterine rupture   Supine Hypotension 
39. Demonstrate the procedures for the following abnormal conditions:  (Psychomotor) 

 vaginal bleeding  breech birth  
 prolapsed cord  limb presentation 

40. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of the mother with excessive  
 bleeding, pre or post delivery. (Psychomotor) 
41. List common causes of gynecological emergencies. (Cognitive) 
42. Define Pelvic Inflammatory Disease and list the signs and symptoms. (Cognitive)  
43. Discuss specific assessment and questioning of the patient with a possible gynecological  
 emergency. (Cognitive) 
44. Discuss the emergency medical care of a patient with a gynecological emergency. 

(Cognitive) 
45. Demonstrate care of the patient with a gynecological emergency.(Psychomotor) 
46. Discuss the goals for caring for a patient following sexual assault. (Cognitive) 
47. Describe the general emergency medical care of the patient following sexual assault.  
 (Cognitive) 
48. Demonstrate the appropriate care of the patient following sexual assault.(Psychomotor) 
 
MODULE 4 Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 



 

 
 
 TA-45 

Abdominal Illness 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 
 Acute abdomen  Void   Incontinence Constipation   
 Diarrhea   Anorexia   Heartburn  Colic 
 Malignant    Benign   Ulcer   Gastritis 
 Gastroenteritis   Cholecystitis   Appendicitis   Colitis 
 Diverticulitis    Pancreatitis  Peritonitis   AAA 
 Esophageal reflux  Esophageal varices  Coffee ground emesis 
 Hematemesis   Melena  Hematochezia   Hematuria 
 Dysuria   Urinary retention  
 Renal colic    Vertigo  Referred Pain  
 Rebound Tenderness 
  
2. List and describe possible causes of an "acute abdomen".(Cognitive) 
3. Explain how to examine the abdomen by palpation. (Cognitive) 
4. Accurately report patient assessment findings by referring to abdominal quadrants. 

(Cognitive) 
5. Recall the signs and symptoms of the "acute abdomen".(Cognitive) 
6. Utilize the terms guarding, rigidity, referred pain and tenderness to describe abdominal  
 pain. (Cognitive) 
7. Describe the concerns associated with vomiting. (Cognitive) 
8. Describe positioning of the patient who is at risk to vomiting. (Cognitive) 
9. Recall potential complications of the "acute abdomen".(Cognitive) 
10. Describe the signs and symptoms of the patient with an abdominal aortic 
 aneurysm (AAA). (Cognitive) 
11. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with possible AAA. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe potential causes of hematuria. (Cognitive) 
13. Describe the general emergency medical care of the patient with possible "acute 

abdomen". (Cognitive) 
14. Demonstrate the management of the patient with an acute abdomen. (Psychomotor) 
 
 

 

 



 

 
 
 TA-46 

MODULE 4 Medical/Behavioral and Obstetrics/Gynecology 

Central Nervous System Illness  (Stroke, Seizure) 
  
 
 1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
   Aneurysm Embolus Thrombus  Meningitis 
   Aura  Clonic  Tonic Status Epilepticus   
   Paraplegia Quadriplegia  Hemiplegia Deficit  
   Coma  Aphasia 
 
 2. Describe the risks for an unconscious patient found supine. (Cognitive) 
 3. Explain the priority of an unconscious patient. (Cognitive) 
 4. List the possible causes of unconsciousness. (Cognitive) 
 5. Review the emergency medical care of the unconscious patient. (Cognitive) 

6. Demonstrate the general emergency medical care of the unconscious patient. 
(Psychomtor) 

 7. Define seizure. (Cognitive) 
 8. Explain possible causes of a seizure. (Cognitive) 
 9. Explain the pathophysiological cause of seizures. (Cognitive) 
 10. List different types of seizures. (Cognitive) 
 11. Describe possible signs and symptoms that accompany a seizure. (Cognitive) 
 12. Describe the phases of a generalized seizure (grand mal). (Cognitive) 

13. Describe the importance of airway management in the patient experiencing a seizure. 
(Cognitive) 

 14. Differentiate a generalized seizure from a febrile seizure. (Cognitive) 
 15. Describe the assessment and emergency medical care of the seizure patient. (Cognitive) 
 16. Demonstrate proper care of a patient experiencing a seizure. (Psychomotor) 
 17. Define Cerebro Vascular Accident. (Cognitive) 
 18. Define Transient Ischemic Attack. (Cognitive) 
 19. List the pre-disposing risk factors for Cerebro Vascular Accident. (Cognitive) 
 20. List causes of interrupted blood flow. (Cognitive) 
 21. List signs and symptoms of CVA/TIA. (Cognitive) 
 22. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with a possible CVA. (Cognitive) 
 23. Demonstrate the treatment of the patient with a CVA.(Psychomotor) 
 24. List and recognize the signs and symptoms of meningitis. (Cognitive) 
 25. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with meningitis. (Cognitive) 
 26. Demonstrate the treatment of the patient with meningitis.(Psychomotor) 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 TA-47 

MODULE 5 Trauma 
Bleeding and Shock 

(PASG and IV Maintenance) 

  
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: (Cognitive) 
 
1. Define the following terms: 

Hemorrhage   Hematoma   Perfusion   
Hypovolemia  Relative Hypovolemia Hypoperfusion   
Shock    Syncope    Ecchymosis 
Direct pressure Pressure Point   Tourniquet 
Trendelenburg  Closed wound   Open wound 
Blunt trauma   Dressing   Bandage   
Occlusive dressing Guarding   Rigidity    

   
  2. Review the structure and function of the circulatory system. (Cognitive) 
  3. Understand the importance of utilizing personal protective equipment when dealing  
   with any body substance. (Cognitive) 

4. Establish the relationship between airway management and the trauma patient. 
(Cognitive) 

5.         Recognize and differentiate between arterial, venous and capillary bleeding. (Cognitive) 
6. Approximate the time it takes for venous blood to clot. (Cognitive) 
7.         Approximate the time it takes for arterial blood to clot. (Cognitive) 
8.         List the order, and describe treatments to be used to control external bleeding. (Cognitive) 
9. State the general emergency medical care of external bleeding. (Cognitive) 
10. Demonstrate direct pressure as a method of emergency medical care of external bleeding. 

(Psychomotor) 
11. List the functions of dressing and bandaging. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe the steps in applying a pressure dressing. (Cognitive) 
13. Describe the use of pressure points. (Cognitive) 
14. Recall the precautions when using a tourniquet. (Cognitive) 
15. Describe the effects of improperly applied dressings and tourniquets. (Cognitive) 
16.  List problems associated with the use of tourniquets. (Cognitive) 
17. Demonstrate the use of pressure points and tourniquets as a method of emergency 

medical care of external bleeding. (Psychomotor) 
18. List the signs of internal bleeding. (Cognitive) 
19. List different sources of internal bleeding. (Cognitive) 
20. Establish the relationship between mechanism of injury and internal bleeding. (Cognitive) 
21. List and describe the steps of emergency medical care for the patient with signs and 

symptoms of internal bleeding. (Cognitive) 
22. Recognize the need for rapid transport when dealing with internal bleeding. (Cognitive) 
23. Demonstrate the care of the patient exhibiting signs and symptoms of internal bleeding. 
 (Psychomotor) 
24. List conditions that could cause epistaxis. (Cognitive) 
25. Describe the treatment to control epistaxis that is not associated with a skull fracture. 

(Cognitive) 
26. Describe the treatment used to control epistaxis that may be associated with a skull 

fracture. (Cognitive) 
27. Demonstrate the care of the patient with epistaxis.(Psychomotor) 



 

 
 
 TA-48 

28. List the physiologic factors necessary for adequate tissue oxygenation. (Cognitive)  
29. Describe the role of the sympathetic nervous system in the maintenance of tissue  

 perfusion. (Cognitive) 
30. Describe the stages of shock. (Cognitive) 
31. List the general signs and symptoms of shock (hypoperfusion). (Cognitive) 
32. Identify the signs and symptoms associated with each stage of shock. (Cognitive) 
33. Define the early signs and symptoms of shock. (Cognitive) 
34. Describe which vitals signs are generally the last to change in shock. (Cognitive) 
35. Accurately give the amounts of blood loss for adult, child and infant that could potentially 

cause shock. (Cognitive) 
36. Describe the amount of blood loss that an adult can compensate for, without any signs or 

symptoms of shock. (Cognitive) 
37. Given a radial, carotid, or femoral pulse, estimate the patient's BP. (Cognitive) 
38. Explain the purpose of assessing jugular vein fullness in relationship to hypovolemia. 

(Cognitive) 
39. Define what amount of blood would be considered an acute loss of blood. (Cognitive) 
40. Identify causes for the various types of shock. (Cognitive) 
41. Explain the pathophysiology of the following types of shock: (Cognitive) 

   Metabolic  Hypovolemic (Hemorrhagic) 
   Cardiogenic  Neurogenic 
   Respiratory  Septic 
   Psychogenic  Anaphylactic  

42 . Identify specific signs and symptoms for each type of shock. (Cognitive) 
43. State the steps in the emergency medical care of the patient with signs and symptoms of  
 shock (hypoperfusion). (Cognitive) 
44 . Explain the sense of urgency to transport patients that are bleeding and show signs of  
 shock (hypoperfusion).(Affective) 
45. Demonstrate the care of the patient exhibiting signs and symptoms of shock  
 (hypoperfusion). (Psychomotor) 
46. List possible causes of dehydration. (Cognitive) 
47. Relate the condition of dehydration to hypovolemic shock. (Cognitive) 
48. Describe the management of the dehydrated patient. (Cognitive) 
49. Give examples of what would cause overhydration in a patient. (Cognitive) 
50.   List signs and symptoms of overhydration. (Cognitive) 
51. Describe emergency medical care for the overhydrated patient. (Cognitive) 
 

 PASG (MAST) 

52. List the indications for inflation of PASG. (Cognitive) 
53. List the absolute contraindications for the inflation of PASG. (Cognitive) 
54. List precautions or alterations of use in regard to inflation of PASG. (Cognitive) 
55. Explain the procedure for applying and inflation of the PASG. (Cognitive) 
56. Explain the procedure for removal of PASG. (Cognitive) 
57 Discuss current controversies in the use of PASG.(Affective)   
58. Demonstrate the application of PASG.(Psychomotor) 

 
 
 

 I.V. Maintenance 

 



 

 
 
 TA-49 

59. List the purposes for starting an I.V. (Cognitive) 
60. List the types of patients which an EMT may accept care for, in relation to IV therapy. 

  (Cognitive) 
61. List the types of patients which an EMT may not accept care for, in relation to IV  

 therapy. (Cognitive) 
62. List the procedures for properly monitoring an I.V.'s patency. (Cognitive) 
63. List IV therapy techniques that the EMT may not perform. (Cognitive) 
64. Identify and/or describe the following types of administration sets: (Cognitive) 

   Macro drip  Micro drip Blood or "y" type tubing 
65. List the indications for the following types of administration sets: (Cognitive) 

   Macro   Micro  Blood tubing 
66. List common peripheral IV sites. (Cognitive) 
67. Explain the difference between peripheral and central venipuncture sites. (Cognitive) 
68. State the common types of IV fluids used. (Cognitive) 
69. Explain the postural and positional effects on the flow of IV fluid. (Cognitive) 
70. Explain techniques for stopping an I.V. (Cognitive) 
71. List complications of I.V. therapy. (Cognitive) 
 
 
 
MODULE 5  Trauma 
Soft Tissue Injuries   (Face, Throat, and Eye Injuries, Abdominal Injury, Burns) 

 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 

 
1. Define the following: (Cognitive) 

 Abrasion   Amputation  Laceration  
 Contusion    Evisceration  Avulsion  
 Puncture wound  Perforating trauma  Penetrating trauma 
 Crushing injury   Impaled object  Evisceration 
 Hematochezia   Ileus   Peritonitis 
 Iris     Aqueous humor          Vitreous humor   
 Blow out fracture           Pupil   Retina 
 Conjunctiva                 Sclera   Cornea 
 Lacrimal system      Doll's eyes  Hyphena   

2. Define and recognize the types of closed soft tissue injuries. (Cognitive) 
3. Define and recognize the types of open soft tissue injuries. (Cognitive) 
4. Describe the common signs of soft tissue injury. (Cognitive) 
5. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with a closed soft tissue injury. 

(Cognitive) 
6. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of closed soft tissue injuries. 

(Psychomotor) 
7. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with an open soft tissue injury. 

(Cognitive) 
 
8. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of open soft tissue injuries. 

(Psychomotor) 
9. Describe the management for an avulsed or amputated body part. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-50 

10. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a patient with an avulsion or 
amputation. (Psychomotor) 

11. Describe the management of an impaled object. (Cognitive) 
12. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a patient with an impaled object. 

(Psychomotor) 
13. Describe the treatment for an evisceration. (Cognitive) 
14. Establish the relationship between airway management and the patient with chest injury, 

blunt or penetrating injuries. (Cognitive) 
15. Review the emergency medical care considerations for a patient with a penetrating chest 

injury. (Cognitive) 
16. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a patient with an open chest 

wound. (Psychomotor) 
17. List common causes of abdominal injury. (Cognitive) 
18. List the signs and symptoms of abdominal injury. (Cognitive) 
19. Explain the relationship between abdominal injury and unstable pelvic fractures. 

(Cognitive) 
20. Explain the risk of shock in relation to abdominal injury. (Cognitive) 
21. Describe the emergency medical care for a patient with possible abdominal injury. 

(Cognitive) 
22. Discuss the emergency medical care considerations for a patient with an open wound to 

the abdomen. (Cognitive) 
23. Differentiate the complications between an injury to a vascular abdominal organ verses a 

hollow type organ. (Cognitive) 
24. Differentiate the care of an open wound to the chest from an open wound to the abdomen. 

(Cognitive) 
25. Describe the relationship between rib fractures and abdominal injury. (Cognitive) 
26. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a patient with open abdominal 

wounds. (Psychomotor) 
27. Identify and describe the treatments for face and scalp injuries. (Cognitive) 
28. Describe the relationship between facial injuries and head injury. (Cognitive) 
29. Describe the relationship between facial injuries and spinal injury. (Cognitive) 
30. Describe the effect a facial injury may have in regard to airway obstruction. (Cognitive) 
31. Identify and describe the signs and symptoms of the following injuries to the face, throat, 

neck and eyes: (Cognitive) 
  Impaled objects  Punctures    Lacerations  
  Avulsions    Contusions   Abrasions 
  Inner ear injury  Foreign body to the eye  Blunt injury to neck  

32. Identify and describe the treatments of the following injuries to the face, throat,  
 neck and eyes: (Cognitive) 
  Impaled objects  Punctures    Lacerations  
  Avulsions    Contusions   Abrasions 
  Inner ear injury  Foreign body to the eye  Blunt injury to neck 

33. List specific treatment for an open wound to the neck area. (Cognitive) 
34. Describe the implications of a penetrating injury to the neck. (Cognitive) 
35. Explain the difference in care for arterial and venous bleeding from the neck. (Cognitive) 
36. Explain why face and scalp injuries may bleed profusely. (Cognitive) 
37. Explain why demand valve ventilation is contraindicated in the presence  

 of injury to the larynx or trachea. (Cognitive) 
38. List the procedures for removing contact lenses. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-51 

39. List the procedure for removing a foreign body from the eye. (Cognitive) 
40. Explain the possible causes for a change in the appearance or function of the eye. 

(Cognitive) 
41. List signs and symptoms of blunt trauma injury to the eye. (Cognitive) 
42. Describe the management of blunt or penetrating trauma to the eye. (Cognitive) 
43. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a face, scalp, neck, or eye injury. 

(Psychomotor) 
 

 Burns 

 
44. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

  1st degree burn  Superficial burn 
  2nd degree burn  Partial thickness burn  
  3rd degree burn  Full thickness burn  
  Laryngospasm  

45. List potential causes of burn injury. (Cognitive) 
46. List the classifications of burns. (Cognitive) 
47. List the characteristics of a superficial burn. (Cognitive) 
48. List the characteristics of a partial thickness burn. (Cognitive) 
49. List the characteristics of a full thickness burn. (Cognitive) 
50. Describe how to determine the severity of burns. (Cognitive) 
51. Explain and utilize the "Rule of Nines".(Cognitive) 
52. Identify and/or describe specific signs and symptoms of light burns, electrical burns, 

chemical burns, radiation burns and thermal burns. (Cognitive) 
53. Establish the relationship between airway management and burn injuries. (Cognitive) 
54. Describe the general emergency medical treatment for a patient with a thermal burn 

injury. (Cognitive) 
55. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with a superficial burn. (Cognitive) 
56. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a patient with superficial burns. 

(Psychomotor) 
57. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with a partial thickness burn. 

(Cognitive) 
58. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a patient with partial thickness 

burns. (Psychomotor) 
59. Describe the emergency medical care of the patient with a full thickness burn. (Cognitive) 
60. Demonstrate the steps in the emergency medical care of a patient with full thickness 

burns. 
 (Psychomotor) 

61. Describe the emergency medical treatment for a patient with a chemical burn injury. 
(Cognitive) 

62. Explain which patients with burn injury are at risk of hypovolemic shock. (Cognitive) 
63. Demonstrate the emergency medical care for patients with chemical or thermal burns. 

(Psychomotor) 
64. List common causes of burns injury to the eye. (Cognitive) 
65. Identify and describe the signs and symptoms for a thermal, chemical, or light burn to the 

eye. (Cognitive) 
66. Identify and describe the treatments for a thermal, chemical, or light burn to the eye. 

(Cognitive) 
67. Describe specific steps to assessment of the patient with an electrical burn injury. 



 

 
 
 TA-52 

(Cognitive) 
68. Describe the emergency medical treatment for a patient with a electrical burn injury. 

(Cognitive) 
69. Explain the relationship between electrical burn injury and cardiac complications. 

(Cognitive) 
70. Describe the differences between low voltage and high voltage exposures. (Cognitive) 
71. Describe the possible complications from a lightning injury. (Cognitive) 
72. Demonstrate the treatment for patients with light burns, electrical and radiation burns. 

(Psychomotor) 
 

MODULE 5 Trauma 

Musculoskeletal Care 
 

At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 

1. Define the following terms: (Cognitive) 
  Bone    Tendon   Ligament  
  Joint       Dislocation   Fracture  
  Closed fracture Open fracture  Rigid splint 
  Colles fracture  Sprain    Strain 
   Traction            Traction splint  Angulated fracture 

2. Review the structures and function of the muscular system. (Cognitive) 
3. Review the structures and function of the skeletal system. (Cognitive) 
4. Identify the major anatomical structures of a bone. (Cognitive) 
5. Identify and/or describe the signs and symptoms for closed fracture, dislocation,  

 open fracture, sprain, and strain. (Cognitive) 
6. Describe signs and symptoms for these specific fractures: (Cognitive) 
  Foot    Ankle         Knee   Tibia/Fibula 

  Hip    Pelvis  Femur   Humerus  
  Elbow        Radius/Ulna Shoulder Wrist      
  Hand                Finger    

7. Describe signs and symptoms for these specific dislocations, or sprains: (Cognitive) 
  Foot    Ankle         Knee   Tibia/Fibula 

  Hip    Pelvis  Femur   Humerus   
  Elbow        Radius/Ulna Shoulder  Wrist       
  Hand  Finger    

8. Describe the assessment procedures for impaired circulation, muscle damage, and  
 nerve damage. (Cognitive) 

9. Explain the priority of care for musculoskeletal injuries. (Cognitive) 
10. List the signs and symptoms of sciatic nerve or radial nerve injury. (Cognitive) 
11. Describe which fractures are most likely to cause hypovolemic shock. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe the concerns for injury at a joint. (Cognitive) 
 
13. Explain the potential for blood loss from a femur fracture and pelvic fracture. (Cognitive) 
14. Describe the injuries to be suspected in a fall from a great height. (Cognitive) 
15. Describe the injuries to be suspected in a geriatric patient after a fall. (Cognitive) 
16. Identify and/or describe the treatment for the closed fracture, dislocation, open fracture, 

sprain and strain. (Cognitive) 
17. Identify and/or describe the immobilization techniques used for fractures or dislocations 



 

 
 
 TA-53 

of the: (Cognitive) 
  Foot    Ankle          Knee   Tibia/Fibula 

  Hip    Pelvis   Femur   Humerus       
  Elbow        Radius/Ulna  Shoulder Wrist    
  Hand  Finger                   

18. State the reasons for splinting. (Cognitive) 
19. List the general rules of splinting. (Cognitive) 
20. List the complications of splinting. (Cognitive) 
21. Explain the indications for using a traction splint. (Cognitive) 
22. Explain the rationale for splinting at the scene versus splinting enroute, or not splinting. 

(Cognitive) 
23. Demonstrate immobilization of various musculoskeletal injuries.(Psychomotor) 
24. Demonstrate emergency medical care for the patient with a musculoskeletal injury. 

 (Psychomotor) 
 

MODULE 5 Trauma 

Injuries to the Head and Spine 
 

At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 

1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 
  Cerebro Spinal Fluid  Neutral Position  Priapism 
  Epidural   Subdural   Sub-arachnoid 
  Intracerebral   Decorticate   Coup-contracoup 
  Decerebrate   Flaccid   Subluxation 

2. Review the structures and functions of the central nervous system. (Cognitive) 
3. Describe the treatment of a bleeding scalp wound in relation to possible skull fracture. 

 (Cognitive) 
4. Describe and recognize major signs and symptoms of a skull fracture. (Cognitive) 
5. Explain the terms "battles sign" and "raccoon eyes".(Cognitive) 

 
6. Explain the management of leaking CSF from a head wound, or orafice, and the 

significance. (Cognitive) 
7. Recognize signs and symptoms of cerebral concussion. (Cognitive) 
8. Explain the seriousness of a cerebral concussion. (Cognitive) 
9. Recognize signs and symptoms of cerebral contusion. (Cognitive) 
10. Explain the relationship of a cerebral contusion and increasing intracranial pressure. 

(Cognitive) 
11. Describe or identify acute, sub-acute or a chronic subdural hematoma. (Cognitive) 
12. Recognize changes in blood pressure as it relates to intracranial pressure in a closed head 

injury. (Cognitive) 
13. Describe and recognize signs of "posturing". (Cognitive) 
14. Describe the signs of shock related to severe head injury. (Cognitive) 
15. Explain the presence of hypovolemic shock in the head injured patient. (Cognitive)   
16. Describe the treatment of the patient with an open or closed head injury. (Cognitive) 
17. Explain the use of hyperventilation for the closed head injured patient. (Cognitive) 
18. Explain the use of the modified jaw thrust in patients with suspected head, or neck 

trauma. (Cognitive) 
19. Explain the rationale for closely monitoring the head injured, immobilized patient for 



 

 
 
 TA-54 

vomiting and aspiration. (Cognitive) 
20. Identify "load and go" situations in regard to patients with central nervous systems 

injuries. (Cognitive) 
 
21. Describe the method of determining if a responsive patient may have a spine injury. 

(Cognitive) 
22. Explain the situations when spinal injury should be suspected. (Cognitive) 
23. Describe what forms of motion typically cause severe spinal injury. (Cognitive) 
24. Relate mechanism of injury to potential injuries of the head and spine. (Cognitive) 
25. Describe the types of spinal cord injury. (Cognitive) 
26. Recognize signs and symptoms of a spinal cord injury. (Cognitive) 
27. Describe assessment of sensory and motor function as part of a neurological exam. 

(Cognitive) 
28. Explain at what time during patient care should the neurological exam be performed. 

(Cognitive) 
29. Demonstrate evaluating a responsive patient with a suspected spinal cord injury. 

(Psychomotor) 
30. Demonstrate assessment of sensory and motor function as part of a neurological exam. 

(Psychomotor) 
31. Describe the implications for spinal injuries not receiving appropriate care. (Cognitive) 
32. Explain the complications associated with spinal cord injuries. (Cognitive) 
33. Demonstrate opening the airway in a patient with suspected spinal cord injury. 

(Psychomotor) 
34. Describe how to stabilize the cervical spine. (Cognitive) 
35. Demonstrate stabilization of the cervical spine. (Psychomotor) 
36. Explain how to properly measure or choose the correct size cervical collar for a patient. 

(Cognitive) 
37. Demonstrate the proper application of a cervical collar. (Psychomotor) 
38. Describe the situations when a helmet should be removed in the trauma patient. 

(Cognitive) 
39. Demonstrate appropriate helmet removal. (Psychomotor) 
40. Demonstrate how to log roll a patient with a suspected spine injury. (Psychomotor) 
41. Describe how to immobilize a patient using a long back board. (Cognitive) 
42. Demonstrate how to secure a patient to a long back board. (Psychomotor) 
43. List instances when a short back board should be used. (Cognitive) 
44. Describe how to immobilize a patient using a short back board. (Cognitive) 
45. Demonstrate immobilization using the short back board device. (Psychomotor) 
46. Describe the indications for the use of a rapid extrication procedure. (Cognitive) 
47. List the steps in performing a rapid extrication procedure. (Cognitive) 
48. Explain the rationale for utilizing rapid extrication in life and death situations. 

(Cognitive) 
49. Demonstrate the procedure for rapid extrication. (Psychomotor) 
50. Describe the emergency medical care for a patient with suspected spinal injury. 

(Cognitive) 
51. Describe the complete immobilization procedure for a patient with suspected spinal 

 injury. (Cognitive) 
52. Demonstrate the proper immobilization the patient with suspected head, neck or spinal 

trauma. (Psychomotor) 
53. Explain special considerations in caring for trauma of the geriatric patient. (Affective) 



 

 
 
 TA-55 

54. Demonstrate the emergency medical care of a geriatric trauma patient. (Psychomotor) 
 
 
MODULE 6   Infants and Children  

 
At completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

Cephalocaudal development     Dehydration 
Aspirated foreign body        Epiglottitis  
Asthma              Status asthmaticus  
Bronchiolitis      Laryngo-tracheal-bronchitis (LTB) 
Croup      Sepsis  
Reye's syndrome     Congenital heart disease     

    Sudden Infant Death Syndrome(SIDS)  Febrile seizure  
2. Describe differences in anatomy and physiology of the infant and child, from the adult 

patient. (Cognitive) 
3. List the different age groups for pediatrics. (Cognitive) 
4. Identify the developmental considerations for the following age groups: (Cognitive) 

infants   toddlers 
pre-school  school age adolescent 

5. Describe the appropriate methods of interviewing a child during the patient assessment. 
(Cognitive) 

6. Differentiate between the physical exam of an infant or child, from that of an adult. 
(Cognitive) 

7. Differentiate the response of the ill, or injured, infant or child (age specific) from that of  
 an adult. (Cognitive) 
8. Differentiate between the assessment of level of consciousness in the infant or child, from  
 that done with an adult patient. (Cognitive) 
9. List the normal ranges of vital signs for an infant and child. (Cognitive) 
10. Demonstrate the assessment of the infant and child.(Psychomotor) 
11. Identify and/or describe the signs and symptoms of the following 

pediatric conditions: (Cognitive) 
Aspirated foreign body        Epiglottitis  
Asthma              Status asthmaticus  
Bronchiolitis      LTB/Croup 
Febrile seizure     Sepsis  
Reye's Syndrome     Congenital heart disease     

    Dehydration     Meningitis 



 

 
 
 TA-56 

12. Identify and/or describe the treatments for the following  
pediatric conditions: (Cognitive)   

Aspirated foreign body        Epiglottitis  
Asthma              Status asthmaticus  
Bronchiolitis      LTB/Croup 
Febrile seizure     Sepsis  
Reye's Syndrome     Congenital heart disease     
Dehydration     Meningitis 
 

 13. List the average age ranges for the following conditions to occur: (Cognitive) 
Bronchiolitis     Epiglottitis  
LTB/ Croup     Reye's syndrome  

14. Describe the appearance of the anterior fontanelle of an infant when dehydration or  
 meningitis occurs. (Cognitive) 
15. Differentiate between respiratory distress and respiratory failure in the infant or child. 
 (Cognitive) 
16. Summarize emergency medical care strategies for respiratory distress and respiratory  
 failure. (Cognitive) 
17. Describe the indications of a partially obstructed airway in the pediatric patient.  
 (Cognitive) 
18. Describe the management of a partially obstructed airway in the pediatric patient.  
 (Cognitive) 
19. Demonstrate the techniques of foreign body airway obstruction removal in the infant or  
 child.(Psychomotor) 
20. Differentiate the delivery of oxygen and ventilation to the pediatric patient from that  
 provided to the adult. (Cognitive) 
21. Demonstrate oxygen delivery for the infant and child.(Psychomotor) 
22. Demonstrate bag-valve-mask artificial ventilations for the infant and child.(Psychomotor) 
23. Determine how much blood a pediatric patient has based on the patient's weight.  
 (Cognitive) 
24. Describe how the assessment of hypovolemic shock differs in the infant or child, from the  
 assessment of the adult. (Cognitive) 
25. Identify the signs and symptoms of shock (hypoperfusion) in the infant and child patient. 
 (Cognitive) 
26. Differentiate the infant or child's ability to compensate for hypovolemia, from that of the  
 adult patient. (Cognitive) 
27. State the usual cause of cardiac arrest in infants and children versus adults. (Cognitive) 
28. Describe the signs of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome and the most common age group  
 effected. (Cognitive) 
29. Describe the management of the cardiac arrest patient that may be due to SIDS.  
 (Cognitive)  
30. List the common causes of seizures in the infant and child patient. (Cognitive) 
31. Describe the management of seizures in the infant and child patient. (Cognitive) 
32. Describe the complications associated with hypothermia in the ill, or injured child.  
 (Cognitive) 
33. Differentiate between the injury patterns in adults, infants, and children. (Cognitive) 
34. Discuss the common mechanisms of injury found with pediatric trauma. (Cognitive) 
35. Discuss the field management of the infant and child trauma patient. (Cognitive) 
 



 

 
 
 TA-57 

36. Describe the immobilization techniques used with children and how they differ  
 from that of an adult patient. (Cognitive) 
37. Demonstrate appropriate spinal immobilization of the infant or child.(Psychomotor) 
38. Identify and/or describe the signs and symptoms for the following pediatric  

traumatic injuries: (Cognitive) 
Head and spine injuries  Chest injuries 
Abdominal injuries   Pelvic and genital injuries 
Injuries to the extremities  Burns 

39. Identify and/or describe the treatments for the following pediatric conditions: (Cognitive) 
Head and spine injuries  Chest injuries 
Abdominal injuries   Pelvic and genital injuries 
Injuries to the extremities  Burns 

40. Identify and/or describe the signs and symptoms, or indicators related to child abuse. 
(Cognitive) 

41. Identify and/or describe the management of the patient with suspected abuse. (Cognitive) 
42. Describe the medical legal responsibilities in suspected child abuse. (Cognitive) 
43. Describe the behavior of the EMT during the management of suspected abuse.(Cognitive) 
44. Describe how to support the families during a pediatric emergency.(Cognitive) 
45. Understand the rationale for having knowledge and skills appropriate for dealing with the  
 infant and child patient.(Affective) 

 
 

MODULE 7 Operations 
Ambulance Operations 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to: 
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

Type I ambulance  Type II ambulance   Type III ambulance 
Chassis set          Hydroplane   Fender judgement    
Medical Control Authority  Intervener Physician  
On-Line Medical Control Direct Medical Control         
Indirect Medical Control 

 
2. Discuss the medical and non-medical equipment needed to respond to a call. (Cognitive) 
3. List the phases of an ambulance call. (Cognitive) 
4. State what information is essential in order to respond to a call. (Cognitive) 
5. Discuss various situations that may affect response to a call. (Cognitive) 
6. Summarize the importance of preparing the unit for the next response. (Cognitive) 
7. Identify what is essential for completion of a call. (Cognitive) 
8. List the items on an ambulance that should be inspected daily for proper function. 

(Cognitive) 
9. List contributing factors to unsafe driving conditions. (Cognitive) 
10. Discuss rationale for use of excessive speed. (Cognitive) 
11. Describe the techniques used to stop a vehicle from hydroplaning. (Cognitive) 
12. List rules for parking the ambulance at an emergency scene. (Cognitive) 



 

 
 
 TA-58 

13. Describe the general provisions of state laws relating to the operation of the ambulance  
 and privileges in any or all of the following categories: (Cognitive) 
 a. Speed 
 b. Warning lights 
 c. Sirens  
 d. Right-of-way 
 e. Parking  
 f. Turning       
14. Describe the considerations that should by given to:   (Cognitive) 
 a. Request for escorts       
 b. Following an escort vehicle 
 c. Intersections 
 
15. Discuss "Due Regard For Safety of All Others" while operating an emergency vehicle. 
 (Cognitive) 
 
 
MODULE  7 Operations 
Gaining Access   (Rescue Extrication) 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to:  
 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

Confined Space Cribbing  Extrication 
Packaging  Protective Clothing Rescue 
Size Up  Tempered Glass Personal Floatation Device 
Heavy rescue  Light rescue  Medium rescue 
 

2. Describe the purpose of extrication. (Cognitive) 
3. Discuss the role of the EMT  in extrication. (Cognitive) 
4. Identify what equipment for personal safety is required for the EMT during a rescue. 
 (Cognitive) 
5. Define the fundamental components of extrication. (Cognitive) 
6. State the steps that should be taken to protect the patient during extrication. (Cognitive) 
7. Evaluate various methods of gaining access to the patient. (Cognitive) 
8. Distinguish between simple and complex access. (Cognitive) 
9. Identify and/or describe the following phases of a rescue operation: (Cognitive) 

Assessment   Gaining access 
Emergency care Disentanglement 
Removal   Transport 

10. List the possible types of hazards at a rescue scene. (Cognitive) 
11. Describe the common hazards associated with rescue operations at a motor vehicle  

crash. (Cognitive) 
12. List situations in which patients may have to be moved prior to complete stabilization. 
 (Cognitive) 
13. Name the hand tools used in light extrication. (Cognitive) 
14. List situations that require special skills or equipment during rescue operations. 
 (Cognitive) 
 



 

 
 
 TA-59 

15. Identify and/or describe information that should be gathered during scene assessment. 
 (Cognitive) 
16. Identify precautions that should be taken with a water rescue. (Cognitive) 
17. Identify precautions that should be taken for a rescue in a confined space. (Cognitive) 
18. Discuss the implications for working with varied specialty rescue operations. (Cognitive)  

 
 

 
MODULE 7 Operations 

Overviews    (Hazardous Materials, Triage, Disaster Planning) 
 
At the completion of this lesson, the EMT student will be able to:  
 
Triage/Disaster Planning 

 
1. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

Triage      Triage Officer   
Incident Command Officer   Incident Command System 
Transportation Officer   Medical Commander   

  Communications Officer     Staging Area 
Multiple Casualty Incident    Mass Casualty Incident 
Critical Incident Stress Debriefing  Post-traumatic stress disorder  

  Closed Disaster      Open Disaster 
 
2. Discuss common rules of triage. (Cognitive) 
3. Explain the categorization of patients during triage. (Cognitive) 
4. Explain how triage tags are used. (Cognitive) 
5. List the order in which injuries of a trauma patient are treated in an MCI. (Cognitive) 
6. Describe how to set up a triage staging area. (Cognitive) 
7. Describe the criteria for a multiple-casualty incident. (Cognitive) 
8. Discuss the role of the EMT in the multiple-casualty incident. (Cognitive) 
9. Define the role of the EMT in a disaster operation. (Cognitive) 
10. Describe basic concepts of the incident command system. (Cognitive) 
11. Given a simulated patient scenario, identify which priority should be given to  

the patient. (Cognitive) 
12. Describe the roles of these personnel during a mass casualty incident: (Cognitive) 

Medical/EMS command   Triage officer   Transportation officer  
Treatment officer    Staging officer  

13. Review the local mass casualty incident plan. (Cognitive) 
 
 
Hazardous Materials 

 
14. Define these terms: (Cognitive) 

Hazardous Materials Scene  Manifest  Rule of thumb   
Contamination    Decontamination  

15. Describe the recognition of the hazardous materials incident. (Cognitive) 
16. Describe the implications for contacting additional resources. (Cognitive) 
17. Explain the EMT's role during a call involving hazardous materials, or potentially  



 

 
 
 TA-60 

 involving a hazard. (Cognitive) 
18. Describe the actions that an EMT should take to ensure bystander safety. (Cognitive) 
19. State the role the EMT should perform until appropriately trained personnel arrive  
 at the scene of a hazardous materials situation. (Cognitive) 
 
21. Break down the steps to approaching a hazardous situation. (Cognitive) 
22. Discuss the various environmental hazards that affect EMS. (Cognitive) 
23. Explain the methods for preventing contamination of self, equipment and facilities. 
 (Cognitive) 
24. Explain decontamination procedures for hazardous materials at the awareness level. 
 (Cognitive) 
25. Describe the general patient management of patients exposed to hazardous 
 materials. (Cognitive) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-61 

EMT SKILLS TASK ANALYSIS 
 
Airway Management/ Oxygen Therapy/ Ventilation: 
 
TA-3  Manual Airway Maneuvers 
TA-4  Nasopharyngeal Airway 
TA-5  Oropharyngeal Airway 
TA-6  Oxygen Free Flow: Using Nasal Cannula 
TA-7  Oxygen Free Flow: Using Simple Face Mask or Reservoir Mask 
TA-8  Suctioning with Flexible Catheter 
TA-9  Suctioning with Rigid Catheter 
TA-10  Ventilation: Bag-Valve-Mask One Rescuer 
TA-11  Ventilation: Bag-Valve-Mask Two Rescuer 
TA-13  Ventilation: Demand Valve 
TA-14  Ventilation: Pocket Mask      
TA-15  Ventilation: Mask to Stoma 
TA-16  CPAP 
 
Advanced Airways 
 
TA-17  ETDLA Insertion 
TA-18  ETDLA Removal 
 
Assessment: 
 
TA-19  Blood Pressure by Auscultation 
TA-20   Blood Pressure by Palpation 
TA-21  Capillary Refill 
TA-22  Prioritized Assessment Medical Patient 
TA-23  Prioritized Assessment Trauma Patient 
TA-24  Pulses 
TA-25  Pupillary Status 
TA-26  Respiratory Status 
TA-27  Skin Signs 
 
Basic Life Support: 
 
Refer to current AHA guidelines or equivalent education resources 
 
Bleeding Control/ Care of Soft Tissue Injuries: 
 
TA-40  Dressing Application/Bandaging 
TA-41  Pressure Dressing Application 
TA-42  Tourniquet Application 
 
TA-43  Patient Management-Medical Scenario 
TA-45  Patient Management-Trauma Scenario 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-62 

 
Pneumatic Anti-Shock Garment:  
 
TA-48  Pneumatic Anti-Shock Garment Application/Inflation 
TA-49  Pneumatic Anti-Shock Garment Deflation 
 
Spinal Immobilization: 
 
TA-50  Cervical Collar Application 
TA-51  Helmet Removal Procedure 
TA-52  Log Roll Procedure  
TA-53  Rapid Extrication Procedure 
TA-54  Securing Patient to Long Backboard 
TA-55  Short Backboard/KED Application 
TA-56  Straddle Slide Procedure 
 
Splinting: 
 
TA-57  Rigid Splint 
TA-58  Traction Splint 
 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 TA-63 

 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management: 

 Manual Maneuvers 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

(Modified) Jaw Thrust: 
1. States or demonstrates indication for use: 
 patient unable to maintain own airway with suspected spinal injury. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as indicated.   

3. Places hands on either side of patient's head and maintains head 
in fixed neutral position at all times. 

  

4. Uses index fingers to displace mandible forward (upward).   

5. Performs technique so as to effectively open airway while 
preventing neck movement. 

  

Chin Lift Method: 

1. States or demonstrates indication for use: patient unable to 
maintain own airway with no risk of spinal injury. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as indicated.   

3. Grasps chin with thumb and index finger of one hand and lifts chin 
(mandible) upward. 

  

4. Holds head in neutral position with other hand.   

5. Performs technique so as to effectively open airway while limiting 
neck hyperextension. 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 
 



 

 
 
 TA-64 

 
 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management: Nasopharyngeal Airway (NPA) Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indications for use: to assist in managing airway in 
patient who is at risk for loss of airway. May be tolerated in 
patient with presence of gag reflex. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

3. Chooses and measures proper size NPA. (Center of mouth 
down to angle of jaw or tip of nose up to the ear lobe.) 

  

4. Lubricates NPA with water soluble jelly.   

5. Inserts NPA with bevel to floor of nostril or towards the septum 
following the curvature of the nasopharynx. 

  

6. Does not insert NPA too far, flange of NPA remains outside of 
nose. 

  

7. States that if resistance is met, NPA is removed and insertion 
is attempted in other nostril. 

  

8. Maintains patient airway with manual maneuver during 
scenario. 

  

9. NPA is inserted gently without trauma to nasal cavity.    

10. Can state that patient airway must be monitored closely for 
change in position of NPA and presence of emesis. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-65 

 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management: Oropharyngeal Airway (OPA) Weight Score 
0,1,2 

1. States indications for use: to assist in managing airway in 
patient who is at risk for loss of airway with absence of gag 
reflex. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

3. Chooses and measures proper size OPA. (Center of mouth 
down to angle of jaw or corner of mouth up to earlobe.) 

  

4. Opens patient's mouth and inserts OPA with curvature of OPA 
to side of mouth. (At 90 angle to tongue.) 

  

5. Turns OPA to match curvature of pharynx and inserts airway 
the rest of the way into the pharynx. 

  

6. Does not insert OPA too far, flange of OPA remains outside of 
teeth. 

  

7. Maintains patient airway with manual maneuver during 
scenario. 

  

8. OPA is inserted without trauma to oral cavity and tongue is 
kept from occluding airway. 

  

9. Can state that patient airway must be monitored closely for 
change in position of OPA and presence of emesis. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-66 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy:  

 Free Flow Using Nasal Cannula 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Properly attaches gauge/regulator to oxygen cylinder and 
cannula tubing to regulator. 

  

2. Starts oxygen flow (to flush tubing) before seating cannula on 
patient's face. 

  

3. Adjusts liter flow and sets ordered flow rate.   

4. Explains procedure to patient.   

5. Places prongs of cannula into patient's nostrils and adjusts 
device to fit in proper position on patient. 

  

6. Monitors liter flow rate.   

7. When ready to discontinue oxygen use, removes cannula from 
patient and turns off oxygen flow. 

  

8. Administers appropriate oxygen liter flow rate per patient 
scenario. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-67 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy:  

 Free Flow Using Simple Face Mask or  

 Mask with Reservoir Bag 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Properly attaches gauge/regulator to oxygen cylinder and mask 
tubing to regulator. 

  

2. Starts oxygen flow (to flush tubing) before seating mask on 
patient's face. If mask with reservoir bag, fills bag before 
placing on patient. 

  

3. Adjusts liter flow and sets ordered flow rate.   

4. Explains procedure to patient.   

5. Places mask on patient's face covering nose and mouth and 
adjusts device to fit in proper position on patient. 

  

6. Monitors liter flow rate.   

7. When ready to discontinue oxygen use, removes mask from 
patient and turns off oxygen flow. 

  

8. Administers appropriate oxygen liter flow rate per patient 
scenario. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-68 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management:  

 Suctioning with Flexible Catheter 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indication for suctioning: patient with foreign material in 
oro or nasopharynx. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

3. Prepares equipment.   

4. Turns patient to side before suctioning if possible.   

5. Preoxygenates patient prior to suctioning if appropriate.   

7. Measures catheter the same method as for OPA.   

8. Turns on suction machine and inserts catheter into oral or 
nasal cavity without suction. 

  

8. Begins suction as catheter is withdrawn with a twisting motion. 
Uses intermittent suction. 

  

9. When questioned can state that suctioning is done no longer 
than 15 seconds before patient is hyperventilated again. 

  

10. Suctioning is performed without trauma to oral or nasal cavity.   

11. When questioned can state that catheter may be cleared by 
suctioning up water. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 

  



 

 
 
 TA-69 

EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management:  

 Suctioning with Rigid Catheter 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indication for suctioning: patient with foreign material in 
oropharynx. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

3. Prepares equipment.   

4. Turns patient to side before suctioning if possible.   

5. Hyperventilates patient prior to suctioning if appropriate.   

6. Turns on suction machine and inserts catheter into oral cavity 
without suction. 

  

7. Does not lose sight of end of catheter or measures for depth 
same as for OPA. 

  

8. Begins suction as catheter is withdrawn and suctions 
intermittently. 

  

9. When questioned, can state that suctioning is done no longer 
than 15 seconds before patient is hyperventilated again. 

  

10. Suctioning is performed without trauma to oral cavity.   

11. When questioned, can state that catheter may be cleared by 
suctioning up water. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-70 

EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy/Ventilation:  

 Bag-Valve-Mask (BVM) One Rescuer 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States or demonstrates indications for use: patient needing ventilatory 
assistance due to apnea, or respirations being too slow, too rapid or 
too shallow.   

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.     

3. Selects correct size (volume) bag.     

4. Positions self to enable operation of bag.   

5. Establishes and maintains airway throughout scenario.    

 a. Airway adjuncts are used when no gag reflex present   

 b. Elevates mandible during ventilation   

6. Can state why mask is transparent when questioned.   

7. Places apex of mask over bridge of nose and base of mask between 
lower lip and chin.   

  

8. Maintains seal of mask throughout scenario.   

9. Ventilates patient at rate appropriate for scenario.     

10. Observes adequate rise and fall of patient chest. Ventilates with 
approximately 600ml of volume if oxygen attached.  

  

11. Releases pressure on bag and patient is allowed to exhale.    

12. When questioned, can state 600ml tidal volume should be delivered to 
apneic adults.  

  

13. When questioned, can state the importance of pop-off valve is to 
prevent over-inflation of lungs and subsequent damage/gastric 
distention. (pediatric models only)   

  

14. When questioned, can state that the BVM can deliver 21% oxygen 
concentration without supplemental oxygen provided. 

  

15. When questioned, can state that the BVM can deliver 90% or higher 
oxygen concentration with reservoir bag and supplemental oxygen 
provided. 

  

16. When questioned, can state that the advantage of using a BVM is the 
ability to monitor compliance of the patients respiratory system. 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  

Comments: 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
Evaluation Key: 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
   1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
   2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective.  
 



 

 
 
 TA-71 

EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy/Ventilation:  

 Bag-Valve-Mask (BVM) Two Rescuer 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States or demonstrates indications for use: patient needing 
ventilatory assistance due to apnea, or respirations being too 
slow, too rapid or too shallow.   

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.     

3. Selects correct size (volume) bag.     

4. One rescuer provides airway management throughout 
scenario. 

  

 a. Airway adjuncts are used when no gag reflex present   

 b. Elevates mandible during ventilation   

 c. Maintains seal of mask throughout scenario.   

 d. Can state why mask is transparent when questioned.   

 e. Places apex of mask over bridge of nose and base of 
mask between lower lip and chin.   

  

5. Second rescuer operates BVM using two hands to squeeze the 
bag and ventilate patient. 

  

 a. Ventilates patient at rate appropriate for scenario.    

 b. Observes adequate rise and fall of patient chest. 
Ventilates with approximately 600ml of volume if 
oxygen attached.  

  

 c. Releases pressure on bag and patient is allowed to 
exhale.  

  

 d. Attaches oxygen tubing to BVM to increase 
concentration of oxygen delivered. 

  

6. When questioned, can state 600ml tidal volume should be 
delivered to apneic adults.  

  

7. When questioned, can state the importance of pop-off valve is 
to prevent over-inflation of lungs and subsequent 
damage/gastric distention. (pediatric models only)   

  

8. When questioned, can state that the BVM can deliver 21% 
oxygen concentration without supplemental oxygen provided. 

  

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 TA-72 

Ventilation, Bag-Valve-Mask, Two Rescuer, continued: 
 
 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy/Ventilation:  

 Bag-Valve-Mask (BVM) Two Rescuer 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

9. When questioned, can state that the BVM can deliver 90% 
or higher oxygen concentration with reservoir bag and 
supplemental oxygen provided.   

  

10. When questioned, can state that the advantage of using a 
BVM is the ability to monitor compliance of the patients 
respiratory system.   

  

Passing Score=                       Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 

 

 

Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-73 

 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy/Ventilation:  

 Demand Valve 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States or demonstrates indications for use: patient needing 
ventilatory assistance.   

  

2. When questioned, states contraindication of use on infants, 
and complication of inducing a pneumothorax.  

  

3. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   
  

  

4. Positions self to enable operation of device.   

5. Establishes and maintains airway throughout scenario. 
  

  

6. Can state why mask is transparent when questioned.   

7. Places apex of mask over bridge of nose and base of mask 
between lower lip and chin.   

  

8. Maintains seal of mask throughout scenario.   

9. Depresses trigger of valve and ventilates patient at rate 
appropriate for scenario.   

  

10. Observes adequate rise and fall of patient chest.     

11. Does not over-ventilate patient and adequate time is allowed 
for exhalation.  

  

12. When questioned, can state that cautious use of the valve is 
necessary to prevent over-inflation of lungs and subsequent 
damage/gastric distention.    

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 

 

 



 

 
 
 TA-74 

 

 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy/Ventilation:  

 Pocket Mask 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States or demonstrates indications for use: patient needing 
ventilatory assistance due to apnea, or respirations that are too 
slow, too rapid or too shallow. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions.   

3. Identifies pocket mask and assembles one-way valve.   

4. Establishes and maintains airway throughout scenario.   

5. Places mask correctly over patient's face.   

6. Maintains adequate seal on mask throughout scenario.   

7. Ventilates patient at appropriate rate for scenario.   

8. Observes adequate rise and fall of patient chest. Ventilation is 
approximately 700-1000ml mask only, 400-600ml with oxygen. 

  

9. Removes mouth from mask to allow patient exhalation.   

10. When questioned, can state ventilation is 700-1000ml mask 
only, 400-600ml with oxygen. 

  

11. When questioned, can state that supplemental oxygen must be 
attached to the mask as soon as possible to administer high 
concentration of oxygen. 

  

12. When questioned, can state that compliance is easy to monitor 
during pocket mask ventilation. 

  

13. When questioned, can state the cleaning requirements for 
reusable mask. 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
                   _____ PASS _____ FAIL         EVALUATOR'S  SIGNATURE___________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 
 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management/Oxygen Therapy/Ventilation:  Weight Score 



 

 
 
 TA-75 

 Mask Over Stoma 0,1,2 

1. States or demonstrates need for ventilation to stoma: patient 
with stoma needing ventilatory assistance. 

  

2. When questioned can state the anatomy and physiology of a 
stoma: 

 a. tracheostomy: the pharynx and trachea are still 
connected. 

 b. laryngostomy: the pharynx and trachea may not be 
connected. (Full or partial stoma breather) 

  

3. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

4. States or demonstrates that stoma may need to be cleared of 
secretions for adequate ventilation. 

  

5. Places soft pliable mask over stoma and ventilates with 
rescuer's mouth or BVM. 

  

6. Maintains seal on mask throughout scenario.   

7. Evaluates for escape of air through patient upper airway and 
evaluates chest rise and fall. 

  

8. If air escaping, flexes head on neck and attempts to close 
mouth and nose of patient to limit air escape. 

  

9. When questioned can state that supplemental oxygen should 
be attached to mask as soon as possible. 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 

 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 



 

 
 
 TA-76 

 Airway Management: 
 Esophageal Tracheal Double Lumen Airway 

  (Combitube) Insertion 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Knows indications for use of ETDLA:  when endotracheal intubation 
cannot be obtained in the patient who is unable to maintain their own 
airway. 

  

2. Knows contraindications: 
 a. Gag reflex present           b.  History of corrosive ingestion 
 c. History of esophageal disease 
             d. Patient less than 16 years,  under 5 ft. tall, persons over 6 ft. 7in 

  

3. Uses universal precautions throughout procedure.    

4. Prepares equipment: Checks tube, cuff, mask, suction ready.   

5. Preoxygenates patient with supplemental O2.     

6. Places patient head in neutral position, (with manual immobilization 
throughout procedure for trauma patient). 

 Lifts jaw with one hand. 

  

7. Inserts tube following curvature of oropharynx. The tube is advanced 
gently until the printed ring is aligned with teeth. 

  

8. Inflates line 1, blue pilot balloon leading to the pharyngeal cuff, with 
100ml of air using the 140ml syringe. 

  

9. Inflates line 2, white pilot balloon leading to the distal cuff, with 
approximately 15ml of air using the 20ml syringe. 

  

10. Begins ventilation through the longer blue connecting tube. If 
auscultation of breath sounds is positive and auscultation of gastric 
insufflation is negative, continues ventilation. 

  

11. If auscultation of breath sounds is negative, and gastric insufflation is 
positive, immediately begins ventilation through the short clear 
connecting tube.  

  

12. Confirms tracheal ventilation by auscultation of breath sounds and 
absence of gastric insufflation. 

  

13. Removes syringe and monitors that cuffs remain inflated.   

Passing Score=    Total Possible Score= Total=  

Comments: 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
   1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
   2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective.   
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task prior to 

execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-77 

 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management: 

 Esophageal Tracheal Double Lumen Airway 

 (Combitube) Removal 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Knows indications for use of King Airway   

2. Uses universal precautions throughout procedure.   

3. Suction is prepared for immediate use.   

4. Places patient on his side if possible.   

5. Deflates cuffs.   

6. Withdraws tube.   

7. Expects vomiting and immediately begins suctioning 
oropharynx. 

  

8. Knows complications: soft tissue trauma, vomiting, 
aspiration. 

  

Passing Score=                       Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 

 

Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 
 



 

 
 
 TA-78 

 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management: 

 King Airway  
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Knows indications for use of King Airway: Patient unable to 
maintain own airway, who has no gag reflex, and is 
unresponsive. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions throughout procedure.   

3. Knows contraindications: gag reflex, history of corrosive 
ingestion, history of esophageal disease 

  

4. Is able to identify the correct sizes with the correct height 
of patients. 

  

5. Prepares equipment: Check tube, cuff, and has suction 
ready. 

  

6. Preoxygenates patient.   

7. Places head in sniffing position (unless cervical injury 
suspected).  Lifts jaw with one hand. 

  

8. Inserts tube at 90 degrees, and follows curvature of 
hypopharynx.  The tube is advanced to the teeth. 

  

9.         Inflates bulb, and slowly pulls on tube while ventilating, 
until the tube sets into place, as noted by chest rise, skin 
color improvement. 

  

10:       Confirms airway by absence of gastric sounds and positive 
breath sounds bilaterally with auscultation. 

  

11.       After confirmation of placement, secures device.   

12.       Verbalizes the importance of reassessment of patient and 
device. 

  

Passing Score=                       Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-79 

 
 
 
 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Airway Management: 

 King Airway Removal 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Knows indications for removal of tube:  gag reflex present   

2. Uses universal precautions throughout procedure.   

3. Suction is prepared for immediate use.   

4. Places patient on his side if possible.   

5. Deflates cuffs.   

6. Withdraws tube.   

7. Expects vomiting and immediately begins suctioning 
oropharynx. 

  

8. Knows complications: soft tissue trauma, vomiting, 
aspiration. 

  

Passing Score=                       Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 

 

Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 
 



 

 
 
 TA-80 

 

 Airway Management: 

CPAP (Continuous Positive Airway Pressure) 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Utilizes universal precautions throughout procedure.   

2. Directs initial application of high flow oxygen, with pulse 
oximetry monitoring throughout. 

  

3. Verbalizes indications: Severe respiratory distress not 
responding to initial treatment for patients with CHF, 
Pulmonary edema, near drowning, hypoxia (SaO2 less 
than 92% on supplemental Oxygen, acute exacerbation of 
asthma/COPD. 

  

4. Verbalizes contraindications: Respiratory/cardiac arrest, 
BP less than 90 mmHg, unresponsive to verbal, inability to 
maintain patent airway, major trauma, pneumothorax, 
penetrating chest trauma, vomiting, active GI bleed with 
emesis, unstable facial fractures, aspiration risk or history, 
pediatric patients. 

  

5. Explains procedure to patient.   

6. Applies CPAP per manufacturer’s recommendations.   

7. Secures the  mask with provided straps and tightens to 
obtain a good seal  Checks for any air leaks, and readjusts 
mask prn. 

  

8. Advises medical control during radio report.   

9.        Verbalizes reassesses patient continually throughout 
transport, with Vital signs every 5-10 mintues. 

  

Passing Score=                       Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 

 

Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-81 

 



 

 
 
 TA-82 

EMT 
 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Blood Pressure by Auscultation 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Prepares stethoscope and sphygmomanometer.   

2. Places patient and patient arm in proper position for blood 
pressure measurement when possible. 

  

3. Places cuff, so that lower edge is about 1" above the crease of 
the elbow, with the center of bladder over the brachial artery. 

  

4. Places stethoscope diaphragm over brachial artery.   

5. Inflates cuff above the systolic pressure until the arterial 
sounds are no longer heard. 

  

6. Deflates cuff slowly enough to allow recognition and notation of 
the onset of arterial sounds and point at which sounds 
disappear. 

  

7. Recognizes that prolonged cuff inflation or repeated inflations 
will result in inaccurate blood pressure. 

  

8. Reports accurate blood pressure.   

9. When questioned, can identify abnormal blood pressure 
reading. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-83 

 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Blood Pressure by Palpation 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Prepares sphygmomanometer recognizing that the 
stethoscope is not needed for this task. 

  

2. Places patient and patient arm in proper position for blood 
pressure measurement when possible. 

  

3. Places cuff, so that lower edge is about 1" above the crease of 
the elbow, with the center of bladder over the brachial artery. 

  

4. Identifies and palpates pulse present distal to cuff.   

5. Inflates cuff above the systolic pressure until the pulse can no 
longer be felt. 

  

6. Deflates cuff slowly enough to allow recognition of the pulse 
return. Cuff is then fully deflated. 

  

7. Recognizes that diastolic measurement is not obtainable by 
palpation. 

  

8. Recognizes that prolonged cuff inflation or repeated inflations 
will result in inaccurate blood pressure. 

  

9. Reports accurate systolic blood pressure.   

10. When questioned, can identify abnormal blood pressure 
reading. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-84 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Capillary Refill 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. When questioned can state that capillary refill is a valuable sign 
to be evaluated especially in infants and children. 

  

2. Evaluates nail bed for skin color. Identifies abnormal color 
present (ie; cyanosis, jaundice). 

  

3. Applies sufficient pressure to nail bed to blanch out color from 
capillary bed. 

  

4. Releases pressure and counts seconds required for return of 
color to nail bed. 

  

5. Can identify that capillary refill greater than two seconds 
indicates impaired circulation. 

  

6. Can state when questioned the effects of cold environment on 
capillary bed. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-85 

 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM  

 Assessment: 

 Prioritized Assessment Medical Patient 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

Scene Size Up   

1.     Overviews the scene for safety, mechanism of injury, environmental        
conditions. 

  

2.     Determines number of patients, requests additional help if                     
needed. 

  

3.     Considers need for spinal motion restriction.   

Initial Assessment  (Primary Survey) 

4.      Verbalizes general impression of patient. 

  

5.     Determines chief complaint, apparent life threats.   

6.     Determines patient's responsiveness.   

7.     Evaluates status of airway.    

8.     Determines breathing is present.   

9.     Determines pulse is present. 

        a.  Evaluates patient for major bleeding. 

        b.  Evaluates skin signs (color, temp, moisture). 

  

10.   Determines patient's priority, makes transport decision   

Focused Physical Exam and History (Secondary Survey)   

11.     Assesses History of Present Illness 

          a.  Events leading to present illness (rule out trauma) 

           b. Last Meal 

  

12.    Assesses Past Medical History 

          a.  Allergies                b.  Medications      c.  Checks for medic alert tags 
  

13.     Performs focused physical exam  (Assesses affected body area/system,   
 or if indicated, completes rapid assessment) 

  

14.      Obtains baseline vital signs: 

           a.  Evaluates breathing rate 

           b.  Evaluates pulse rate 

           c.  Evaluates blood pressure (auscultated or palpated) 

           d.  Compares central and peripheral pulse (now or earlier) 

  

15.     Re-evaluates transport decision   
 



 

 
 
 TA-86 

Continued: 
 EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Prioritized Assessment Medical Patient 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 
 
16.    Completes detailed assessment 

  

17.    Verbalizes on-going assessment   

18.    Determines patient condition   

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-87 

EMT 

PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Prioritized Assessment Trauma Patient 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

Scene Size Up   

1.     Overviews scene for safety, mechanism of injury/nature of illness   

2.     Determines number of patients, requests additional help if needed    

3.     Considers stabilization of spine   
Initial Assessment  (Primary Survey) 

4.     Verbalizes general impression of patient 
  

5.     Determines chief complaint/apparent life threats   

6.     Determines patient's responsiveness (LOC)   

7.     Evaluates status of airway   

8.     Determines breathing is present   
9.     Determines pulse is present                                                                          
        a.    Evaluates patient for major bleeding 
        b.    Evaluates skin signs (color, temp, moisture) 

  

10.    Determines patient's priority, makes transport decision   

Focused Physical Exam and History (Secondary Survey)                             

             or Rapid Trauma Assessment 
  

11.   Selects appropriate assessment (focused or rapid)   
12.   Obtains baseline vital signs:                                                                          
         a.  Evaluates breathing rate                                                                          

          
         b.  Evaluates pulse rate                                                                                

  
         c.  Evaluates blood pressure (auscultated or palpated)    
         d.  Compares central and peripheral pulse 

  

13.    Obtains SAMPLE History   

14.    Assesses the head :                                                                                     
   a.  Palpates head/scalp                                                                              
     b.  Palpates facial bones, nose                                                                 
         c.  Evaluates mouth, oral cavity, ears                                               
     d.  Evaluates pupils 

  

15. Assesses the neck:                                                                                  
      a.   Evaluates trachea                                                                              
      b.   Assesses neck veins                                                                         
      c.   Palpates cervical spine 

  

 



 

 
 
 TA-88 

Continued: 
EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Prioritized Assessment Trauma Patient 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

16.   Assesses the chest:                                                                                     
   a.  Inspects and palpates                                                                          
    b.  Evaluates breath sounds 

  

17.    Assesses the abdomen/pelvis:                                                                    
 a.  Assesses the abdomen                                                                          
  b.  Evaluates pelvis                                                                                     
        c.  Evaluates genitalia (verbalize) 

  

18.   Evaluates extremities:                                                                                  
 a.  Inspects, palpates lower extremities                                                      
  b.  Inspects, palpates upper extremities                                                    
    c. Checks pulse, movement and sensation each extremity 

  

19.   Evaluates posterior (thorax and lumbar)   

20.   Checks for medic alert tags   

21.   Determines all injuries (give 3 injuries, one point per injury)   

22.   Verbalizes on-going assessment   

Passing Score=                          Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure, but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-89 

EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Pulses 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. When questioned can locate these pulse points on the body: 
 Carotid               Brachial 
 Ulnar    Femoral 
 Radial    Posterior Tibial 
 Dorsal Pedis 

  

2. Locates one of the major pulse points, properly positions 
fingers and palpates patient's pulse. 

  

3. Rate of pulse is reported accurately.   

4. When questioned can state which pulses will disappear first 
when there is hypoperfusion. 

  

5. When questioned can state the significance of the presence of 
distal pulses in regard to measurement of systolic blood 
pressure. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-90 

 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Pupillary Status 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Can state that pupils are evaluated for: 
 a. Equality of size 
 b. Roundness (shape) 
 c. Reactivity to light  
 d. Rate of reaction 
 e. Ability of eyes to move together  

  

2. Observes eyes for abnormal gaze or unusual movement.   

3. Observes and records size of pupils in ambient light.   

4. Using light source, shines bright light into one eye and 
observes constriction response.   

  

5. Repeats assessment of other pupil.   

6. Evaluates response of pupil when shining light into opposite 
eye. (Consensual response) 

  

7. Asks patient to follow track of light to evaluate eye movement 
ability. (Optional field assessment) 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-91 

  EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Respiratory Status 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Can state the importance of the respiratory evaluation: to 
evaluate effect of injury or illness on patient's ability to bring 
oxygen into the body and exhale carbon dioxide. 

  

2. Rescuer puts hand or face near patient's mouth and nose to 
evaluate amount of air moving in and out of system, and to 
listen to abnormal noises. 

  

3. Observes chest for symmetrical movement, deformity, 
abnormal chest wall movement. 

  

4. Counts rise and fall of chest and reports respiratory rate for 
one minute.  Reports respiratory quality and any abnormal 
respiratory pattern. 

  

5. When questioned, can state the significance and need for 
assistance with rapid, shallow, labored, or slow breathing. 

  

6. Auscultates the chest at four points minimally for presence or 
absence of breath sounds. 

  

7. Reports any abnormal sounds indicating obstruction of airways 
or presence of secretions. 

  

8. Reports any difference in breath sounds when comparing side 
to side. 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-92 

 EMT  

PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Assessment: 

 Skin Signs 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States the importance of assessing the skin:  to determine 
peripheral perfusion, nervous system response, and hydration. 

  

2. Observes skin for color.  Reports color, location and the 
significance of abnormal findings. 

  

3. Observes skin moisture. Reports findings and significance.   

4. Observes skin turgor and reports the status of the patient's 
hydration. 

  

5. Observes skin temperature in two locations for comparison. 
Reports findings and their significance. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 

 
 
  

 

 



 

 
 
 TA-93 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Bleeding Control/Care of Soft Tissue Injuries: 

 Dressing Application/Bandaging 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

2. Prepares equipment/supplies.   

3. Opens dressing with clean technique.   

4. Applies dressing without contaminating wound.   

5. Applies adequate pressure to control bleeding.   

6. Secures dressing with appropriate bandage, wrapping towards 
the heart without compromising distal circulation. 

  

7. Evaluates distal circulation after bandage is applied.   

8. States that bleeding is monitored and additional dressings are 
added as needed. 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-94 

 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Bleeding Control/Care of Soft Tissue Injuries: 

 Pressure Dressing Application 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

2. Prepares equipment/supplies.   

3. Bleeding is controlled initially by direct pressure to wound.   

4. Prepares dressing with clean technique.   

5. Applies dressing without contaminating wound.   

6. Applies adequate pressure to control bleeding.   

7. Secures dressing with appropriate bandage, wrapping towards 
the heart without compromising distal circulation. 

  

8. Evaluates distal circulation after bandage is applied.   

9. States that bleeding is monitored and additional dressings are 
added as needed. 

  

10. When questioned can state that an occlusive dressing would 
be applied to an open wound near the neck area to prevent air 
embolism. 

  

11. When questioned can state that an occlusive dressing would 
be applied to any open wound on the chest (anterior/posterior). 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 
  



 

 
 
 TA-95 

EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Bleeding Control/Care of Soft Tissue Injuries: 

 Tourniquet Application 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indications for use: last resort in bleeding control when 
other methods have failed or in mass casualty incident to 
control major bleeding. 

  

2. States complications of tourniquet use: 
 a. Tissue ischemia, necrosis 
 b. Potential for necessary amputation (due to ischemia) 

  

3. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

4. Chooses and applies wide band of material over padded 
vessel. 

  

5. The material is placed around the extremity at a point proximal 
to the bleeding but as distal on the extremity as possible. 

  

6. Tightens the tourniquet until bleeding stops.   

7. Secures the tourniquet to prevent loosening.   

8. States that the tourniquet is not loosened until the patient is in 
the hospital. 

  

9. Clearly identifies the patient has a tourniquet in place. (For 
example, a piece of tape is placed on patient forehead with a 
large "T" or "TK" to identify a tourniquet is being used.)  

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 TA-96 

 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Patient Management (Assessment) 

 Prioritized Assessment Medical Patient 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

Scene Size Up   

1.     Overviews the scene for safety, mechanism of injury, environmental   
conditions. 

  

2.     Determines number of patients, requests additional help if  needed.   

3.     Considers need for stabilization of spine.   

Initial Assessment  (Primary Survey) 

4.     Verbalizes general impression of patient. 

  

5.     Determines chief complaint, apparent life threats.   

6.     Determines patient's responsiveness.   

7.     Evaluates status of airway.    

8.     Determines breathing is present.   

9.     Determines pulse is present. 

         a.  Evaluates patient for major bleeding. 

         b.  Evaluates skin signs (color, temp, moisture). 

  

10.    Determines patient's priority, makes transport decision   

Focused Physical Exam and History (Secondary Survey)   

11.     Assesses History of Present Illness 

          a.  Events leading to present illness (rule out trauma) 

          b. Last Meal 

  

12.     Assesses Past Medical History 

         a.  Allergies                b.  Medications       c.  Checks for medic alert tags 
  

13.    Performs focused physical exam  (Assesses affected body area/system,    
or if indicated, completes rapid assessment) 

  

14.     Obtains baseline vital signs: 

          a.  Evaluates breathing rate                                  

          b.  Evaluates pulse rate 

          c.  Evaluates blood pressure (auscultated or palpated) 

          d.  Compares central and peripheral pulse (now or earlier) 

  

15.     Re-evaluates transport decision   

16.     Completes detailed assessment   

   



 

 
 
 TA-97 

Continued: 
 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Patient Management (Assessment) 

 Prioritized Assessment Medical Patient 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

17.     Verbalizes on-going assessment   

18.     Determines patient condition   

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 



 

 
 
 TA-98 

 

 Patient Management: 

 Medical Scenario 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

Management:   

1.     Moves patient to position of comfort   

2.     Uses manual maneuver to open airway if inadequate   

3.     Uses basic airway adjunct if indicated.   

4.     Clears airway with suction if indicated.   

5.     Provides appropriate oxygen therapy.   

6.     Assists ventilation if rate or depth of breathing is inadequate.   

7.     Controls major bleeding, manages shock.   

8.     Reassures patient.   

9.     Communicates appropriately with patient.    

10.  Verbalizes plan for patient transport.    

11.  Manages non life-threatening conditions after life-threatening    
conditions. 

  

12.  Re-evaluates patient condition throughout scenario.   

13.  Acknowledges need for ALS.   

14.  Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
Comments: 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
Evaluation Key: 
0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient.  
1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-99 

 EMT                                                                

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Patient Management (Assessment) 

 Prioritized Assessment Trauma Patient 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

Scene Size Up   

1.     Overviews scene for safety, mechanism of injury/nature of illness   

2.     Determines number of patients, requests additional help if needed    

3.     Considers stabilization of spine   
Initial Assessment  (Primary Survey) 

4.     Verbalizes general impression of patient 
  

5.     Determines chief complaint/apparent life threats   

6.     Determines patient's responsiveness (LOC)   

7.     Evaluates status of airway   

8.     Determines breathing is present   
9.     Determines pulse is present                                                                          
        a.    Evaluates patient for major bleeding 
        b.    Evaluates skin signs (color, temp, moisture) 

  

10.  Determines patient's priority, makes transport decision   

Focused Physical Exam and History (Secondary Survey)                             

              or Rapid Trauma Assessment 
  

11.    Selects appropriate assessment (focused or rapid)   
12.    Obtains baseline vital signs:                                                                          
         a.  Evaluates breathing rate                                                                          

          
         b.  Evaluates pulse rate                                                                                

  
         c.  Evaluates blood pressure (auscultated or palpated)    
         d.  Compares central and peripheral pulse 

  

13.    Obtains SAMPLE History   

14.     Assesses the head :                                                                                    
       a.  Palpates head/scalp                                                                        
           b.  Palpates facial bones, nose                                                        
                  c.  Evaluates mouth, oral cavity, ears                                 
                   d.  Evaluates pupils 

  

15.    Assesses the neck:                                                                                       
 a.   Evaluates trachea                                                                                
    b.   Assesses neck veins                                                                        
       c.   Palpates cervical spine 

  



 

 
 
 TA-100 

Continued: 
 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Patient Management (Assessment) 

 Prioritized Assessment Trauma Patient 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

16.   Assesses the chest:                                                                                     
   a.  Inspects and palpates                                                                          
    b.  Evaluates breath sounds 

  

17.     Assesses the abdomen/pelvis:                                                                   
    a.  Assesses the abdomen                                                                    
        b.  Evaluates pelvis                                                                            
                 c.  Evaluates genitalia (verbalize) 

  

18.     Evaluates extremities:                                                                                
   a.  Inspects, palpates lower extremities                                                 
       b.  Inspects, palpates upper extremities                                             
           c. Checks pulse, movement and sensation each extremity 

  

19.    Evaluates posterior (thorax and lumbar)   

20.   Checks for medic alert tags   

21.   Determines all injuries    

22.   Verbalizes on-going assessment   

Passing Score=                          Total Possible Score= Total=  
 



 

 
 
 TA-101 

 

 Patient Management: 

 Trauma Scenario 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

Management:   

1.    Immobilizes cervical spine manually.   

2.   Uses manual airway maneuver to open airway if inadequate    

3.   Uses basic airway adjunct if indicated   

4.   Clears airway with suction if indicated   

5.   Provides appropriate oxygen therapy   

6.   Assists ventilations, if rate or depth is inadequate.   

7.   Controls major bleeding.   

8.   Stabilizes injuries (fractures) appropriately.    

9.   Manages soft tissue injury appropriately.   

10. Stabilizes major chest injury when indicated (flail segment or open wound).   

11. Verbalizes spinal immobilization as indicated.   

12.  Considers use of PASG  (per medical direction)   

13.  Manages all life threatening injuries   

14. Manages non life-threatening injury after life threatening conditions.   

15. Re-evaluates patient condition throughout scenario.   

16. Acknowledges need for ALS   

17.  Utilizes universal precautions   

Passing score                                                  Total Possible Score   

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure, but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-102 

  EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Pneumatic Anti-Shock Garment Weight Score 

0,1,2 

Application:   

1. Patient assessment has been performed and potential use of 
the PASG has been established. Contraindications are not 
present. 

  

2. Areas of the body to be covered by PASG have been 
assessed. Clothing has been removed or checked for objects. 

  

3. Patient is log-rolled on to PASG or PASG are slid under patient 
without loss of spinal stabilization. 

  

4. Garment is wrapped around legs.   

5. Garment is wrapped around abdomen.   

6. Checks that garment is below 10th rib.   

Inflation: (never performed on live model)   

7. Can state indications for inflation.   

8. From patient assessment (including vital signs), has 
determined need for inflation and contraindications have been 
ruled out. (Breath sounds have been done.) 

  

9. Inflates leg compartments. Re-evaluates blood pressure.   

10. Inflates abdominal section as indicated and re-evaluates blood 
pressure. 

  

11. When inflation is completed, assures valves are closed.   

12. Continues to monitor patient.   

13. Continues to monitor pressure in PASG.   

Passing Score= Total Possible Score= Total=  
Comments: 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_____________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
   1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
   2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the  

task prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-103 

  EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Pneumatic Anti-Shock Garment: 

 Deflation Procedure 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States deflation is generally done in the hospital unless a 
complication develops before arrival to hospital. 

  

2. States that deflation should not be done until patient has been 
stabilized with fluid replacement or other means. 

  

3. Vital signs have been evaluated and recorded.   

4. Begins deflation of abdominal compartment slowly. Small 
amounts of air are allowed to escape and patient's BP is 
evaluated.  If systolic pressure drops more than 5mm/Hg, 
deflation must be stopped until pressure stabilizes. 

  

5. Deflation continues if no significant changes in BP occur.  
When abdominal compartment is deflated, one leg 
compartment at a time is taken through same procedure. 

  

6. Patient condition is monitored closely throughout procedure.   

Passing Score= Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-104 

 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Spinal Immobilization: 

 Cervical Collar Application 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indications for spinal immobilization:  
 a. Any patient at risk to spinal injury as evaluated by 

mechanism of injury  
 b. Spinal tenderness, pain, deformity 

 c. Presence of head injury 

  

2. Manually stabilizes cervical spine using bony prominences of 
head. 

  

3. Returns and maintains the head in neutral position.   

4. Appropriate size C-collar is chosen.   

5. Assesses status of neck veins and trachea before collar 
applied. 

  

6. Applies collar while strict spinal stabilization is maintained.   

7. Stabilization of spine is continued until further immobilization 
equipment is applied. (C-collar alone does not immobilize 
spine) 

  

8. When questioned, states complications of poor fitting collar: 
 a. Too tight can cause venous back flow 
 b. Too loose does not immobilize head on neck 

  

9. When questioned, states that cervical collars come in many 
sizes and must be fitted according to manufacturer's directions. 

  

Passing Score= Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 
 



 

 
 
 TA-105 

  EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Spinal Immobilization: 

 Helmet Removal Procedure 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indications for helmet removal:  
 a. Unable to maintain airway access for assessment and 

potential management 
 b. Helmet is loose  

  

2. States contraindication for helmet removal: complexity of 
equipment hinders safe removal 

  

3. Manually stabilizes spine while holding helmet.  If helmet is 
assessed to be loose, hands are placed up under the helmet to 
bony prominences of head. (During helmet removal, the head 
is best held with one hand posterior on the occiput while the 
other hand is anterior grasping across the maxilla if possible, or 
mandible.) 

  

4. A second rescuer removes helmet straps.    

5. Spinal stabilization is maintained during removal of the helmet.   

6. The second rescuer spreads helmet and removes.  Care is 
taken not to injure the nose or ears. 

  

7. The head is maintained in neutral position and not allowed to 
drop. 

  

8. If transfer of spinal stabilization is done from one rescuer to 
another, it is done without movement of the spine. 

  

9. Head and spine are padded to maintain neutral alignment.   

10. States need for addition of other equipment to complete spinal 
immobilization process. 

  

Passing Score= Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
   1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
   2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-106 

  EMT 

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Spinal Immobilization: 

 Log Roll Procedure Onto Backboard 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indications for spinal immobilization:  
 a. Any patient at risk to spinal injury as evaluated by 

mechanism of injury  
 b. Spinal tenderness, pain, deformity 

 c. Presence of head injury 

  

2. Manual stabilization of cervical spine is in place.   

3. Head is maintained in neutral position.   

4. Cervical collar has been fitted and properly put in place.    

5. Patient's extremities are placed in neutral position in 
preparation for log roll. 

  

6. Long backboard is placed along side of the patient.   

7. Rescuers are positioned to control the (head and neck), the 
thorax, and the pelvis with lower extremities. 

  

8. The patient is rolled up on to their side, past 90 if possible, 
without torsion or flexion to the spine. 

  

9. The posterior of the patient is assessed during this time.   

10. The long backboard is placed tightly against the patient.   

11. The patient is rolled down on to the backboard, without losing 
spinal alignment. 

  

12. If necessary, the patient is slid on the long axis into proper 
position without losing spinal alignment.  

  

13. Neurological status of patient is assessed before and after 
movement. 

  

14. Stabilization of the spine is maintained throughout patient 
handling. 

  

Passing Score= Total Possible Score= Total=  
Comments: 
 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
Evaluation Key: 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
   1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
   2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step  

of the task prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-107 

  EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Spinal Immobilization: 

 Rapid Extrication Procedure 
Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Can state indications for procedure: unstable patient with known or 
suspected spinal injury. 

  

2. Upon gaining access to patient, immediately immobilizes cervical 
spine in neutral position. 

  

3. Patient assessment is performed including distal neuro-vascular 
exam. 

  

4. When questioned, can state why this patient requires rapid extrication.   

5. Correctly applies cervical collar.   

6. One rescuer stabilizes head and c-spine through the access opening 
of vehicle. 

  

7. Second rescuer slides hand and arm down behind the patient to serve 
as a "splint" for the back. The rescuer's other arm is used to grasp 
patient's torso. 

  

8. A third rescuer moves the patient's lower extremities, typically lifting 
the weight to ease in patient rotation and movement. 

  

9. In one unified motion, the patient is rotated from a sitting position, to 
line up with the long backboard and is lowered to long backboard. 

  

10. Rescuers supporting head, neck and torso, move the patient in a 
neutral position without causing movement of the spinal column that 
may cause further injury. 

  

11. Patient is immobilized on long backboard with padding of voids to 
maintain neutral spinal alignment. 

  

12. Torso is secured, before head is secured to long backboard.   

13. Patient's condition is monitored throughout procedure.   

14. Neurovascular status is assessed before and after patient movement.   

15. All patient movement is performed safely without risk to rescuers or 
patient. 

  

Passing Score= Total Possible Score= Total=  

Comments: 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
Evaluation Key: 
0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient.   
1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task prior to 

execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-108 

 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Spinal Immobilization: 

 Securing Patient to Long Backboard 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indications for spinal immobilization:  
 a. Any patient at risk to spinal injury, as evaluated by 

mechanism of injury  
 b. Spinal tenderness, pain, deformity 

 c. Presence of head injury 

  

2. Patient has been placed on long backboard maintaining neutral 
spinal alignment with  cervical collar in place. 

  

3. Maintains manual cervical spine stabilization until 
immobilization equipment secures head and spine from 
movement. 

  

4. Pads all potential voids to maintain neutral spinal alignment.   

5. Applies a minimum of two straps to the thorax and pelvis areas 
strapping over bony structures. 

  

6. Secures the head to the board to maintain cervical spine 
alignment. 

  

7. Secures the lower extremities before patient transport.   

8. Straps are tightened and secured enough that the patient can 
be turned on their side while attached to the board and spinal 
alignment is maintained. 

  

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-109 

 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Spinal Immobilization: 

 Short Backboard/KED Application     

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Knows indication for use:  suspected or known cervical spine injury for 
stable patient in sitting position.               

  

2. Manual stabilization of the spine is maintained in neutral position 
throughout application of the device. 

  

3. Prioritized assessment is performed prior to application of device.   

4. Neurovascular assessment is done prior to application of device.   

5. Cervical collar is applied correctly.   

6. Any movement of the patient is done to gain access to positioning of 
the device.  Patient's spine remains stabilized in neutral position.  

  

7. Device is positioned correctly behind patient.      

8. Device is strapped to the patient's torso correctly.   

9. Device is strapped to the patient's pelvis correctly.   

10. Patient's position is corrected to a neutral position as necessary during 
application of device. 

  

11. Patient's head is secured correctly to the device.   

12. Padding is applied as necessary for comfort and positioning.   

13. Patient's condition is monitored throughout application of equipment.   

14. Patient is rotated (or lowered) correctly onto a long backboard.   

15. Movement of patient is done with safety precautions for patient and 
rescuers. 

  

16. Patient is secured on to long back board in correct position.   

17. Patient is re-secured to device as necessary to maintain neutral 
positioning of spine. 

  

18. Neurovascular status is assessed after patient movement.   

19. Patient comfort is monitored and maintained as indicated.   

Passing Score=  Total Possible Score= Total=  

Comments: 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
   1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
   2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 

Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task prior to 

execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-110 

EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Spinal Immobilization: 

 Straddle Slide Procedure Onto Backboard 

Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. States indications for spinal immobilization:  
 a. Any patient at risk to spinal injury as evaluated by 

mechanism of injury  
 b. Spinal tenderness, pain, deformity 

 c. Presence of head injury 

  

2. Manual stabilization of cervical spine is maintained in neutral 
position. 

  

3. Cervical collar has been fitted and properly put in place.   

4. Patient's extremities are placed in neutral position in 
preparation for log roll. 

  

5. Long backboard is placed at head, or feet, of patient with 
someone available to slide the board under patient. 

  

6. Rescuers are positioned to stabilize and lift the head and neck, 
both sides of the thorax, both sides of the pelvis, and the lower 
extremities. Rescuers may straddle the patient to lift, or work 
from the side of patient.  

  

7. The patient is lifted just enough to allow the board to be passed 
under the patient. 

  

8. Patient is lowered on to board in proper position.     

9. Spinal alignment is maintained throughout patient handling. 
  

  

10. Neurovascular status is assessed before and after patient 
movement. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 



 

 
 
 TA-111 

 EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Splinting: Rigid Splint Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Prepares equipment, selecting splint that will splint joints above 
and below the injury site. 

  

2. Utilizes universal precautions as indicated.   

3. Stabilizes injury site manually.   

4. Assesses neurovascular status distal to injury.   

5. Pads splint and stabilizes injury in appropriate position.   

6. Secures splint in a manner which results in the injury being 
immobilized in all planes. 

  

7. Splinting is done without causing further harm to patient.   

8. Neurovascular status is re-evaluated distal to the injury site 
after splinting and further movement. 

  

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 
 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
 1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
 2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 
Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation. 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 TA-112 

  EMT  

 PRACTICAL EVALUATION FORM 

 Splinting: Traction Splint Weight Score 

0,1,2 

1. Can state the indication for traction splinting: a patient with mid-
shaft femur fracture (when prioritization of other injuries allows 
time for splinting). 

  

2. Can state that the purpose of traction is to reduce muscle 
spasm and is not intended to align the fracture. (Should not be 
used with severely deformed compound fracture.) 

  

3. Utilizes universal precautions as appropriate.   

4. Stabilizes the site of injury. Applies manual traction to the distal 
extremity until the patient feels some relief.   

  

5. Once traction is applied, it is not released.   

6. Applies device to foot or ankle that will apply traction from 
splint.  Device is padded so circulation is not occluded. 

  

7. Sizes splint and places in correct position.   

8. Pads splint as needed and attaches ischial strap.   

9. Attaches device securing foot/ankle to traction splint and 
applies traction. 

  

10. Applies smooth mechanical traction equivalent to the manual 
traction that was held. 

  

11. Places any additional support to splint that is needed. 
(Additional bandaging, foot-rest, etc.) 

  

12. Re-evaluates distal neurovascular status.   

13. Splinting is performed without further injury to patient.   

Passing Score=   Total Possible Score= Total=  
 
Comments: 
 
 
____ PASS _____ FAIL    EVALUATOR'S SIGNATURE_________________________ 
 
Evaluation Key: 0=Did not accomplish and/or did harm to patient. 
   1=Completed procedure but was not totally effective. 
   2=Accomplished task, meeting minimum objective. 
 

Instructors may choose to establish a degree of importance factor for each step of the task 

prior to execution of the evaluation 











































Appendix E 

Risk Mitigation 

Secondary school students involved in sports demonstrate better academic achievement, school 

attendance and lifelong lessons for success (NFSHA, 213). 90% of athletes have experienced a sports 

related injury (SafeKids Worldwide, 2014). Further 163,670 middle and high school emergency room 

visits in 2012 were due to concussion (NEISS, 2014). Alarmingly, secondary schools lead the nation in 

sport related deaths (National Center for Catastrophic Sport Injury Research, 2013; Boden et al., 2013, 

Kerr et al., 2013; Meehan et al., 2013). 

Injuries can occur at any time of the day and have impact on health care costs incurred by families, 

return to the classroom and other activities, students’ self-esteem and friendships. “As concerns over 

the growing number of injuries sustained in school-sponsored sporting events and practices increase, 

school administrators must reexamine the medical services they provide our student athletes 

(NATA.org). 

 Relying on untrained personnel (ie Coaches) to provide medical services puts the athlete, school 

and its employees at risk. 

 Courts have recognized a number of areas of potential liability in the context of organized 

athletic events at the high school level (Quandt et al., 2009): 

o Preparticipation physicals and screening examinations 

 Athletic trainers may protect the school from liability by managing quality pre-

participation examinations, using objective tests rather than subjective 

judgement to evaluate athletes, working closely with physicians and a health 

care team, and keeping excellent medical records (Osborn, 2001). 

o Medical clearance to play in any particular athletic activity 

o Adequate facilities and the availability of adequate medical equipment for use by team 

physicians and/or athletic trainers 

o Providing adequate training in the use of particular safety equipment and gear by the 

athlete 

o Planning for athletic injuries and emergency situations that may arise in the context of 

any individual athletic event and having those involved (including but not limited to 

physicians, team athletic trainers, and coaches) knowledgeable with the applicable plan 

 Schools with certified athletic trainers are more likely to be well prepared for 

health related emergencies including the development and implantation of a 

venue specific detailed emergency response plan with immediate access to 

lifesaving equipment such as AEDs (Johnson et al., 2017).  

 Emergency Medical Technicians are trained to manage environmental and 

behavioral emergencies and multiple casualty incidents. School emergency 

protocols and training could be enhanced with such expertise. 

 



o Diagnosis and treatment of injuries occurring during the athletic activity 

o Return-to-play medical decisions following assessment and treatment of injuries 

o Informed consent in the context of clearance to play 

o The relationship between a team physician and athletic trainer (whether certified or 

not) and appropriate supervision 

o Recommendations for and follow-up medical care and assessments 

o Inappropriate disclosure of confidential medical information, including violation of 

federal statutes such as Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 

(HIPAA) and Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 

o Inadequate certification/training/supervision of coaches, physicians, athletic trainers, 

and others 

o Potential contributory negligence by the athlete 

o Maintenance of, knowledge of, and prescription of pharmaceutical drugs and other 

supplements 

 



Athletic Training Facility Equipment Needs 

Minimum Standard of Care 

1. Taping and wrapping supplies 

2. Splinting Equipment 

3. Braces 

4. Other protective devices  

5. Ambulatory Aids 

6. Standard Protective Equipment (e.g. 

helmet, shoulder pads) 

7. Sling psychomotor 

8. Equipment to assess weight loss and 

hydration 

9. Universal Precautions 

10. Supplies to control bleeding  

11. Supplies for cleaning, closing and 

dressing wounds 

12. Supplies to prevent spread of infectious 

disease 

13. AEDs within 3 minutes of all sites 

14. CPR manikins - adult, child and infant  

15. Bag valve and pocket mask 

16. Oral and naso pharyngeal airways 

17. Suction 

18. Pulse Oximeter 

19. Equipment to administer oxygen 

therapy 

20. Cervical stabilization devices  

21. Spine board 

22. Equipment to test neurological 

assessments (e.g. hammer) 

23. Stethoscopes 

24. Blood Pressure Cuffs 

25. Otoscope 

26. Ophthalmoscopes 

27. Equipment to assess body temperature 

including rectal probe 

28. Peak flow meter 

29. Devices to perform urinalysis 

30. Nebulizer 

31. Metered dose inhaler 

32. Auto injectable epinephrine and 

glucagon 

33. Glucometer 

34. Fitness equipment appropriate for 

fitness testing  

35. Muscle strengthening equipment 

36. Equipment to assess body composition 

37. Supplies for therapeutic interventions – 

thermal and mechanical modalities 

38. Means for rapid cooling – cold water 

immersion 

39. Means to remove helmet facemasks 

and equipment 

40. Means to create and Store Medical 

Records 

41. Standard Protocols 

o Treating and preventing heat illness 

o Treating and preventing 

environmental cold injury 

o Recognition and treatment of 

asthma  

o Acute and pre-hospital 

management of the spine injured 

athlete 

o Management of sport related 

concussion 

o Prevention of sudden death 

o Management of the diabetic athlete 

o Lightening safety in athletics 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
LANSING 

MICHIGAN'

Education
THOMAS D. WATKINS, JR.

SUPERINTENDENT OF

PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 

JOHN ENGLER 
GOVERNOR 

November 20, 2002 

TO: 	 Schools 
All Local and Intermediate School District Superintendents, Nonpublic 

Directors, and Public School Academy Directors 


FROM: 	 T~~-

SUBJECT: 	 Model Policy and Guidelines for Administering Medications to Pupils at School 

In March 2002, the Michigan legislature passed a bill (PA 51 of 2002) related to the administration of 

medications to pupils in Michigan schools. This legislation directed the Department of Education to 

review all existing guidelines, policies, and documents, and develop a model policy concerning the 

administration of medications to pupils at school. This model policy shall address the type and amount of 

training that may be required for individuals who administer medications to pupils at schools. 

It is important that each local school board, intermediate school board, nonpublic school board, and public 

school academy board of directors, review its medication administration policies. The policies shall be 

presented at a public meeting by March 15, 2003 as required by law ( one year after the effective date of 

the legislation). Local and intermediate school boards, nonpublic school boards, and public school 

academy boards are encouraged to align their policies with the state model policy for administering 

medications and provide appropriate training to individuals who administer medications to pupils at 

school. 

The Model Policies and Guidelines were developed by a workgroup convened by the Department of 

Education and included representation from educational organizations, medical professionals, legal 

professionals, and other state agencies. 

To assist districts, the following Model Policy and Guidelines for Administering Medications to Pupils at 

School documents have been developed and are available on the Department of Education website: 

Guidelines for Administration and Policy Template for Local and Intermediate Districts, Public School 

Academies and Nonpublic Schools; Training Guidelines; Resources for Staff Training; and Training 

Checklist. In addition, you can also find on our website two previous memoranda on asthma and diabetes, 

issued by the Department in October 1999 and January 2001 respectively. The information and 

suggestions contained in these memoranda will continue to be useful in helping pupils in school manage 

their chronic disease conditions. 

For an on-line version of the Model Policy and Guidelines for Administering Medications to Pupils at 

School documents go to www.michigan.gov/mde, select the Curriculum and Standards link under 

MDE Quick Links then click on School Health Services under Learning Support. To view the 

legislation, go to www.michiganlegislature.org and enter PA 51 of 2002. 

Ifyou have questions about these documents or the law, please contact Patty Lawless, Office of School 

Excellence at (517) 373-1122, or by email at lawlessp@michigan.gov. 

KATHLEEN N. STRAUS - PRESIDENT • SHARON L. GIRE - VICE PRESIDENT 


MICHAEL DAVID WARREN, JR. - SECRETARY • EILEEN LAPPIN WEISER - TREASURER 


MARIANNE YARED MCGUIRE - NASBE DELEGATE • JOHN C. AUSTIN • HERBERT S. MOYER • SHARON A. WISE 


608 WEST ALLEGAN STREET• P.O. BOX 30008 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 


www.michigan.gov • (517) 373-3324 




MICHIGAN' 
Education 


MODEL POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR 


ADMINISTERING MEDICATIONS TO PUPILS AT SCHOOL 


School District/ISD/Nonpublic/PSA Name: 

Date of Public Review of Plan: 

MODEL POLICIES AND GUIDELINES FOR ADMINISTERING MEDICA TIO NS TO PUPILS AT SCHOOL 

The following definition of "medication" is adopted for use in this district/school: medication, includes 
prescription, non-prescription and herbal medications, and includes those taken by mouth, by inhaler, those 
that are injectable, and those applied as drops to eyes, nose, or medications applied to the skin. 

• 	 The pupil's parent/guardian will give the school written permission and request to administer 
medication( s) to their pupil. 

• 	 Written instructions from a physician, which include the name of the pupil, name of the medication, 
dosage of the medication, route of administration, and time the medication is to be administered to the 
pupil shall accompany the request and be kept on record by the school. 

• 	 Parental or guardian request/permission and a physician's instructions for administration shall be 
renewed every school year. 

• 	 The building administrator will designate an individual(s) responsible for administering medications to 
pupils at that school. 

• 	 Medications must be administered by one adult in the presence of a second adult, except where the 
individual administering the medication is a licensed registered professional nurse ( as described in the 
Michigan Revised School Code, Section 380.1178), or when an emergency threatens the life or health of 
the pupil. 

• 	 Each building shall have a plan for handling medical emergencies . 

• 	 Students with disabilities who have an Individualized Educational Program (IEP) or Section 504 Plan 
shall be included under the policy and procedures that govern the administration of medications. Note: 
The policy and procedures should not violate either the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
(IDEA) or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act. 

Guidelines for Administration of Medications to Pupils in School 

• 	 A building administrator may set a reasonable designated time for the administration of medications. 
The parent/guardian shall be informed of this designated time and communicate this to the physician 
when he/she writes medication administration instructions. The school may request that the physician 
send a written explanation with the medication administration instructions to the school if an 
exception to the school's designated time is necessary . 

.:.J j'J'l'l'l !'t'i',1.'i'J.'}.'{,',l.',!,'}.',/.',l,',l.'A',i.'i,',l.'J. ,l.'i,',l.',.1.'.!.'it'J.'J,',/.'~ 1 

"Show me how this helps teachers teach and children learn." 
MICIUGAN DEPIIRlMENr OF EDUCATION 


DECISION MAKING lARI>sTICK 
 ~ 
2001 

:i'.r,, ! f ,1,1,',1,T,i,T,T.',TT,i,T.1',T,U/,'!,i:,:,V,l,1.i,T ,1,l ,i,l,1,~,l,'..i-i ,• H,1,l,l,7,!.T,",'.',i-T,l-1 T,l,V,l,!,'J,l.f,T.T.i,;,i ',:,1,;,:,;,1 u.r;:.1.: ,!,j;;,1.1,1 

1 




• 	 A building administrator shall request that a pharmacy supply the oral medication in the exact dosage 

prescribed so that the individual administering medications is not responsible for dividing/splitting 

pills. 


• 	 Any adverse reaction to medication, as described on the physician's written instructions, shall be 

reported to the pupil's parent/guardian immediately. 


• 	 Any errors made in the administration of medications shall be reported to the building administrator 
immediately, and a written report completed and entered into the pupil's school record. The building 
administrator is responsible for reporting the medication error to the pupil's parent/guardian 
immediately. 

• 	 When it is necessary for a pupil to have medication administered while on a school-sponsored field 
trip or off-site activity, the individual designated to administer medication must carry the medication 
in the original container, and record the necessary information on the medication log upon return from 
the trip/activity. 

POLICIES FOR SELF-ADMINISTRATION/SELF-POSSESSION OF MEDICATIONS 

The following definition of "self-administration/self-possession" is adopted for use in this district/school: 
Self-administration means that the pupil is able to consume or apply prescription and non-prescription 
medication in the manner directed by the physician without additional assistance or direction. Self
possession means that the pupil may carry medication on his/her person to allow for immediate and self
determined administration. 

• 	 A pupil whose parent/guardian and physician provide written permission will be able to self-administer 
and self-possess his/her own medications. 

• 	 A medication that a pupil possesses must be labeled and prepared by a pharmacy or pharmaceutical 
company and include the dosage and frequency of administration. 

• 	 A pupil's use cannot be denied if the conditions of written permission and physician direction are met. A 
building administrator may discontinue a pupil's right to self-administer and self-possession if there is 
misuse by the pupil. The denial shall follow a consultation with the parent/guardian. 

• 	 For example, a pupil who requires the use of an inhaler for relief or prevention of asthma symptoms will 
be allowed to carry and use the inhaler ifthere is written approval from the pupil's physician and 
parent/guardian on record at the school (as described in the Michigan Revised School Code, Section 
380.1179). A pupil who is in possession of an inhaler under the above conditions shall have each of 
his/her teachers notified of this by the building administrator. 

POLICIES FOR SCHOOL STAFF TRAINING 

• 	 All individuals designated to administer medication are encouraged to receive in-service training on all 
district policies and procedures related to this responsibility. School staff must be trained by a licensed 
registered professional nurse, physician, or physician assistant who has knowledge of local school 
medication policies and procedures. 

Procedures for Training of School Staff in Administration of Medications to Pupils in School 

• 	 In-service training is recommended to be four hours in length and actual "hands-on" practice in 
identifying and dispensing medications. 

• 	 Individuals, with the exception of a licensed registered professional nurse, who are responsible for 
administering any medications that must be given by injection, by nebulizer, or administered rectally, 
vaginally, or into the bladder, must receive one-to-one training by a licensed health professional. 

2 




• 	 Documentation that school personnel have completed in-service training shall be maintained by the 
school and made available, upon request, to a pupil's parent/guardian, physician, licensed registered 
professional nurse, or by a school district official. 

POLICIES FOR STORAGE AND ACCESS TO MEDICATIONS IN SCHOOL 

• 	 All medication shall be kept in a labeled container as prepared by a pharmacy, physician, or 
pharmaceutical company with the pupil's name, the name of the medication, dosage, and the frequency 
of administration. 

• 	 Medications shall be stored in a school location that is kept locked. 

• 	 Emergency medications may be stored in an area readily accessible to the individual designated to 
administer them. 

• 	 All controlled-substance1 medications will be counted and recorded upon receipt from the 
parent/guardian. The medication shall be recounted on a regular basis (monthly or bi-weekly) and this 
count reconciled with the medication administration log/record. 

Procedures for Storage and Access to Medications in School 

• 	 It is recommended that medications be brought to the school by the pupil's parent or guardian. 

• 	 No changes to medication dosage or time of administration will be made except by instruction from a 
physician. 

• 	 Parental or guardian request/permission and a physician's instructions for administration of 
medications shall be renewed every school year. 

• 	 Expiration dates on prescription medication, epi-pens, and inhalers shall be checked at least twice 
each school year. 

• 	 Medication left over at the end of the school year, or after a pupil has left the district, shall be picked 
up by the parent/guardian. If this is not done, the individual who administers the medication will 
dispose of the medication and record this disposal on the medication log. This procedure shall be 
witnessed and initialed by a second adult. 

POLICIES FOR RECORD-KEEPING RELATED TO MEDICATIONS IN SCHOOLS 

• 	 A log of medication administration shall be kept in a school office and filed in a pupil's permanent 
record at the end of each school year (see sample Medication Administration Daily Log document). 

• 	 The individual pupil log shall be kept until one year after the pupil's graduation from high school. 

Procedures for Record-Keeping of Medications in Schools 

• 	 The medications log shall include the pupil's name and the name and dosage of the medication. The 
individual giving the medication shall record the date and time of administration of the medication. 
The log shall be signed and witnessed by a second adult. 

• 	 Ifan error is made in recording, the individual who administered the medication shall cross out, initial 
the error, and make the correction in the log. 

1 Controlled-substance is defined as a drug regulated by the Federal Controlled Substances Acts, including opiates, 
depressants, stimulants, and hallucinogens. 

3 




MICHIGAN' 

Education 


MODEL POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR 


ADMINISTERING MEDICATIONS TO PUPILS AT SCHOOL 


TRAINING GUIDELINES 


Training for all individuals who are designated to administer medications to pupils in 
local and intermediate school districts, public school academies, and nonpublic schools 
must include all of the following content and skill practice: 

1. 	 A review and discussion of all Michigan and federal laws pertaining to the 

administration of medications to pupils in schools, including discussion of 

confidentiality issues. 


2. 	 A review and discussion of all policies and procedures relating to medications in 
schools including areas of responsibility of school administrators, individuals 
designated to administer medications (i.e., secretaries, aides, teachers, bus drivers, 
parents), and medical professionals (i.e., physicians, physician assistants, nurses). 

3. 	 Identification of the forms related to the administration of medications in schools. 

4. 	 Safe storage and handling of medications in school including procedures for 

receiving and disposing of medications. 


5. 	 The use, effect, and route of administration of the most commonly prescribed 

medications in schools, including adverse effects. 


6. 	 Procedures for safely dispensing medications to pupils in schools, on field trips, 
and other off-site school activities. 

7. 	 Practice in identifying and dispensing medications to pupils. 

8. 	 Policies and procedures related to pupil self-administration and self-possession of 
medication in schools. 

9. 	 Review and practice recording administration of medications. 

10. Review and discuss procedures for dealing with medication administration errors. 

''Show me how this helps ooachers reach and children learn." 
MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF EoUCAnON -~ 

DECISION MAKING YARDsrlCK EdiiC'abon 
2001 



MICHIGAN' 

Education 


MODEL POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR 


ADMINISTERING MEDICATIONS TO PUPILS AT SCHOOL 


RESOURCES FOR STAFF TRAINING 


When selecting a person to train individuals to administer medications, it is imperative 
that this person knows the policies and procedures of the public school districts, 
intermediate school districts, public school academies, and nonpublic schools. 

1. 	 If the school district employs a licensed registered professional nurse, he/she can 
conduct the training. 

2. 	 The intermediate school district or local health department may also provide 
licensed professional nursing services for staff training (see list of local health 
departments in Michigan at http://www.malph.org/page.cfm/l 8/). 

3. 	 A school district can contact the Michigan Association of School Nurses 

(MASN) at 734-992-2223 or through their website at 

www.michiganschoolnurses.org to see if there is a licensed registered 

professional nurse available to provide this training to the district. 


4. 	 A medical professional (i.e. physician, nurse, physician assistant) from the 
community may be available to conduct training for school staff. 

5. 	 Ifnone of the above resources for training are available, contact Patty Lawless at 
the Michigan Department of Education, at 517-373-1122 or by email at 
lawlessp@michigan.gov . 

I,/, I~ I.:...1 'i '.l 'l ~'!'I '1' i' ,!. ',i, ',1,' .!. ',i. l.' ,J.' J,' ,i. <,!.I J.' ,i. J. 'J.' ,!. ',!. I J.' J.' J.' -i, ',I,'.!. J ,l.' J._' 

"Show me how this helps teachers teach and childl'en learn." 
M!CfilGAN DEPrumtENr OF EDUCATION ·------~ 

Dl!CISION MAKING YARnsncK ~ 
2001 

mailto:lawlessp@michigan.gov
http:www.michiganschoolnurses.org
http://www.malph.org/page.cfm/l


MICHIGAN~ 


Educiition 


MODEL POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR 

ADMINISTERING MEDICATIONS TO PUPILS AT SCHOOL 

TRAINING CHECKLIST 

Date( s) of training: 

Trainer(s) name and qualifications: 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Names and job titles of individuals attending this training: D attached 

CONTENT AND SKILLS TAUGHT TO TRAINING PARTICIPANTS SHALL INCLUDE: 

D Review of Michigan laws governing the administration of medications to pupils in schools. 

D Discussion of local school policies and procedures relating to the administration of medications to 
pupils in schools. 

D Safe storage and handling of medications in schools. 

D Uses, effects, and routes of administration of most commonly prescribed medications for pupils in 
schools. 

D Safe dispensing procedures for medications in schools, including procedures for field trips and other 
off-site school activities. 

D Review of local school policies and procedures related to pupil self-administration and self
possession of medications. 

D Recording procedures for medications administered in schools. 

D Procedures for dealing with medication administration errors. 

D Opportunity for participants to ask questions regarding administration of medications to pupils in 
schools. 

~! 'j 'J '!'I' I' j I I' l' .!. 'i, '~' .!, '.!. ',1, I,!.,.~•.!.• J. '.J. 1 J., J., .!. , .!. 1J. • .!. '.!., .J., J., .!. , .!. '.J.' J., .!. , J._:,' 

''Show me how this helps teachers teach and children learn." 
MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION tJfiiiJ;;\ 

DECISION MAKING YARosnCK ~-~} 
2001 



---------

--------

--------

--------

-------

-----

MEDICATION ADMINISTRATION DAILY LOG 

(To be completed for each medication administered) School Year 

Name of Student: Date of Birth: Gender: Grade/Teacher: 


Name of School: Name of Medication: Dosage: 


Route(s): Time Given in School: Expiration Date: 


Directions: Initial with time of administration; a complete signature and initials of each individual administering medications shall be included below. 


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
August 

September 

October 

November 

December 

January 

February 

March 

April 

May 

June 

Initial(s) oflndividual Signature Initial(s) oflndividual Signature Codes 
Administering Medication Administering Medication 

7 (A) Absent (0) No Show 

2 (E) Early Dismissal (W) Dosage Withheld 8 _______ 

3_______ 9 _______ (F) Field Trip (N) No Medication Available 

4 10 _______ (X) No School (i.e. Holiday, weekend, snow day, etc.) 

5 11 

12 

Use reverse side for reporting significant information (e.g. Observation of medication's effectiveness, adverse reactions, reason for omission, plan to prevent future "no shows"). MDCH- Sample Updated 11/02 



Permission Form for Prescribed Medication 

School: 
Sample 

Date form received by the school:_____________ 

Date of Birth. or age: ______
Student: 

Teacher/Classroom:Grade:------- 

To be completed by the physicians or authorized prescriber 

Nameofmedication: -----------------------------------~
Reason for medication: (OPTIONAL)______________________________ 

Form of medication/treatment: 

0 Tablet/capsule Q Liquid 0 Inhaler 0 Injection 0 Nebulizer O Other ------ 

Instructions (Schedule and dose to be given at school): _________________________ 

Start: O date form received Other dates: 

Stop: O end of school year Other date/duration: _____ 

O For episodic/emergency events only 

Restrictions and/or important side effects: O None anticipated 

0 Yes. Ple:ise describe: 

Special stor:ige requirements: O None O Refrigerate 

Other: 

This student is both c:ipable and responsible for self-administering this medication: 

O No O Yes-Supervised O Yes-Unsupervised 

This student may carry this medication: 0 No O Yes 

Please indic:ite if you have provided additional information: 

O On the back side of this form O As an :itt:ichment 

Date: Signature: 


Physician's Name:_______________~ 


Address:-----------------~

Phone Number: _________________, 

To be completed by parent/guardian 
receive the above medic:ition at school according to sL'.llldard school policy.I request that (name of child) 

I request that (name of child) _______ be :illowed to self-administer the above medication at school according to the school 

policy. 
Signature: Relationship: ----- 

Dare:-------



----

-------------------------
------------------------------------

This infonnation expires on June 30, 

SCHOOL-BASED CARE PLAN for the STUDENT with DIABETES 

Birth Date: -------Name: 

Address: 

Parents or Emergency Contact: ________________ Home Phone:------

Work Phone: Pager/Cell: 

SYMPTOMS SPECIFIC TO STUDENT 

Low blood sugar High blood sugar 

1.
2.---------------- 1. 

2. 
3. 3. 

TO BE COMPLETED BY PHYSICIAN 

B

The following activities will require supervision and/or assistance for _________during the school day. 

Please check all that apply. 
DMay self test? 

Blood glucose testing Daily at -,---------
Blood glucose testing as needed per symptoms 

B
OTarget glucose range 

low blood sugar range 
Intervention 

0High blood sugar range 
0Intervention 

BKetone Checks Ifglucose levels over __mg/dl 

Administer Glucagon For following symptoms -------------

Oinsulin ad.ministration See attached schedule 

0Snack Daily at 
OSnack As needed 
Training for the above procedures will be provided by: 

Physician SignatureParent/Guardian Signature 

Address 

Phone 



IIOf ADIABRIC EMfBGII 

LOW BLOOD SUGAR (HYPOGLYCEMIA) 
ONSET CA.~ BE RAPID. MOST LIKELY TO OCCUR AT PEAK INSULIN ACTION TIMES, 

SUCH AS BEFORE LUNCH. 

SIGNS: 
FAINTNESS/ WOOZINESS/ SHAKINESS 
FATIGUE 
SWEATING 
DIZZINESS /WEAJ\...~SS 
PALE SKIN/CLAMMY SKIN 
INAPPROPRIATE ACTIONS /CONFUSION 

IRRITABILITY/MOOD CHANGES/ CRANKINESS 

DIFFICULTY FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS 

COMBATIVENESS 
INCOHERENT SPEECH 
UNCONSCIOUSNESS 

SYMPTOMS: 
MUSCLE CRAMPING 
HUNGER
NERVOUSNESS 
STOMACHACHE
BLURRED VISION /HEADACHE 
CONVULSIONS 

HIGH BLOOD SUGAR (HYPERGLYCEMIA) 
ONSET MAY BE GRADUAL OR RAPID AND CAN LEAD TO SEVERE ILLNESS OR EVEN 

DEATH 

EXCESSIVE THIRST AND FREQUENT URINATION 

BLURRED VISION 
DROWSINESS/FATIGUE 
ABDOMINAL PAIN 
NAUSEA
VOMITING
LABORED BREATHING Al"ID 
FRUITY SMELLING BREATH 

CHILDREN AND YOUTH THAT DISPLAY THESE SYMPTOMS SHOULD BE RESPONDED TO IMMEDIATELY. 

EACH CHILD ,MAY REACT DIFFERENTLY. YOU SHOULD HAVE A LIST OF SYMPTOMS EACH CHILD MAY 

EXHIBIT ON FILE ALONG WITH HOW TO RESPOND. FOR ANY OF THE ABOVE SIGNS & SYMPTOMS, 

REPORT INCIDENT TO THE CHILD'S PARENT/GUARDIAN. 

IF THE CHILD IS VOMITING AND IS UNABLE TO TAKE FLUIDS, CONVULSING OR 


BECOMES UNCONSCIOUS, OR IF YOU ARE UNCERTAIN OF WHAT TO DO 


CALL 911 AND THE CHILD'S PARENT /GUARDIAN 

The Management of Students with Diabetes in Schools Workgroup 



----------------------------

--------------- -----

Child's Name: --------~ 
Be aware of the following asthma triggers:------------------

Severe Allergies: 

MEDICATIONS TO BE GIVEN AT SCHOOL: 

NAME OF MEDICINE DOSAGE WHEN TO USE 

Side effects to be reported to health care provider:---------------

Does this child have exercise-induced asthma? Yes No 
0 This child uses an inhaler before engaging in physical exercise and if wheezing during 

physical activity. 

Activity Restrictions ( e.g., staying indoors for recess, limited activity during physical education): 

Please check all that apply: 

O I have instructed this child in the proper way to use his/her inhaled medications. It is my 
professional opinion that this child should be allowed to carry and use that medication 
by him/herself 

O It is my professional opinion that this child should not carry his/her inhaled medications 
or epi-pen by b.Irn/herself. 

0 Please contact my office for instructions in the use of this nebulizer, metered-dose 
inhaler, and/or epi-pen. 

O I have instructed this child in the proper use of a peak flow meter. His/her personal best 
peak flow is:____ 

Doctor's Signature:____________________ Date: _____ 

Parent/Guardian's Signature(s): ---------------Date: _____ 

Date: 

OVER FOR EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN~ 




----- -----------------

This information expires on June 30, -- 

SCHOOL-BASED ASTHl\'IA l\'IANAGEMENT PLAN 
Endorsed by the Michigan Asthma Steering Committee of the Michigan Department of Community Health 

STUDENT INFORlVIATION 

Child's Name:----------------- Birth Date: _____ 

Grade: Home Room Teacher: 

Physical Education Days and Times: ------------------ 

EMERGENCY INFORMATION 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CHILD'S PARENT/GUARDIAN: 

Parent/Guardian Name(s): 

First Priority Contact: Name ------------------ 
Phone ------------------ 

Second Priority Contact: Name 
Phone -------------------

------------------ 
Doctor's Name: ------ --------------- Phone: 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE cmLD'S DOCTOR: 


'\VHAT TO DO IN AN ACUTE ASTHMA EPISODE: 


1. 

2. 

3. 

CALL 911 OR AN AJ.\'IBULAi""lCE IF: Review attached "Signs of an Asthma Emergency" 


and list any additional symptoms the child may present with: 


DAILY MANAGEMENT PLAN - TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CHILD'S DOCTOR. 

OVER FOR DAILY MANAGEMENT PLAN~ 



SEEK EMERGENCY CARE IF A CHILD 


EXPERIENCES ANY OF THE FOLLOWING: 


00 Child's wheezing or coughing does not improve after taking 

medicine (15-20 minutes for most asthma medications) 

~ Child's chest or neck is pulling in while struggling to breathe 

~ Child has trouble walking or talking 

~ Child stops playing and can not start again 

~ Child's fingernails and/or lips turn blue or gray 

~ Skin between child's ribs sucks in when breathing 

Asthma is different for every person. The "Asthma Emergency Signs" 

above represent general emergency situations as per the National Asthma 

Education and Prevention Program 1997 Expert Panel Report. 

If you are at all uncertain of what to do in case of a 

breathing emergency... 

Call 911 and the child's parent/guardian 

Michigan Asthma Steering Committee of the Michigan Department of Community Health 



 

NATA Secondary School Athletic Trainers’ Committee 
2016 

 
 

 
Guidelines for Developing a Team Physician Services Agreement 
in the Secondary School 

The following document has been developed by the NATA Secondary School Athletic 
Trainers’ Committee in an effort to assist secondary school athletic trainers in 
strengthening and formalizing the relationship with a team physician.  The included 
components for such an agreement have been suggested by the American College of 
Sports Medicine (ACSM) and NATA (see resources).  Guidelines for Developing a Team 
Physician Agreement in the Secondary School is intended to serve as an overview of 
those key components as they apply to the secondary school setting.  It should be 
noted that while all components cited have merit, not all may be practical for all 
situations.  Variability with state and local regulations must also be considered.      
 
 
DEVELOPED BY THE SECONDARY SCHOOL ATHLETIC TRAINERS’ COMMITTEE: 
Larry Cooper, MS, ATC, LAT, Chair 
Bart Peterson, MSS, ATC, Incoming Chair 
Denise Alosa, MS, ATC 
Casey Christy, ATC 
George Wham, EdD, ATC, SCAT 
Dale Grooms, ATC 
Dan Newman, MS, ATC, LAT 

Kembra Mathis, MEd, ATC, LAT 
Lisa Walker, ATC 
Stacey Ritter, MS, ATC 
Chris Snoddy, ATC, LAT 
Chris Dean, ATC 
Cari Wood, ATC, NATA BOD Liaison 
Amanda Muscatell, NATA Staff Liaison 

 
 
A SPECIAL THANKS TO TEAM PHSYICIAN SERVICES AGREEMENT SUBCOMMITTEE: 
George Wham, EdD, ATC, SCAT 
Dale Grooms, ATC 
Casey Christy, ATC 
Larry Cooper, MS, ATC, LAT, Chair 
Bart Peterson, MSS, ATC, Incoming Chair 

  



 

NATA Secondary School Athletic Trainers’ Committee 
2016 

Disclaimer: 
 
The materials and information provided in the National Athletic Trainers’ Association 
(“NATA”) “Guidelines for Developing a Team Physician Services Agreement in the 
Secondary School” (the “Guideline”) are educational in nature, and the Guideline is 
published as a resource for NATA members and is intended solely for personal 
use/reference in the manner described herein.      
 
NATA has taken reasonable efforts to ensure that all materials included in the Guideline 
are accurate and consistent with standards of good practice in the general athletic 
trainers’ industry.  As research and practice advance, however, standards may 
change.  For this reason, it is recommended that NATA members evaluate the 
applicability of any materials included in the Guideline in light of particular situations 
and changing standards. 
 
By accessing this Guideline, NATA members agree to use it appropriately and within 
applicable state laws regarding athletic training licensure and/or regulation.   
 
In no event shall the National Athletic Trainers’ Association, its directors, officers, or 
employees be held liable for any losses, injury, damages, or any other consequences 
resulting from, or arising in connection with, the use or reliance on any materials 
provided in or accessed via the Guideline.  By accessing the Guideline, all NATA 
members who make use of the Guideline agree to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the National Athletic Trainers’ Association, its directors, officers, or employees, 
from and against any and all losses, costs, expenses, claims, damages and liabilities 
related to or associated with the NATA member’s use of the Guideline, including but 
not limited to any and all losses, costs, expenses, claims, damages and liabilities arising 
from or related to the improper use of the Guideline.  By accessing the Guideline, all 
NATA members who make use of the Guideline agree to abide by applicable state 
laws, and NATA standards, rules and regulations regarding the lawful practice of 
athletic training. 
  



 

NATA Secondary School Athletic Trainers’ Committee 
2016 

Guidelines for Developing a Team Physician Services Agreement 
in the Secondary School 

 

Qualifications for a Team Physician  
The team physician should be a medical doctor or doctor of osteopathy and have an 
unrestricted medical license.  He/she should play a leadership role in the organization, 
management and provision of medical care for individual, team, and mass 
participation sporting events.  A team physician should possess special proficiency in 
the prevention and care of musculoskeletal injuries and medical conditions 
encountered in sports.  Additionally, the team physician should integrate medical 
expertise with medical consultants, athletic trainers (ATs) and other healthcare 
providers.  The team physician should be trained in CPR and have a fundamental 
knowledge of sports-related emergency care. The team physician should also have a 
role in the development of the athletics program’s emergency action plan (EAP).  
 
Defining the Role of Team Physician 
Expectations clearly identifying the role of the team physician should be established to 
prevent misunderstandings with other providers, such as the athletes’ primary care 
provider and other physicians affiliated with the school.  In some cases, an athletics 
program may have an agreement with one physician/physician group to provide care 
for orthopaedic injuries/conditions and another for non-orthopaedic injuries and 
general medical conditions, head injuries, etc.  These arrangements should be 
established as written agreements to establish each physician’s role.  If a team 
physician plans to delegate responsibilities to others, such as fellows, residents, or a 
physician assistant, this should be considered in the agreement.  Additionally, in states 
that require a school physician clear language should be developed to identify the role 
of the school physician and the team physician, if they are not the same individual.  For 
example, the school physician may approve physicals, and oversee general medical 
issues and school policies; while the team physician might provide event coverage and 
weekly visits to the athletic training facility. 
 
Costs Related to Physician Services 
Due to potential for conflict of interest, expectations regarding physician services that 
require reimbursement and those which do not should be clearly identified and spelled 
out in the contract for physician services. Whether a team physician is volunteering or 
employed by the school district, he or she should be approved annually by the school 
district’s board of education. 
 
Liability Insurance for Team Physician 
The physician(s) should provide proof of appropriate liability insurance naming the 
school district as additional insured under their policy.  An agreement to indemnify and 
otherwise hold the school district harmless for any acts of negligence relative to the 
physician(s) providing services is also recommended. The indemnification should cover 
school district employees, officers and any third party participants in the school athletic 
program. 



 

NATA Secondary School Athletic Trainers’ Committee 
2016 

 
Team Physician Supervision of the Athletic Training Staff  
Because of the close working relationship of the athletic trainer and team physician, an 
official supervisory role must be specified in the team physician agreement.  Minimally, 
the agreement should identify the existence of a collaborative professional relationship 
and identify the nature of the relationship as agreed upon by the physician and the AT 
and as required by state regulations.  Furthermore, “standing orders” that outline 
services performed at the athletic trainer’s discretion under the physician’s direction 
should be approved annually.  Such a document should not be an impediment in 
allowing an AT to practice to the full scope of the AT practice act in his/her state.  The 
physician’s day-to day availability to the athletic trainer for consultation (whether in-
person, by phone, or electronic means) is another consideration for the agreement.   
 
Team Physician Accessibility and Communication    
Accessibility and communication are key factors necessary to consider when selecting 
a team physician.  An AT must be able to refer an injured athlete to the team physician 
for evaluation in a timely fashion (assuming team physician is an approved provider by 
the athlete’s insurance plan) and receive written (and when necessary verbal) 
communication regarding recommendations and restrictions for the athlete.  The team 
physician should be available for consultation with the AT regarding the medical care 
of the program’s student athletes, prevention initiatives, rehab protocols and 
emergency medical management. 
 
Event Coverage for the Team Physician  
While coverage for varsity home football games is traditionally a standard part of a 
team physician’s duties, other events in which physician services might be valuable 
should be considered (i.e. special tournaments, post-season events, all-star games, 
away football game coverage, etc.).  Consideration should also be given to the 
establishment of expectations for physician arrival and departure times.  Recognizing 
that athletes often don’t report injuries until after the game once in the athletic training 
facility or the locker room, consideration should be given to establish how long the 
physician should prepare to stay afterwards to be available for post-game injury 
evaluations.  Another area where physician services might be helpful could be a 
weekly clinic in the athletic training facility. These visits are not intended to replace the 
athlete’s primary care provider, but to enhance the care of the student athlete 
providing onsite.  Communication with the parent or guardian from the physician or the 
athletic trainer is paramount during these visits. 
 
Establishing a Return to Play Process for the Team Physician 
Establishing a process for returning an athlete to play is the essential first step in 
determining when an injured/ill athlete may return to participation.  The process should 
include evaluation of the athlete’s health status, participation risk, and extrinsic factors.  
In accordance with “Inter-Association Consensus Statement on Best Practices for Sports 
Medicine Management for Secondary Schools and Colleges,” the school and/or team 
physician, and by extension, the district athletic trainers, should have the final and 
unquestionable authority regarding return to play decisions.  
 



 

NATA Secondary School Athletic Trainers’ Committee 
2016 

Sideline Preparedness for the Team Physician 
It is important that the team physician understands, develops and practices the 
components of sideline preparedness to promote the health and safety of the student 
athlete, limit injury/illness, and provide appropriate medical care at the site of 
competition.   As suggested by the ACSM Team Physician Consensus Statement: 
Sideline Preparedness for the Team Physician (2010), a team physician should play a 
role in medical and administrative protocols for preseason and game-day planning 
along with insuring access to game-day sideline supplies, equipment, and medication 
to execute the emergency action plan and address other medical emergencies 
(anaphylaxis, asthma, sudden cardiac arrest, heat illness, and spinal cord injury).  It may 
also be desirable to have access to supplies, medication and equipment to provide 
sideline care for other common injuries (soft-tissue injuries, dislocation, fractures, 
lacerations, eye, and dental injuries).  
 
Evaluation of Team Physician  
The team physician should be evaluated annually by a school administrator familiar 
with his or her role and performance, with input from the athletic trainer, and school 
nurse.  The evaluation of a team physician should include many components of a team 
physician’s responsibilities.  Evaluation can be specific in the administrative areas while 
more general in the medical areas.  
 
Note:  evaluation of medical judgement and decision making should only come from 
another licensed physician.   
 
The following are some areas of evaluation.  This is not an inclusive list. 
 

• Developing a chain of command, with the team physician at the top. 
• Coordinating preparticipation screenings, examinations, and evaluations. 
• Ensuring proper preparation for safe return to participation after an illness or 

injury. 
• Providing medical management of injury and illness. 
• Coordinating rehabilitation and return to participation. 
• Integrating his or her medical expertise with that of other health care providers, 

including medical specialists, athletic trainers, and allied health professionals. 
• Providing appropriate education and counseling regarding nutrition, strength 

and conditioning, ergogenic aids, sub- stance abuse, and other medical issues 
that could affect the athlete; as well as ensuring medical documentation and 
medical record keeping. 

  



 

NATA Secondary School Athletic Trainers’ Committee 
2016 

References 
ACSM Team Physician Consensus Statement: 2013 Update  
http://www.acsm.org/docs/other-
documents/team_physician_consensus_statement___2013_update-24.pdf%29 
 
ACSM Sideline Preparedness for the Team Physician: A Consensus Statement – 2012 
Update 
http://journals.lww.com/acsm-
msse/Fulltext/2012/12000/Sideline_Preparedness_for_the_Team_Physician___A.24.aspx 
 
ACSM The Team Physician and Return-to-Play Decision: A Consensus Statement  - 2012 
Update 
http://journals.lww.com/acsm-
msse/Fulltext/2012/12000/The_Team_Physician_and_the_Return_to_Play.25.aspx 
 
NATA SSATC Position Improvement Guide 
http://www.nata.org/sites/default/files/Secondary-School-Position-Improvement-
Guide.pdf 
 
Inter-Association Consensus Statement on Best Practices for Sports Medicine 
Management for Secondary Schools and Colleges 
http://www.nata.org/sites/default/files/SportsMedicineManagement.pdf 
 
 
Samples/Examples 
Appendix A. Services Agreement – Example A  
 
Appendix B. Services Agreement – Example B 
 
Appendix C. NATA Sample: Standard Operating Procedures 
 
Appendix D. Sample Standing Operating Procedures 
 
Appendix E. Physician Supervision of Athletic Trainers Document 
 
Appendix F. Physician Evaluation Document 
  

http://www.acsm.org/docs/other-documents/team_physician_consensus_statement___2013_update-24.pdf%29
http://www.acsm.org/docs/other-documents/team_physician_consensus_statement___2013_update-24.pdf%29
http://journals.lww.com/acsm-msse/Fulltext/2012/12000/Sideline_Preparedness_for_the_Team_Physician___A.24.aspx
http://journals.lww.com/acsm-msse/Fulltext/2012/12000/Sideline_Preparedness_for_the_Team_Physician___A.24.aspx
http://journals.lww.com/acsm-msse/Fulltext/2012/12000/The_Team_Physician_and_the_Return_to_Play.25.aspx
http://journals.lww.com/acsm-msse/Fulltext/2012/12000/The_Team_Physician_and_the_Return_to_Play.25.aspx
http://www.nata.org/sites/default/files/Secondary-School-Position-Improvement-Guide.pdf
http://www.nata.org/sites/default/files/Secondary-School-Position-Improvement-Guide.pdf
http://www.nata.org/sites/default/files/SportsMedicineManagement.pdf


 

NATA Secondary School Athletic Trainers’ Committee 
2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A. Services Agreement – Example A 
 
  



1529855.3  

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

This Services  Agreement  ("Agreement") is entered into by and between Company X 
("Company"), a not-for-profit corporation and the School ("School").  School and Company 
are hereinafter referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

 

 
Section I - Recitals 

 
WHEREAS, COMPANY is a limited liability company that provides professional 

medical services, including the specialty of sports medicine, through its employed licensed and 
qualified physicians. 

 
WHEREAS, School seeks to have COMPANY provide professional sports medicine 
services to School and COMPANY desires to provide such services. 

 
WHEREAS, COMPANY shall designate the individuals identified in Exhibit A 

(hereafter the "Designated Physicians") to provide the services outlined in this Agreement.  In 
addition to the Designated Physicians, COMPANY may designate other physicians to provide the 
services on behalf of COMPANY. 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, agreements 

and obligations herein stated, the sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, it 
is now agreed by and between the Parties hereto as follows: 

 
Section II - Services to be Provided by 

Company 
 
2.1       Professional Services.  The Designated Physicians shall provide the following services 

on a mutually agreed upon basis during the Term (as defined below) and any Renewal 
Term (as defined below) pursuant to this Agreement: 

 
a.  Provide consultation on injuries and illnesses as well as return to play decisions 

involving School athletes. 
 

b. Provide certain sideline/event team coverage for mutually agreed upon games, 
including select away games. 

 
c.  Provide  educational  programming  for  coaches,  parents,  and  student  athletes 

relating to sports medicine as mutually agreed upon. 
 

The Designated Physicians may, at their discretion, attend games as mutually agreed 
upon between School and the Designated Physicians, including possible travel to away 
games for playoffs. 



2.2 Malpractice Insurance.  IBn  shall provide and maintain professional liability insurance 

-2- 

1529855.3 

 

 

covering both itself and each COMPANY employee providing services under this 
Agreement in a minimum amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and 
Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000)  in the aggregate. The School will maintain 
professional liability coverage for each of their Athletic Trainers working with 
COMPANY in a minimum amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 
and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) in the aggregate.   Each Athletic Trainer will 
additionally complete a claims history summary and application with COMPANY's  
insurer when working with COMPANY so that COMPANY may obtain appropriate 
coverage for its physicians, such coverage will be at no cost to School. 

 
2.3  Additional  Insurance.  Both  parties shall  obtain commercial  general  liability 
insurance and property damage insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence and $3,000,000.00  in the aggregate.   Both parties shall  keep and maintain 
Workers'  Compensation  Insurance covering all costs, statutory benefits, and liabilities 
under State  Workers'  Compensation and similar laws for  their respective employees. 
Such insurance shall be obtained through an insurance carrier with an A.M. Best's rating 
at a minimum of A-9.  With respect to all such insurance, the other party shall be named 
as  an  additional  insured.    Each  party  shall  cooperate  in  completing  all  necessary 
paperwork and providing evidence of coverage to allow for them to be named as an 
additional insured. The failure to provide acceptable insurance shall be deemed a breach 
of this Agreement entitling the other Party  to terminate this Agreement immediately. All 
policies of insurance shall provide by endorsement that no coverage may be canceled, 
terminated, or reduced by the insuring company without the insuring company having 
first given at least 30 days prior written notice to the other Party by certified mail, return 
receipt requested. 

 
2.4  Indemnification. Company and the School each agree to mutually indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the other party and their respective board members, employees, and agents 
from all claims, causes of action, damages, whether to person (including death) or 
property, costs (including reasonable attorneys' fees), and losses (collectively "Loss") to 
the extent the Loss arises out of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying party in association with this Agreement. No compromise or settlement of 
any such claim shall be  made  without  the  prior written consent  of  the  indemnitee  
unless otherwise required by final decree of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
2.5  No  Waiver  of  Tort  Immunity Defenses.    Nothing  contained  in  this Agreement  is 

intended to constitute nor shall constitute a waiver of the defenses available to the School 
under the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, with 
respect to claims by third parties. 

 
2.6   Background Investigation. No Designated Physician shall be assigned to the School 

who would be prohibited from being employed by the District due to a conviction of a 
crime listed i n 105 ILCS 5/10-21.9 or who is listed in the state Sex Offender Registry or 
the state Murderer and Violent Offender Against Youth Registry. COMPANY shall 
make every Designated  Physician or employee who will be sent to any school 
building or school property available to the School for the purpose of submitting to a 
fingerprint- 



based criminal  history records check pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/10-21.9.   The check shall 

-3- 

1529855.3 

 

 

occur  before  any employee  or agent  is sent to any school  building or school  property. 
The  School  must  provide  a copy  of the report  to the individual  employee,  but  is not 
authorized  to release it to COMPANY. 

 
2.7        Student  Records; Confidentiality. COMPANY, the  Designated  Physicians, and any  

persons handling  records on its behalf shall comply with all applicable  provisions of 
federal and state  laws  and  regulations,   including  without  limitation  the  state  School   
Student Records Act, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), and the 
Health Insurance   Portability   and  Accountability   Act  of  1996  (HIPPA)  in  their  
current  and amended  forms and all corresponding  regulations.   All records shall be the 
sole property of the School  and shall  be maintained  at the School's location  in 
accordance  with all applicable  State  and federal  laws and regulations. Copies as 
necessary and to the extent permitted  by  law  shall  be  made  available  to  COMPANY  
as  required  for  the  furtherance  of medical treatment and as required for all public health 
reporting. 

 
2.8       FOIA.  As an independent  contractor  of the School, records  in the possession  of 

COMPANY related  to  this  Agreement  may  be subject  to  the state  Freedom  of  
Information  Act ("FOIA"), 5 ILCS  140/5-1  et  seq.; 5  ILCS  140/7(2).  COMPANY, at  
the School's cost,  shall immediately provide the School with any such  records requested 
by the School in order to timely respond to any FOIA request received by the School. The 
School will review all such records to determine whether FOIA exemptions apply before 
disclosing the records, such that information properly exempt as proprietary or prohibited  
from release by other laws or exempt  for other reasons will not be released.  If 
COMPANY refuses to provide a record that is the subject of a FOIA request to the School 
and the Attorney General or a court of competent  jurisdiction subsequently requires  the 
release of the record or  penalizes  the School  in any  way, COMPANY shall  reimburse  
the School  for all costs,  including  attorneys' fees, incurred by the School related to the 
FOIA request and records at issue. 

 
Section III - Relationship of Parties 

 
3.1 Independent  Contractors.  COMPANY  and  School  shall,  at  all  times,  act  and  

perform  as independent  contractors, and not as joint venturers or agents of the other 
Party.  Neither Party shall have or exercise any direction or control over the methods, 
techniques, or procedures  by which the other Party or its personnel shall perform their 
professional responsibilities and functions. 

 
3.2  Compensation  of  Employees. Each  Party  is  solely  responsible for  and  shall  pay  all 

required taxes in connection  with the compensation  paid to its Employees.   COMPANY 
shall be solely   responsible   for   compensating   COMPANY's   physician   employees   for 
their services provided  hereunder  and for paying all required employer  taxes in 
connection  therewith. The School  shall be solely  responsible for compensating  the 
School's Certified  Athletic Trainer  employees for  their  services  provided  hereunder  
and  for  paying  all  required employer taxes in connection  therewith. None of the 
School's Certified  Athletic Trainers shall  have any  claim against  COMPANY for salary, 



based criminal  history records check pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/10-21.9.   The check shall 

-3- 

1529855.3 

 

 

wages, vacation  pay, sick  pay, retirement benefits, social  security,  workers' 
compensation,  disability,  unemployment  insurance, or 



other employee  benefits of any kind or other compensation of any kind in connection 

-4 

1529855.3 

 

 

with their services provided hereunder. None of COMPANY's employees shall have 
any claim against the School District for salary, wages, vacation pay, sick pay, 
retirement benefits, social security, workers' compensation, disability, unemployment 
insurance, or other employee benefits of any kind or other compensation of any kind in 
connection with their services provided hereunder. 

 
Section IV- Term and Termination 

 
4.1  Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain effective 

for a one year (the "Term") unless and until earlier terminated pursuant to this Section. 
This Agreement shall be automatically renewable for additional one-year periods (each, a 
"Renewal Term"). 

 
4.2  Termination  Without Cause.  This Agreement may  be terminated  by either Company 

or School without cause with 60 days prior written notice to the other Party. 
 

Section V - General Provisions 
 

5.1  Binding Effect/Assignment. 
 

a.         Neither Party may assign its rights or duties under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the other Party.  Any attempt to assign, transfer, pledge, 
hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of any provision of this Agreement in violation 
of this Agreement shall be null and void. 

 
b.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of all of the Parties 

hereto and their permitted successors and assigns. 
 

5.2  Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended in whole or in part only by written 
instrument signed by each of the Parties hereto. 

 
5.3       Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall be deemed to express, embody and supersede 

all previous understandings, agreements, and commitments, whether written or oral, 
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and to finally set 
forth the entire agreement between the Parties. 

 
5.4  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the state. Jurisdiction and venue for all disputes related to 
this Agreement shall be the Circuit Court located in County, State, or the federal district 
court for the state. 

 
5.5  Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience and shall 

not affect the interpretation of this Agreement. 



-5 

1529855.3 

5.6 Notices.  Any  notice required  by this Agreement  shall  be in  writing and shall  be given  

 

and be deemed  to have been given if (a) hand delivered, (b) sent via overnight  delivery, 
(c) sent via facsimile, (d) sent via electronic mail, or (c) mailed, postage prepaid, certified 
mail (return receipt requested), addressed as follows: 

 
TO COMPANY:  Company Contact Information 

 
TO SCHOOL:           School Contact Information 

 
5.7  Waiver. No  delay  or  omission  by any  Party  to this  Agreement  to exercise  its rights 

under  this Agreement  shall  impair any such  right or power or shall  be construed  as a 
waiver or acquiescence of any default  except as agreed in writing  by the Party against 
whom the applicable waiver or acquiescence  is asserted. No waiver of any default shall 
be construed, taken, or held to be a waiver of any other default. 

 
5.8  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 

shall  be deemed  an original, but all of which shall together  constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

 
5.9  Invalidity. 

 
a.  The   Parties  intend   the  terms,   restrictions,   covenants,  and  promises   in  this 

Agreement  to be binding only to the extent valid and enforceable  under applicable 
Jaw. If any term, restriction, covenant, or promise contained  in this Agreement  is 
invalid   or  unenforceable,   then  the  Parties  agree  to  be  bound  by  such  term, 
restriction,  covenant,  or promise as modified (or deleted) to the extent (and only 
to the extent) necessary to make it valid and enforceable. 

 
b.         The  invalidity  or unenforceability  of any  provision  of this Agreement  shall  not 

affect the validity or enforceability  of any other provision. 
 
5.10  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be deemed dated and become effective on the date 

the last of the parties signs as set forth below the signature of their duly authorized 
representatives. 

 
IN WITNESS  WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 

first set forth above. 
 
COMPANY, SCHOOL, 



-7- 

1529855.3 

 

 

Exhibit A Designated 
Physicians 

 
Physician A 
Physician B 



 



Page I of13  

 
SPORTS MEDICINE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS  SERVICES  AGREEMENT  ("Agreement")  is  made  and  entered  into to  be 
effective DATE,  by and between Physician Group  ("Physician") and School District 
("District"). 

 
WHEREAS,  Physician is a non-profit corporation which operates a fully-integrated 

healthcare delivery system that provides comprehensive healthcare and related services to the 
citizens of the City, State and beyond to include the provision of sports medicine services in the 
communities served by Physician; 

 
WHEREAS,  District has determined there is a need to engage an entity to provide sports 

medicine services in support of its high schools and desires to engage Physician to provide the 
sports medicine and related services contemplated herein; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Physician employs and/or contracts with staff, who are qualified by reason 

of education, training, and experience, to provide the services contemplated herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 
herein, the  receipt and  sufficiency  of which are hereby acknowledged, the  parties agree as 
follows: 

 
1. RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF PHYSICIAN 

 
1.1  Services    District hereby engages Physician to provide certain sports 

medicine services, as set forth in Exhibit A, which is hereby incorporated into 
and made part of this Agreement ("Services"). Physician hereby accepts such 
engagement and agrees to provide said Services in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement. Physician shall provide the Services through employees 
and/or contractors ("Physician Staff' or "Staff') who are qualified and 
appropriately licensed, certified and/or registered, to the extent required, to 
perform all functions assigned to them in connection with the provision of 
Services contemplated herein. District acknowledges and agrees that 
Physician Staff who are not physicians shall not be responsible for providing 
professional medical services. 

 
1.2 Coordination   of  Services     In  order  to  meet  its  obligations  hereunder, 

Physician Staff shall: 
 
 

1.2.1 Be duly licensed, certified and/or registered, to the extent required, 
in the State to perform the required functions; 



Page 2 of 13  

 

1.2.2 Provide  the  Services  (a)  in  strict  accordance  with  approved 
standards of the Physician Staffs profession, and (b) to all 
athletes regardless of race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, 
economic or social status or disability; and 

 
1.2.3 Comply with all applicable provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 

1.3 Professional Liabilitv Insurance     Physician shall carry, or provide 
through self-insurance, and at all times maintain in full force and effect, 
professional liability insurance in the minimum amount of One Million and 
00/lOOths Dollars  ($1,000,000.00)  per occurrence  and  Three  Million  and 
00/lOOths Dollars ($3,000,000.00) annual aggregate covering Physician Staff. 
Physician's professional liability coverage does not extend to nor is it 
applicable to errors and omissions of District. Upon District's request, 
Physician shall furnish evidence of such coverage by Certificate of Insurance 
or any renewal Certificate of Insurance so that District has evidence of 
required insurance being effective at all times during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
1.4  Control of Physician Staff    Physician shall maintain ultimate control and 

responsibility for Physician Staff and the Services provided by Physician Staff 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
2. RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF DISTRICT 

 
2.1 Coordination of Services  District shall be responsible for the following: 

 
2.1.1  Providing   a   contact  person  with   District's   management  for 

Physician Staff to communicate; 
 

2.1.2  Providing certain administrative services to Physician Staff as 
specified herein; and 

 
2.1.3  Providing  the  necessary  forms,  information,  coordination  and 

support to assist Physician Staff in meeting regulatory guidelines. 
 

2.2 Insurance   District shall carry, or provide through self-insurance, and at all 
times maintain in full forces and effect, general liability insurance in the 
minimum amount of One Million and 00/lOOths Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence and One Million and 00/lOOths Dollars ($1,000,000.00) annual 
aggregate covering District and all activities that District coordinates or 
otherwise  promotes.  To  the  extent  possible, District  shall  name Physician 
as an additional insured on all such policies. Upon Physician's request, 
District shall furnish evidence of such  coverage by Certificate of 



Page 3 of 13  

Insurance or any renewal Certificate of Insurance so that Physician has 
evidence of required insurance being effective at all times during the term of 
this Agreement. 

 
2.3 Waivers and Authorizations    District shall obtain a signed, written copy 

from all participants engaging in any activities sponsored, organized, or 
coordinated by District, for which Physician's Services will be required, of (a) 
the Consent/Release and Waiver, in a form containing information consistent 
with that set forth as an example in Exhibit B, which is hereby 
incorporated into and made part of this Agreement ("Waivers"); and (b) the 
Authorization to Disclose Protected Health Information, in a form containing 
information consistent with that set forth as an example in Exhibit C, which is 
hereby incorporated into and made part of this Agreement ("Authorizations"). 
District agrees to provide Physician with a copy of all Waivers and 
Authorizations for each participant prior to the provision of services by 
Physician hereunder. 

 
2.4 Consideration     In exchange for Physician providing the Services to 

District pursuant to this Agreement, District agrees to provide Physician that 
consideration set forth in Exhibit D, which is hereby incorporated into and 
made part of this Agreement. 

 
3. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 

 
Compensation due by District to Physician, if any, shall be set forth in Exhibit D.  In 
the event any compensation is paid pursuant to this Agreement, the parties hereby 
acknowledge and agree that such compensation shall represent fair market value for 
services actually rendered, and that no remuneration or benefits of any kind shall be 
exchanged between the parties related in any manner to the value or volume of 
patient referral between the parties. 

 
4. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

 
In  performing  the  Services  set  forth  herein,  Physician  is  acting  as  an 
independent contractor, and neither Physician nor any of its Staff shall be considered 
employees of District. It is acknowledged and agreed by the parties that, as an 
independent contractor, Physician retains the right to contract with and provide its 
services to facilities and persons other than District or any participants covered 
under this Agreement, and nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted as limiting 
or restricting that right in any way. In no event shall this Agreement be construed as 
establishing a partnership or joint venture or other similar relationship between the  
parties, and nothing herein contained shall  be construed to authorize either party to 
act as agent for the other. Neither Physician nor any of its Staff shall be subject to 
any District policies solely applicable to District's employees, or be eligible for any 
employee benefit plan offered by District. 



Page 4 ofl3  

5. TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

5.1  Term    The anticipated term of this Agreement shall be a period of one (1) 
year beginning Date ("Commencement Date"), and continuing through Date 
("Projected Expiration Date") unless otherwise terminated   as  set  forth   
below.  This  Agreement  may  be  renewed  or extended only upon the 
prior written agreement of the parties. 

 
5.2        Termination      Notwithstanding   anything  herein   to  the   contrary,  this 

Agreement shall be terminated at any time as follows: 
 
 

5.2.1  Whenever District and Physician shall mutually agree to the 
termination in writing; or 

 
5.2.2  Except as provided elsewhere in this Agreement, with cause by 

either party upon the default by the other party of any term, 
covenant or condition of this Agreement, where such default 
continues for a period often (10) business days after the defaulting 
party receives  written   notice   thereof   from   the   other  party 
specifying the existence of such default; or 

 
5.2.3  Without cause by either party upon at least thirty (30) days prior 

written notice to the other party in which case the Agreement shall 
terminate on the future date specified in such notice; or 

 
5.2.4  Upon the filing of bankruptcy by either District or Physician or in 

the event either party's creditors force them into bankruptcy. 
 
6. NOTICES 

 
Notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been 
properly given if hand delivered or duly sent by certified mail or by a nationally- 
recognized overnight delivery service (i.e. UPS or FedEx) to the address set forth 
herein or at such other address as either party hereto from time to time may have 
designated by written notice to the other party: 

 
If to Physician: 

 
Physician 
Street Address 
City, State Zip 

 
If to District: 

 
School District  



Page 5 of 13  

Street Address 
City, State Zip 

 
 
7.  LEGISLATIVE  LIMITATIONS 

 
In the event  any federal, state or local laws, rules, regulations,  or interpretations  at 
any time changes and impacts the terms of this Agreement, then the parties agree to 
negotiate in good faith to amend this Agreement.  If this Agreement  is not amended 
prior to the effective  date of such rule, regulation,  or interpretation, this Agreement 
shall terminate as of such effective date. 

 
8.  LIABILITY 

 
Each party shall  be solely  liable and responsible  for its own acts and omissions,  as 
well as the acts and omissions of such party's  employees, agents and representatives, 
and neither party shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of the other party. 

 
9.  CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
The parties recognize and acknowledge that, by virtue of entering into this Agreement 
and Physician’s provision of Services  to District  hereunder,  both parties may have 
access to certain information that is confidential and constitutes valuable, special and 
unique  property  of the other  party. Both  parties  warrant  and covenant  to each other 
that neither party will at any time, either during or subsequent to the term of this 
Agreement,  disclose  to others,  use, copy or permit to be copied,  without  the other 
party's   express   prior  written   consent,  except   pursuant  to  Physician's   or 
Physician’s  Staff duties hereunder, any confidential  or proprietary  information of the 
other party. 

 
10.  COMPLIANCE  WITH APPLICABLE  LAW AND REGULATION 

 
Each party agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations. 

 
11.  NO OBLIGATION  TO MAKE REFERRALS 

 
The parties acknowledge  that nothing contained  herein shall be interpreted to require 
or  obligate  District  or  any  team  member,  participant,  or  spectator  to  utilize  the 



Page 6 of 13  

services of  Physician, any Physician  Staff, or  any Physician facility. The parties 
further acknowledge that none of the benefits granted the parties under this  
Agreement  is conditioned on  any  requirement  or  expectation that the District 
make referrals to, be in a position to make or influence referrals to, or otherwise 
generate business for Physician. The parties further acknowledge that  neither  
District  nor  any  District  participant  or  spectator  is  restricted from receiving any 
service. Additionally, and notwithstanding any other term of this Agreement, the 
parties agree that no term of this Agreement shall be interpreted as restricting or 
limiting in any way any patient's choice of provider for any healthcare service, 
including, but not limited to, those falling within the scope of the Services 
hereunder. 

 
12. INVALID PROVISIONS 

 
In the event any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or invalid, 
such provision shall be severable from this Agreement and shall not affect the 
enforceability or validity of any other provisions contained in this Agreement. 

 
13. WAIVER 

 
The waiver of any breach of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not be 
deemed to constitute the waiver of any other breach of the same or any other term or 
condition. 

 
14. ASSIGNMENT AND MODIFICATION 

 
14.1 This Agreement and the rights and interests hereunder may be transferred or 

assigned by District or Physician only with the prior written consent of the 
other party. 

 
14.2 No amendments or additions to this Agreement shall be binding unless such 

amendments or additions are in writing and signed by Physician and 
District, except as herein otherwise provided. 

 
15. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit and be bending upon the District and its 
successors and assigns and Physician and its successors and assigns. 

 
16. HEADINGS 

 
The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall 
not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
17.  CONSTRUCTION 



Page 7 of 13  

This Agreement (or any provision herein) shall not be interpreted against any party by 
reason of the fact that such party, or its legal representative, drafted this Agreement 
(or any provision herein). 

 
18. COUNTERPARTS 

 
This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which will be 
deemed  to  be  an  original  and  all  of  which  together  shall  constitute  a  single 
instrument. 

 
19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement, to all Exhibits, represents the entire Agreement between the parties 
wherein District desires to retain the Services of Physician as contemplated herein. 
This Agreement supersedes and renders null and void all other written or oral 
agreements related to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
20. GOVERNING LAWS AND VENUE 

 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State.  Any suit,  action,  or  
resolution  of  any  dispute  arising  from  this  Agreement  shall  be instituted and 
maintained in the Town, County. 

 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



Page 8 of 13  

 
 
 

IN WITNESS  WHEREOF,  the parties execute this Agreement to be effective as of the 
day and year first above written. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PHYSICIAN 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DISTRICT 

 

 
 



Page 9 of 13  

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Services 
 
1.  For  the  2015-2016  academic  year,  Physician  will  provide  PRN  ("as  needed") 

athletic training services  to each District high school  set forth below beginning June 1, 
2015, and continuing through May 31, 2016. 

 
District High School Hours of Service Per Week 
High School 1 10 
High School 2 40 
High School 3 10 
High School 4 20 
High School 5 20 

 
This  coverage  is  intended  to  be  in addition  to District's Athletic  Trainer  coverage  of 
events, not in lieu of District's Athletic Trainer coverage.   PRN athletic training services 
include: supplying at least one (1) certified athletic trainer to provide medical triage for 
practices, home games, and home tournaments involving students that have been deemed 
'athletes' by the high school  athletic  departments;  on-site rehabilitation  of athletes with 
oversight of a covering physician; and any pre-participation  treatments deemed necessary 
by Physician. 

 
2.   All athletic training treatments  and supplies will be provided based on medical necessity 

as determined by on-site athletic training and/or Physician's  covering physician. 
 
3.   Physician  will  have  at all  times  proof  of  certification  and/or  licensure,  athletic training 

policy and procedures, and physician guided first aide and triage protocols. 
 
 
4.   Physician  will not be ultimately  responsible  for making  any decisions  related to 

whether  or  not  playing  environment  is conducive  to  play/competition,   including  each 
field's   condition,  any  possible  barriers  to  safe  play  on  or  beside  the  fields,  and  the 
cessation or delay of play due to inclement weather. District personnel will assume this 
responsibility for all gan1e-play. 

 
 

5.  Physician Staff, as employees  and/or contractors  of Physician, will be held to Physician's   
code  of conduct,  attire, and  professionalism  in addition  to being subject  to  any  
school/district  policies,  procedures,   drug  screenings,   or  background checks.  Physician  
will  not  be  responsible  for  the  funding  of  any  "additional" (outside of the existing 
Physician policies and procedures)  drug screenings and/or background checks. 

 

 
6.   Physician will not be obligated for the organization  of a pre-participation  physical 

screening,  but  may  assist  in  providing  an  opportunity  for  District  student-athletes  to 
obtain a pre-participation  physical screen by the end of the spring semester. 



Page 10 of 13  

7.  Physician  will serve as a  medical liaison  between the student-athlete, student 
athlete's  parents/guardians,   medical   professionals,   personal   trainers/strength   and 
conditioning specialists, and coaches to ensure optimal communication between above 
parties. Physician will not be responsible for scheduling appointments with the above 
mentioned  parties or  attending visits  to  any  of  the  above  mentioned  parties, 
although this may occur on occasion. 

 

 
8.  Physician will provide physician coverage as set forth in separate agreements between 

Physician and each individual high school incorporated under this Agreement that 
wishes to utilize Physician's  physicians as their primary team physician. 



Page 11 of 13  

 
 

EXHIBITB 
 

SAMPLE 
Form Consent/Release and Waiver 

 
 

CONSENT/RELEASE AND WAIVER 
 
 
 

Participant's Full Name                                                        Date of Birth                   Social Security Number 
 
 
 

Name of School                                                                     Name of Program 
 

As the parent or legal guardian of the above named Participant, 1 hereby give my consent to Physician 
("Physician") and School District ("District") to provide sports medicine services to the Participant as part of 
his/her participation in the above mentioned Program. Physician's services may include, but may not be limited 
to the following: screenings, physical exams, and athletic trainer services. 1 grant permission to Physician's  or 
District's  employees or contractors to provide such services to Participant as deemed necessary by Physician or 
District for any athletic injury prevention or treatment. 1 further grant permission for Physician or District 
employees or contractors to treat Participant for any injury or condition that arises out of Participant's activity in the 
above named Program. 

 
1 understand that all Physician's or District's employees or contractors providing services at the above named 
Program are not necessarily physicians, medical doctors, or nurses. 1 understand that the services provided by 
Physician or District relate to sports medicine services, and are not intended to be a complete medical 
examination. 1 understand that the above named Program's activities are, by their nature, capable of causing injury 
to the Participant. 

 
I Hereby  Fully  Release  Physician,  School District  ,  And  All  Of Physician's,  And  School  District’s 
Employees  Or Contractors,  From Any And  All Liability Associated With The Care, Treatment, 
Examination Or Other Healthcare Services Provided To Participant As Part Of Participant's Participation 
In The Above Named Program. 

 
 
 
 

Authority or Relationship  of Representative 
(Unless parent, attach copy of documentation 
of authority, e.g. a court order designating 
guardianship) 

Signature of Personal Representative/Guardian 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Student 
 

 
 
Date 



Page 12 of 13  

EXHIBITC 
 
 

SAMPLE 
Form Authorization for Disclosure of Protected Health  Information 

 
 

Authorization to Disclose Protected Health Information 
 
 
 

Participant's Full  Name Date of Birth  Social Security Number 
 
 
 

Name of School Name of Program 
 

I authorize Physician to use or disclose Protected Health Information to the following: 
 

The  School  and  any  individual  involved  to  the  operation  of  the  Program.  including  without  limitation  athletic 
trainers  coaches  referees  and athletic directors. 

 
I authorize Physician to use or disclose Protected Health Information for the following purpose(s): To 

inform the above named individuals of sports injuries sustained by the Student. 

Type of information requested: 

Verbal or written protected health information related to sports injuries. 

I UNDERSTAND THAT: 
1.   The  Protected   Health  Information   used  or  disclosed   under  this  authorization   may  be  subject  to 

redisclosure   by  the  receiver  and  no  longer  protected  by  the  Standard  for  Privacy  of  Individually 
Identifiable Health Information. 

2.  I understand  that treatment,  payment, enrollment  in a health plan or eligibility for benefits may not be 
conditioned  on whether I sign this authorization. 

3.    If I have any  questions  about  the disclosure  of  my Protected  Health  Information,  I can  contact  the 
Release of Information  staff or Health Information  Management  Services  at Physician. 

4.  I understand  that I may revoke  this authorization  in writing except to the extent that Physician have 
previously  used or disclosed  the Protected  Health Information  in reliance  on this authorization. To 
revoke this authorization, I understand that I must deliver a signed written statement clearly stating that 
I revoke this authorization to Health Information  Management  Services,  Physician.  

 
This  authorization expires twelve (12) months from the  date  of signature, or on:   _ 

 

 
 

Authority or Relationship of Representative 
(Unless parent, attach copy of documentation 

Signature of Personal Representative/ 
Guardian 

of authority, e.g.  court order designating guardianship)    
Signature of Student 

 
 

Date 



 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBITD 
 

Consideration  for Services Provided 
 

In consideration of the Services Physician will be providing under this Agreement, 
District agrees to provide the following consideration to Physician: 

 
I. District shall compensate Physician a sum of $0.00 Dollars for Physician's 

Services during the term of this Agreement. 
 

2.  In exchange for Physician providing the Services to District pursuant to this Agreement, 
District agrees to provide Physician the considerations as set forth in separate 
agreements between District and each individual school incorporated under this 
Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 ofl3 



 



SAMPLEThis model form is published by the National Athletic Trainers’ Association.  It is a sample only and was not developed to address specific needs of any particular orga-
nization or the specific facts any organization may face.  The form should not be used or relied upon without the advice of retained legal counsel.  The National Athletic 
Trainers’ Association disclaims any and all responsibility or liability that may be asserted or claimed arising from reliance upon the use of this form by any person.model 
form is published by the National Athletic Trainers’ Association.  It is a sample only and was not developed to address specific needs of any particular organization or 
the specific facts any o

This model form is published by the National Athletic Trainers’ Association.  It is a sample only and was not developed to address specific needs of any particular orga-
nization or the specific facts any organization may face.  The form should not be used or relied upon without the advice of retained legal counsel.  The National Athletic 



 



 
 

Sample Standing Operating Procedures  
2014-2015 

 
The following are general treatment Standing Operating Procedures (SOP) for injuries/illnesses as seen 
by the following Licensed Athletic Trainer(s) for School: 
 
NAME:      State Licensure #: 
 
 
These general treatment orders are as outlined by the American Orthopedic Society for Sports Medicine: 
 

1. Evaluate and initiate first aid care for all injuries to all student-athletes.  
2. Carry out an appropriate rehabilitation program to increase range of motion, strength, and agility using those 

indicated modalities. 
3. Clear the student-athlete to return to full or partial activities as the student-athlete progresses. If a student-athlete 

sees a physician the student-athlete will secure appropriate medical clearance before they can return to participation.  
The student-athlete must meet the following criterion to be able to safely return to participation: 

a. 90% strength, full pain-free range of motion, & normal gait pattern (if applicable). 
4. HEAD: An appropriate healthcare professional trained in the evaluation and management of concussions must 

evaluate all cases of a suspected concussion, including but not limited to unconsciousness and/or memory loss.  All 
student-athletes with a suspected concussion must follow the Concussion Management Plan for School before they 
return to participation.  Student-athletes may compete a 5 Phase Return to Participation program with the Licensed 
Athletic Trainer(s) if designated by the licensed healthcare professional trained in the evaluation and management of 
concussions.  The School Medical Director allocates the Licensed Athletic Trainers to determine if a concussion is 
suspected.  If no concussion is suspected, the School Medial Director designates the Licensed Athletic Trainers the 
responsibility to return an athlete to participation. 

5. NECK: A physician must evaluate brachial plexus injuries with motor weakness. 
6. UPPER EXTREMITY: Suspected fractures and dislocations are to be immobilized and referred to a physician for 

immediate evaluation. 
7. ABDOMEN: Evaluate, treat and refer to a physician as indicated. 
8. CHEST: Evaluate and treat to rule out a Sudden Cardiac Arrest event and refer to a physician as indicated. 
9. PELVIS/BACK: Evaluate, treat and refer to a physician as indicated. 
10. LOWER EXTREMITIES: Suspected fractures and dislocations are to be immobilized and referred to a physician for 

immediate evaluation. 
11. General Physician Referral: In addition to the specific cases previously mentioned, the Licensed Athletic Trainer(s) 

shall communicate their assessment and management of those non-referred cases in a prompt manner to the Team 
Physician or Physician designated by parent/guardian.   

12. Licensed Athletic Trainer(s) will communicate with Team Physician on a weekly basis regarding athletes, injuries, 
rehabilitation, and return-to-participation status. 

13. Please refer to the Standard Procedures for Injury and Illness for Licensed Athletic Trainer(s) document for further 
information. 

 
 
 
_________________________________________, MD   ________________________   ____________ 
Medical Director Signature    Medical License #  Date 



 



LICENSED ATHLETIC TRAINER(S) 
WRITTEN PHYSICIAN SUPERVISING AGREEMENT 

 
 
   ______ _______     
(1) Name of Licensed Athletic Trainer   State Certification # 
 
    ________    
(2) Name of Licensed Athletic Trainer    State Certification # 
 
 ____________    __ 
(3) Name of Licensed Athletic Trainer   State Certification # 
 
____________________ 
Name of Organization/ Employer of Athletic Trainer 
 
    ________ __    
Physician’s Name and credentials    Medical License #   
    
I, ____  __________________  as team physician/consulting physician, supervise the 
licensed athletic trainer(s) named in their/his/her provision of athletic training services under 
my direction* while employed by/working at:    
 
________ HIGH SCHOOL_______________________________ (location).    
 
*Direction is defined by the (include reference to appropriate state medical acts) as……  
 
At all times, the licensed athletic trainer(s) listed above will act within the scope of practice of 
his/her/their education and training as defined in the Rules and Regulations of the (include 
appropriate state practice act(s)) and as further delineated in the Athletic Training Standards of 
Practice and the Athletic Training Practice Domains for the Athletic Trainer (BOC): 
www.bocatc.org   The Certified Athletic Trainer will maintain communication with me, at 
defined intervals, via the following modes:  
 
____X_____ phone call       ____X_____ email      ____X______ other electronic means (e.g. fax) 
                                 (check all modes of communication that apply and define communication schedule) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Further delineation of responsibilities or expectations will include: 
 
*See Policy & Procedure Manual for      High School 

http://www.bocatc.org/


Physician Direction Document 

2 

 
 
 
 
This Document is only valid only Date to Date. This document is nullified if either the licensed 
athletic trainer(s) or physician change employer, relationship, or has his/her/their 
license/certification revoked during the length of this contract. 
 
 
             
LICENSED ATHLETIC TRAINER’S SIGNATURE     DATE 
 
             
LICENSED ATHLETIC TRAINER’S SIGNATURE     DATE 
 
________________________________________________  __________________ 
LICENSED ATHLETIC TRAINER’S SIGNATURE    DATE 
 
             
TEAM OR CONSULTING PHYSICIAN’S SIGNATURE    DATE 
 
________________________________________________               __________________ 
TEAM OR CONSULTING PHYSICIAN’S SIGNATURE   DATE 
 
 
TEAM OR CONSULTING PHYSICIAN’S: 
 
Business Address: _______ 
 
   _______ ________________________ 
 
Phone Number: ___________ Fax Number:  _______ 
      
Email Address:  ____ __________________________________________ 
 
Enclosures:  -BOC for the Athletic Trainer – Standards of Practice 
  -[Appropriate state practice act] 



Physician Direction Document 

3 

 
References: 

 
1.  Board of Certification for the Athletic Trainer – Standard of Practice: 
http://www.bocatc.org/athtrainer/STDS/  (See enclosure) 

 

2.  Athletic Training Practice Domains: http://www.bocatc.org/athtrainer/DEFINE/ 

• Prevention  
• Clinical Evaluation and Diagnosis  
• Immediate Care  
• Treatment, Rehabilitation & Reconditioning  
• Organization & Administration  
• Professional Responsibility  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.bocatc.org/athtrainer/STDS/
http://www.bocatc.org/athtrainer/DEFINE/


Physician Direction Document 

4 

Written Physician Protocol  
 
The following are general treatment orders for injuries treated by the athletic trainers at High School. 
 
Those athletes that were referred to and are under the care of physician may receive the following 
(standing written prescription): 
 

1. Modalities as indicated.  Modalities may include electrical stimulation and/or ultrasound. 
2. Rehabilitation exercises including strengthening exercises, proprioception excerises, etc.  

Progressing athlete as tolerated by the certified athletic trainers or written protocol. 
3. Fast Track x-rays as indicated by injured body part: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Return to competition/practice criteria.  Athletes must be able to achieve the following before they can return 

to competition/practice: 
a. Achieve pain-free, full Range of Motion and decreased symptoms 
b. Achieve full weight-bearing status 
c. Achieve pre-injury strength, flexibility, and/or endurance of the injured body part 
d. Complete a functional/Sports Specific return-to-play program conducted by the AT 

 
 
_____________________________________________________________ Date_______________ 
 



 





References 

 

Almquist J. & Reynolds J. (1999) Secondary School Settings Support Through Cost Analysis. 

 Proceedings, National Athletic Trainers' Association 50th Annual Meeting and Clinical  

Symposia. Human Kinetics, pp. 121-123. 

Berry, J. (1993) Showing our Value in Dollars and Cents, NATA News, June 1993, pp. 8 – 10. 

Boden BP, Breit I, Beachler JA, Williams A, Mueller FO. Fatalities in high school 

and college football players. Am J Sports Med. 2013; 41(5):1108–1116. 

Costello-Wells B, McFarland L, Reed J, Walton K. School-based mental health clinics. J Child 

 Adolesc Psychiatr Nurs. 2003;16:60–70. 

Courson et al.(2014)  Interassociation concesus statement on best practices for secondary 

 schools and colleges. Journal of Athletic Training, 49(1): 128-137. 

Gall G, Pagano ME, Desmond MS, Perrin JM, Murphy JM. Utility of psychosocial screening at a 

 school-based health center. J Sch Health. 2000;70:292–8.  

Grundstein AJ, Ramseyer C, Zhao F, et al. A retrospective analysis of American football 

hyperthermia deaths in the United States. Int J Biometeorol. 2012;56(1):11–20. 

Halstead et al., (2013). Returning to learning following a concussion. Pediatrics. 132(5). 948- 

 957. 

Johnson V, Hutcherson V. A study of the utilization patterns of an elementary school-based  

 health clinic over a 5-year period. J Sch Health. 2006;76:373–8. 

Johnson et al., (2017). Sports related emergency preparedness in oregon high schools. Sports 



 Health, 9(2), 181-184. 

Keeton et al., (2014). School based health centers in an era of health care reform: building on 

 history. Current Problems in Pediatric and Adolescent Health Care. 42(6). 132-158 

Kerr ZY, Casa DJ, Marshall SW, Comstock RD. Epidemiology of exertional heat illness 

among U.S. high school athletes. Am J Prev Med. 2013;44(1):8–14. 

Kucera KL, Marshall SW, Kirkendall DT, Marchak PM, Garrett WE Jr. Injury history as a risk 

factor for incident injury in youth soccer. Br J Sports Med. 2005;39(7):462. 

LaBella, C., MD, FAAP, Henke, N., Collins, C., & Comstock, R. D., PhD. (2012, October 22). A 

Comparative Analysis of Injury Rates and Patterns Among Girls' Soccer and Basketball 

Players At Schools with and without Athletic Trainers From 2006/07-2008/09. Lecture 

presented at AAP National Conferece and Exhibition in Hilton Riverside - Grand Salon 

D19/D22, New Orleans.  

Maron BJ, Doerer JJ, Haas TS, Tierney DM, Mueller FO. Sudden deaths in young competitive 

athletes:analysis of 1866 deaths in the United States, 1980–2006. Circulation. 

2009;119(8):1085–1092. 

Marsh HW, Kleitman S. School athletic participation: mostly gain with little pain. J Sport Exerc  

 Psychol. 2003; 25(2):205-228 

Mazerolle, S. M., Raso, S., Pagnotta, K. D., Stearns, R., & Casa, D. J. (2015). Athletic directors’ 

 barriers to hiring athletic trainers in high schools. Journal of Athletic Training,  50(10). 

Meehan et al.  A substantial proportion of life-threatening injuries are sport-related. Pediatr 

 Emerg Care. 2013; 29(5):624–627 

National Athletic Trainers’ Association. (unpublished media review) 



National Center for Catastrophic Sports Injury Research (2013). http://nccsir.unc.edu/research/ 

National Federation of  State High School Associations The case for high school activities. 

 https://www.nfhs.org/articles/the-case-for-high-school-activities/ 

Osborn (2001). Principles of liability for athletic triners: Managing sport related concussion.  

 36(3). 316-321. 

Pryor, R., Casa, D., Vandermark, L., Stearns, R., Attanasio, S., Fontaine, G., & Wafer, A. 

(2015). Athletic Training Services in Public Secondary Schools: A Benchmark Study. 

Journal of Athletic Training, 50(2), 156-162. 

Quandt et al., (2009). Legal liability in covering athetic events. Sports Health, 1(1). 84-90. 

Robinson, B. (2015, March). The value of the secondary school athletic trainer. Retrieved 

 fromhttp://www.nfhs.org/articles/the-value-of-the-secondary-school-athletic-

 trainer?ArtId=54029 

SafeKids Worldwide: Changing the Culture of Youth Sports Report – 2014 http://www.safekids. 

U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission. National Electronic Injury Surveillance System 

 (NEISS) Estimates 

Walker SC, Kerns SE, Lyon AR, Bruns EJ, Cosgrove TJ. Impact of school-based health center 

 use on academic outcomes. J Adolesc Health. 2010;46:251–7 

Wham, G., Saunders, R., & Mensch, J. (2010). Key Factors for Providing Appropriate Medical  



Care in Secondary School Athletics: Athletic Training Services and Budget. Journal of 

Athletic Training, 45(1), 75-86.  

Wier L, Miller A, Steiner C. Sports injuries in children requiring hospital emergency 

care, 2006. Rockville, MD: Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality; 2009. HCUP 

Statistical Brief #75. http://www.hcup-us.ahrq.gov/reports/statbriefs/sb75.pdf. 

 

 

  

 

 

 



Madison School District 
District Health Care Provider 

 
 
The Madison School District in Adrian MI invites applications for District Health Care Provider. 
This is a 12 month position that will begin in conjunction with the balanced school year in June 
2017.  Salary will be commensurate with experience and credentials. The successful candidate 
will provide school health and athletic training services to students and student-athletes at 
Madison School District. The successful candidate will work closely a strong community of 
school professionals to coordinate and deliver the highest standard of care. It is expected that the 
successful candidate will maintain a commitment to excellence and to the advancement and 
growth of Madison School District. 
 
Required Qualifications: 

 BOC certified and Michigan state licensed athletic Trainer 
 Michigan state licensed Emergency Medical Technician 

 
Preferred Qualifications: 

 CPR and First Aid instructor certification 
 
Salary and Benefits:  
 

 $35,000 - $40,000, commensurate with experience   
 Health, LTD, Dental and Vision insurance (or Cash in Lieu of Health Insurance) 

equivalent to that provided to members of the teaching staff   
 
Essential Job Functions (The entire job description may be accessed at (PLACE URL HERE) 
 

1. Assess and provide appropriate care and/or referral of illness or injury to elementary, 
middle and high school students in accordance with school district policy and procedure.  
 

2. Coordinate and deliver athletic training services to student athletes including but not 
limited to:  coordination of pre-participation exams, emergency care, evaluation and 
treatment of injuries at practices and games, design and supervision of rehabilitation and 
performance enhancement programs, appropriate referral, and administration of athletic 
training operations 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=16&cad=rja&uact=8&sqi=2&ved=0ahUKEwjs75f7xeXTAhVh5oMKHUeVBGIQFghvMA8&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.indeed.com%2Fq-Salary-Commensurate-With-Experience-Qualifications-jobs.html&usg=AFQjCNFStAOeHjp8SRrkrHTW-6RcjvlUfw&sig2=q4UAAIwD397U7SP7R7fBrQ


Madison School District  
Job Description 

 
Position Title: District Health Care Provider  
Area: Instruction 
Reports To: Superintendent  
Supervises: n/a 
Last Revised: May 2017 
 
SUMMARY: 
The District Health Care Provider will care for student health injuries and/or illnesses. The provider will 
work with parents, students, and school personnel in order to optimize the health of each student. 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS  
Within the scope of practice defined by state licensure laws: 

1. Maintain appropriate general treatment orders to be reviewed annually and approved by the 
designated supervising physician. 

2. Assess and provide appropriate care and/or referral of illness or injury to students in accordance 
with school district policy and procedure  

3. Coordinates and delivers athletic training services to student athletes including but not limited to:  
coordination of pre-participation exams, emergency care, evaluation and treatment of injuries at 
practices and games, design and supervision of rehabilitation and performance enhancement 
programs, appropriate referral, and administration of athletic training operations. Attendance at 
practices and competitions will be mutually agreed upon between the athletic trainer and 
appropriate supervisor. Availability will be based upon legal requirements, injury risk of the sport 
and other mutually agreed upon factors. 

4. Assists in the control and reporting of communicable diseases according to the law and district 
policy and procedures.  

5. Administers medication in accordance with the law and district policies and procedures 
6. Maintains accurate records regarding medications and student health care services rendered 
7. Communicates with and educates parents and district officials (ie faculty, staff) as appropriate 

regarding individual student health status. 
8. Maintains confidentiality in accordance with federal statutes such as Health Insurance Portability 

and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
(FERPA) 

9. Notifies the District of serious incidents, significant health problems, referrals and possible child 
abuse.  

10. Assists with updating and implementing district wide exposure control plans, universal 
precautions and emergency preparedness. 

11. Conducts in-services for staff and students in identified areas (ie: first-aid, CPR, communicable 
diseases, universal precautions, seizure control etc.) 

12. Serves as a resource for the ongoing development of health and safety education curriculum  
13. Knowledgeable and stays current with an awareness of community resources who screen vision 

and hearing, provide immunizations, provide information about communicable diseases  
14. Serves as the intermediary between the school and the home, private physician and health and 

social agencies, regarding the health status of students and their needs for consideration in future 
student health planning 

15. Assists in the development of policy, administrative procedures, and implementation for sound 
health practices for students 



16. Assists in the development of a budget and maintains facilities in accordance with the law and 
district standards 

17. Exhibits knowledge of job limitations and accepts supervision.  
18. Performs all other health-related work required to accomplish the objectives of the total school 

health program.  
19. Aware of and complies with district policies and procedures in support of nondiscrimination 

standards 
 
COMPETENCIES, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

1. Ability to use computer for tasks such as for basic word processing, daily email, electronic record 
keeping, excel data processing, etc. 

2. Ability to coordinate itineraries/meetings/events/schedules 
3. Ability to research information 
4. Ability to prioritize multiple tasks 
5. Ability to deal effectively with a changing environment and be open to new ideas 
6. Ability to communicate in person, via phone and computer 

 
PHYICAL DEMANDS: 

1. Transporting injured athletes from the field. Assist in lifting injured athletes and carrying said 
athlete for a short distance so they are out of harms way. 

2. Carrying heavy equipment such as water coolers and medical kits 
3. Completing physical testing procedures of muscles and ligaments to all body joints, etc. 
4. Completing all taping procedures in a reasonable amount of time. 
5. Running across uneven field surfaces in a reasonable amount of time to care for emergency 

situations. 
6. Be able to perform CPR and First Aid procedures. 
7. Must be able to move intermittently throughout the work day with frequent prolonged 

standing/walking/ talking 
8. Must be able to read and speak the English language 
9. Must be able to see, hear, and move intermittently, or use prosthetics that will enable you to 

function adequately to assure that the requirements of this position can be fully met. 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 

1. Must be able to cope with the mental and emotional stress of the position. 
2. Must be able to perform under high stress and multi-task situations 
3. Must have a regular and reliable level of attendance 
4. Will be exposed to outdoor weather conditions and may experience long and/or irregular hours 

 
QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to 
perform each essential job function satisfactorily. The requirements listed above are representative of the 
knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions. 
 
EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: 
 
Required: 

• BOC certified and Michigan state licensed athletic Trainer 
• Michigan state licensed Emergency Medical Technician 

 
Preferred: 



• CPR and First Aid instructor certification 
 
 
TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT 

• 180 days to coincide with the Balanced and Traditional School Years.  
• Summer administrative duties as required 
• Salary and fringe benefits 
• Continuing education, licensure and certification funds 

 
EVALUATION 
Performance of this job will be evaluated.   
Approved by: Date: 
Reviewed and Agreed to by: Date: 

 

 


	Agenda - Special Meeting 05.15.17
	MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
	MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT


	Board Packet 051517
	revenue april 2017
	expenditures April 2017
	check register
	RR Board Report
	KT Board Report
	BA Report
	Cafeteria Board Report 2016-17
	Lenawee Child board report
	School Health Professional proposal
	Appendix A The need for School Based Health Care
	Appendix B Athletic Training and EMT Practice Act
	Appendix C EMT Scope of Practice
	Appendix D Athletic Training Scope of Practice
	Appendix E Risk Mitigation
	Appendix F Equipment to meet minimum care standards
	Appendix G MedicationPolicy
	Model Policy and Guidelines for Administering Medications to Pupils at School

	Appendix H Guidelines for developing Team Physician Services
	Disclaimer:
	Qualifications for a Team Physician
	Defining the Role of Team Physician
	Costs Related to Physician Services
	Liability Insurance for Team Physician
	Team Physician Supervision of the Athletic Training Staff
	Team Physician Accessibility and Communication
	Event Coverage for the Team Physician
	Establishing a Return to Play Process for the Team Physician
	Sideline Preparedness for the Team Physician
	Evaluation of Team Physician
	References
	Samples/Examples
	Appendix A. Services Agreement – Example A


	School Health Professional - Job Posting
	School Health Professional Proposal White Paper
	School health professional reference list


	Madison Athletic Code of Conduct FINAL.pdf
	Substance abuse will not be tolerated. Smoking, use and/or possession of any tobacco or nicotine-based products, drinking and/or possession of intoxicating beverages, use and/or possession of drugs is strictly prohibited.
	1. FIRST OFFENSE: The student-athlete will be suspended from competition for ½ of the games scheduled in the sport season that he/she is involved in; or be suspended from ½ of the games scheduled in the next sport that he/she participates in if he/she...
	2. SECOND OFFENSE: The athlete will be suspended from all athletic competition for the six calendar months following his/her second offense.  If less than six months remain in the school year, this penalty will carry over to the succeeding school year.
	3. THIRD OFFENSE: The athlete will be suspended from all athletic competition for one calendar year from the beginning of the suspension.
	4. FOURTH OFFENSE: The athlete will be suspended for the remainder of their athletic eligibility.
	1. Suspension from two weeks of athletic competition.
	2.  Suspension for ½ of a sport season.
	3.  Suspension for the remainder of the school year.


	Agenda.pdf
	MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT
	MADISON SCHOOL DISTRICT





